
3.10.3 The institution exercises appropriate control over all its financial resources. 

The University of Louisville (UofL) exercises appropriate control over all of its finances. The 

Board of Trustees (BOT) oversees the university's system of internal control of financial 

resources. As specified in The Redhook l. 1. 1, the Board adopts a budget annually [I] . The 

Redhook Section 2.1.2 states that the university president is the chief administrative and 

educational officer of the university [2] . The president prepares annual operating budgets (3) 

and recommends them to the BOT after consultation with appropriate university units and their 

administrators. The president also recommends a biennial budget [4] to the Kentucky Council on 

Postsecondary Education (CPE), with the approval of the BOT, and modifications of the budgets, 

as needed, to the Board of Trustees of the university. 

In January 2017, Acting President Neville Pinto announced several interim appointments. To 

address the vacancy of the Senior Vice President for Finance and Administration, he established 

three interim positions: Chief Administrator Officer (CAO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), and 

Chief Operations Officer (COO) [5]. The Chief Administrator Officer (CAO) reports directly to 

the president of the university and has oversight and managerial responsibility for all financial 

areas, including internal audit, and for human resources . The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 

reports up through the CAO, and all of the unit-based Lead Fiscal Officers report up through the 

CFO. The Chief Operations Officer (COO) is responsible for Information Technology, 

Business Services, Facilities Management, and Public Safety. The Executive Vice President and 

University Provost also reports to the president and oversees strategic planning and budgeting in 

addition to academic duties [6]. 
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Budget and Financial Planning 

Since 1970 the university has employed a hybrid form of incremental budgeting to develop its 

annual general fund operating budget. General funds include state appropriations, tuition 

revenue, and other funds that can be used for any unrestricted purpose . Other components of the 

total operating budget for the university such as activities housed in the University of Louisville 

Research Foundation Inc. (ULRF) , University of Louisville Foundation (ULF) Inc., and the 

University of Louisville Athletic Association Inc. (ULAA) are derived primarily using a 

"program budgeted" approach. This budgeting technique employs a projection of revenue for 

each activity with expenditures not to exceed revenues. The annual operating budget process 

includes meeting with university constituencies, identifying university -wide budget priorities and 

issues, and determining and disseminating overall budget guidelines to the university 

community [7]. 

The university's budget development and financial planning process includes preparation and 

oversight of the university's general fund and non-general fund budgets . T he process includes 

the preparation and oversight of the budget for funds provided by the UofL Foundation (ULF). 

The ULF has been designated by the university to receive funds derived from gifts and other 

sources, including funds held in trust. 

The president reviews the budget and presents it to the university 's Board of Trustees with a 

recommendation for adoption . The Board of Trustees has final authority for approving all annual 

budgets. 
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Procurement and Expenditures 

The university follows KRS 164A.560 [8], which authorizes public institutions of higher 

education and their affiliated corporations to perform the functions of acquisition of funds, 

accounting, purchasing, and capital construction. The department of purchasing derives its 

authority to sign contracts on behalf of the university from the Board of Trustees and from the 

Boards of the affiliated corporations, as regulated by KRS 164A.560. 

External Audits 

Per state statute KRS 164A.570 [9], the financial records for the university and its affiliated 

corporations are audited annually in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Standards 

(GAAS). Along with auditing the financial statements of the university and its affiliates, the 

external auditors evaluate the internal controls over financial activities. The results of the audit 

and internal control evaluation are communicated to the university and to the Audit Committee 

of the Board of Trustees. The Audit Committee reviews the results of the audit and recommends 

approval to the full Board of Trustees. Deficiencies that are considered significant, individually, 

or in the aggregate, are communicated in the form of a management letter. When control 

deficiencies are identified, the university administration reviews the issue and identifies the 

cause of the problem. Corrective action is identified and is included in the issued management 

letter and labeled as the "Management's Response," which is also communicated to the BOT 

committees. The university's most recent audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, did not 

identify any significant control deficiencies [ IO]. 
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Internal Audit 

The university maintains an internal audit function that reports functionally to the Chief 

Administrative Officer and administratively to the Board of Trustees Audit Committee. The 

function is governed by a board-approved charter and is charged with conducting routine and ad 

hoc reviews of internal controls of the university and its statutory affiliates, as well as assessing 

overall enterprise risk. The results of individual reviews, including findings, recommendations, 

management response, and action plans, are published to the Chief Administrative Officer, 

administration of the responsible department, and the Compliance Oversight Council (COC), a 

committee made up of senior administrators that provides an infrastructure to facilitate ongoing 

assurance that the institution is complying with internal and external laws, regulations, policies, 

and procedures. Pending issues are tracked until action plans are completed and the 

implementation is verified by internal audit staff. A summary of the status of pending issues is 

published bi-monthly to the Chief Administrative Officer and the COC. 

Cash and Short-Term Investments 

Financial control of cash assets begins with receipt of any negotiable instrument throughout the 

university, including cash, checks, or credit card payments. The university has delegated the 

responsibility of establishing cash handling procedures to the Controller, currently reporting to 

the Chief Financial Officer. This responsibility includes enforcing these policies and procedures, 

requiring establishment and maintenance of appropriate records, and performing periodic audits. 

The Controller's Office also establishes and authorizes banking accounts to be used for university 

finances. 

CS 3.10.3, Page 4 of 13 



Internally managed short-term funds are those funds for which use and disbursement are 

anticipated to occur within one to three years. The objective is to achieve and maintain a high 

degree of safety and liquidity and to maximize investment income based on investment strategies 

for repurchase agreements, money market funds, mutual funds, United States Treasury bills, and 

certificates of deposits. All short-term investments are subject to documented limitations. The 

Short-Term Investment Policy is implemented in accordance with Kentucky regulations related 

to type and term of instruments purchased on behalf of the university [ l l ]. The Controller's 

Office is responsible for the day-to-day management of the investment of short-term funds and 

reports to the board on the status of the funds when requested. The university's Short-Term 

Investment Policy was revised in the spring of 2016 with the provision that the BOT would be 

updated as requested. In response to the Kentucky State Auditor's review, the university is 

instituting a routine, annual reporting on short-term investments as part of overall financial 

reporting. 

Gifts and Endowments 

University Advancement is the university's fundraising unit. It solicits, receives, and records 

gifts from donors. Endowment donations are invested in various asset classes and are intended 

to last in perpetuity. After the funds have been invested for one calendar year a portion of the 

income is available for use by university units based on the annual spending policy for 

endowments approved by the UotL Foundation's (ULF) Board of Directors. The ULF 

Accounting Department calculates the spending policy, and the amount is available to the units 

beginning in July. This amount is communicated to the university and loaded into the budget 

system, which makes it available for spending. The university is reimbursed by the foundation as 
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the budget is spent. Amounts that are not spent remain invested by the foundation at the end of 

the year. 

Financial Transactions (as listed in 1/27/17 letter) 

Dr. Wheelan's letter referenced the Kentucky State Auditor's Report and identified items of 

concern related to Comprehensive Standard 3.10 .3. Additional information related to the 

Voluntary Separation Plan and the two agreements with the University of Louisville Foundation 

and the Universi ty of Louisville Real Estate Foundat ion follow. 

Auditor Finding #2: Voluntary Separation Incentive Program (VSIP) 

In spring of 2013, Uofl.. announced a Voluntary Separation Incentive Program (VSIP) that would 

provide eligible faculty and staff a financial incentive to separate from employment status with 

the University [ 12]. The primary goals of the VSIP were threefold : 

• 	 At a time when state funding had been reduced1 it enabled the university to reduce salary 

expenditures, which in turn helped the university to limit tuition increases, support 

strategic investments, and support salary increases for facu lty and staff . 

• 	 It rewarded dedicated faculty and staff who have worked for years in support of Uofl.. 

and who were interested in retirement but needed some assis tance in making a transition 

from active employment to retiremen t. 

• 	 It provided senior leadersh ip with the strategic opportunity to reorganize and reallocate 

faculty and staff positions across the univers ity. 

Table 1 details the program's incentives and separat ion dates. 
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Table 1. Voluntary Separation Incentive Program for Eligible Employees 

Vo luntary Sepa ral lOn lncE'ntw.- Program 

for H R1ble £mployee 5 

Emplayee Type lr!Q!ntivePl'f HelllhPI.. Se.,..ion fram Univenity 

F1rulty UMonU!sof 
Annual Base 

Salary 

All emplovees wno hive not re1Clleel are 65 may 
o,ntinue to partldpate in the Unlversity's health 

plan until they bemme Mediare eli&ible 
Ltuversity wl ll pay 50!4of the hell th plan 
subsidythat applies to recularfulf-l ime 

empl ayees for upto th rte vurs. 

GeneraQy '11111separate 
within 12montl\sof vs:P 

Aniva1I on Oate 

Admlnlstrators and Staff 6Months of 
Annual Base 

Salary 

All emplgyees whO have not reacned 11e65 may 
o,ntinue to partldpate in lhe lkli verslty's healtll 

planuntil tlley become Medlare ell&iblt . 
U'llversttv WIii pay50!4ot the health plan 
subsidythatappllesto reparf\.l !J.time 

employeesfor up to three years 

Generally will sejl arate 
with in IS months of VS!P 

Activlllo n Date 

The projected total savings from the VSIP initiative to the university's general fund was about 

$7.3 million. The total savings are cumulative from FY 2013 to FY 2016. 

The pool of funds that could be used to support the VSIP buy-outs differed based upon the 

classification of the individuals who participated in the VSIP program. Faculty tenure rights 

could be bought out using either general or restricted funds; however, the university could not 

expend general fund dollars for the staff portion of the VSIP buy-outs, beyond payments for 

accrued sick and/or vacation leave, based upon the strict interpretation of Section 3 of the 

Kentucky Constitution (specifically, the private emoluments clause), which prevents the payment 

of state dollars to individual employees without receiving consideration in tum, either in the 

form of services or something else of value such as a release. In the case of faculty, the purchase 

of contractual tenure-rights meets that requirement. Specifically, the text of Section 3 is as 

follows, with the relevant language underlined : 

Section 3. Men are equal - No exclusive grant except for public services ­

Property not to be exempted from taxation - Grants revocable. All men, when 
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they form a social compact, are equal; and no grant of exclusive. separate public 

emolmnents or privileges shall be made to any man or set of men, except in 

consideration of public services; but no property shall be exempt from taxation 

except as provided in this Constitution, and every grant of a franchise, privilege or 

exemption, shall remain subject to revocation, alteration or amendment. Text as 

ratified on: August 3, 1891, and revised September 28, 1891. History: Not yet 

amended. Private and local legislation prohibited , Const. 59; Property exempt 

from taxation, Const. 170. 

For this reason, the university employed ULF funds to achieve the goals of the staff portion of 

the VSIP. 

Auditor Finding #4: Financial Transactions between UotL and ULF and ULREF 

As noted in the Kentucky State Auditor's report, there were two agreements involving UofL and 

the UofL Foundation, one in 2014 and one in 2015. 

The University of Louisville Board's of Trustees (BOT) regularly delegates and assigns 

signature authority to the university president and other officers to execute contracts on behalf of 

the university. The resolution approved by the BOT on February 16, 2017, granting this 

authority states: 

WHEREAS, the Interim President, or his designee (appropriately documented) , Acting 

Executive Vice President/Provost, Interim Chief Administrative Officer, Interim Chief 

Financial Officer, Interim Chief Operating Officer, Interim Associate Vice President for 

Finance/Controller, and Director of Purchasing are officers or agents of the University of 

Louisville and are empowered to execute contracts on behalf of the University of 
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Louisville pursuant to their respective administrative duties, including contracts with 

federal and other governmental agencies. 

The BOT resolutions for the signature authority of President James Ramsey, 2001 [13]; Acting 

President Neville Pinto, 2016 [ 14]; and Interim President Gregory Postel 2017 [ 15] and their 

respective deputies are provided. 

As discussed in note 4 of the UofL and Affiliated Corporations Auditor's Report and Financial 

Statements for FY 2013-2014 [16], the university entered into a Memorandum of Agreement for 

a loan of $29 million to the ULF. This agreement, dated June 27, 2014 [ 17], was a one-year loan 

and was signed by former UofL president Dr. James Ramsey; Jason Tomlinson, ULF Chief 

Financial Officer (CFO); and Susan Howarth, the UofL Associate Vice President for Finance. In 

the agreement, the university loaned funds to the Foundation to support real estate activities 

related to the university's strategic goals as outlined in the UofL 2020 Plan and Tactical Goals 

[ 18]. In return, the university received I percent interest from ULF. According to the university's 

FY 2015 audited financial statements, the 2014 loan was fully repaid as of June 30, 2015 [19). 

As discussed in note 5 of the UofL and Affiliated Corporations - Auditor ' s Report and Financial 

Statements for FY 2015-2016 [20], the university entered into a memorandum of agreement for a 

loan of $38 million to the ULREF, an affiliate organization of ULF, in the amount of $38 

million. This agreement , dated July 1, 2015 [2 1 J, was a three-year loan and was signed by Dr. 

James Ramsey and Mr. Jason Tomlinson. Mr. Tomlinson also served as assistant treasurer to the 

UofL Real Estate Foundation (ULREF). The terms of this MOA included a 1 percent interest 
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return to the university. The ULREF repaid $28.2 million of the loan during fiscal year 2016, 

leaving a balance of $9.8 million as of June 30, 2016 per the repayment schedule. 

The ULREF was established in 20 14 to provide infrastruc ture for future acquisition, 

development , and management of real estate, primarily on the university's Belk.nap campus 

but also throughout the city, in support of the university . It also was established to help shield 

the endowmen t from potential liability for injuries or claims arising out of or on any of the 

properties . 

Each agreement included an analysis of the financial benefit [22] to the university and to the 

foundation . The university always has cash reserves and must determine what, if anything, to do 

with that cash. There are times in which the loaning of the cash on a short-term basis is a good 

investment. In the case of the two separate loans of $29M and $38M respectively, the money was 

loaned to the ULF to enable the ULF to purchase properties for the ultimate benefit of the 

university. Some of the property the university already occupied under lease agreements through 

the ULF, and the loans allowed for the purchase of the property. The university was able to loan 

the money at a lower rate than the ULF would otherwise pay to a lending institution . In return 

the university not only collected interest but it also had the ability to use the land purchased for 

its benefit. 

See Comprehensive Standard 3.2.13 for a discussion of the use of the funds and the 

relationship of the loans to the university ' s mission. 
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Summary 

The institution's control over its financial resources is extensive and comprehensive. UofL's 

financial position is strong. As mandated by KRS I 64A.570, the university hires a qualified firm 

of certified public accountants to perform an annual examination of the institution, which ensures 

a regular cross-check of stability. Institutional revenues continue to grow despite recurring 

reductions in state general fund appropriations. As illustrated in Table 2, the university's total net 

position is positive. 

Table 2-University's Net Position from FY 2014 to FY 2016 

Statementsof Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

The statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position present the University's results of 
operations. Condensed statements of the Umversity's revenues, expenses and changes in net position for 
the years ended June 30, 2016, 2015 and 2014, are summarized on the following page· 

Condensell StatementsofRevenues, Expensesanll Changes in Net Position 
 
Years ended June 30,2016, 2015, and 2014 
 

( In Thousands
) 

2016. 2Dl5 21115. 2014 
2016 2015 21114 Change Change 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Studert tuilion end fees, net $ 209,503 $ 209,834 $ 209,442 $ (331) S 392 
Cliriclll services and practiceplan 269,31)j 252,446 227,858 16,8.59 24,.588 
Grants and contracts 103,416 90,13.5 91,886 13,281 (1,7.51) 
Facililiesand acminist:ative cost recoveries 24,611 22,596 21,965 2,01.5 631 
Other 102,734 93,329 81,262 9.40.5 12.067 

Totlll operating revenues 709.$69 668,340 632.413 41,229 3.5,927 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Depreciation .51,29.5 .53,339 .56,333 (2,044) (2,994) 
Other 959.370 911,024 817,350 48,346 93,674 

Total operating e:i:penses 1,010,66.5 964,3153 873,683 415,302 90,1580 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Stllte appropriations 142,213 14'.l,744 147,256 1,469 (6,.512) 
Other nanoperatingrevemes 171,794 168,0.52 92,164 3,742 75,888 

Total mncperating revenues 314,007 308,796 239,420 .5,211 69,376 
lna"eue/(decruse)in net position 12,911 12,773 (1,8.50) 138 14,623 

Nelp05ition- beginrung ofye11r 706..SSO 693,807 695,6.57 12,773 (1,8.50) 
Net position - end of yeer $ 719,491 $ 706,580 $ 693,807 $ 12,911 s 12,n3 

Source: UotL Consolidated Financial Statement FY 2015-16 
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As it relates to financial control at the institution, the UofL BOT regularly delegates and assigns 

signature authority to the university president to execute contracts on behalf of the university. As 

discussed earlier in 3.10.3, the president and authorized university adminis trators regularly sign 

financial agreements beneficia l to UofL based on this delegated board authority . Also, UofL and 

the ULF conduct regular board orientations to ensure that members are aware of their legal and 

fiduciary responsibilities [23] [24]. 
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3.10.3 fnOl 
 

Sec. 1.1.1 Powers of the Board 

In accordance with the statutory authority of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, the Board of 
Trustees of the University of Louisville shall exercise final jurisdiction over the University. It 
shall select the President of the University; and upon recommendation of the President, it shall 
make all appointments to the faculty and all appointments of individuals in administrative 
capacities who serve at the pleasure of the Board. The Board of Trustees shall adopt a budget 
annually for the ensuing year and grant all degrees conferred by the University. 
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3.10.3 fn02 
 

Sec. 2.1.2 Powers and Duties of the President 

The President's functions are as follows: 

A. To be the chief administrative 	 and educational officer of the University and to perform such 

other duties and have such other powers as may from time to time be prescribed by the Board 

of Trustees. 

B. To make overall policy for all aspects of the academic and other functions of the University, 

coordinating with whatever individuals, groups, or organizations may be required. 

C. To recommend major poJicies and other major actions to the Board of Trustees for its final 

action and to be the official medium of communication between the Board of Trustees and the 

various segments of the University and their official bodies. 

D. To make final decisions for which the office has received delegated responsibility over a wide 

range of activities from the Board of Trustees; such actions are ordinarily taken after 

consultation \\ith various concerned individuals, groups, or organizations. 

E. To enforce the rules and regulations of the University. 

F. To establish and make changes in the administrative 	 structure and table of organization of the 

University after consultation "ith indhiduals or groups when the matter relates to their 

sphere of responsibility. 

G. To recommend to the Board of Trustees all personnel actions, including tenure decisions, 

concerning faculty members and administrators and to make final decisions concerning all 

other personnel actions. 

H. To prepare annual budgets and recommend them to the Board of Trustees of the University 

after consultation with appropriate units of the University and their administrators; to 

recommend a biennial budget to the Council on Higher Education with the approval of the 

Board of Trustees; to recommend modification of the budgets as needed to the Board of 

Trustees of the University. 

I. 	 To appoint University-wide committees. 

J. 	 To manage the University through officials that report to the Office of the President. 

K. 	 To provide leadership in the development of academic instructional, research, and sen,ice 

programs by making initiatives to the Faculty Senate and to the faculties of academic units and 

their planning committees concerning such programs, and any other possible changes in 

curriculum or academic policies which are the responsibility of the faculty. 

L. 	 To serve ex officio as a member of all faculties and all faculty committees, to call and preside 

over the meetings of the University Congress and such advisory groups as the President 

chooses to appoint, and at his or her discretion to call meetings of the faculties of the colleges 

and schools of the University. 

M. To be responsible for all University functions relating to student affairs and the life of students 

at the University, as well as intramural and extramural or intercollegiate athletics . 
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N. 	 To arrange for the President's signature to appear on all diplomas issued by the University, 
 

either in the original or by facsimile. 
 

0. 	 To be responsible for all aspects of the relations of the University to the community and for 
 

providing information about the activities of the University. 
 

P. To be responsible for public services of the University, including hospital and clinic 
 

affiliations. 
 

Q. 	 To maintain continuing relations \,ith governmental agencies at city, county, state, and federal 

levels as required by the mission of the University. 

R. 	 To be responsible for relations of the University \\ith alumni. 

S. 	 To he responsible for raising funds from the federal government, state and local public 
 

sources, corporations, private indh,idua ls, foundations, and other sources. 
 

T. 	 To supervise programs for constant maintenance and improvement of their quality, for the 
 

effectiveness of their senices to students, for the adequacy of research, and for their 
 

accountability to the people of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, to the students, and to 
 

granto rs or donors. 
 

U. To be responsible 	 for the University role in construction and renovation, in maintenance of 
 

buildings and grounds, in the acquisition of essential new facilities, equipment, and library 
 

materials, and in space aJlocation and utilization. 
 

V. 	 To prepare and submit to the Board of Trustees an annual report upon the work and general 
 

status of the University. 
 

W. The President 	 may delegate to the University Provost, the appropriate ,ice president or others 

the responsibility for carrying out any of the above functions. 

http ://lou isv iI le .edu/provost/redbook/chap2 .htm I 	 4/27/20)6 

http://lou


3.10.3 fn03 
 



UNIVERSITY OF 
 

LOUISVILLE 
 

FY 2015-16 
 

OPERATING BUDGET 
 



Board of Trustees 

Dr. Robert Curtis Hughes, Chair 

Ms. Mar:i~~Abrams 

Mr. Robert P. Benson 

Dr. taurence Benz 

Dr. Emily Bingham 

Mr. Jonathan Blue 

Dr.James Ramsey 
President 

Mr. Ront ~uff 

Mr. istephen \Campbell 

Dr. Kevin Cosby 

Dr. Pam Feldhoff 

Mr. Craig Greenberg 

Ms. Mona Ii1Haldankar 

Mr. DouglassHall 

Mr. lBriuce!Henderson 

Ms. Angela Lewis-Klein 

Ms. Brucie Moore 

Dr.Jody Prather 

Mr. ·Robert W. Rounsavall~1111 

Mr. Steve\Wffso n 
Dr. Neville Pinto 

Ms. Phoebe Wood Interim Executive VP and Provost 



Table of Contents • tou1svii.Li 
2016 Operating Budget It's Happening Here . 

• 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Transmittal Letter ....................................................................................... ...................... .................................................................. .................... xi 
 

Introduction ....................................................................................................... .............. .............................................................................• •..•..... 1 
 

Budget Overview ............................ ........................... .............................................................................. ............... ........................ .......... ,. •.••••••••••••3 
 

Seven Strategies ............................. ................................................................... ..................... ...................... ......................................... , .............. 5 
 

Strategic and Financic:il Planning ...................................................... .............. .......................... .................................................................... ....... 9 
 

Budget Values and Principles .............. ....... ......... .......... ...... .................................................... ..................................................................... ..... .. 9 
 

Input Into Budget Planning .............................. ................................................................................................................... ................ ..... ......... 10 
 

General Fund Revenue .......................................................................... .................................... ............................................. ............................... 11 
 

Revenue Assumptions ..................... ................................................... ................................... ................................. .......... ................................. 11 
 

Tuition and Fees ....................... .................................. ............ ............ ..................................... ............................................... ........................... 13 
 

New or Modified Approved Tuition and Fees ............ ...................................... ................................... ......................... ............. ........................ 16 
 

Intensive English as a Second language Program ............................................. ................... .................... ...................................... .. ..... ........ 17 
 

Physics and Astronomy ..... ............ ................................. .......................................................... .... ............... ............................... .................... 18 
 

Health and Sports Sciences .......................... ............................................... ................................... ... ,. ............................................. .............. 18 
 

Meal Plan ............................. ............................ ........ ... ......... ........................ ..... ............................ ................................................................ . 18 
 

Housing ..................................................... ....... ............... ............................. ............... ........................................ ........................................... 18 
 

State Appropriation and Other State Funds ................ .......................... ........................................... .................... ............................................ 20 
 

Transfers from Uofl Corporations ........................ ............. ................ ............. ........ .................... ................... .............................................. ..... 22 
 

Non-Educational Revenue ................................ ................................................... .... ..................... ........................................ ............................. 22 
 

Summary of Revenue Changes ..................... ................................... ....... ................ ................................................................... ........................ 23 
 

m1Page 

http:tou1svii.Li


Table of Contents • toU1sv1iLE 2016 Operating Budget It's Happening Here. 
~ 

Detail Statement of University General Fund Revenues ............... ........... ................................... ............. ........................................................ 27 
 

General Fund Expenditures ...................................................... ................... ................ ..................... ......................................... .......................... . 41 
 

Expenditure Assumptions ..................................................... ............... ............................. ....... .............. ........................................................... 41 
 

Utilities .............................................................................................................. ••••••.••••••••••..••................ ............................... ............................ 43 
 

Debt Service ................................................................................ ................... ............................................................ ....................... ................ 44 
 

Strategic Initiatives ........................................................................................... ...................................................... ............................... ..... ....... 45 
 

Student Initiatives ............................................................................................................................................... .............................. ................ 46 
 

• Financial Aid ................................................................................................................................................................................ ........... 46 
 

Faculty and Staff Initiatives ................................................................................................ .... ................................ ........................................... 47 
 

• Salary and Wage Pools ...................................................................................................................... ......... ............................................ 47 
 

• Faculty Promotion Fund .................................................................................................... ...................... ................................... ............ 47 
 

• Staff Promotion and Reclassification Fund ....................................................................... ............... ..................... ................. ................ 47 
 

Seed Funds for 21.s1 Century Focus Areas Initiatives ................. ....................................... ............. ............... ............... ........................ .............. 47 
 

• Seed Funding ................................................................. ........................... ............................................. ..................... ............................ 47 
 

University Budget Balancing Strategies for FY 2015-16 ......................... ..................... ..................... ...... ............... ............................................ 47 
 

Voluntary Separation Incentive Program (VSIP) ...................................................... ......... ........................... ......... ............................................ 47 
 

Summary of Expenditure Changes ........................................ .................. ......... ....................... ...... ............... ....................................... .............. 48 
 

Expenses by Natural Object, FY 2015-16 .............................. .............................. ................ .................................... .................. ........................ 53 
 

Expenses by CSD, FY 2015-16 ......................................................... ....................... .............................. ............................... ............ ................... 54 
 

Expenses by Program Classification Structure (PCS), FY 2015-16 ....... ............ .......... ............................................... ..................... .................... 59 
 

Program Budgets ..................................................................................... ................... ...... .............. ............................................ .............. ......... 61 
 

1v1Page 



Table of Contents 1sv1iLi•.:.ou 2016 Operating Budget It's Happening Here. 
_._ 

Detail Statement of University General Fund Expenditures ....................................... ................................................................ ....... ............... 64 
 

Academic Unit Summaries .............................................. ........................... .............................. .... .................................................................... ..... 99 
 

Academic Support Programs ............................................. .................................. ............... ....... ...................................... .................................. 99 
 

College of Arts and Sciences ............. ...... ................................................... ..................................................................................................... 105 
 

College of Business ...................................................................................... ........... ......................................................................................... 114 
 

School of Dentistry ........................................................................................... .................................... ........................................................... 118 
 

College of Education and Human Development ................. ................................... ................................ ................................ ......................... 122 
 

School of Interdisciplinary and Graduate Studies ............................. .............................................................................................................. 129 
 

Kent School of Social Work ........... ......... ................... ......................... ............................... ..................... ......................................................... 133 
 

Louis D. Brandeis School of Law .................................................... .... .......................... ................ .................................................................... 137 
 

University Libraries ...................................................................... ....... .................. .......... ................................................................................. 143 
 

School of Medicine ............................................................................................. ............... ............... ..................................................... .......... 148 
 

Metropolitan College ............................................... ............................ ....................................... ............................ ........................................ 152 
 

School of Music .............................. ............................................ ............................... ................................... ..................... .............................. 155 
 

School Nursing ......... ..................... ....................................... ..................... .......... ................................ ............
 .......................... 159 
 ........................
 

Other Academic Programs .................................... .................................. ............. ............... , .... , ............................................... ......................... 162 
 

School of Public Health and Information Sciences .......... .................................................. ............................................................................. 171 
 

J.B. Speed School of Engineering ........................................ .............................. ................ ................................................... ........................... 177 
 

Undergraduate Affairs .......................................................... ........................... ....................... ......................................... ................ ................ 185 
 

Support Unit Summaries ..................................................................... ....................................... ....................................................... .................. 187 
 

Auxiliary Enterprises ......................................................................... ..................................... ........................................... .... .................... ....... 187 
 

General Institutional Expense.......................................................................................... .............................................. ............. .................... 190 
 

v lF'ag e 



Table of Contents • t.oU1sv1iLE
2016 Operating Budget It's Happening Here . 

-• 
Institutional Support-Office of the President .................................................................. ............................... .............................................. 191 
 

Institutional Support-Executive Vice President and University Provost ......................... .................................................................. ........... 194 
 

Institutional Support-Vice President Business Affairs .................................................................................................................................. 197 
 

Institutional Support-Vice President Information Technology ................................................................. .................................................... 200 
 

Institutional Support-Vice President University Advancement ...................................................... ............. ................................................. 204 
 

Institutional Support-Vice President Community Engagement ................................ .......................................... ......................................... 207 
 

Institutional Support-Vice President Finance .................................... ............................. ............................................. ................................. 209 
 

Institutional Support-Vice President Human Resources .............................................................................................................................. 212 
 

Sr. Vice President for Finance and Administration .............................................. ...................................... ..................................................... 215 
 

Executive Vice President Health Affairs ........................................................ ..................... ............................................................... .............. 216 
 

Executive Vice President Research and Innovation ............................................................................................................................. ........... 218 
 

Physical Plant ......................................................................... ..................................................... ..................................................................... 221 
 

Reserves.............................................................................. ............................................................. ........................... .................................... 224 
 

Service Centers .................................................................... ......................................................... ................................................................... 226 
 

Student Affairs ...................................................•••••••••••.•........................................................................••..••••••••............................................. 228 
 

Student Financial Aid .............................................................................. ~ ....................................... .•••.••••••••••••••••••••••...................................
 ... 230 
 

Enrollment Management .............................................................................. ........................... ....................................................................... 232 
 

Student Government Association ..................................................... ................................................................................................... ........... 233 
 

Mandatory Transfers (Debt Service) ............................................................................................ ............................... .................................... 235 
 

Outstanding Bonds .................................................................. ........................................... ........................................... .............................. 235 
 

University Housing .................................................................... ...................................................................................................................... 237 
 

University of Louisville - Quality and Charity Care Trust ........................................................................................... ..................................... 239 
 

v, IPege 



Table of Contents• t.ou1svii.tE 
2016 Operating BudgetIt's Happening Here• 

-'­

Budget Trend Data ................. ........................ .................................................................................................................. ......... ................ .......... 240 
 

Use of New General Fund Dollars ......... ............................ ........................... ........................................ .................... .................. ...... ............... 240 
 

General Fund Budgeted Expenditure History ......................................... .......................................... .......... ......................................... .......... . 241 
 

State Appropriations as a Percent of Total Budget (for KYState Supported Universities) ................... ............... .......................................... 243 
 

Unit Budget Reductions Ten Year History ............................... .......................................................... .......... ................................... ........... ..... . 245 
 

Credit Hour Production Trend ....................................... ................................................... ........ .............................. ................ ......................... 246 
 

Maintenance and Operations Expenditures for Facilities.......... .................. ............................... .......................... ..................... ............... ...... 247 
 

Five Year Utilities Cost (Total Univers ity) ........................... ..................... ................. .................. .... .... ....................................... ..,..... ............... 248 
 

Continuing Education Programs ........................ ......... ............ .... .......... .................................. ...... ........................... ....... ............. .............. ...... 249 
 

Debt Service Changes... ... ........... .................................................. ..................... .................. ................... ..................................... .. .......... ........ 250 
 

Auxiliary Enterprise Revenue and Expenses Three -Year Trend .................................. ................ ................. .......... ........................................ 251 
 

Ten Year Salary Increase Trend by Personnel Category .. ............ ......................... .................... ............... ............... ..................... ......... ......... . 252 
 

Graph of Salary and Wage Increases (Base Year 1981-82, Jan to Jan CPI}.................................... .............. ........... .............. .......................... 253 
 

Summary of Ten Year FTETrend of Budgeted Positions ...................... ............................ ................................... ................................. ........... 254 
 

Uofl Corporations.................................................................................................................................................................................
..............255 
 

University of Louisville Research Foundation, Inc.. ........... ................................................................ ........... ...................................... ............. 258 
 

Clinical Services ................ ............................. ....................... .................... ................................ ............................... .............. .......................... 259 
 

Sponsored Agreements - Direct Costs....................................... ........................ .......................... .................................... ................................ 260 
 

Source of Funds ..................................... ............................... ............ ........ ..................... .................. ............................................................ 262 
 

Use of Funds ..................................................................... ............................ ..... ............ ......... ................ ......................... ............. ............... 264 
 

Sponsored Agreements - Facilities and Administrative Cost Recoveries (F&A)................................................... ......... .......... ................... .... 265 
 

University of Louisville Foundation, Inc. ............................................... .................... ....................... ............................. ................................. .. 267 
 

vii lPag e 

http:t.ou1svii.tE


Table of Contents • LOUISViLLE2016 Operating Budget It's Happening Here . 
• 

Fundraising, Foundation Business Operations, and Other Unrestricted Funds ....................................................... ........................... ..... ...... 268 
 

Restricted Endowment Funds......................................................................................................................................... ............................ .... 268 
 

Gift Funds ....................................................................................................... ............. ....................................................... ............................. 312 
 

University of Louisville Athletic Association, Inc ...................... ........... ................... ............ ............ ........................ ......................................... 315 
 

Quality and Charity Care Trust ................................................ ................ ......................... ....................................... ........................................ 319 
 

University of Louisville Medical School Fund, Inc ..................... ................................. ....................................................... .............................. 320 
 

Capital Budget Summary ..................................................................................................................................................... ........................ ....... 321 
 

Support Materials - Board Action Items ........................................ .......... ............................................ ......................... ...................................... 323 
 

Budget for FY 2015 .................................................................. .......................................... ..................... .................... ..................................... 323 
 

Tuition for AV 2015 ........................................................................................................... ........... ... ............... .................................................. 326 
 

Increase and Approval of Various Fees ................................. ......... ................... .................... ........ ............... ................................................... 329 
 

Six Year Capital Plan ................................................................. ..................... ................... ...................................................... ......................... 332 
 

LIST OF TABLES 
 

Table 1: Extraordinary Achievements ........................................................................................... ................... ............... ........................................ 1 
 

Table 2: UofL Operating Budget FY 2015-16 ..................................................................................... ................ ..................................................... 4 
 

Table 3: Change in General Fund and UofL Corporation Budgets, FY 2001-02 and FY 2015-16 ............... ................ ............................................. 5 
 

Table 4: Stewardship, Cost Reduction and Efficiency Efforts FY 02-15 ................ .......... .................................................................................... .... 6 
 

Table 5: General Fund Revenues by Source ................................. ..................... .................. ................................................................................. 12 
 

Table 6: UofL Academic Year (AV) 2015-16 Regular Tuition Schedule per Semester ............. ............ ...................... ............................................ 14 
 

ltlllI P age 



Table of Contents • toU1sviitE 2016 Operating Budget It's Happening Here. 
• 

Table 7: Uofl Academic Year (AV) 2015-16 Special Tuition Schedule per Semester ....................................... .................. ................................... 15 
 

Table 8; Tuition and Fees Approved for AV 2015-16 ....... .................... ...................................... ........................................................................... 17 
 

Table 9: AV 2015- 16 Housing Rate Schedule ..................................... ............................... ............................................... .......................... ........... 19 
 

Table 10: State Mandated Budget Reductions to Uofl by Fiscal Year ............... ............................................. ............ .............. ........................... 20 
 

Table 11: General Fund Expenditures by Category for FY 2015-16 ..................... ................................................................................ ................. 42 
 

Table 12: Utilit y Expenditure Analysis by Campus and Fiscal Year ........... ...... .... ........................................ .............. ........................................... . 43 
 

Table 13: Debt Service Change Schedule ..................... .............................. ........................ ............. .................................................................... .. 44 
 

Table 14: FY 2015-16 Investment in Strategic Initiat ives .................................. .... ......................................... ................................................. ..... 46 
 

Table 15: Notable Changes in FY 2015-16 Program Budgets ........................................................................ .................................................. ..... 61 
 

Table 16: Uofl Corporations Source of Funds ........................ ........................................................... .................................... ............................. 256 
 

Table 17: Uofl Corporations Use of Funds .............................................. ................... ...... .................... ........... ........................................... ........ 257 
 

Table 18: Uofl Research Foundation Budget ............... .................... ................................. .................••....•................................ ...•.•.•.•••••.•••••.•••• 258 
 

Table 19: Clinical Budgets by Unit, Fiscal Year 2015-16 ..... ............. .......................... ..................... ...................................................... .............. 259 
 

Table 20: Federal Direct Award Dollars by Agency FY 2009 through FY 2014 .......................... .......... ............................. .............. .................... .263 
 

Table 21: Uofl Foundat ion 5 Year Budget Trend ....... .............. ................................ ....................................................................... .. ............... . .., 267 
 

Table 22: University Endowment Allocations by College, School, or Division .................................................... .................. ..... .............. ........ .. 270 
 

Table 23: Gift Allocations by CSD for FY 2016 ....................... ......... ................ ................................ .................. .............. ....... , ............................. 313 
 

Table 24: Gift Budgets FY 2011-12 through FY 2015-16 ............................................... ........................... .. .......................... ....... .......... ,. ••••. ,........ 314 
 

Table 25: ULAA Revenue and Expenditure S Year Budget Trend ............................. ........................................ ...... .......................................... .. 316 
 

Table 26: ULAA Financial Aid Budget Analysis ....................... .... ................................. ............................... ...................... ............................... .... 317 
 

Table 27: ULAA Application of Funds, FY 2014 to 2016 Budgets ......................... ... , .................. ........................ .......... ................... ........ , ............. 318 
 

Table 28: Quality and Charity Care Trust 5 Year Budget Trend ........... ............... .............. ................................ .................................... .............. 319 
 

ixlPage 



Table of Contents • toU1sv11.LE2016 Operating Budget 
It's Happening Here . 

• 
Table 29: Uofl Medical School Fund 5-year Budget Trend ......... ............... ............................................... ...................... ................................... 320 
 

Table 30: Capital Budget Summary ......................................... .................... .............................. ... ................ ................... .................................... 322 
 

Table 31: Capital Budget 2016-2022 Plan by Unit ...................................... ............................................................ ............. ........... .................••• 322 
 

LIST OF FIGURES 

Figure A: Budget Values and Principles ............................................................................................. .......... .................................. ................. ........ 9 
 

Figure B: Input into Budget Planning ............................................................................................ ............... ............................. .............. .............. 10 
 

Figure C: Uofl State Appropriation per FTE Student ........................................................................................................ .................................... 21
. 
Figure D: Sponsored Research Awards Received by Uofl, FY 2009-10 through FY 2014-15 (estimated) ................. ........................... ............. 261 
 

Figure E: Sponsored Research Funds Received by Uofl by Sponsor Type in FY 2014-15 (estimated) ............................ ............................... .... 262 
 

Figure F: Sponsored Research Award Dollars Received by Uofl by Purpose in FY 2014-15 (estimated) .............................. ............................ 264 
 

Figure G: Uofl F&A Income FY 2007 through FY 2016 .................. .............. ............... .......................... .............................................................. 266 
 

Figure H: Endowment Market Value 3 Year Trend ................. ........................ ............... ...................... ... ............................................................ 269 
 

x SPage 

http:toU1sv11.LE


3.10.3 fn04 

UNIVERSITYOF LOUISVILLE 

2016-18 KENTUCKY BRANCH BUDGET 
Agency Budget Request Overview Report 

Governmental Branch: Executive Agency: Postsecondary Education Institutions 
 
Cabinet/Function: Postsecondary Education Appropriation Unit: University of Louisville 
 

The University of Louisville (UofL) is a state-supported university located in Kentucky's largest 
metropolitan area. The Louisville area continues to be one of the largest and most dynamic urban 
locations in the region. UofL is actively engaged in the community ns a leader in the 
educational, economic, and social well-being of the Commonwealth's citizens. 

The University's state mandated goal, as detailed in the Kentucky Postseco11dary Educatioll 
Improvement Act of 1997 (House Bill 1). is to become a premier, nationally recognized 
metropolitan research university. To achieve lhis goal, UotL launched its 2020 Plan - Makingit 
Happen,whichseeks to advance the University's mission by having: 

• The courageto question convention. 
• Thepassionto break new ground. 
• The insight to champion community. 
• The imaginationto pursue the undiscovered. 
• The willto achieve greatness. 
• Thepromiseof a limitless future. 
• Thepeople to bring it to life. 

In late 2012, the University announced the 2151 Century University Initiative, which is a broad­
bnsed, campus-wide initiative to re-energize and expand on the 2020 Plan. The 2 l st Century 
Initiative is built on: 

• An uncompromising focus on excellence in academic and research; 
• Clear actions to achieve university goaJs; and 
• A timeline for implementation. 

Under the 21st Century Initiative, the university will pursue IO strategic initiatives organized 
within three closely connected categories: 

• Academic& Research Priorities 
• Culture of Excellence 
• FinanciaJ HeaJlh 

These categories can be viewed ns four triangles within one triangle, as shown in the following 
graph. Central to the mission of the university is its "Academic WldResearch Priorities." The 
University exists to educate students, conduct research, and provide community service. It is the 
middle triangle standing on its apex. On its own, it will fnll over. The three other triangles­



BUDGET REQUEST OVERVIEW 

financial health, culture or excellence, and 2151 Century Initiative-support the university's 
academic mission and priorities. 

Each of these categories is outlined in the following sections. 

Academic & Research Prioritles 

UofL is committed lo promoting advancements in academic and research. 

Acaclemic Priorities 

Our academic priorities focus on improving learning for all studenLc;. UofL has already made 
significant strides. For example: 

• 	 The number of baccalaureate degrees conferred has increased from 1,734 in 1998-99 to 
2,832 in 2014-15, which represents a 63.3 percent increase. 

• 	 The 6-year gr-Jduation rate for the fall 2009 cohon was 52.9 percent which represenlS a 
19.7 percentage point increase over the fall 1998 cohort mte of 33.2. 

• 	 The freshman to sophomore persistence mte for the fall 2014 cohort was 79.4 percent, 
compared to 64.0 percent for the fall 1998 cohort. 

• 	 The 2015 freshmen cla.c;s had 2,736 (full-time) students with an uverJge ACT composite 
score of 25.5. Last year the University led the state in the number of Fulbright scholars 
and had the only Truman Scholar in Kentucky. 
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To continue improving, the University's academic priorities include the following initiatives: 

• 	 Empowering Undergraduate Learning through enriched curricula. outstanding 
pedagogy, enhanced learning experiences, und world-class learning spaces, provide the 
very best educational experience to our undergraduate students. 

• 	 Creating nn Environment for Student Success will focus on adoption of best practices 
und evidence-based strategies to increase the academic success of all our students, with u 
particular focus on broadening opportunity for those who have been underserved. 

• 	 Excellence in Graduate & Professional Education will focus on providing enhanced 
learning and research experiences to our graduate and professional students. 

Research Priorities 

UofL remains at the regional forefront in research activity and research funding. UofL, for 
example, recently became one of only three institutions in the United State to be designated a 
Research Evaluation and Commercializalion Hub (REACH). which included a $3 million award 
from the National Institutes of Health. 

Research priority areas include: 

• 	 Translational research takes research findings and turns them into applicable 
technologies and products quickJy and efficiently. 

• 	 Investing in Competitive Multidisciplinary Areas of Strength with targeted 
investments in selected multidisciplinary areas of research that address major societal 
needs and in which we are nationally prominent. 

• 	 Investing in Emerging Research & Creative Areas with institutional investments in 
additional multidisciplinary areas of research and creativity, to build a broad and deep 
base of scholarly excellence at the university. 

UofL also supports public-private research endeavors by providing operational support to 
companies seeking to commercialize promising new technologies. The Nucleus building, for 
example, on the J.D. Nichols Campus for Innovation and Entrepreneurship provides space for 
UofL researchers. entrepreneurs, and innovative companies to come together and cultivate new 
products and ideas. These partnerships give private companies the ability to focus on commercial 
activities with the goal of job creation in the area. 
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Culture of Excellence 
To promote a supportive, rewarding, nnd high-pcrfonning culture, the University has the 
following initiatives: 

• 	 Equity, Fairness and Recognition - Along with efforts to establish excellence in 
research and teaching, lhe university will strive to develop a culture thnt values nnd 
rewards its employees for outstanding perfonnances and recognizes their unique 
contributions to students and the community. 

• 	 Professional Development and Training - To reward petfonnnnce, improve service to 
our students, and to help employees advance in their careers, the University will offer 
faculty and staff enhanced opportunities to strengthen and expand their skills and 
knowledge through professional development. 

• 	 Communication- The 2 l 51Century Initiative will rely on communication among all 
constituencies, including external. 

Financial Health 
Financial health is the key to successrully serving students and lhe Commonwealth of Kentucky. 
The University of Louisville is a careful steward of all revenues, including state appropriations 
and student tuition. The University seeks to allocate these limited resources in an efficient nnd 
effective manner in order to meet its long-term strategic goals. 

Initiatives related to financial health include: 

• 	 RevenueEnhancement-The University will continue to advocate for increased state 
funding for higher education while pursuing a broad range of strategies to leverage 
demand for higher education, philanthropic support, and research. New sources of funds, 
such as the Tax Increment Financing districts, will also help enhance academic and 
research efforts. 

• 	 Administrative Enhancement-The University will improve the effectiveness of 
business operations and reduce costs where possible to ensure financial stability. 

4 



BUDC£T REQUEST OVERVIEW 

Budget Request 

The following table summarizes Uofi..'s state general fund budget request for fiscal years 2016­
17and 2017-18. 

Prior Year Appropriation 
FY2016-17 
140,416,300 

FY2017·18 
148,131,900 

Base Budget Adjustments 
State Supported Debt Service 

Adjusted Base Appropriation 

(1,339,400) 

139,076,900 148,131,900 

Additional Budget Adjustments 
Strategic Investment Funds: 

Performance Funding 7,055,000 7,055,000 

Special Initiatives: 
Centers for Research Excellence: 

University of Louisville portion 2,000,000 2,000,000 

Total Requested Budget 148,131,900 157,186.900 

For FY 2016-17, the University of Louisville requests $146,131,900 plus $2 million for the 
Centers for Research Excellence special initiative. For FY 2017-18, the University of Louisville 
requests $155,186,900 plus $2 million more for the Centers for Research Excellence. Included in 
each year's request is $7,055,000 for performance-based funding. 

The University of Louisville also requests $33,333,000 in another round of the Bucks for.Brains 
funding. 

s 
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2011-2011 Kllnluclcy Branch Budget 
BueNneBudget Requ11t l!xpendlbn Detall Smnmary Record 

All raqunled column• raundedto nearat S100 
OPERATINGBUDGET RECORD A1/A2 Agency:PoatlltCOfldaryEducationl1111tltutlons 

Appropriation:Unlvenslty DI Loulavllle 
OovemmentalBlanch: Enculhla Branch Proara,n18efvlce Unit 

Cabinet: PoablCClfldalyEducation SUbProgram: 
Posting Unit 

FY2013-14 FY2014-1S FY2015-11 FY201f.17 FY2017-11
Actual Actual Budgetu Rl!luatad Requatld 

SOURCE OF FUNDS 
<3enera1Fund 
Regular A,lpraprldan 1M,212,300 139,078,900 1.C0,418,300 139,071,900 139,078,900 
Mandated Allalments 0 837,IOO 1,034,700 0 0 
TptaJ P•Dflll fund :111.a:IZ.iHIII :1:11.?1"-?DOH1,§1.RIHI ia1m.1m1 2~1.m.1111 

RHtrlclad Funda 
CurrentRec:elpll 780,601,IKJO 811,249,900 97-4,383,300 974,383,300 074,383,300
ImaiBNlrlr:tedElmdl ZIILlll!,1111 l:t:l,W.IIHI IM.ilH,iHIII IH.mHQ lli.iH,HII

Fedm'alFund 
CurrentRece/pll 89,525,400 84,583,500 112,770,400 112,770,400 112,770,400 
IQftlEtstlm(fund ILIZ§.41111 U1BiLHII ua.no..ao :l:IZ.IZMIII :1:IZ.IZI,~ 
TOTALFUNDS 11011.3311100 1103!z!!!i 100 1,221.~700 1,221.ma1ao 1,221,230,IOD 
EXPENDl1URE8 BY CLASI 
Penionnel CDIII 844,045,400 881,352,000 714,878,300 714,878,300 714,878,300 
OperatingExpenses 2.aB,118,300 300,942,000 343,048,IIOO 342,012,100 342,012, 100 
GrantsLa11n1 32,818,800 37,488,200 1211,417,300 1211,<417,300 1211,417,300Beneftts 
DebtSemce 22,801,000 19,147,100 18,835,700 17,498,300 17,498,300 
Capllaloutlay 18,358,100 18,838,100 22,428,800 22,428,500 22,428,IOO 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES BY ClASI 1101!i3391IOG 11~!!!z1oa 11221,1~700 1,221123011GO 11221123!!.IOO 
EXPENDITURESBY FUND SOURCE 
General Fund 163,678,200 139,714,700 141,451,000 131l,071S,800 139,070,IIOIJ 
Re.bided Fl.Ilda 763,029,500 811,249,llOO 974,383,300 97.C,383,300 1174,313,300 
Federlt Fund Bll.811,1DO 84,1583,500 112,770,400 112,770,-400 112,770,400 
TOTAL EXPl!NDmJRES BY FUND 11011111!z!!o 11~1isc11100 11!!!;.IN 1na 11221123011GO 1122t,230,IOD 
EXPENDmJREBY UNIT 
AcademicSUpport 100,353,100 114,51-4,300 141,721,500 1'41,721,500 141,721,500 
AuxlllaryEnlarpllaes IM,245,300 103,52S,OOO 102,181,400 102,1111,-400 102.191,44!0 
Hospllall 17,781,200 837,800 1,034,700 0 0 
lnatllutlonalSUppart 78,545,400 77,3711,500 117,068,DOD 97,068,000 97,068,000 
lnttrucllan 298,191,500 295,128,500 374,05-4,800 37'4,054,IKJO 374,054,800 
Ubrlltes 1,4,820,100 115,8711,'400 20,832,700 20,832,700 20,632,700 
MandalaryTransfn 20,208,700 16,580,900 111,835,700 17,498,300 17,4111S,300 
Non-Mandatory 0 9,772,000 0 0 0Tran1rers 
Operallanand Malnlenancaof Plant 81,M3,800 83,124,800 52,242.000 52,242,000 62,242,00D 
Pubic Sen,fce 110,084,300 125.763,800 110,578,200 110,578,200 110,578,200 
Resean:h 150,822,1DO 147,988,000 148,088.100 146,088,800 148,088,800 
Schalanhlpl and FtlCM'lhlps 41,778,700 33.785,400 131,329,900 131,329,900 131,329,900 
studentSenlces 30,421,800 31,710,800 32,840,IMID 32,1140,900 32,840,900 
TOTAL EXPENDIT\JRES BY UNIT :l,ljLi:Jl,HII 2,IYI.Yl,:11111:I.ZZlll:1,ZIIII t,ZZl,Z~D.HII :l1ZZI.ZiHI.HII 
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2015-2011 Kenluclcy Bnnch Budgat 
Baelln• Budpt Request: Ellperkltura Detail Sumnwy Rllcanl 

ADraqunted columnsrounded to nnrnt $100 

OPERATIHB BUDGET RECORD A-3 Agency; PN1Ncond1,y Education lnl1ltutlon1 

GcMnun9ntal lnnc:h: Exec:uawBrancb 
cabinet: PoatNcondary Educallon 

Appropriation: 
PrognmlServlc• Uni: 

SulaProgram: 

Unlvually GI LoulsvHle 

Posting Unit: 

FY 2013-14 
Actual 

FY201"611 
Actual 

FY 2015-11 
BudgetN 

FY201 .. 17 
~qunlld 

FY2017-11 
Requnlld 

EXPENDllURES BY FUND SOURCE 
Fedenll Fl.lld 81,811,100 84,513,500 112,770,400 112,770,400 112,770,400 
GeneralFund 163,ffl,200 139,714,700 141,451,000 139,0711,900 138,0711,DOO 
Restndecl Fund 763,029,500 811,241,900 174',3113,300 974,313,300 974,383,300 
IQUI. mmnmtBEII 1rtBl!tR 1.ti1,ljLlml j,IIH.Mlajlll j,ZZl,IH.Zlll i ,zn,1a111 2,ZZI.Dl,1111 
EXP1!NDllUIU!CATl!GORY 

emRDDIIGUS 
E111Repr-Slllrles&W.,. 418,310,500 511,294,800 558,727,IIOO 558.727,800 666,727,800 
Othersalalfea&W.gea 17,308,800 18,034,11DO 14,4113,200 14,413,200 14,-483.200 
E121 Employer FICA 31,&fl,ODO 32,442,IIOO 31,631,800 38,831,800 38,831,800 
E122 Employer Retirement 31,413,700 40,747,300 40,982,800 40,982,600 40.1182,800 
E123 Heallh lnsurm 52,770,300 54,233,700 ..e,121,200 48,121,200 48,121,200 
OlherFringe Benenta 8,597,100 8,598,700 19,929,700 19,929,700 18,921,700 
&mlalll Slllrtea& Fringes 644,045,400 661,352,000 714,878,300 714,1178,300 714,878,300 

Iml e,nonotlGAIi ~.R!I..IID IH,illiZ.rHIII IH,IZl,HII zi•,m.~H IH,IZl,~911 
ORfllllnqEPIIDWI 

E210 Utllllel & Heating Fuels 21,016,700 21,130,800 23,189,IIOO 23.189,900 23,189,IIIIO 
E230 Mllnlenanc:e & Repah 15,404,400 17,152,900 15,240.000 15,240,000 15,240,000 
E310 ItemsForResale 3,125,700 2,707,800 3,514,eoG 3,584,800 3,584,eoo 
E320 SupplleS 242,137,700 243,2811,1100 283,818,300 282,781,800 282,781,800 
E3eO TINII Exp and &p AIJcrwanc:e 18,434,800 18,881,1100 17,218,000 17,218,000 17.218,000 

ISISilgnan11ngEmenus DILULallll a111.1:t2.001 Ha,HI.IIR ~z.1iz.i111 liZ.IU,jGQ 
D1111t.11...t1an11.1Banl!JII 

E440 FinlAslls!a.-Nan-SlaleEmployees 32,918,800 37,.Ctl8,200 1211,417,300 129,417,300 128,417,300 

Imai $J[lntd.aanslBaMflts a,1i1.1m1 ~Zdil,ZIHt 2n.ti:z.~1 izt.!jz,m izurr.a1 
PfbtSmbit 

DebtSenllc:e-GeneraFund 22.901,000 19,147,800 18,135,700 17,498,300 17,498,300 

IotalPtbtlllYkil Z.Z.lli,1211 jlJ!LIIII 11,Hl,ZII U.!11,alll U,!11,IIG 
SUbfOullay 

EeoBOlherca,,1!11OUUay 18,358.100 16,838.100 22..C28,600 22,428,600 22,421,600 

Tatal !&Dltll Qullu 21,Hl,iaa H,Gl.jllll ZWl,111 az.m,1111 ZZdU.IH 
TOTALEXPENDITURES j,DJl,Ul,111112,IIJli.l!LilHI i.zn.m.zaa 2,ZD,DLUII 2,211,Ull,IIHI 
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UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE 

2016-18 KENTUCKY BRANCH BUDGET 
Baseline Budget Request: Program Narrative/ DocumentationRecord 

OPERA TING BUDGET REQUEST FORM A-4 

GovernmentalBranch: Executive Agency: Postsecondary Education Institutions 
Cabinet/Function: Postsecondary Education Appropriation Unit: University of Louisville 

I. PROGRAM NARRATIVE (Specific Legal Citations) 

The University of Louisville was founded in 1798 and became a state institution on July 1, 1970. 
Under the enacted provisions of House Bill l (HB) in 1997, the University of Louisville was 
designated as a research institution with the mandate of becoming a premier metropolitan 
research university by 2020. 

Under HB I, the University of Louisville's mission is: 

( 1) Upon approval of the CPE the University of Louisville shall provide: 

a. 	 associate and baccalaureate degree programs of instruction. 

b. 	 master's degree programs, specialist degrees above the master's degree level, 
doctoral degree programs, and joint doctoral programs in cooperation with other 
public institutions of higher education. 

c. 	 professional degreeprograms including medicine, dentistry, law, engineering and 
social professions . 

(2) The University of Louisville is authorized to provide programs of a community college 
nature in its own community comparable to those listed for the community college 
system as provided in this chapter. 

(3) The University of Louisville shall continue to be a principal University for the conduct of 
research and service programs without geographical limitation but subject to the implied 
limitations of KRS 164.125. 

II. BASELINE BUDGET REQUESTS/ DOCUMENTATION 

Fixed Costs: 

The University's base budget includes many fixed costs. These costs renect what is necessary 
just to "keep the lights on.'' ln the past decade, diminished state support has placed an increased 
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financial burden on the University to cover these fixed costs. In order for the University of 
Louisville to meet its state-mandated goal of becoming a premier metropolitan research 
university by 2020, the University requires n higher state base budget The University cannot 
continue to rely on students and other funding sources to fund these structural costs. 

Faculty and Staff Salaries: 

At the University of Louisville, competitive faculty and staff compensation is critical to 
achieving the goals of HB l and the University's strategic plan. Competitive compensation is 
necessary to attract, recruit, and retain highly qualified faculty and staff. The inability to provide 
adequate salary increases may contribute to poor morclle among the University's faculty and staff 
and could encourage the University's best faculty and staff to move to other institutions and 
organizations. 

The President and the executive Leadership Team place employee compensation high on the list 
of University strategic priorities. For FY 2015-16, the University provided a merit-based salary 
increase pool of $7.8 million to pay for salary and wage increases and associated benefits. Even 
with FY 2015-16's salary increase, many faculty and staff salaries remain below competitive 
standards. The University's Leadership advocates strongly for a multi-year salary increase 
approach, based on performance, to move employee pay up to competitive levels. These salary 
adjustments are imperative to retaining the University's best and brightest faculty and staff. 

Ill. PERFORMANCE/ RESULTS DOCUMENTATION 

In order to re-energize and expand on "The 2020 Plan,"UofL developed a new initiative entitled 
the, u21st Century Initiative." This initiative assessed what actions are required to ensure the 
University accomplished the goals for 2020. The 2 (st Century Initiative is built on: 

1) An uncompromising focus on excellence in academics and research 
2) Clear actions to achieve university goals 
3) 	 A timeline ror implementation 

Examples include: 

• 	 UofL continues to develop the Shelby Campus; two office building complexes have been 
completed and a third is under construction. 

• 	 The energy-performance contract with Siemens, Inc. has enabled the university to save 
$12.9 million in energy costs over slightly more than six years. 

• 	 Tax-increment financing has helped fund the downtown life sciences research park. 

• 	 The FirstBuild micro-factory, a collaborative project with GE Appliances, Uofl and 
Local Motors, just celebrated its first year of business and received the Silver Fleur De 
Lis Awardfrom Greater Louisville Inc. this year. 
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• 	 Cardinal Covenant, which covers the cost of tuition, room, bonrd and books for students 
from families living at or below 150 percent of the poverty level, received a $1,500,000 
gift from Dr. Robert and Joyce Hughes. 

• 	 University of Louisville Signature Partnership received $5,000,000 from the Mary K. 
Oxley Foundation. 

• 	 The Kentucky Spinal Cord injury Research Center received a three-year, $1.5 million 
grant from the Leona M. and Hnrry B. Helmsley Chnritnble Trust. The nwnrd will benefit 
Dr. Andrea Behrman's research in pediatric spinal cord injury. 

Instruction: 

• 	 For the fall of 2015, there are approximately 22,599 students enrolled at the University of 
Louisville. 

• 	 For the 2014-15 academic year, 4,938 degrees were awarded as follows: 71 associate 
degrees and undergraduate certificates; 2,832 baccalaureate degrees; 1,352 master's or 
specialist degrees; 172 doctoral degrees; 395 first-professional degrees and I I 6 post­
baccnlaureate and post-master certificates were awarded. 

Research: 

• 	 Since the passage of HBl in 1997, UofL's strategic focus has included investment in our 
research enterprises. Grant and contract awards totaled $136.9 milHon in fiscal year 
2014-15. That is an increase of $53.3 million from fiscal year 2002-03. 

• 	 Research awards totaled $631 million from 2011-2015. The majority of this resenrch 
funding is geared toward life sciences and has resulted in an incredible return on 
investment in terms of human well-being. 

Public Service: 

The University's Health Sciences Campus outpatient clinics provide health care services to 
thousands of Kentucky's citizens. The following provides details on some of the services: 

• 	 Area Health Education Centers {AHEC): AHEC is a collaborative effort of the 
University of Louisville Health Sciences Center, the University of Kentucky Medical 
Center and eight regional centers. The AHECs work to improve the recruitment, 
distribution and retention of health care professionals (particularly in primary care) in 
medically under-served areas throughout the state. Each regional AHEC center serves a 
specific geographic area of the state, and is responsible for certain counties in their area. 

• 	 Center for Health Hazards Preparedness (formerly the Deterrence of Biowarfare 
and Bioterrorism): The center's activities aim to bring together the information 
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resources, humun expertise and research infmslructure to improve the local, regional 
and national response to outbreaks of infectious diseases and the defense against 
potential biological, chemical and radiation threats and natural disasters. 

• 	 Center for Predictive Medicine for Biodefense and Emerging Infectious Diseases: 
The Center for Predictive Medicine for Biodefense and Emerging Infectious Disease 
(CPM) supports basic and translational research to promote understanding of pathogens 
and their diseases for the development of therapeutics. The research efforts of the faculty, 
fellows, graduate students and staff affiliated with the CPM will provide new insights 
into basic mechanisms of newly recognized emerging diseases such as the "swine flu", 
West Nile encephalitis, hantavirus pulmonary syndrome and SARS. The University is 
committed to translation of the University's basic research efforts into new diagnostic 
methods, antivirals, antimicrobial drugs, and vaccines. For the conduct of these research 
and development efforts, the University of Louisville was awarded a grant to 
construct one of eleven Regional Biocontainment Laboratories (RBL) funded by the 
National Institutes of Health to provide state-of-the-an containment of these pathogens 

• 	 Department of Medicine Clinics and Centers: includes the General Internal Medicine 
Clinic, Preventive Cardiology Clinic, Medical Oncology and Hematology, University 
Sleep Center, Lung Nodule Clinic, Kidney Disease Program, Allergy and Immunology 
Clinic, Mecl/Peds Clinic, Dennatology Clinic, Gastroenterology/Hematology Clinic, 
Cardiology Clinic, Pulmonary Clinic, Rheumatology Clinic, Endocrinology Clinic, 
Infectious Disease and UofL WINGS HIV/AIDS clinics. 

• 	 Family and Geriatric Medicine Clinics: includes Family Medicine Clinics in the 
greater Louisville area and a rural clinic in Glasgow, KY; specialty geriatric care in the 
clinic on the U of L Health Services Campus; and a family medicine residency program 
in Glasgow, KY. 

• 	 Jumes Gruhum Brown Cuncer Cenler: provides comprehensive health care for the 
ambulatory cancer patients through units in Medical Oncology, GYN Oncology, Pediatric 
Oncology, Surgical Oncology, Bone Marrow Transplantation, Hemophilia Program, 
Radiation Therapy, Breast Care Center, and a comprehensive program in cancer outreach 
and education. 

• 	 Kentucky Lions EyeCenter:It is at the Kentucky Lions Eye Center that the clinicians, 
residents, fellows; researchers and educators of the Uot'L Department of Ophthalmology 
& Visual Sciences are doing the work that is changing the face of eye care. Patients who 
visit the on-site clinics benefit from the cutting-edge technology and research work of the 
department faculty in various sub-specialties of the eye. 

• 	 Nationally Certified Primary Stroke Center: Provides comprehensive, multi­
disciplinary diagnosis and treatment for patients throughout the service area with acute 
strokes. The center is accredited by the Joint Commission for Accreditation of Hospital 
Organizations (JCAHO). 
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• 	 Multiple Sclerosis Care Center Program:University of Louisville's MS Care Center 
Program provides comprehensive, multidisciplinary care for ench pntient - with access to 
the full range of medical expertise, without the inconvenience of multiple nppointments 
and referrals. MS specialists are an interdisciplinary group of highly skilled and trained 
learn members serving approximately 1000 MS patients with access to state-of-the-art 
technology, and up-to-the-minute research and drug therapies based on the MS Care 
Center Program's participation in clinical trials. 

• 	 PediatricClinics: includes Comprehensive Health Care Center for High Risk Infants and 
Children (C & Y Clinic), Child Evaluation Center. University Child Health Specialists 
Clinic, the Neonatal Follow-up Clinic, the Pediatric Sub-specialty qinics, and the 
Outreach Neonatal Follow-up Clinics (Paducah, Bowling Green, Henderson, nnd 
Elizabethtown), and Cardiology satellites (Ashland, Bardstown, Bowling Green, 
Campbellsville, Elizabethtown, Glasgow, Henderson, Hopkinsville, Mayfield, 
Madisonville, Owensboro. Paducah. Somerset and Madison, Indiana). 

• 	 PsychiatryClinics: includes outpatient clinics at Norton's Hospital, the Bingham Child 
Guidance Clinic, the Keller Day Treatment Center, the University of Louisville 
Ambulatory Care Psychiatry Clinic and Emergency Psychiatry Services at the University 
of Louisville Hospital. 

• 	 School of Dentistry: provides low cost comprehensive and specialty dental care in the 
school's clinics nnd hospitals in the metropolitan Louisville service area and statewide 
through. area health education projects. Preventive services and community education are 
provided through schools, health fairs, and civic organizations. 

o 	 Care is provided by dental students, dental hygiene students and graduate 
dentists in specialty programs (i.e., general practice residents, orthodontics, 
endodontics, oral/ mnxillofacial surgery, pediatric dentistry, periodontics and 
prosthodontics). Treatment is also available from faculty members who 
practice at the University of Louisville Dental Associates. 

o 	 The School of Dentistry continues to serve the Greater Louisville area and the 
state at large by provision of dental and dental hygiene services to persons 
living with HIV/AIDS through the Ryan White federal grant program. The 
School has managed the Community Based Dental Partnership Program for 
over 13 years. Services are primarily delivered through the Richard L. Miller 
Dental Clinic in Elizabethtown, Kentucky, with additional specialty treatment 
delivered in clinics at the School's Louisville location. Funding for the Miller 
Clinic is provided by n federal Ryan White grant of over $300,000 per year. 
Additionally, for the past two years, the Miller Clinic has received funding 
from the State of Kentucky's HIV/AIDS program of about $1.8 million. This 
expanded financial support significantly helped to fund a 2014 expansion 
from a four dental chair clinic to a spacious seven chair well-appointed and 
equipped new facility. 
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• 	 School orNursing: provides nursing services and support in a variety of community 
settings to include: health education in JCPS elementary, middle and high schools, 
administration of seasonal flu vaccines in the metropolitan area, including the Kentucky 
Refugee Center, nurse practitioner services in School of Medicine Divisions, such as 
Pediatrics, Internal Medicine, and selected Metro Louisville Health Department clinics; 
the school also operates an independent nurse practitioner clinic at Churchill Downs for 
backside racetrack workers and families and provides services in adult, family, women 
and psychiatric mental health; and continues education and support to families and 
caregivers of persons with Alzheimer's Disease through the Caregivers Program and the 
Support & Education Program for Caregivers. The school's website houses the Color of 
Health Website as a health information portal for diverse populations living in Louisville 
and surrounding nreas through its Office of Health Disparities and Community 
Engagement which supports teaching/learning practice, research and service activities. 

• 	 School of Public Health and Information Sciences: provides a range of service 
activities for fnculty, staff and students. The school is dedicated to interdisciplinary, 
collaborative partnerships with Louisville Metro Government, the Commonweulth of 
Kentucky and their environs, and the national network of public health professionals. The 
school provides evaluation. research, technical assistance and progr.im development 
service support to a diverse range of community and public health groups and agencies, 
including the Kentucky Department for Public Health. the Louisville Metro Department 
of Public Health and Wellness, and KentuckyOne Health. KOH has recently made a 
significant investment in SPHIS for the establishment of The Commo~wealth Institute of 
Kentucky, which will seek to build critical public health capacity and infrastructure. 
SPHIS is committed to working visibly in West Louisville. The school's Office of Public 
Health Practice h~ recently opened a satellite office in the Louisville Central Community 
Centers (LCCC) building at 1300W. Muhammad Ali Boulevard in the historic Russell 
neighborhood. Since 2009, SPHIS has worked with community partners to operate the 
Gray Street Farmers Market, one of few fanners markets in Louisville dedicated to 
increasing availability of fresh foods to generally underserved areas in what are known as 
footl deserts. 

• 	 Surgery Clinics: includes Gener.tl Surgery and sub-specialty clinics such as the Ear, 
Nose, and Throat Clinics; Plastic Surgery; Neurosurgery; Pediatric Surgery; Thoracic and 
Cardiovascular Surgery, etc. 

The following are other non-health related services provided to the citizens of the Louisville 
metropolitan area and the Commonwealth of Kentucky: 

• 	 The University of Louisville Kentucky Author Forum is a non-profit, nationally­
recognized literary event. Author Forum programs carefully match an author and 
interviewer; their hour-long candid conversation takes place before a live audience atThe 
Kentucky Center in Louisville. The event is taped and distributed by KE1\ Kentucky 
Educational Television, and airs as the series "Great Conversations" on PBS member 
stations across the country. 

14 

http:Gener.tl
http:progr.im


FormA-4 
BASELINEBUDGET REQUEST 

• 	 The Theater Arts Department presents many performances in the Belknap Theater, as 
well as free studio production performances and performances of the repertory company. 
The Department is also offering performances by the African American Theater. 

• 	 Kentucky Institute for the Environment and Sustainable Development (KIESD) 
provides the general public and the research community with the tools and the space to 
work towards a brighter future. The Mission of the Institute is .. To provide 
multidisciplinary research and applied scholarship, teaching and educational outreach, 
and public service on issues of the environment, its protection, and sustainable 
development at the locaJ, state, national and international levels. The institute is located 
within the Executive Vice President for Research and Innovation and is comprised of 
eight thematic centers in the Schools/Colleges of Ans & Sciences, Education and Human 
Development, Engineering, Law, Medicine, and Public Health and Information Sciences 

• 	 Archives and Special Collections (ASC) preserves papers, photographs, maps, audio 
recordings, motion picture films, and other records that document about the University 
and the greater Louisville community. They archive materials from Louisville industries, 
cultural organizations, social service agencies, churches, neighborhoods, and the personal 
papers of political figures, scholars, and members of the Jewish and African American 
communities. Archives and Special Collections also assist area organizations in 
developing their own in-house archives, and offers advice to individunJs wishing to 
preserve family history. ASC collects, preserves, and makes available oral histories that 
tell the story of the Louisville community. In partnership with the History Department, 
they also support the work of community members who seek to build this documentation, 
by providing advice, equipment, and instruction. ASC also offers exhibits of 
photographs, rare books, and other materials, and answers reference requests. 

• 	 Ekstrom Library, the University's largest library, provides a broad range of research 
and information resources and services to citizens of the Louisville metropolitan area and 
the Commonwealth of Kentucky. Members of the community are granted borrowing 
privileges of print materials. They may use computing and other information technology 
equipment on site for research purposes. Research assistance from professionnJ librarians 
is available to members of the community in person and remotely through chat, email and 
phone. Additionnlly, Ekstrom Library serves as a regional repository for government 
documents to support the community's ongoing need for access to critical government 
infonnation. 

• 	 The University has a strong commitment to building partnerships and collaborations in 
the region. Working with Louisville Metro government, Greater Louisville, Inc., and 
business and community organizations, UofL is striving to serve the region and provide 
educational and research expertise to promote economic development. Coordinating 
closely with the Louisville Medical Center Development Corporation and Greater 
Louisville Health Enterprise Network, the University will pursue collaborative 
opportunities with medical center partners in the biomedical area. 
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• 	 The Brandeis School of Law adopted a thirty hour mandatory public service requirement 
for all students. Funded entirely with private money, the Samuel L. Greenbaum Public 
Service Program delivers over 4,000 hours per year of legal related services to the local 
and national commun ity. The School of Law maintains about 90 placements for students. 
These services have beendelh1ered to the legally underserved in a variety of ways. Law 
students have worked with not-for-profit agencies like the Legal Aid Society, the 
Department of Public Advocacy, the Center for Women and Families, and the Louisville 
Public Defender's Office. They have partnered with private attorneys who take death 
penalty, immigration or family law cases on n pro bono basis. Students have collaborated 
with community organizations to provide legal clinics to segments of the population such 
as the elderly, the blind and hearing impaired. Significantly, while this public service has 
been beneficial to the recipients, its real power and impact has been on the law students 
and the Law School. 

• 	 In 2003 members of the Brandeis Student Bar Association created perhaps the first 
student-funded and student-administered Student Bar Foundation (SBF) in this country. 
The Foundation's mission is to raise and distribute funds for student public service 
fellowships with charitable, civic. community, governmental and educational 
organizations. Successful fundraising effons have allowed the SBF to fund student 
fellowships with the Center for Women and Families, the Appalachian Research and 
Defense Fund, the KY Human Rights Commission, The National JuvenHe Justice 
Network and the National Center for the Prosecution of Child Abuse. 

• 	 GheensScience Holl and Rauch Planetariumis part of the College of Education and 
Human Development and strives to provide a unique learning environment that supports 
the presentation and study of astronomy and space science education. Audiences include 
preK-12 students (school groups), college students, and the general public. Programming 
in the planetarium addresses National Science Education Standards, state level 
curriculum science standards. post-secondary education, and serves ns a public resource 
as well. The planetarium hosts a variety of summer camps each year for kids in grc1des 2 ­
6 and workshops in the fall and winter for children 4 - 6 years old. Public shows are 
offered every Friday, Saturday. and Sunday. Before the old planetarium was razed in 
2001, over a million school children had visited the facility to learn about the wonders of 
the universe. The current facility and its design are unique in that there are only ten others 
like il in the world. 

• 	 The Signature Partnership is a university effort to enhance the quality of life and 
economic opportunity for residents of west Louisville. The goal is to work with various 
community partners to improve the educational. health, economic and social status of 
individuals and families who Jive in our urban core. Working closely with community 
residents, the Jefferson County Public Schools, Louisville Metro Government, Metro 
United Way, the Urban League, faith based organizations, and many others, the 
university has coordinated and enhanced existing programs and launched new programs 
designed to eliminate or reduce disparities that west Louisville residents experience in 
education, health, economic and social conditions . The university is drawing upon the 
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expertise and energy of faculty, staff, and students from every school and college of UofL 
to deal with the quality of life issues affecting our community. 

• 	 Service Leaming coordinates service learning projects with campus student 
organizations. The program refers students who wish to volunteer independently to 
appropriate campus-based and off-campus agencies. Service Leaming coordinates the 
"America Reads Program" and creates partnerships with non-profit agencies and 
Jefferson County Public Schools (JCPS). The program provides support to faculty 
through our resource library and provides information and training on various aspects of 
service learning. 

• 	 Intramural Sports provides recreational space for many high school and community 
groups to conduct various competitions and tournaments. These groups include the 
American Red Cross, Louisville Fire & Rescue, Kentucky Special Olympics, Metro 
Parks and the Jefferson County Board of Education. 

• 	 The Psychological Services Center (PSC) is part of the Department of Psychological 
and Brain Sciences. The PSC main goals are to offer services which assist persons in 
managing problems, intense study and application of techniques proven to be effective in 
treating a wide range of mental health problems, research in understanding various 
psychological problems and developing effective diagnosis and treatment methods, and 
offer professional development seminars. The PSC also advances the University's 
research goals by providing data and opportunities for clinical research, and through the 
collection of outcome data it promotes the development of true scientist-practitioners. 

• 	 The Center for Hazards Research and Policy Development {CHR) is a research unit 
at the University of Louisville that integrates the skills of engineers. natural scientists, 
urban planners, GIS specialists, professional researchers and social scientists in solving 
problems. CHR conducts research across a broad spectrum of issues including hazards 
preparedness, mitigation, response and recovery from technological and natural hazard 
events. 

• 	 Conn Center for Renewable Energy Research has been established in collaboration 
with the state to provide leadership, research, support and policy development in the 
renewable energy, advances the goal of renewable energy, and promotes technologies, 
practices and programs that increase efficiency for energy utilization in homes, 
businesses and public buildings. 

• 	 Each year, Kent School of SocialWorkstudents provide more than 182,000 hours of 
service to about 7,500 Kentucky residents, equivalent to more than $3.5 million of 
service annually. 

IV. FISCAL JUSTIFICATION/ IMPACT ON BASELINE BUDGET 
 

11 



Form A-4 
BASELINE BUDGET REQUEST 

The Council on Postsecondary Education's baseline budget recommendation for the University 
of Louisville begins with the prior year appropriation of $140,416,300 to support the 
maintenance of ongoing operations. This funding is essential for the institution to continue to 
provide the existing quantity and quality of educational services and programs. This base budget 
amount request does not taJce into account the fact that the University's base budget has been 
reduced multiple times in recent years. Flat funding the FY 2015-16 base budget will not restore 
those funding cuts. [n order to move the University of Louisville forward, meet on-going and 
recurring structural costs. and achieve its state-mandated goal of becoming a premier 
metropolitan research university by 2020 , the Universitfs base budget needs to at least remain 
constant, and preferably increase. 

The prior year appropriation is adjusted as detaiJed below: 

• The allocation for mandatory debt service is decreasing $1,339.400 for 2016-17. 

This adjustment brings the total baseline budget for FY 2016-17 to $139,076,900; and 
$139,076,900 for FY 2017-18. This amount of support is vital for the University of Louisville to 
continue its current operations and to be positioned to move toward reaching the goals outlined 
in House Bill l. The successful pursuit of those goals will be dependant on additional requested 
budget support as detailed in later sections of this budget request. 
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201i-2D11Kanluctcy 8ranch Budget 
Baseline Budget Requ111t:Expandltura Detall Summa,y Record 

AU n,qunbld columns round1d conNrllt S1DO 
OPERATING BUDGET RECORD Al Agency: Postsecondary EducaUon lnstltuUon1 

Appropriation: University or Louisville 
GDYtlfflfflentllBranch: ExltCUtlveBranch Program/S1rvlcaUnit: 

Cabfnat: Poscsecondafy Educatfon sub Program: 
Posting Unit: 

Parsonnal Budget FY2013-14 FY2014-15 FY2016-16 FY201i-17 FY2017-11
B §!!:Ire• or Funds Actual Actual Budgeted Requested Requutad 

Number or Positions 
Full Tim•Po11tlon1 

FIiied 5,185 5,283 5,350 5,350 5,350 
Vacant 0 0 801 B01 B01 

Total FuU llme PosHlans 5,115 S.213 6,151 6,151 6,151 

Part Time Positions 
Filled 1,61M 1,719 1,711 1,711 1,711 
Vacant 0 0 116 116 116 

Tolal Part T1msPositions 1,liM 1,719 1,127 1,127 1,127 

OtherPasltfo1111 
Flied 284 302 1,5-46 1,548 1,646 
Vacant D 0 310 310 310 

Total Other Positions 2U 30:Z 1,151 1,156 1,BH 

GRANDTOTAL 
1,NumberorPosHlans 

AIied 7,183 7,31M B,607 11,607 8,607 
Vacant 0 0 1.227 1,227 1,227 

Total Funds 7,163 7,304 9,134 1,134 9,134 

2. Souru of Funds ($) 

General Fd Coator Posllons 322,467,300 331,IMS,4DO 340,347,900 340,347,900 340,347,900 
Reslllded Fds Cost orPositions 288,524,200 27'4,025,200 321,363,600 321,383,60D 321 ,363,B0D 
FederalFds. Costot Positions 55,053,900 55,381,503 53,164,700 53,164,700 63,164,700 

TolalFunds 144,045,400 661,352, 1 D3 714,171,200 714,171,200 714,871,20G 
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2016-2018 KENTUCKY BRANCH BUDGET 

Current Services Budget Request: Budgeted Positions Record 

(All dollar nmounts rounded 10 nearest S100) 

Oovemmenlal Branch: Egecutlve 
 
Cobincl / Function: PostsecondDry Education 
 

Agency: fgl!i~sondaa Ed!!S:
Appropriation Unil: University 
Prognun/Division/Scrvicc Unit: 

B1mD 
 
or Louisville 
 

Poslllon Class and Title 
byFilled/ Vncant Categories 

Total 
Positions 

FYlDlS-16 
Base Gross 

Salary 
IncrementCosts 

Benefits 
Increment 

Costs 

Total 
Position 

Costs 

l. Full-Timc Positions 
 
A. Filled 
8. Vacant 

TOTALS- FULL-TIME 	 

S350 
801 

6151 

403,138,000 
45,524,200 

448,662J_@. 

12,094,lO0 
1,.365,700 

13,459,800 

3,446,800 
389,200 

3,836,000 

15,540,900 
 
1,754,900 
 

17,295,800 

,.., 
2. Part-Time Positions 
 

A. Filled 
8. Vacant 

TOTALS - PART-TIME 

1711 
116 

1827 

74,272,400 
4,864,500 

79,136,900 

2,228,200 
145,900 

2,.374,100 

170,500 
11:200 

181,700 
 

2.398,700 
 
]57,)00 
 

2,555,800 

3. Interim Positions 
A. Filled 
B. VDCDnt 

TOTALS - INTERIM 

1546 
310 

1856 

37,148,700 
6,263,200 

43,411,900 

1,114,500 
187,900 

1,302,400 
 

85,300 
14,400 
99,700 

1,199,800 
 
202,300 
 

1.402,100 

TOTAL 	 9834 571.211.000 17,136,300 4,117,400 21,253,700 

Assumptions: 
t. Salary Increase is based on a 3.0% increase on FYJS-16 personel services budget 	 ~ -, 
2. 	 Fringe benefits for full•tlme positions is based on a 28.5% estimate. Benefits for part-lime and interim positions includes socio]security only (7 .65%). 

)> 
• 

O'I 
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20fS-20f8 Kentucky Branch Budr,et PRIORITY 
AddlUonal Budgll Requnt: Financial Reconl Cablnltl: 

All '!Suastad columns rounded to nural $100 Ap!'!'JI: 1 
OPERATING BUDGET RECORD B-118-2 Agency:P0111Hc::ondaryEducationJmitltutlons 

Appropriation: University of Loulsvllle 
Governmental Br.inch: EucuUva Br.Inch Pragram/SefVlca Unit: 

cabinet: Postsecondary Education Sub Program: 
Posllng Unit 

REQUEST TITLE: Performance Funding 

FY 2015-11 FY 2011-17 FY2017°t8
REQUESTTYPE: NIIW Requnted Requnted Requested 

SOURCE OF FUNDS 

GeneralFund 
RegularAppruprlaUon 
Iml Gtollll fund 

TOTAL SOURCE OF FUNDS 

EXPENDntJRESBYCLASS 
PersonnelCosts 
OperatingEllpenses 
TOTALEXPENDITURESBY CLASS 
EXPENDntJRESBY FUND SOURCE 
GeneralFLlld 
TOTALEXPENDll\lRESBY FUND 

0 

R 
0 

0 
0 
0 

D 
0 

7,055,000 14,110,000 

Z.11111.!HII !~JUL!H2!1 
7.0Sli,000 1:',110.000 

'4,105,000 8,210,000 
2,950,000 5,800,000 
1,055,000 14,110,000 

7,055,000 1.t,110,00D 
7,055,000 1.t.110,000 

PERSONNELPOSffiONS 
NumberorPnlllona 

GRANDTOTAL- Numberof Pos,Uonf 
0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

BUDGETPOSmoNs COST BY FUND SOURCE 

TOTAL FUNDS 
0 
a 

0 
a 

0 
D 
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2016.2011 KenlUcky Branch Budget PRIORITY 
Addltlonal Budget Request: Flnanclal Record cabinet t: 

Allnqunted colUmns rounded to nearest $100 Agency#: 2 

OPERATING BUDGET RECORD IMIB-2 Agency; Postsecondary Educadon lnstltulloms 
Appropriation:University of Loulsvllle 

GovernmentalBranch: ExecutiveBranch Pfo~lce Unit 
cabinet: Poslsecondaly Educadon Sub Program: 

Posting Unit 
REQUESTTTJU!:canters of R1s11rch Excellence 

FY 2015-1& FY 2016-17 FY2D17-11 
REQUESTTYPE: Growth Raquastad Requested Raqunttd 

SOURCE OF FUNDS 

General Fund 
RegUlat Appn,p!lalian 0 2,000,000 4,000,000 

IotJI Gto•ml Fund Jl Z.!HHl,SIIHI ~,IIIHMIQI 
TOTALSOURCE OF FUNDS 0 2,000.000 :4,aao.000 
EXPENDITURESBYCLASS 
PersonnelCosts 0 1,163,700 2,327,400 
OperatingElcpenses 0 836,300 1,672,600 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES BY CLASS 0 2,009,000 4,0D0,000 

EXPENDITURESBYFUNDSOURCE 
General Fund 0 2,000,000 4,000,000 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES BY FUND D 2.000,000 4,000,000 

PERSONNEL PosmoNS 
Number of Posltlons 

0 0 0 
GRANDTOTAL• Number of Pulllons 0 0 0 

BUDGET POSITIONS COST BY FUND SOURCE 

0 0 0 
TOTAL FUNDS 0 0 0 



2D1&.2011Kentucky Branch Budgat PRIORITY 
AddlUonal Budgat Raqunt Flnanclal Recant cabinet I: 

All requestad columnsrounded ta nurul $1D0 Agancy#: 3 

OPERATING BUDGET RECORD B-1/8-2 Aganqr. Postsacondaty Education lnsUtutlons 
Appropriation: University of Laulsvlll• 

Gavemmental Branch: Encullva Branch Program/Sa,vlce Unit 
Cabinet: Poslsacandary Educatlan SubProgram: 

PostingUnit 
REQUEST TITLE:Growth In Fadaral & Ratrfctad 

FY 201&-1& FY 2116-17 FY2017·11 
REQUESTTYPE: Growth Requested Raqueated Requestad 

SOURCE OF FUNDS 

FadamFund 
Cwrenl Receipts 
IPllJftdtraJ fund 

0 

R 
m,7DO 
m.:zn 

1,563,200 
1,563.200 

Rntrtclad Funds 
CU!TenlRecelpla 0 26,958,700 55,537,800 

IRtatBnJdct•d funds A 2IIJID,111 6,HZ.IQQ 
TOTAL SOURCE OF FUNDS a xr,nuo o 57,10 1,000 

EXPENDITURESBV CLASS 
Petsomel Costs 0 18,390,600 33,7-42,100 
OperaUng Expenses 0 11,3-48,800 23,358,900 
TOTAL EXPENDmJRES BY CLASS a TT,737,480 57,111,000 

EXPENDITURESBY FUND SOURCE 
Federal Fund 0 m,100 1,583.200 
Reslllc:tedFunds 0 26,959,700 55,537,800 
TOTAL EXPENDITURESBY FUND 0 xr 1137,4ao 5711011DDO 

PERSONNELPO&mONS 
Number of Poslllons 

0 0 0 
GRAND TOTAL- Numbarof Paslllons 0 0 D 

BUDGETPOSITIONS COST BY FUND SOURCE 

0 0 0 
TOTAL FUNDS 0 0 D 
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2011-2011 Kitnluc:ky Branch Budget PRIORITY 
AddlllonalBudget Raquest: Expendltura DtttaUSummaryRecord Cablnltt: 

All !!9Ullted cohrmn•rounded ta nurnt $100 Agency~ 1 
OPERATING BUDGET RECORD B-3 Agency: Postsecondary EducaUon ln1Ututlons 

ApproprlatJon: University of LoulsvlUe 
GovernmentalBranch: Eucutlve Branch ProgramlSlrvlce Unit 

Cablnat: PostsecondaryEducacJon Sub Program: 
Posting Unit: 

REQUESTTITLE:Performance Funding 

REQUESTTYPE New 

EXPENDllURES BY FUND 

FY 2015-11 
Raqunfld 

FY 2011-17 
Requ11t1d 

FY2D17-11 

Requested 

GenerllFuncl 
JQTAL EXPENQ(DJRES BY E\JNP 

0 
D. 

7,055,000 
1.o51.pgg 

14,110,000 
14.110,ogg 

EXPENDITURECATEGORY 

PtFIRDDIICpst 
E111 Regular Salaries& Wages 
other Salaries & Wages 
E121EmployerFICA 
E122 EmplayerReUremenl 
 
E123 Health lna1nnce 
 
Other Fringe Bends 
 
SUbtolalSalaries & Fringes 
 

TotalP1A9DDIJepst 
OperattnqiHtoDI 

Non-Breakdown Operating 
 

TotalPPl!'ltfnq EIPfDHI 
 

0 
D 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
g 

0 

JI 

3,196,900 
83,200 

210,400 
235,300 
264,800 
114,400 

.C,105,000 

4,105.000 

2,950,000 

usg,ogg 

6,393,800 
166,,400 
420,BOO 
470,600 
529,600 
229,800 

8,210,000 

1.210.goo 

5,900,000 

a 100000 

TOTAL EXPENDfTURES Z,Hli,pog.D. 1£1111,PPQ 
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2D11-2011Kentucky Branch Budget PRIORITY 
Addltlonaf Budget Request: Expondltura Detail Summary Record cabinet I: 

All reqUaslad columns roundod tD nearest S100 Agoncy t: Z 
OPERATING BUDGET RECORDB-3 Agency: Pastucanda,y Education lnatltuUDnl 

AppraprlatlDn: Unlvarslty or Loulsvllla 
Govemmontal Branc:h: Encullve Branch Program/ServiceUnll: 

Cabinet: PDStsecanduyEducation Sub Program: 
Posting Unit: 

REQUESTTITLE:Centers of Research Excelllnca 

REQUESTlYPE New FY2016-16 
Requastad 

FY2011-17 
Requested 

FY2017-11 
Requastld 

EXPENDITURESBY FUND 

General Fund 0 2,000,000 4,000,000 

JOIAt EXPENDmlRESBY FUND I 2,000,000 tl,QOR.pgq 
EXPENDITURECATEGORY 

e,nvoo•JCoil 
E111 Regular Salaries &Wages 
Olhet Salaries& Wages 
E121 Employef FICA 
E122 Employer Retirement 
E123 Healh insurance 
 
other Fringe Benefits 
 
Sublalal Salaries & Fringes 
 

IPl1J PIEIPfllJII cost 
RlttASIDI,_.. 

Non-BreakdownOperaUng 

JPl•l Oszl'111Dv EQln,n 

0 
0 
D 
D 
0 
0 
0 

II 

0 

.a. 

BDB,300 
23,600 
59,600 
66.7DO 
75.1DO 
32,4D0 

1,163,700 

1,163,ZOII 

836,300 

UUlHl 

1,812,600 
47,200 

119,200 
133,400 
150,200 
64,800 

2,327,400 

2,327,400 

1,sn,soo 
1,§72,800 

TOTAL EXPENDllURES .a. &ut.lOi , 001om 
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2018-2018 Kantucky Branch Budget PRIORITY 
Addltlonal Budget Request Exp1t11dltura Oat.all Summary Record Cabinet•: 

AU~ uuted columns rounded to nUlftt $100 Agency f: 3 
OPERATINGBUDGET RECORD B-3 Apncy: Postsecondary EducatJon lnstltuUons 

Appruprtallon:University of Loulavllle 
GovemmantalBranch: Encutlve B,anch Pragr.unlSan,lce Unft: 

cabinet Postsecondary Education Sub Program: 
Posting Unit 

REQUEST TITLE: Growth In F1dtiral&Rabfclld 

REQUESTTVPE Gmwth FY2015-11 
Requnted 

FY2G11-17 
Requested 

FY2017-11 

R19uaslld . 
EXPENDfflJRESBY FUND 
Federal Fund 0 m,100 1,563,200 
Rewlded Fund 0 28,V59,700 55,537,800 
IOJAL §XPENPQYBE§ BY EVHP I ZZ.Zll,~11 iZ.Hli.111111 
EXPENDITURECATEGORY 

Penoonerca,s 
E111 Regular Salaries & wages 
OlherSafarle5&Wages 
E121EmployerFICA 
 
E122EmployerRetnment 
 
E123 Heallh Insurance 
 
Other Fringe Beneffls 
 
SUblolal Salllles & Frfngei 
 

IRbl P•mo0t1Cost 
QPIIICkJgEutout 

Non-BnlakdawnOperallng 
 

Total QPflJUDA EJIPIUHI 
 

0 12,764,60D 211,277,500 
0 332,100 683,600 
0 839,900 1,729,00D 
0 9311,800 1,934,400 
0 1,057,500 2,176,900 
0 456,900 9-40,700 
0 16,380,600 33,742,100 

.I 11,390,§00 33,742,100 

0 11,346,BOO 23,358,900 

.ll U,3-11,DIIP 23,358,IQII 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES I mll.m GZ,HUHIQ 
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Form B-4 
Performance Funding 

UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE 

2016-18 KENTUCKY BRANCH BUDGET 
Performance Funding 

OPERATING BUDGET RECORD B-4 Agency Priority # ___ _ 

Governmental Branch: Executive Agency: Postsecondary Education Institutions 
Cabinet/Function: Postsecondary Education Appropriation Unit: University of Louisville 

The Council on Postsecondary Education requested Performance Funding as part of the 2012-14. 
and 2014-16 biennial budget submission. For the upcoming 2016-18 biennium. the Council is 
once again recommending appropriations for performance funding. 

Kentucky's public colleges and universities have experienced seven operating budget cuts over 
the past eight years.losing a totaJ of $173.5 million or 16.0 percent of their combined net 
General Fund appropriations. The Council and campus officials strongly encourage the new 
Governor and General Assembly to finance the proposed performance funding approach with 
new appropriations, instead of carving funds out of existing base operating funds of the 
postsecondary institutions. 

This request restores half of the $173.5 million in state funding cuts the institutions sustained 
between fiscal years 2007-08 and 2014-15 over the upcoming biennium. Funds would be 
available to support education and general operating expenses of the campuses in each of those 
years. but would only become recurring to an institution's base at the beginning of the next 
biennium {2018-2020). if an institution made progress toward or attained desired state goals. 

The proposed funding was allocated among postsecondary sectors based on each sector's share 
of system total budget cuts since 2007-08. Specifically, $42.5 million will be allocated to the 
research sector. $24.9 million will beallocated to the comprehensive sector. and $19.3 million 
will be allocated to the community and technical college sector. Perfonnance funds in the 
research sector will be allocated between UK and UotL based on each institution·s share of 
sector total 2015-16 net General Fund appropriations. Performance funds in the comprehensive 
sector will be allocated among institutions based on a combination of total public funds share 
and share of budget cuts since 2008. Finally, KCTCS officials will be aJlowed flexibility to 
determine how performance funds will be allocated among institutions within theirsystem. 

The perfonnance funding model proposed for 2016-18 is a targets and goals approach, which 
means each institution is rewarded for making progress toward or attaining its own campus 
specific goals. not for exceeding the performance of other institutions. CPE staff and campus 
officials have already agreed on metrics, which include degrees and credentials produced, 
student retention, student progression. completion of credit bearing Math and English courses by 
underprepared students (KCTCS). closing achievement gaps (under-represented minorities and 
low income students). and sector-specific STEM-related metrics. Institution-specific metrics are 
still in process. Graduation rates willbe added as a metric for the 2018-2020 biennium. 
Beginning in December. Council and campus staffs wilJ work to develop goals for each metric. 
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Form B-4 
Performance Funding 

Performancewill be measured in fall 2017 to determine if performance funding becomes 
recurring in the next biennium. 

The performance metrics for UofL are: 

• Number of baccalaureate degrees 
• lII year, first-time retention rnte (151 to 2nd year) 
• Student progression rate 
• 6-year graduation rate 
• Research expenditures and extramural research funding 
• Clinicaltrial revenues 

UofL will receive $7,055,000 in performance funding in FY 2016-17 and $14,I IO,000 in FY 
2017-18. The University expects to invest these funds in ways that will help it meet its 
performance metrics and to advance the University's 2151 Century Initiative. 

The University has launched a Student Success Initiative to advance the completion of the 2020 
Strategic Plan under the themes and goals of the 2151Century Initiative, many of which 
contribute directly to advances in the metrics identified for performance funding. Under the 
theme of ··strengthened curriculum," the university will invest in progressive pedagogies as well 
as the course and classroom design and equipment necessary to support these pedagogies campus 
wide; individual departments, already known as centers of undergraduate excellence in teaching 
and undergraduate research support, will be specifically identified for increased funding through 
additional faculty lines and curricular suppon to promote targeted recruitment for entering 
student prospects. The university will also increase the number ond expand the variety of 
Jiving/learning communities, a high-impact practice especially for entering students to promote 
engagement and success. The university will also introduce sever.ii new software programs to 
enhance the university's base system by improving advising records and accessibility, promoting 
active intervention and referrals to campus services based upon faculty and staff 
recommendations, and by refining the predictive model of success that the university uses in 
projecting the composition, profile and support of successive entering classes. In these ways and 
others, the University expects to increase the production of undergraduate degrees, enhance the 
first-year retention rate as well as the long-term student progression to degree so as to reach the 
goal of 60% graduation rate in 2020. 
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Form B-4 
Centers of Research Excellence 

UNIVERSITYOF LOUISVILLE 

2014-16 KENTUCKY BRANCH BUDGET 
Centers of Research Excellence 

OPERA TING BUDGET RECORD B-4 Agency Priority #_..;;2~­

Governmental Branch: Executive Agency: Postsecondary Education Institutions 
Cabinet/Function: Postsecondary Education Appropriation Unit: University of Louisville 

During the first decade of postsecondary reform, Kentucky's research universities more than 
doubled the market value of their endowment assets, attracted and retained world-renowned 
researchers. and more than doubled their federal research funding. While these achievements are 
noteworthy, the rate of growth in these indicators has slowed in recent years, the state's economy 
has been slow to transform, and a number of challenges remain. 

The Council on Postsecondary Education's 2011-15 Strategic Agenda calls for Kentucky 
universities to increase basic, applied, and translational research to create new knowledge and 
economic growth. It highlights the critical roles that the University of Kentucky and the 
University of Louisville play in the creation of new knowledge, as well as, the importance of 
additional funding and new funding approaches to maximize sponsored research, Kentucky 
Innovation Act investments, and multi-campus collaborations. 

This proposed funding supports the creation or expansion of Centers of Research Excellence al 
the University of Kentucky and the University of Louisville. Funds will be used to hire clusters 
of prominent research faculty and staff in focus areas that address important state needs. 

Creating a critical mass of scholars in high potential focus areas willbolster recruitment and 
retention of outstanding research faculty and staff in both targeted and related disciplines, 
increase federal and extramural research funding, accelerate translation of discoveries from 
technological development to commercial utility, and support economic development and 
improved quality of life in Kentucky. One-third of this program's funding will go to the 
University of Louisville and two-thirds to the University of Kentucky, based on statutory 
allocations of the Research Challenge Trust Fund. The funds will be used to recruit and retain 
renowned research faculty and staff in identified focus areas. bolster critical research 
infrastructure in those areas, and leverage or attract federally sponsored centers, programs, and 
research grants to Kentucky. 

Since the passage of HB I in 1997, Kentucky's public universities have helped boost Kentucky's 
economy and educational attainment levels. These efforts have led to new products, businesses 
and jobs for Kentuckians. For this momentum to continue, investment in Centers of Research 
Excellence at the University of Louisville and the University of Kentucky is critical. 
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Form B-4 
Cenlers of Research Excellence 

CPE requests $6 million in FY 2016-17 and $12 million in FY 2017-18 for Centers for Research 
Excellence at the University of Louisville and the University of Kentucky. The University of 
Louisville would receive $2 million and $4 million. respectively, and would use the funds lo 
maketargeted cluster hires in research areas that address important state needs. Specifically, the 
Centers for Research Excellence will: 

• Encourage collaborative research between UofL and UK; 
• 	 Increase university partnerships with business and industry; and 
• 	 Create high wage jobs in public and private sectors of the economy. 

The expected outcomes include: 

• 	 Recruitment and retention of outstanding research intensive faculty members and teams; 
• 	 [ncreased federal and other extramural research funding; 
• 	 Accelerated trooslation of discoveries into public use; 
• 	 Accelerated development of technology that can be used commercially; 
• 	 Increased development of human capital with specialized professional and technical 

training; and 
• 	 Improved economic development and quality of life in the Commonwealth of Kentucky. 
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Form 8·4 
CROWTHIN RESTRICTED AND FEDERAL FUNDS

UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE 

20l6-18 KENTUCKY BRANCH BUDGET 
Growthin Federal& Restricted Funds 

OPERATING BUDGET RECORD B-4 Agency Priority #_....,3 __ 
Governmental Branch: Executive Agency: Postsecondary Education Institutions 
Cabinet/Function: Postsecondary Education Appropriation Unit: University of Louisville 

Despite the downward pressure on the discretionary federal budget and the elimination of federal 
earmarks, the University has been able to increase its federal and other restricted funds budgets 
over the Inst decade. The University will continue to strategically grow federal and other 
restricted funds over the next biennium and through 2020 using the 21st Century Initiative goals 
as the blueprint. 

The university continues to be awarded new grants and contracts, for example: 

• 	 UofL Coulter Translational Research Partnership- $5 Million, Robert Keynton, (PI) 
Department of Bioengineering, Mark Slaughter (Co-Pl), Division of Thoracic and 
Cardiovascular Surgery, University of Louisville School of Medicine. This award is to 
promote translation of research through successful collaboration between engineers and 
clinicians, supporting promising technologies. The Coulter Translational Pannership 
funds promising projects in order to move innovative technologies to clinical application 
through commercialization. The ultimate goal of this partnership is to concentrate on 
outcomes which will accelerate the introduction of new technologies to improve the 
treatment and diagnosis of disease or reduce healthcare costs. 

• 	 KY Multi-scale Manufacturing and Nano Integration Node - $3.76 million, National 
Science Foundation, Kevin Walsh (Pl), Tom Starr (Co-Pl), Shamus McNamara (Co-Pl), 
Bruce Alphenaar {Co-Pl), Thad Druffel {Co-Pl). Department of Electrical Engineering 
and Conn Center. The National Nanotechnology Coordinated Infrastructure (NNCJ) 
Kentucky Multi-scale Manufacturing and Nano Integration Node (MMNIN) is 
collaboration between the University of Louisville and the University of Kentucky 
focused on integrating manufacturing technology over widely different length scales. 
With nanotechnology now integral to scientific discovery and engineering, there is a 
pressing need for infrastructure that supports the rapid and effective prototyping of nano­
scale devices in macro-scale systems. The goal of the MMNIN is to combine micro/nano 
fabrication processes with the latest in 3D additive manufacturing technology to allow 
researchers lo explore nanotechnology solutions to real-life problems in healthcare, 
energy, the environment, communication, and security. 

• 	 Research Evaluation and Commercialization - $3 million grant from National 
Institutes of Health to become one of only three institutions in the United States selected 
as a Research Evaluation and Commercialization HUB (REACH). 
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Form B-4 
GROWTHIN RESTRICTED AND FEDERAL FUNDS

• 	 Exploration of Damage Mechanisms in MEMS Based Memory and Logic Devices ­
$1,050,000, Defense Threat Reduction Agency. Bruce Alphenaar (Pl), Kevin Walsh {co­
Pl), and Shamus McNamara (co-Pl), Department of Electrical and Computer Engineering 
in collaboration with Vanderbilt University. Project is exploring the jnfluence of 
radiation on micro electromechanical (MEMS) memory and logjc, It will reveal the 
extent to which radiation influences the MEMS properties and detennine the mechanisms 
behind the radiation induced changes. 

The University is also engaged in increased philanthropy. Examples of recent gifts include: 

• 	 $1.5 million gift to support the Cardinal Covenant which covers the cost of tuition, room, 
board and books for students from families living nt or below 150 percent of the poverty 
level. 

• 	 University of Louisville Signature Partnership received $5,000,000 from the Mary K. 
Oxley Foundation to boost teacher preparedness, retention and professional development 
at five Louisville-area schools. 

• 	 $2.5 million from the Helmsley Trust to support research focused in pediatric spinal cord 
injuries in order to help this population walk again. 

• 	 $4.6 million from John Schnntter to establish the John H. Schnatter Center for Free 
Enterprise in the university's College of Business. 

• 	 $2 million from Ms. Jean Frazier to support the Institute for Optimal Aging and its 
research mission at the Health Sciences Center at the university. 

• 	 $1 million from the Bernard Osher Foundation to help students with college credit who 
have left the university to re-enter in order to obtain a degree. 

• 	 $1 million from the Helmsley Trust to support the James Graham Brown Cancer Center 
in its vaccine development program using plant-based pharmaceuticals. 

36 



2011-2011 Kentucky Branch Budglt 
Total Raquut: EspandlluraDetallSummary Racanl 

All 1911u .. tad columrul rounded to IINl'Ht $100 
OPERATINGBUDGET RECORD C11C2 Apncy: Pasmecondary Education lnsllluUons 
. Appropriation: UnlverallJ or Loullvllla 
Govammanlal Branch: ~ Branch ProgramlSerllc. Unit: 

Cabinet PaslHCOndary Educatfan Sub Program: 
Posting Unit: 

FY2013-14 FY 2014--11 FY2015-1f FYZD11-17 FYZG1MI
Actual Actual Budgl19cl RlqUealad R!!jUNt.d 

SOURCE OF FUNDS 
Gen81'8JFund 
Mandallld Alolmenll 0 837,800 "1,034,700 0 0 
RagularApproprtallon 166,212,300 139,078,900 140,418,300 141, 131,1100 157,188,900 
TotalGtDIIIIfund fH,ZH,illll 2ill.ZM,ZDD !!2dll,IH Hl,2Jl,IDD UZ,Hl.111 

RNlrfc:tadFunda 
CunentReatlpls 780,801,900 811,249,900 974,383,300 1,001,343,000 1.02u21.100 
Ialll Blllrldad E11111l1 Ill,H2,lllll 122,Z!l.lllll m.ilE,illll 2,1112,JQ,!IH l.lD,HUUID 

FedaraJFund 
CunentReceipts 811,525,400 84,583,500 112,770,400 113,548,100 114,333,800 
Iota1 ftdtml fund 11,125.400 lt,IH1llll 2ia.zz~11 2U.1!1.20Q 2!!,n:uoa 

TOTALFUNDS 1101!zffl 1100 110:sa11141.100 1.221.IIM,70D 1,Z1310ZJ,0DO 1~01.441,100 
EXPENDmJREBBY CLASS 
Pmonnel Costs 844,045,400 881,352,000 714,878,300 738,535,800 759,155,800 
OperallngElcpenaea 298,118,300 300,942,000 343,048,800 357,145,200 372,943,IIOO 
GrantsLoansBanalils 32,916,800 37,488,200 129,417,300 129,417,300 129,417,300 
DebtServlca 22,901,000 19,147,800 18,835,700 17,498,300 17,496,300 
CapllalOutlay 111,358,100 18,838,100 22,428,800 22,428,IIOO 22.4211,600 
TOTAL EXPENDmJRE! BY CLASS 1101l,S311IOD 11035.~100 1ii!•1!!!!700 1~13102310D0 1130114411HO 
EXPENDITURESBYFUNDSOURCE 
GenefaJFund 1113,ffl,200 139,714,700 141,451,DO0 148,131,900 157,188,900 
Rastrtctad FIDSs 783,029,500 811,249,900 974,383,300 1,0011343,000 1,029,921;100 
Federal Fund 811,811,100 84,583,500 112,770,400 113,541,100 114,333,800 
TOTALEXPENDmJRESBYFUND 1101l,111 1IOO 1103111~100 1.m.!!!!i700 1JU 10!:!i000 113011441,100 
EXPENDITUREBY UNrr 
AcademicSUpport 100,353,100 11<4,514,300 141,721,500 148,7117 152,080,700,000 
Awdllllly EntltlJllt:ln IM.24S,300 103,525,000 102, 181,400 102,181.400 102,1111,400 
Hosplllls 17,781,200 837,800 1.034,700 0 0 
lnslltutlanalSupport . 78,545,4'00 77,379,500 97,068,000 119,487,400 102,071,300 
lnslrucllon 298,191,500 295,126,500 374,054,IIOO 3117,434,000 401,383,000 
Lnnfles 14,820,100 15,879,400 20,632,700 21,149,500 21,898,800 
Mand&lllfY Tfll'l!lfer9 20,2011,700 111,90,IIOO 18,1135,7DO 17,498,300 17,4118,300 
Non-MandatalyTransfe11 0 9,772,000 0 0 D 
Operation llnd Malnlanance orPlant 81,883,600 63,124,800 52,242,000 53,550,800 54,935,900 
Pubic Servk:a 110,084,300 125,753,800 110,578,200 11-4,537,800 118,682,100 
Research 150,822,100 147,988,000 146,088,800 151,754,700 157,1135,400 
Scholanhlps and Fellclwlhlps 41,778,700 33,795,400 131,329,900 134,619,500 138,102,100 
SludentSemces 30,421,800 31,710,800 32,1140,900 34,014,800 35,238,800 
TOTAL EXPENDmJRES BY UNIT 211.11,IH,H!I 11!1H.Hl,llHI 3.ZZl,IIY.E!I 2.Zlil.llD.lall 2,:HIM!2.lilll 
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201 .. 2018 Kllnlucky Branch Budg1I 
Taul Requnt: Ellp1ndllura DttlaHSummary Ricord 

Al hqUHlld c:alumim l'DUndlldlo IIHrNl $tff 
OPERATINGBUDGET RECORD C-3 Apncr, PoatHcondary Educalkmlnstltulfom 

Appropriation: Unlvarwllyof Loulsvllll 
Gav1mmen1a1Branch: Ellacutlve Branch ProgramlS.rvlca Unit: 

Cabla1t Poatl1COC1dllryEducaUan Sub Program: 
PoaUngUnlt: 

FYZ013-14 FY2B14-111 FY211S.11 FYZl18-17 FY2017-18
Actual Actual Budgltad Raquntad RegUNted 

EXPENDITURESBY FUND SOURCE 
Federal Fund 89,811,100 84,583 ,500 112,770,400 113,548,100 114,333,800 
General Fund 183,678,200 139,714,700 14M51,000 148,131,900 157,188,900 
Re1btcted Flnf 783,029,500 811,249,IIOO 974,383,300 1.001 ,343,000 1,D29,921,10D 
D:!I6Ll;leEtigmtB~maIB!Hg :l,IUl,11:11,IH 2.m,w.21111 :l,ZZl.t!Y.11151:l,m.112~.tH :l,il!l:Id!:l .t!Hl 
EXPENDmJRECATEGORY 

Pmvoo•ICRIS 
E111 RegularSalll1es&Wlg191 4911,310,500 511,294,800 558,727,800 573,595.800 591,211,700 
other Sa!arin & wages 17,308,800 18,034.800 14,483,200 14,922,100 15,380,400 
E121 Employer FICA 31,847,000 32.442,900 38,63 1,800 37,741,700 38,900,800 
E122 EmplDyerRlllllnffllenl 39,413,700 40,747,300 40,982,800 42,224,200 43,521,000 
Et23 Haallh murance 52,770,300 54,233.700 48,121,200 47,5111,BOO 48,977,900 
ether Fringe Beneltl 6,597,100 11,598,700 19,929,700 20,533.400 21, 164,000 
Subtotal5*tes & Fl1ngn 644,045,400 861,352,000 714,878.300 738,535,800 759,155,800 

TotalPtllPDOIICP1t l!!,IYl,I.RG Hj,iHiZ..IIIHI ZH,m,aa m,m.~11 Zlil.:IH,lall 
OptratlnqIIPIDIII 

E210 Utlltlll & Heating Fuels 21,015,700 21,130,800 23,189 ,900 23,189,9DO 23,11!19,900 
E230 Maln12nance & Repairs 15,404,400 17,152,900 15,240,000 15.240,000 15,240,000 
E310 Items Fat Rania 3,125,700 2.707,800 3,584,600 3,584,BDO 3,5114,800 
E320 Supples 242.137,700 243.2811,800 283,818,300 282,781,800 282,71!11,BOO 
E380 Travel Exp and Eq Alowllnct 18,434,800 18,661,900 17,218,000 17,218,000 17,218,000 
Non-BreakdownOperating 0 D 0 15,133,100 30,1131,500 
111111g1R1D1Ua11EJnam Zll,UU!Hl illlll,HZ,!HIII iW,Ht.H:Q ;11.Hll,alll ilZ2.!M3,UII 

Sii:aata11..Da111!1111111S1 
E44D Finl Aul1ta.-Non-Slale EqllDyees 32,918,800 37,488.200 129,417,300 129,417,30D 129,417,30D 

Iml !3t1oall.and1D1flla IZ,ljt.l!Hl lldH,Z!HI :IZt.5:ILH!I :IZl,52Lil!IQ jZIUjL~ll11 
P1btSfrdsa . 

Debt Senllce-Generat Fund 22,901,000 19,147,800 18,835,700 17,498,300 17,4116,300 

TotalPtbJSIJYla zz.w.aa jJJil.11111 !l,IH.HII ildll,SQ U,511,all 
CIRBIIQutltY 

E809 Olher Captlal Outlay 

Tqfll ~1111111 '211111! 
18,358,100 

ia,;9,jgg 
18,838,100 

H,Hl,2!HI 
22,428,800 

ZZ.5Zl,l!Hl 
22.428,600 

ZZ.521,1.QA ZZ..5ZI.HII 

22..C28,BOO 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES l,IUl,~11,IIHZ i ,IW:,Ht.!IUI !,ZZI.IHY.ZIIII 1.Zl~.11~.111111U!li.55:1,lllll 

l ll 
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Form E FD-lA FYl4 

FD-lA CONSOLIDATED CURRENT FUNDS REVENUE 
AcrtlAL FISCAL YEAR 2013-14 
 

DUE DATEl NayeinberI 
 
INS'JTruTION:UDIYenlty arl.oulm!le 
 

Adwll FY 2013-14 

Unrestrlcced Reslrk:ted Total 
Educadaaalaad Geaeral (E&G) 

Tuition 1111d Fcas 
DesrceCredit - FAIi JIB.303,296 . 118,303,296 
Psnsscm111­WJol5C - -
De11= Cmlit - Spiins 111,259,691 - 111,259,691 
De11= Cmlll - Summer 21,9.53,725 - 21,953,72.5 
S,,btatal Tu/tfon lSl,516,712 . 251Jl5.712 

Nonc:mllt 2,.53.5,745 . 2,535,74!1 
MllldAlmy S1udcii1 Fees 8,379,601 . 8,l19,601 
Other Fees 19,423,192 . 19,423,192 
Subtotal Tuition and Fru 281.855,250 - 281,155,250 

Leu: SdlolanlllpAllowances 72,413,633 - 72,413,633 
Ne&TullionandFees 209,441,617 - 209,441,617 

GoVCffll!ICIIWAppnlpriations-Fcdml 
ApicullllnllExperimentSIAl!on . . -
AplcullllnllElllellslonService . . . 
OthcrCumntAPP'O)lrialions - . . 
Sul11111alGot11mmtntalA1ltttT10rlatlatU•Frdrral - . . 

OovmimenlAIAppcopriatl0111-Stale 163.271.240 1,765,577 165,043,817 
GoYCnlmenlAIA,nnrnnrinllom-LDcll - . -
OovcnuncnlAICklntsandConlllld.s-Fedcnl 

Pell Grwnll - 19,269,169 19,269,169 
Suppl1:1111:nlAIEducatloml Oppartunlcy Oruts . 612,972 612,972 
Collcp Wort Study . 731,380 731,380 
Amcric:uiRecoveryandRdnvutmcnl GnllllS - . . 
OcherGrants 111111 Conincu 29,249 6ll,882,S99 68,911,11411 
SubtoralCi011rrnmt11taJGranuand Contrvcu-Frdrral 29,249 89,496,120 89,525,369 

OovcnuncnlAIOnints and Contracts-State - 29,071,545 29,071,545 
GovemmenlAIClrull AIIII Contncts,Loc:.J - 410.677 410.677 

Non-OovcmmcnllllOnint:1andCol\llllds - 17,124,475 17.124,47!1 
011\s,Donations.w Plcdaes 322,040 92,171,788 92,493,828 
lndim:t Cost Reimbursement 11,580,700 10,3114,347 21,965,047 
lnveslmall )IICl)IIIC(Unrcali=S I.Am) 874,494 119,948,54!1 120,823,039 
Endowmcnllnc:ome(Unrallicd I.ms) - 9,026.391 9,026.391
SalesIUldScn[ca ofEdLICllllonalActlvilla .5,332.765 - .5,332,765
BudacladFundBalanceasSupport . 
Olhcr 7,32.5.308 223.380.331 230,705,639 

Tatal EdUCDl!oaalud G~enl (E&G• 391,184,413 .592,779,796 990,964,209 

Sales 111d Senle£S orAwdllary Eaterprises 
H1111!la1 7,445,809 7,394,000 14,839,809 
FoodService 1,174,205 1,174,20!1 
Boabtora 306,42!1 306,425 
Other !l,68IJ2B .5,681,528 
ln~lqiatc Alhlctlcs . 49,l!l~.066 49, 1.55,1166 
MandalOly Student Fim, . -

Subtotal AiulliatJ Entc,pruu 14,607,967 !16,549,066 71,157,033 
Lc.u:Discount,&Allowancesallocolcdlo Auxlliuy Enlefprisc:, (1,601,091) . (1,601,091) 

Tatal Amlllary Enterprises 13,006,176 !16,549,066 69.S.5!1,942 

Sales ud ~arHmpllals 6,958,236 1!1,020,662 21,978,898 

TOTAL CURRENTFUNDS REVENUE 418,l49,S25 664,349,524 l,082,"499,049 

Areaffiliatedcorpcnllon fundl Included?JC!..JI_oo_ 

Ir)a, n,c lhcaffililledcorpor.llions U5tcdIn Table 2!1?yes~~ no_lhDSC 
Ifni,, provide e.1plana1lon. 
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Form E FD-ZA FY14 

FD-2A CONSOLIDATED CURRENT FUNDS EXPENSES AND TRANSn:RS BY FUNCTIONAL 
NATURAL OBJECT CODE 
 

ACTUAL FISCAL YEAR l0IJ-14 
 
DUE DATE: No,embtr I 
 

INSTITUTION: Unlnnll7 or LoulsTIUe 

Actual FY ?0lJ.14 

ll!D!!!Sll!D Unnstrlcled Restricted Total 
Educatfonol1111dGeaenl (E&G) 

~on 156,868,047 123,J 10,091 279,978,138 
Re.sc:atdl 25,723,950 I15,698,190 141,422,140 
Public Service 11,747,274 91,613,187 103,360,461 
UlKDric.1 13,727.206 . 13,727,206 
Ae.odcffiic Suppon 43,438,352 50,785,199 94,223.551 
Swdcnl Services 28,128,993 434,657 2BJ63,6SO 
InstitutionalS11pp01t 46,147,394 25,722.783 71,870,177 
Opcrallonand Mlllnll!n1111ceor Planl 48,992,883 8,904,349 57,897,232 
SllldcnlFi111111ClalAid 17,750,052 21,474,924 39,224,976 
Depreciation 51,980,013 4.352,584 56,332,597 
Other Ed1JC11Uonol 1111dGcncnilEiipcnse.s . 10,981,000 10,981,000 
Sub101alE&G 444,504.164 453,076,96-4 897,581,128 

MmulatoryTmrufc:rs 8,245,480 4,236,000 12,481,480 
Non Tnwfc:rs (9,991,792) 9,991,792 . 
Total EducalJonal and Central (E&G) 442,757.851 467,304,756 910,062,608 

Aiwllary Enterprises 
AiwllmyEnll!rpriseOper:itlom 7,860,393 5,332,000 13,192,393 
lntatoUegiaieAthletics 1,000,000 71,602,183 7l,60l,183 
Mll.nd:lloryTransrm 29,826 2,664,458 2,6!J4,2B4 
NonmondalolyTnuufers (1,079,855) 1,079,855 -
Tomi AwdUarJ Enterprises 7,1110,364 80,678,496 88,488,860 

Hosplmb 
Hospital Openations . . . 
Mlllld•lllf'YTransrc:rs 17,788,164 . 17,788,164 
NOlllllnd4imy TrllllSfcrs . - . 
Total Hospllab 17,7BS,164 - 17,788,164 

TOTAL EXPENSESITRANSFERS BY FUNCTION 468,156,380 547,983,2!12 I.OJ6,339,632 

e,Netv111Ql!lect 
Pcnonnd CoslJ 304,259,760 330,490,365 634,750,125 
Opcnuing EJ:pcnscs 141,128,641 180,614,.527 322,343,168 
Oronis,Lo.am,or Bcndits 14,092,673 29,977,902 44,070,575 
DebiSavlcc: 8,275,306 6,900,458 1!1,175,764 
C4pl~Oulhly . . . 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES BY NATURAL OBJECf 468,356,380 547,983,252 1,016,339,632 

~ offillalcdCOIJI0(1IC1onfundstncllJdcd?yes_x_no_ 
Iryes.an: lhe llfllllalcd corponidons !hose mcluded In Table 25? yes_x_no_ 
If no, provide: explanation. 
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Form E FD-IA FY15 

fD.lA CONSOLIDATED CURRENT FUNDS REVENUE 
AcrtlAL FISCAL YEARl014-15 

DUEDATE: No,cmberl 
IN5TITIJTION: Unl•ersllJ orLoalnlle 

Actual FY 2014-15 

U11reslricted Restnceed Talal 
Educ:adoaal and Guenl (E&G) 

TuldOII 1111d Fees 
DegreeCfedlt • Fall 123,087,610 . 123,087,610 
DsmeCmlli • w1n1ec . 
Dearee Credit - Sprtna 115,074,651 . 115,074,651
DepeeCredlt • Summer 22.74.5,651 . 22,74.5,651 
Subtotal Tuition 260,907,912 . 260,907,912

Nancttdlt 2.J90.341 . 2,]90,341
Ml!IIIDloryShldencFees 8,678,089 . B,678,089 
OtberFec.s 21J67,657 . 21.S67,657 
Subtolld T11lll011 twl Ftu 293.544,006 . 293,544,006 

Leu: Scholll'SblpAllowances 83,709,721 . 83,709,721
Net Tulli011 and Fees 209,834,285 . 209,834,285 

Oovcmlllallal Appropriatlons-Fcdenil 
AJricultunal&perimc:nt Slltlan . . . 
Agriculwnil&11:nQonService . - . 
OtherCllffClllAppniprlalJom . . . 
Subtoral Gartmmtnral Aao,r,ariallons-Ftrkral . . . 

OavcmmcntlalAppn,pri11U011S-Scatc 139,794,TTT 1Jl7,393 141,382,17D
OavCfMIClllQIAppn,prl11tlom-Local . . . 
Oavi:nllllellLIIIOnnlS and ContnK:ts-Fcdcnl 

~ICinmts . 19,153,843 19,153,843 
Su~ Educal!DIIIIOpponunlty Grants . 710,939 710,939
ColJc:aeWDft Study . 690,089 690,089 
Other Oranb and Conlr:lclS . 64,028,601 64,028,601 
Subcatola-ffllfU!ntol GronuGIidConrraas,Ftdtral . 84.583.472 84J83.472 

Govi:nllllCllllllCiranlS1111dContracts-SIil!: . 43,253,267 43,253.267
GovcmmenllllCirants1111dCoaua:l,,Local . .594,316 594.316 

Noa-CioVCffllllClllal01'11111IUldCoiitiaf:19 . 19,070,690 19,070,690 
om,. Donations.andPlcdaes 400,1.57 95,066,765 95,466,922 
IndirectCostRclmbuncment 11.SB0,7DO 11,015,525 22,.596,225 
lnwstmeat Income (U•allied Lou) 1,124,399 (.5,0Sl.519) (3,927I 120) 
EndaWllll!llt l11COme(UnmJlud Lou) 9,692,413 9,692,413
Sala 111d Servlca of Ed11e11liollal ActMda 6,283,076 6,213,076 
Budplal Fund Balance as SllppOrt . 
Ocher 7,665,643 248.916.m 256JB2.420 

Total Edncadolllll1111dGeaenl (E&G) 376,683,037 508,729,099 W,412,136 

Salct ••II Senfca orAcwllar,. Ealerprtses 
Homlna 7.490,791 7,647,000 15,137,791 
FoodService 1,183,524 1,183,524 
Bllllkstar:, 323,873 323,873
Otbcr 5,496,840 5,496,840 
Inlelmllca)11111Alhlctlcs . 66,072,052 66,G72,052
MllfldalacySllldi:ntFcc:i - - -Sublala/ ,t.udluu, Enlt,prws 14,495,021 73,719,052 111,214,080
Leu: Tuition Discount (1,876,940) . (l.176,940) 

Total Amlla,y Ealerprisa 12,611,0IB 73,719,052 86,337,140 

Sala ucl Senlca ol Hospllllt 10.1104,092 19,996.786 30,000,878 

TOTAL CURRENT FUNDS REVENUE 399,305.217 60:Z,444,937 1,001 ,7SO, 1.54 

Are Af'lillalcd corporation funds includcd7 ycs_;t_no_ 
 

Iryes,are the offillllc4 corponilloNlhasc JISlcd In TQblc 257 ycs_;t_no_ 
 
Ifno, pn,vide caplanotlon. 
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Form E FD-?A FYIS 

FD-2A CONSOLIDATED CURRENT FUNDS £XpENSES AND TRANSFERS DY FUNCTIONAL 
 
NATURAL OBJECT CODE 
 

ACTUAL FISCAL YEAR 2Dl,t.15 
 
DUEDATE: Novembu 1 
 

INSTITtJ11ON: Unlftrsily of Loulnille 

Actual FY 2014-15 

DyFunctlnn Unreslricted Restricted Total 

EdacuUonal and General CE&G) 
Instruction 161,300,397 114,838,495 276,138,892 
Research 24,441,196 114,006,907 138,448,103 
Public Service 13,149,806 104,513,335 117,663,141 
Libraries 14,670,732 - 14,670,732 
Acodemlc Support 36,784,322 70,362,369 107,146,691 
Student Services 29,091,080 579,505 29,670.585 
lnstitutiomtl Support 47,033,137 25,367,877 72,401,014 
Opcnttion and Mllintcnanc:c or Pl:1n1 45,574,765 13,488,841 59,063,606 
Student Financial Aid 13,177,390 18,415,689 31,!593,079 
Depreciation 48,353,369 4,985,910 53,339,279 
Other Educatlon11I and General Expenses - 15,019,000 15,019,000 

Subtolal £&.G 433,576,194 481,577,928 915,154,122 

M:ind:itoryTnmsrcn 8,579,333 S,169,000 13,748,333 
Nonm11ndi11oryTransrc:rs (13,936.189) 15,420.174 1,483,985 

Total Educational llffll General(E&G) 428,219,338 S02,167,102 930,386,440 

Auxiliary Enterprises 
AudUmyEnlctpriscOpcn11iom 8,SBB,315 5,420,000 14,008,315 
lntercollcg!atc Athletics - 80,199,278 80.299.278 
MandatoryTransrers . 2,557,015 2,557,015 
NonmDnd:iloryTransfers 960,!598 6,698,653 7,659,251 

Tola! Awdllary Enterprises 9,548,913 94,974,946 l04,523,859 

Hospitals 
Hospillll Oper.itions - - -
Mand:itoryTr:insrers 637,788 - 637,788 
NonmandatoryTransfers - . . 
Total Hospllllls 637,788 - 637,788 

TOTAL EXPENSESfl'RANSFERS BY FUNCTION 438,406,039 597,142,048 1,03S,548,087 

DyNalunalObied 
Pmonacl Costs 304,905,347 348,221,883 6S3,127,230 
Opc:ratingExpcnscs 116,963,820 21S,690,665 332,6S4,48S 
Grants,Loans,or Benefits 7,9.57,539 25.503,48.5 33,461,024 
Debt Service 8,579,333 7,726,015 16,305.348 
Oipilal OUtlay . - -
TOTAL EXPfM>ITURES BY NATURAL OBJECT 438,406,039 597,142,048 1,03.5,548.087 

An: aifill:itcd c:orpomtion funds included? yes_,_ no_ 
Ifyes,DR theaffiUalcd COIJ)OIDtlons those included in T:iblc 25? yes_x_ no_ 
Ir no, provide cxplanollon. 
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FORM E FD-IB -FY16 

FD•lB CONSOLIDATED CURRENT FUNDS REVENUE 
 
BUDGETED FISCAL YEAR 2015-Ui 
 

DUE DATE: Seplember 1 
 
INSTITUTION:Unherslly orLoulnlDe 

EducationalandGeneral(E&G) 
Tuition ind Fees 

Dqn:c Credit. Fall 
Qeme Credjt•WinJq 
DegreeCredit- Spring 
DegreeCredit· Summer 
Subtotal Tultion 

Nonm:dit 
M1111dal0r)'StudentFees 
Od&crfcc:s 
Subtotal Tultlon and Ftu 

Budftted FY 2015°16 

Unrestricted Rmrided Totlll 

126,215,300 . 126.215,300 
. . -

117,705,700 . ll7,70S,700 
23,438,100 . 23,438,100 

267,359,100 . 267,359,100 
3,671,100 - 3,671,100 
9,761,300 . 9,761,300 

19,590,400 . 19,S90,400 
300.381,900 . 300,381,900 

OovcmmcnllllApproprialions-Fedcrul 
Agricultunl &pcrimcnt St11lion . - -
Agricultuml Extension Service - . . 
Olhcr Curccnt AppropriDlions - - . 
Subtotal Oovemmtntol Aoaroarlatloru-Fttkral . . . 

OovcmmenlalAppropriations-Stale 140,416,300 140,416,300 
CiovemmenlalAnmnnrlatlons-1.oclll . 
OovemmentalOllllllSud Contncts-Fcdenl 

Pell Ciranls - 20,000,000 20,000,000 
SupplementalEduCAtionalOpponunity Cirants . 729,500 723,500 
Collc:,&c:Work Study . 905,600 905,600 
OdtcrFcdaul Finllllc:ialAid . 425,000 425,000 
Other Onints 1111d ConlnlCts . 77,768,800 77,768,800 
Sabtoral Go~mmtntal Granu and Contracts-Fftltral . 99,828,900 99,828,900 

.Oovc:mmc:nlalGranlSand Conlncts-SIDte 52,535,200 52,535,200 .Oovc:mmcnlalOr:intsand Conlr.lets•Local 721,800 721,800 

Non-OovanmenllllOrantsandConlnlcts . 
oms,Donations, and Pledges -
Indirect Cost Reimbunc:ment 11,632,100 
Investment Income: 3,517,700 
Endowment Income -
Sales and Services orEdlJCDlioRIIIActivities 967,700 
Budacted Fund Baloncc:as Suppon 
OtherMisc. Revenue (Restricted- Clinical Oocrntlons) 26,163,100 

23,163,200 
42,095,800 
11,367,900 . 
84,268,100 

-
-

310,856,100 

Total Educational and General (E&G) 483.078,800 624,837,000 

Sales mid Senlccs or Aulllary Eaterprtsa 

23,163,200 
42,095,800 
23,000,000 
3,517,700 

84,268,100 
967,700 

-
337,019.200 

l,1D7,915,800 

Housina 6,844,200 . 6,844.200 
FoodService .30,000 30,000 
Bookstores 315,000 315,000-
Other 7,108,800 7,108,800-
JntcrcollcglllleAthletic, 92,530,000 92,530,000-
Mandatory Student Fc:c:s . - -
TotalAuxiliaryEnterprises 14,298,000 92,530,000 106,828,000 

Sales IUldSenlca ol'Hospllals 13,860,900 IJ,!60,900 

TOTAL CURRENT FUNDS REVENUE 511,237,700 717,367,000 1,228,604,700 

AreIIIlilialcdcorponitionfundsincluded? yes~- no_ 
 
Ir yes, are lhe affili11tedcorponlllons!hoselisted in Tiiblc25? 119_1_ no_ 
 
Ir no, provide explanation. 43 
 



FORM E m-2D -FY16 

FD-2B CONSOLIDATED CURRENT FUNDS EXPENSES AND TRANSFERS BY FUNCTIONAL 
 
NATIJRAL OBJECT CODE 
 

BUDGETED FISCAL YEAR 2015-16 
 
DUE DATE: Nowember I 
 

INSTITUTION: Unlnrslty or Loubvllle 
 

DuditelcdFY1015-16 

ByFunction Unnstridcd Restrided Total 

Educationaland General {E&G) 
lnsuuc:cJort 
Reseuch 
Public Service 
Ubraries 
Acudcmic Support 
Student Services 
lnsli1u1ional Suppgn 
Opcmtion11ndM11inlennnccor Phmt 
Student Financial Aid 
Depreciation 
Ocher Educ111ional and Gener.al Expenses 

174,135,900 
30,173,400 
9,777,200 

18,696,800 
37,850,200 
31,572,100 
70,319,100 
50,896,000 
58,056,300 

. 
1,1011,1100 

199.834,SOO 
116,040,000 
100,956,100 

1,917,100 
103,741,400 

1,238,700 
26,658,000 

1.298,000 
73,153.200 

. 

. 

373,970,400 
146,213,400 
110,733,300 
20,613,900 

141,591,600 
32,810,800 
96,m,too 
52,194,000 

131,209.SOO 
. 

1,108,800 

Subtotal E&G 482.585 .SOD 624,837.000 1,107,422,800 

MmufD1oryTransrcrs 
NonmDndDIOl'YTmisfers 

18,835,700 . . 
. 

18,835.700 
. 

Total EducaUoaal and General (E&G) 501,421.SOO 624,837,000 1,126,258,500 

AuJUaryEnterprises 
AwtlliaryE,uerpriscOpmtlons 
lnten:ollegiatcAthletics 
MllndDtoryTransfers 
Nonlllllnd11toryTransfers 

9,816,200 
. 
. 
. 

. 
92.530,000 

-. 

9,816,200 
92.530,000 . 

. 
Total Awdllary Enterprises 9,816,200 92,530,000 102,346,200 

Hospitals 
Hospital OpmtJons 
MandDtoryTrun.sfers(QCCT) 

No11J1111ndDtoryTr.wren 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 
. 
. 
-

Total Hospitals - . -
TOTAL EXPENSESII'RANSFERS BY FUNCTION 511,237,700 717,367,000 1,228,604,700 

n, Ngtupl Qblect 
Personnel C05ts 
OpenllingExpenses 
Grants,Loans,or Bcnc:nu 
Debt Service 
C11pllalOull11y 

340,348,000 
94,0Sl,300 
54,994,100 

. 
21,844,300 

388,268,400 
256,374,600 
72,139,800 . 

584,200 

728,616,400 
350,425,900 
127,133,900 

-
22,428,500 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES BY NATURAL OBJECT 511,237,700 717,367,000 1,228,604,700 

Ale affiliated corporation rllllll5inclwlcd'lyes_x_no_ 
 
Ir yes, me the aflilialed corporations lhoseincluded in T111Jlc 
257 yes_x_ no_ 
If no, provide explanalion. 

44 



FORM E FD-18-FYl? 

FD•IBCONSOLIDATEDCURRENT FUNDS REVENUE 
 
PROPOSED FISCAL VEAR 2016-17 
 

INSTITUTION: Unlvcnlty orLoulmllc: 
 

Pronased FY 2016-17 

Unmtrh:tcd lwlrlc:Ccd Total 
Educational and Gc:nc:nJ (E&G) 

Tuition and Fees 
Oegrc:cCredit - Fall 
DeememtU- Winter 

DegreeCredit_.Spring 

Depc:eCredit• Summer 

Sub101alTlllllon 

Noncredit 

Mandatory Student Fc:cs 

Other Fees 

SublDtal T11l1/on andFtu 

Oovcmmc:nlalAppn,priatlons-Fcdc:ral 
AgricullunlExperimentStation 
Agric:ultunlExtensionService 
Other Cumnt Appropriations 
S116101at ,4oaroorlatians-FtdtralGavernmenlal

ll0,544,200 

121,754,400 
24,203,700 

276,502,300 
3,781,200 
9,761,300 

19,590,400 
309,635,200 

130,544,200 

121,7'4,400 
24,203,700 

276,502,300 
3,711,200 
9,761,300 

19,390,400 
309,635,200 

OovcmmcntalAppropriations-State 148,131,900 148,lll,900 
Oovanmcntal Am,marlations-Local 

GovernmentalGrantsand Contracu-Fcdcnl 
PetlOnmis 
Supplanental Educational Opportunity Onnts 
College Work Study 
OtherFedcrul Financial Aid 
OtherGrantsand ConlrllCtS 
Subtotal Go11,rnnrt11tal GnmtsandCantracts-F,d,rat 

20,000,000 
729,500 
905,600 
425,000 

78,546,500 
100,606,600 

20,000,000 
729,500 
905,600 
425,000 

78,546.SOO 
100,606,600 

OoYaMJCDtalGrantsand COlllnlcis-State 53,060,600 53,060,600 
GovanmentalGrantsandC011lrlc:ts•local 729,000 729.000 

Non-GovemmentalCinntsMd Con!Rcts 23,394,800 23,394,100 
Ciil\s,Doaat.ions.and Pledges 42,937,700 42,937,700 
IndirectCost Reimbursement 12,137,800 11,162,200 24,000,000 
lnVClluncntIncome(Loss) 3,588,100 3,588,IDD 
EndowmentIncome(loss) SS,953,50D 15,953,500 
SalesandServicesorEduc:alionalActivities 996,700 996,700 
Budseti:dFundBalance as Support 
Other 26,948000 320,111.800 347,129,800 

Total Educational and Gcaeral (E&G) 501,437,700 631,726,200 1,140,163,900 

SalesHd Si:rvleuof Aa:dllary Enlerprbu 
Housing 
Food Service 
Bookstores 
Other 
lnlen:ollcgiateAthlelia 
MandatmyStudent Fees 

Total Amlllary Enterprises 

7,049,500 
30,900 

324,SOO 
7,322,100 

14,727,00D 

95,30.5,900 

95,30.5,900 

7,049,.S00 
30,900 

324,SDO 
7,322,100 

9.5,305,900 

110,032,900 

Sales and Service, orllespltals 13,860,900 13,860,900 

TOTAL CURRENT FUNDS REVENUE .530,025,600 734,032,100 1,264,057,700 

Arc affiliated corporation f'undsincluded? yes_ no_ 
 
Ifyes,arctheaffiliated corporations thoselistedInTable 25? ye.._ no_ 
 
lfno, provide explanation. 45 
 



FORM ~1B -FY17 

FD-lB CONSOLIDATED CURRENT FUNDS EXPENSES AND TRANSFERS BY FUNCTIONAL 
NATURAL OBJECT CODE 

PROPOSEDFISCAL YEAR 1016-17 
INSTITUTION: University orLoubvllle 

Proposed FY 2016-17 

PYfuustfon Unrestricted Reslricted Total 

Educational and General (E&G) 
lnslrUctiao 
Research 
Public Service 
Libraries 
Academic Support 
S111dentServices 
lnslitutional Support 
OperationandMaintenanceof Plant 
Student Financial Aid 
Depreciation 
OtherEducational and General Expenses 

. 
181,253,835 
31,406,760 
10,176,850 
19,461,046 
39,397,355 
ll.862,633 
73,193,446 
52,976,412 
60,429,395 

. 
1,154,123 

204,476,841 
118,735,717 
103,301.403 

1,961,636 
106,151,409 

1,267.476 
27,277,290 

1,328,154 
74,852,617 

-
-

385,730,676 
150,142,477 
113,478,254 
21,422,682 

145,548,764 
34,130,109 

100,470,736 
54,304,566 

135,282,01I 
. 

I, 154,123 

Subtotal E&G 502,311,855 639,352,542 1.141,664,398 

MandatoiyTransrcrs 
NonmandatorvTransfers 

17,496,300 

-
-
-

17,496,300 

-
Total Educational and General (E&G) 519,808,155 639,352.542 1,159,160,698 

Auilllary Enterprises 
Auxiliary Enterprise Operolions 
lntcrcollcglaleAlhlctics 
MandatoryTransfers 
NonmandatoryTransfers 

10,217,445 

-
-
-

. 
94,679,558 

. 

. 

10,217,445 
94,679,558 

-
-

Tola! Au:dllary Enterprises 10,217,445 94,679,558 104,897,002 

Hospitals 
Hospilal Operations 
Mandatory Transfers 
NonmandatoryTransfers 

--
-

--
-

-
-
-

Total Hospitals . - -
TOTAL EXPENSESffRANSFERS BY FUNCTION Sl0,025,600 734,032,I00 1,264,057,700 

PY Natural Qblect 
Personnel Costs 
OperatingExpenses 
Grants, Loans, or Benefits 
Debt Service 
Capital Outlay 

JS2,8SS,732 
97,507,670 
S7,0IS,124 

. 
22,647,074 

397,288,235 
262,330,419 
73,815,674 

-
597,772 

750,143,967 
359,838,089 
130,830,798 

-
23,244,846 

TOTAL EXP£NDITUR£S BY NATURALOBJECT 530,025,600 734,032,100 1,264,057,700 

Arc affiliated corporation funds included?yes_ no_ 
lfycs, arc the affiliated c:orporntions thoseIncludedinTable 257 yes_ 
If no, provide explanation. 

no_ 
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FORM E FD-18-FYIB 

FD-18 CONSOLIDATEDCURRENT FUNDS REVENUE 
 
PROPOSEDFISCAL YEAR 2017-18 
 

INSTITUTION1U•h'erslly ofLaulsvUle 
 

Educational and General (E&C} 
Tuitionand Fees 
 

Dcpc Cmlit- Fall 
 
Qeme Osdil-Wfntcr 
 
Degec Credit• Spring 
 
Dear= Credit - Swnme:r 
 
SMbto1alTull/on 

Noacredlt 
 
Mandato,y SIUdcnt Fees 
 
OtherFees 
 
Sub101alTMllionand F,u 

OovcmmentaJAppropriatlons•Fcderal 
 
Agricullllnd Experiment Station 
 
AgriculturalExtension Service 
 
OtherCurrentApprupriations 
 
Subtotal Gov,rnrn,nta/ AI1aroar/a1/ons•F1d1ral 

Pro110HdFY 2017-11 

Unrestricted Restricted T11al 
~~~ 3.v71~!:!~~IW~"' 3,u,t ;;-r ~- -~·i~ l~0%1 

135,030,300 135,030,300 

-

125,950,400 125,950,400 
24,995,400 24,995,-400 

285,976,100 ­ 285,975,100 
3,894,600 3,894,600 
9,761,300 9,761,300 

19,590,400 19,590,400 
319,222.400 ­ 319,222,400 

-
-
-

-
 -
 -

157,186,900 157,186,900 

-

20,000,000 20,000,000 
729,500 729,500 
905,600 9.0S,600 

. - 425,000 425,000 
79,332,000 79,332,000 

- 101.392,100 101.392.100 

- 53,591,200 53,591,200 
736,3D0 736,300 

23,628,700 23,621,700 
44,225,800 44,225,800 

12,390,700 12,109,300 . 24,500,000 
3,695,700 3,695,700 

88,532,100 11,532,100 
1,026,600 1,026,600 

-
27,7S6,400 329,717.300 357,543,700 

521,271,700 654,002,100 1,175,281,500 

7,261,000 7,261,000 
31,B00 31,100 

334,200 334,200 
7,541,100 7,541,800 

91,165,100 91,165,100 

-

15,168,100 98,165,100 113,333,900 

OovmuncntaJAppropriations-State 

Oovmunental Anoronriations-Local 


GovernmentalOt111tsandConlnets-Fcdcral 

PellOrunlS 

Supplemcnlll Educotional OpportunityOnults 

College Work Study 

OtherFederalF1111111cial
Aid 

OtherCiranlsandContncts 

Subtotal Go111rnrn1ntal GranlS and Contracts-Ftd,rol 

Oo\ll:tMlelltalGrants and Conlrllcts-Stace 

OovcmmcataJGrantsandCanlnlcts-l.ocal 


Non-GovernmentalGrantsandContracts 

Gift..,Donations,1111d
Pledges 

Indirect COJt Ri:imbursement 

lllvatrnentlnc:omo(Lem) 

EndowmentIncome(Lem) 

Sales and Services of Educational Activities 

Budgeted Fund Balani= as Support 

Other 


Total Educatla11al and General (E&G) 

SAiesind Service, er AulHary E1terprba 
Housing 
Food Service 
Bookstores 
Other 
Intercollegiate Athletics 
Mandatory Student Fees 

Total AusRlaryEnterprises 

Sales aad Services or Hospitals 13,860,900 13,860,900 

TOTAL CURRENT FUNDS REVENUE 550,308,400 751,167,900 1,302,476,300 

Areaffilialed corpanilion funds Included? yes_ no_ 
Ifye.,,are!heaffiliated cmpomions !hose listed in Table25? yes_ ao_ 
If no,provideexplanation. 4 7 



FORM E ~2B-FYIS 

FD-1B CONSOLIDATED CURRENT FUNDS EXPENSES AND TRANSFERS BY FUNCTIONAL 
 
NATURALOBJECT CODE 
 

PROPOSEDFISCAL YEAR 1017-18 
 
INSTITUTION:University ofLoalsvllle 
 

Proposed FY 2017-18 

By Function Unrestricted Restricted Total 

Edacatlonal and General (E&G) 
lnsll\lction 
Rcsean:h 
Public Service 
Libraries 
Academic Support 
Student Services 
lnslitulionDlSuppon 
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 
Student Financial Aid 
Dcprcclalion 
Other EducatiOCUII and General Expenses 

188,426,762 
32.649,649 
l0,S79,5BB 
20,231,196 
40,956,464 
34,163,137 
76,089,998 
SS,072,897 
62,820,823 

-
I, 199,796 

209,528,869 
121,669,331 
IDS,8S3,681 

2,010,102 
108,774,102 

1,298,792 
27,951,233 

1,360,969 
76,702,007 

--

397,9SS,63I 
154,318,981 
116,433,269 
22,241,298 

149,730,565 
35,461,929 . 104,041,231 
56,433,866 

139,522,83I 
. 

1,199,796 

Subtotal E&G 522,190,311 655,149,086 1,177,339,397 

M1111datoryTransfers 
NonmandatoryTransfers 

17,496,300 
. -

-
17,496,300 

-
Total Edacatlonal and General (E&G) 539,686,61 l 655, 149,086 I, 194,835,697 

Auxiliary Enterprises 
Auxtllmyintcrprise Operations 
lntcn:ollcgialCAthlelics 
Mandatory Transfers 
NonmandatoryTransfers 

10,621,789 

-
-
-

-
97,018,814 

. 
-

10,621,789 
97,018,814 

. 
-

Total Auxiliary Enterprises 10,621,789 97,018,814 107,640,603 

Hospitals 
Hospilal Opc:mtions 
Mandll.loryTransfers 
NonmandaloryTransfers 

. 
-
-

. 
-
-

. 
-. 

Total Hospitals . - . 

TOTAL EXPENSESffRANSFERS BY FUNCTION 550,303,400 752,167,900 1,302,476,300 

ByNatur•I Object 

Personnel Costs 
Operating Expenses 
Grants, Loans, or Benefits 
Debt Service 
Capital Outlay 

366,358,669 
101,239,053 
59,196,9SS 

-
23,513,723 

407,104,072 
268,811,842 
75,639,445 

-
612,541 

773,462,741 
370,050,894 
134,836,400 . 
24,126,264 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES BY NATURAL OBJECT 550,308,400 752,167,900 1,302,476,300 

Arc:affiliated corporation funds included? yes_ no_ 
 
If yes, arc lhc affilia1cdcorporations those included in Table: 25? yes_ no_ 
 
lfno, provide explanation. 
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201 &-2011 Kentucky Branch Budget 
 
Operating Budget Request PriorityRanking Summa,y Record 
 

OPERATINGBUDGETSUMMARYRECORDP 

Gavemmantal Branch: Exec:utfva Branch 

Cabinet PostsKOndaryEducaUan 

Agency: Postsec:andary EducacJon Institutions 
Appraprlatlon: University of Loulsvflll 

FY2G15-11 
Budtltad 

FY201S.17 
Requestad 

FY2017-11 

'"'"'"DeftnedCaleulallons 0 0 

1 Growth PerfvrmanceFWldlng 0 7,055,000 14,110,000 

Total Addltlonal BudgetRequest D 3fi,7t~•DD 75,211,00D 

61 



2016-20111Kentucky Branch Budget 
 
OperaUng Budget Request: Priority Ranking Summary Record 
 

OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY ~ECORD P Agency: Postsaconduy Education Institutions 
Approptlallcm: University of Loulsvllla 

Gov1mm1ntal Branch: ExtcuUva Branch 
Cabinet: Posts,~nda,y Education 

FY20tS-16 FY2011i-17 FY2017-18 
 
Budgeted Raqu11ted Requ 1sted 
 

1 DellnedcarculaUons 0 0 

0 2,000,000 . 4,000,000 2 Growth Centers of Research Excelenc:e 

Total AddHlonal Budget Raquast a 31,792,40G 15.211,000 



2011-2018KentuckyBranch BUdget 
 
OperaUng Budget Requut: Priority Ranking Summary Record 
 

OPERATINGBUDGET SUMMARY RECORD P 

Gov1mmental Branch: EncutJn Branch 

Cabinet Postucondaly Education 

Agency: Pcmsecondaly Educadon lns1ltutJons 
Approprtatlon: University of Laulsvllle 

FY201&-1& 
Budft!ed 

FY2011-17 
~uuted 

FY2017-11 
ff!!luntld: 

1 Deftned Calculatlans 0 0 

3 Grawlh Grav.thIn Federal&Restricted 0 27,737,400 57,101,000 

Total AddlUonal BudgetRequest a 31,792,400 75,211,00D 
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2016-2018 Kentucky Branch Budget 
 
Capital Budget Request: Project Summary Record 
 

All dollar amounts rounded to next $1000 
 

Capital Budget Record CBR-01 

Governmental Branch: Executive Branch Agency: Postsecondary Education Institutions 
Cabinet: Postsecondary Education Appropriation : University of Louisville 

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY2017-18 TotalSUMMARY BY FUND SOURCE 
Requested Requested Requested Requested 

Bond Funds 0 169,473,000 D 169,473,000 

Restricted Funds 0 757,044,000 0 757,044,000 

Agency Bonds 0 172 395,000 0 172,395,000 

Other - Cash 0 91,030,000 0 91,030,000 

Other · Thlrd Party Financing 0 227,840,000 0 227,840,000 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES BY UNIT 0 1,417,782~000 0 1,417,782,000 

460U16C552 Construct - Instructional Building at HSC Construction 

Bond Funds 0 71,730,000 0 71,730,000 

Total Construct - Instructional Building at HSC 0 71,730,000 0 71,730,000 

2 460U16C544 Renovate · Capital Renewal Pool (2016·2018) Construction 

Bond Funds O 35,000,000 0 35,000,000 

Total Renovate· Capital Renewal Pool (2016-2018) O 35,000,000 0 35,000,000 

3 460U16C542 Purchase • Next Generation/ERP Support System Information Technology System 

Bond Funds O 6,000,000 0 6,000,000 

Total Purchase- Next Generation/ERP Sup port System 0 6,000,000 0 6,000,000 

4 460U16C555 Purchase • Research Computing Infrastructure Information Technology System 

Bond Funds 0 7,000,000 0 7,000,000 

Total Purchase· Research Computing Infrastructure 0 7,000,000 0 7,000,000 

5 460U16C537 Renovate • Natural Science BuUd1ng Construction 

Bond Funds 0 29,843,000 0 29,843,000 

Total Renovate- Natural Science Bulldl!!i 0 29,843,000 0 29,843,000 

6 460U16C546 Renovate • Kornhauser li brary Construction 

Bond Funds 0 19,900,000 0 19,900,000 

Total Renovate· Kornhauser Library 0 19,900,000 0 19,900,000 

7 460U16C549 

Agency Bonds 

Construct · Residence Hall 
0 

Construction 
44,450,000 0 44,450,000 

Total Construct ­Residence Hall 0 44,450,000 0 44,450,000 

8 460U16C595 

Agency Bon 

Renovate • Residence Hall I 

ds 0 
Construction 

26,770,000 0 26,770,000 

Total Renovate- ResidenceHall I 0 26,770,000 0 26,770,000 

9 460U16C596 

Agency Bon 

Renovate - Residence Hall II 

ds 0 
Construction 

19,550,000 0 19,550,000 

Total Renovate- ResidenceHall II 0 19,550,000 0 19,550,000 

10 460U16C548 Renovate - Medical School Tower Lab/Infra Construction 
Renewal 

Agency Bonds 0 36,000,000 0 36,000,000 

Total Renovate • Medical School Tower Lab/Infra 
Renewal 0 36,000,000 0 36,000,000 

11 460U16C563 Construct • Belknap Parking Garage II Construction 

Agency Bonds 0 45,625,000 0 45,625,000 

Total Construct - Belknap Parking Garage II 0 45,625,000 0 45,625,000 

12 460U16C560 Construct · Administrative Office Bui ding Construction 

Other · Third Party Financing 0 52,560,000 0 52,560,000 

Total Construct. Administrative Office Building 0 52,560,000 0 52,560,000 

460U16C567 Construct • Athletic Grounds Building Construction 

Other - Cash 0 1,550,000 0 1,550,000 
13 

Total Construct· Athletic Grounds Bulldlng 0 1,550,000 0 1,550,000 

6S 



2016·2018 Kentucky Branch Budget 
 
Capital Budget Request: Project Summary Record 
 

All dollar amounts rounded to next $1000 
 

Capital Budget Record CBR-01 

Governmental Branch: Executive Branch Agency: Postsecondary Education Institutions 
Cabinet: Postsecondary Education Appropriation: University of Louisville 

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 Total
SUMMARY BY FUND SOURCE 

Requested Requested Requested Requested 

14 460U16C558 Construct . Athletics Office Budding Construction 

Olhe r - Third Party Financing 0 7,550,000 0 7,550,000 

Total Construct· Athletics Office Building 0 7,550,000 0 7,550,000 

15 460U16C56B Construct - Center for Creative Studies Construction 

Restricted Funds 0 10,193.000 0 10.193,000 

Total Construct· Canter for Creative Studies 0 10,193,000 0 10,193,000 

16 460U16C539 Construct - Center for Social Change Construction 

Othe r - Third Party Finani;ing 0 13,610.000 0 13,610,000 

Total Construct - Center for Social Change 0 13,610,000 0 13,610,000 

17 460U 16C556 Construct • Center for the Performing Arts Construction 

Othe r • Third Party Financing 0 76,660,000 0 76,660,000 

Total Construct· Center for the Performing Arts 0 76,660,000 0 76,660,000 

1B 460U16C551 Construct · Executive MBA/Business Program Construction 

Restricted Funds O 12,000,000 D 12,000,000 

Total Construct • Executive MBA/Business Program 0 12,000,000 0 12,000,000 

19 460U16C553 Construct . Physical Plant Space in HSC Garage Construction 

Restricted Funds O 2,440,000 0 2,440,000 

Total Construct . Physical Plant Space In HSC Garage O 2,440,000 0 2,440,000 

20 460U16C590 Construct - HSC Administrative Office Building Construction 

Restricted Funds O 30,510.000 0 30,510,000 

Total Construct - HSC Administrative omce Building o 30,510,000 0 30,510,000 

21 460U16C600 Construct · Institute for Product Reabzation Construction 

Other - Cash 0 35,980,000 0 35,980,000 

Total Construct • Institute for Product Reallzatlon 0 35,980,000 0 35,980,000 

22 460U16C571 Construct · Shelbyhurst HoteVConference Center Construction 

Other - Cash O 18,720,000 0 18,720,000 

Total Construct - Shelbyhurst Hotel/Confenmce Center 0 18,720,000 0 18,720,000 

23 460U16C570 Construct . Shelbyhurst Parking Garage Construction 

Other - Cash 0 26,000,000 0 28,000,000 

Tota l Construct· Shelbyhurst Parking Garage 0 28,000,000 0 28,000,000 

24 460U16C591 Construct · Soccer Stadium Practice Field Construction 

Restricted Funds 0 2,000,000 0 2,000,000 

Total Construct . Soccer Stadium Practice Field 0 2,000,000 0 2,000,000 

25 460U16C020 Construct · Visitors Center Construction 

RestrictedFunds 0 2,000,000 0 2,000,000 

Total Construct - Visitors Center 0 2,000,000 0 2,000,000 

26 460U16C557 Expand - School of Public Health & Info Sciences Construction 

Restricted Funds O 11,610,000 0 11,610,000 

Total Expand • School of Public Health & Info Sciences o 11,610,000 0 11,610,000 

46DU16C554 Expand and Renovate. College of Education Bldg Construction 

Restrictecl Funds O 56,260 000 0 56.260,000 
27 

Total Expand and Renovate • College of Education 
Bldg 0 56,260 ,000 0 56,260,000 

28 460U16C601 Expand and Renovate· Houchens Building Construction 

Restricted Funds 0 25,580,000 0 25,560,000 

Total Expand and Renovate· Houchens Building 0 25,580 ,000 D 25,580,000 



2016-2018 Kentucky Branch Budget 
 
Capital Budget Request Project Summary Record 
 

All dollar amounts rounded to next $1000 
 

Capital Budget Record CBR-01 

Governmental Branch: Executive Branch Agency: Postsecondary Education Institutions 
 
Cabinet: Postsecondary Education Appropriation: University of Louisville 
 

FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 TotalFY2017-18 
Requested Requested Requested Requested 

SUMMARY BY FUND SOURCE 

29 460U16C589 Expand. Papa Johns Stadium/Football Complex Construction 

Other • Third Party Financing 0 55,000,000 0 55,000,000 

Total Expand • Papa Johns Stadium/Football Com plex 0 55,000,000 0 55,000,000 

30 460U16C592 Purchase - Artificial Turf Field I Construction 
Other- Cash 0 1,250,000 0 1,250,000 

Total Purchase· Artlflclal Turf Field I 0 1,250,000 0 1,250,000 

31 460U16C593 Purchase - Artificial Turf Field II Construction 

Other- Cash 0 1,250,000 0 1,250,000 

Total Purchase· Artlftclal Turf Field II 0 1,250,000 D 1,250,000 

32 460U 16C594 Purchase - Electronic Video Boards Information Technology System 

Other - Cash 0 2,000,000 0 2,000,000 

Total Purchase - Electronic Video Boards 0 2,000,000 D 2,000,000 

33 460U16C545 Renovate - Burhans Hall Construction 
Other - Third Party Financing 0 17,000,000 0 17,000,000 

Total Renovate - Burhans Hall 0 17,000,000 0 17,000,000 

34 460U16C566 Renovate - Football Practice Field Lighting Construction 

Other - Cash 0 780,000 0 780,000 

Total Renovate - Football Practice Field Lighting 0 780,000 0 780,000 

35 460U16C569 Renovate - Guaranteed Energy Savings Construction 
(2016-2018) 

Restricted Funds 0 0 0 0 

Total Renovate ­Guaranteed Energy Savings 
(2016-20181 0 0 0 0 

36 460U16C599 Renovate - HSC S.muiation Center Construction 

Restricted Funds 0 15,000,000 0 15,000,000 

Total Renovate· HSC Slmulatlon Center 0 15,000,000 0 15,000,000 

37 460U16C597 Renovate- IT Data Center Power Upgrade Construction 

Restricted Funds 0 8,000,000 0 8,000,000 

Total Renovate - IT Data Center Power Upgrade 0 8,000,000 0 8,000,000 

38 460U16C550 Renovate· J. B. Speed Bui ding Construction 
Restricted Funds 0 13,260,000 0 13,260,000 

Total Renovate· J. B. Speed Building 0 13,260,000 0 13,260,000 

39 460U16C598 Renovate· K-Wing Bu~ding Construction 

Restricted Funds 0 25,610 ,000 0 25,610,000 

Total Renovate. K-Wlng Building 0 25,610,000 0 25,610,000 

40 460U16C547 Renovate - LawSchool Construction 
Restricted Funds 0 36,081,000 0 36,081,000 

Total Renovate - Law School 0 36,081,000 0 36,081,000 

41 460U16C564 Renovate - Papa John's Stadium Seat Construction 
Replacement 

Other - Third Party Financing 0 5,460,000 0 5,460,000 

Total Renovate· Papa John's Stadium Seat 
Replacement 0 5,460,000 0 5,460,000 

42 460U16C565 Renovate- Resurface Track and Cardio Path Construction 
Other . Cash O 1,500,000 0 1,500,000 

Total Renovate - Resurface Track and Cardle Path 0 1,500,000 0 1,500 ,000 
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43 460U16C582 Acqu re Land and Implement Land Use Plan Construction 

Restricted Funds O 72,000,000 0 72,000,000 

Total Acquire Land and Implement Land Use Plan 0 72,000,000 0 72,000,000 

44 460U l 6C581 Improve Accessibi5ty Construction 

Restricted Fur.ds 0 5,000,000 0 5,000,000 

Total Improve Accesslblll~ 0 5,000,000 0 5,000,000 

45 460U 16C578 Improve Building EJeclrical Systems Constructioo 

Restricted Fur.els 0 20,000,000 0 20,000.000 

Total Improve Building Electrical Systems 0 20,000,000 0 20,000,000 

46 460U16C577 Improve Building Media nical Systems Constructioo 

Restricted Funds 0 28.000,000 0 28,000000 

Total Improve Building Mechanical Systems 0 28,000,000 0 28,000,000 

47 460U16C576 Improve Civil Site Infrastructure Construction 

Restricted Funds 0 23.000,000 o 23,000.000 

Total ImproveCivil Site Infrastructure 0 23,000,000 0 23,000,000 

48 460U16C574 Improve Electrical Infrastructure Construction 

Restricted Funds 0 30,000,000 0 30,000,000 

Total Improve Electrical Infrastructure 0 30,000,000 0 30,000,000 

49 460U 16C579 Improve E!evator Systems Construction 

Restricted Funds 0 5000,000 0 5,000,000 

Total Improve Elevator Systems 0 5,000,000 0 5,000,000 

50 460U16C588 Improve Housing Faoli lies Construction 

Restricted Funds 0 8000 ,000 0 8,000,000 

Total Improve Housing Facllitles 0 8,000,000 0 8,000,000 

51 460U16C580 Improve Life Safety Projects Construction 

Restricted Funds 0 15,000,000 0 15,000,000 

Total Improve Life Safety Projects 0 15,000,000 0 15,000 ,000 

52 460U16C575 Improve Mechanical Infrastructure Construction 

Restricted Funds 0 30,000,000 0 30,000,000 

Total Improve Mechanical Infrastructure 0 30,000,000 0 30,000,000 

53 460U16C587 Improve/Expand Academic Space Construction 

Restricted Funds 0 24,000,000 0 24 000,000 

Total Improve/Expand Academic Space 0 24,000,000 0 24,000,000 

54 460U16C585 Improve/Expand Admin-stralive Space Construction 

Restricted Funds 0 43000,000 0 43 000,000 

Total Improve/Expand Administrative Space 0 43,000,000 0 43,000,000 

55 460U16C584 Improve/Expand AmbulatOf)' Care Space Construction 

Restricted Funds 0 34,000,000 0 34 000,000 

Total Improve/Expand Ambulatory Care Space 0 34,000,000 0 34,000,000 

56 460U16C573 Improve/Expand Central Plants ConstructJQn 

Restricted Funds 0 41,000,000 0 41,000,000 

Total Improve/Expand Central Plants 0 41,000,000 0 41,000,000 

57 460U16C586 Improve/Expand Parking ConstructiDl"I 

Restricted Funds 0 13 000,000 0 13 000,000 

Total Improve/Expand Parking 0 13,000,000 0 13,000,000 
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58 460U16C583 Improve/Expand Research Labs Construction 

Restricted Funds 0 46,000,000 0 46,000,000 

Total Improve/Expand Research Labs 0 46,000,000 0 46,000,000 

59 460U16C540 Lease - Digital Output System Information Technology System 

Restricted Funds 0 2,500,000 0 2,500,000 

Total Lease· Digital Output System 0 2,500,000 0 2,500,000 

60 460U16C541 Purchase· Computer Processing System Information Technology System 

Restricted Funds 0 8.000,000 0 8,000,000 

Total Purchase· Computer Processing System 0 8,000,000 0 8,000,000 

61 460U16C572 Purchase· Content Management System Information Technology System 
Restricted Funds O 4.000,000 0 4,000,000 

Total Purchase - Content Management System D 4,000,000 0 4,000,000 

62 460U16C559 Purchase · Fiber Infrastructure Information Technology System 

Restricted Funds 0 7,000,000 0 7,000,000 

Total Purchase· Fiber Infrastructure 0 7,000,000 0 7,000,000 

63 460U 16C562 Purchase · IT Data Center Support Systems Information Technology System 
Restricted Funds 0 20,000,000 0 20,000,000 

Total Purchase - IT Data Center Support Systems 0 20,000,000 0 20,000,000 

64 460U 16C543 Purchase . Networking System Information Technology System 

Restricted Funds D 8,000,000 0 8,000,000 

Total Purchase· Networking System 0 8,000,000 0 B,000,000 

65 460U16C561 Purchase - Security and Firewall Infrastructure Information Technology System 

Restricted Funds O 8,000,000 0 8,000,000 

Total Purchase - Securi ty and Firewall Infrastructure 0 8,000,000 0 8,000,000 

66 460U16C538 Purchase . Storage System Information Technology System 

Restricted Funds 0 12,000,000 0 12,000,000 

Total Purchase - Storage System 0 12,000,000 0 12,000,000 

67 460U16C001 Lease - Master of Fine Arts Program Lease 

Restricted Funds 0 0 0 0 

Total Lease - Master of Fina Arts Program 0 0 0 0 

68 460U16C003 Lease- Office Spaoe-Jefferson County-1 Lease 

Restricted Funds 0 0 0 0 

Total Lease - Office Space-Jefferson County-1 0 0 0 0 

69 460U16C004 Lease. Office Space--Jefferson COtJnty-2 Lease 

Restricted Funds 0 0 0 0 

Total Lease - Office Space.Jefferson County-2 0 0 0 

70 460U16C005 Lease - Office Space-Jefferson County-3 Lease 
Restricted Funds 0 0 0 0 

Total Lease • Office Space.Jefferson County-3 0 0 0 0 

71 460U16C006 Lease - Office Space-Jefferson County-4 Lease 

Restricted Funds 0 0 0 0 

Total Lease - Office Space.Jefferson County-4 0 0 0 0 

72 460U16C007 Lease · Office/Academic Space-1 Lease 

Restricted Funds 0 0 0 0 

Total Lease - Office/Academic Space-1 0 0 0 0 
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73 460U16COOB Lease· Office/Academic Space.2 Lease 
Restricted Funds 0 0 0 0 

Total Lease· Office/Academic Space-2 0 0 0 0 

74 460U16C009 Lease· Clinic/Office Space-Jefferson ColSlty-1 Lease 

Restricted Funds O 0 0 

Total Lease· Clinic/Office SpacNefferson County-1 0 0 0 

75 460U16C010 Lease. Clinic/Office Space-Jefferson County-2 Lease 

Restricted Funds 0 0 0 0 

Total Lease· Clinic/Office SpacNefferson County•2 0 0 0 

76 460U16C011 Lease· Clinic/Office Space-Jefferson County-3 Lease 

Restricted Funds O 0 0 

Total Lease· Clinic/Office SpacNefferson County-3 0 0 0 

77 460U16C012 Lease· Clinic/Office Space-State of Kentucky Lease 

Restricted Funds O 0 0 

Total Lease· Clinic/Office Space-State of Kentucky o 0 0 

78 460U16C013 Lease. Research Space.State of Kentucky Lease 

Restricted Funds O 0 0 

Total Lease· Research Space-State of Kentuckx: 0 0 0 0 

79 460U16C014 Lease· Med Cente r One Lease 

Restricted Funds 0 0 0 0 

Total Lease - Med Center One 0 0 0 

80 460U16C016 Lease· Med Center One-Additional Lease 

Restricted Funds 0 0 0 

Total Lease - Med Center One-AddiUonal 0 0 0 0 

81 460U16C015 Lease· Nucleus 1 Building Lease 

Restricted Funds 0 0 0 0 

Total Lease • Nucleus 1 Bulld lng 0 0 0 

82 460U16C017 Lease . Nucleus 1 Building-Additiona l Lease 

Restricted Funds 0 0 0 

Total Lease • Nucleus 1 Bulkllng-Addltlonal 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

Grand Total 1,417,782,000 
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Shumake,Connie Covington 

From: Cmoffice,Service Account 
Sent: Wednesday, January 11, 2017 2:38 PM 
To: Cmoffice,Service Account 
Subject: Message from Acting President Pinto regarding interim appointments 

Colleagues, 

I'm pleased to announce several interim appointments that will help lead the university during this period of transition. 

David Adams, currently CEO of the Institute for Product Realization, will, effective immediately, also assume 

responsibilities as interim chief administrative officer for the university. This position has been created to effectively and 

stably manage administrative and financial functions through current and upcoming leadership transitions in the offices 

of the CFO/COO and the Office of the President. David will report to the university president. Upon completion of his 

service in this interim position, he will continue as CEO of the IPR. 

In consultation with Board of Trustees Chair Larry Benz and senior leadership, I have decided to separate the CFO and 

COO roles. 

Effective immediately, Susan Howarth, vice provost and chief university budget officer, will take on the additional role of 

interim chief financial officer. The Office of Finance/Controller and Lead Fiscal Officers will report to the CFO. The CFO 

for health affairs will report to both the interim CFO and the interim executive vice president for health affairs. 

Susan has previously served as interim CFO. She brings the needed experience and knowledge to the position. 

Also effective immediately, Lee Smith, assistant vice president for performance improvement/business analytics, will 

take on the additional role of interim chief operating officer, overseeing the offices of Business Services, Facilities 

Management, Information Technology and Public Safety. 

Lee joined Uofl in 2015. During his time here, he has spearheaded the creation of the Business Operations unit, among 

other accomplishments. 

The Interim CFO and COO will report to David Adams during his time as interim CAO. Additiona~ly, the AVP for human 

resources and the AVP for audit services and institutional compliance will report to David. 

Finally, I want to let you know that Becky Simpson is taking a planned retirement as senior associate vice president for 

communications and marketing effective Jan. 27. Becky has made numerous contributions to the university during her 

tenure including great strides on the marketing front as well as thoughtful counsel to me during my tenures as interim 

provost and now acting president. She will be greatly missed and I wish her well in retirement. John Drees, associate 

vice president and director of campus communication, has accepted an appointment as interim senior AVP effective Jan. 

30. He comes to the position with extensive experience and more than 30 years of university service. 

My thanks to David, Susan, Lee and John for agreeing to these additional responsibilities. I am confident that their 
knowledge and experience will serve the university well in this period of transition. 

Neville Pinto 
Acting President 
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University of Louisville 
FY 2017-18 Budget Development Timeline 

- ­
Pat~ 

- - - ­
Activity 

January 23, 2017 First meeting, working group on current status of 
all-funds university budgets 

February 7 Working group report to leadership team 
Unit enrollment goals to CAO 

February 15 Leadership retreat-President, VPs, Chief ad min 
officer, deans and provost's senior staff, 
constituency heads 

February 20-24 Unit dean and budget committee meetings w/ 
provost and budget staff 

February 27 -March 
10 

Budget development committee meetings ­ move 
recommendation to Leadership for review and 
consideration 

March 21. Leadership Meet ing begin review of budget 
scenarios 

April 11 Leadership Meeting - final decisions are made 

April 12 - Apr il 28 Decisions are communicated across campus and 
implementation of decisions are made by units 
coordinating with budget staff 

April 28 - May 10 Budget Staff completes final work on detailed 
budget and document publication 

May 11 Budget Materials and Document are published and 
posted to Board of Trustees (BOT) Vantage 

May 16 or May 17 Pre Budget Workshop with BOT members 

May18 BOT budget workshop 

June 15 BOT action to finalize the FY 2017-18 Operating 
Budget 



3.10.3 fn08 
 

164A.560 Election by institution to perform in accordance with KRS 164A.555 to 
164A.630. 

( 1) 	 The governing boards of the postsecondary educational institutions electing to 
perform in accordance with KRS l 64A.555 to l 64A.630 regarding the acquisition 
of funds, accounting, purchasing, capital construction, and affiliated corporations 
shall do so by regulation. The responsibility for this election is vested with the 
governing boards, any other statute to the contrary notwithstanding. The governing 
board may delegate these responsibilities by regulation to appropriate officials of 
the institution. The anticipated investment earnings which have been credited to the 
general fund and the anticipated investment earnings on funds in the capital 
construction account, excluding revenue bonds, for fiscal years 1982-83 and 1983­
84 may be deducted from the respective institution's trust and agency funds on 
deposit prior to the issuance of a check or transfer to the governing board. 

(2) 	 The governing boards of institutions may elect to receive, deposit, collect, retain, 
invest, disburse, and account for all funds received or due from any source 
including, but not limited to, state and federal appropriations for the support or 
maintenance of the general operations or special purpose activities of such 
institutions. In the event of such election by the governing board: 

(a) 	 The treasurer of the institution shall deposit on a timely basis all tuition fees, 
fees for room and board, incidental fees, contributions, gifts, donations, 
devises, state and federal appropriations, moneys received from sales and 
services, admittance fees, and all other moneys received from any source, in a 
depository bank or banks designated by the governing board. 

(b) 	 The governing board shall promulgate rules and regulations limiting 
disbursements to the amounts and for the purposes for which state 
appropriations have been made, or for which other moneys have been 
received. All disbursements shall be recorded in a system of accounts as set 
forth in KRS l 64A.555 to I 64A.630. The treasurer of each institution shall 
prescribe forms to be used with the system of accounts, and no treasurer shall 
approve any disbursement document unless he determines that the 
disbursement is to satisfy a liability of the institution incurred for authorized 
purposes and that the disbursement is to be made from the unexpended 
balance of a proper allotment. 

Effective: May 30, 1997 

History: Amended 1997 (1st Extra. Sess.) Ky. Acts ch. I, sec. 137, effective May 30, 
1997. - Created 1982 Ky. Acts ch. 391, sec. 3, effective July 15, 1982. 
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164A.570 Annual audit. 

The governing board of any postsecondary educational institution making the election 
prescribed in KRS l 64A.560 shall engage a qualified firm of certified public accountants 
experienced in the auditing of institutions to conduct an annual examination of the 
institution's financial statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards 
for the purpose of submitting an independent opinion, and preparing a report of findings 
and recommendations concerning internal accounting controls and procedures, and 
compliance with KRS I 64A.555 to l 64A.630. The secretary of the Finance and 
Administration Cabinet may prescribe the minimum scope of any such audit. The 
opinion, with the findings and recommendations, shall be forwarded to the Governor, the 
secretary of the Finance and Administration Cabinet, the Auditor of Public Accounts, the 
director of the Legislative Research Commission, the president of the Council on 
Postsecondary Education, and members of the governing board. 

Effective:May 30, 1997 

History: Amended 1997 (1st Extra. Sess.) Ky. Acts ch. I, sec. 139, effective May 30, 
1997. -- Created 1982 Ky. Acts ch. 391, sec. 5, effective July 15, 1982. 
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Crowe Horwath LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Ho.wath lnlernati OMI 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Board of Trustees 
University of Louisville and Affiliated Corporations 
Louisville, Kentucky 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and aggregate discretely 
presented component units of the University of Louisville and Affiliated Corporations (the University), a component 
unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the University's basic financial statements as listed in the 
table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for tl,e Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

A11ditor's Respo11sibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We did not audit the 
financial statements of the University of Louisville Physicians, Inc. (ULP), the University of Louisville Real Estate 
Foundation, Inc., (ULREF) and University of Louisville Foundation, Inc. and Affiliates (the Foundation), which make 
up the entire aggregate discretely presented component units of the University. Those financial statements were 
audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the 
amounts included for ULP, the Foundation and ULREF is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. The financial statements of ULP, the 
Foundation and ULREF were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

(Continued) 
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Opi11io11s 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities and aggregate discretely 
presented component units of the University, as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the respective changes in financial 
position and where applicable, the cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Empl,asis of matter 

As disclosed in Note 1, during 2016 the University elected to change its reporting to include the University of 
Louisville Real Estate Foundation, Inc. as a discretely presented component unit. This change was made retroactively 
to July I, 20 I 4. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Otlrer Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's Discussion, 
Analysis on pages 3 through 14 and the Post-employment Benefit Information on page 84 to be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods 
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Reporting Required by Gover11me11t Sta11dardsA11diti11g 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 18, 2016 on our 
consideration of the University of Louisville's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope ofour testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an inlegral part ofan audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the University of Louisville's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Crowe Horwath LLP 
Louisville, Kentucky 
November 18, 201 6 
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UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE AND AFFILIATED CORPORATIONS 

A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 

Introduction 

The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial position and activities of the 
University of Louisville and Affiliated Corporations (the University) for the years ended June 30, 2016, 
and 2015. The affiliated corporations include the University of Louisville Research Foundation, Inc. 
(Research Foundation) and the University of Louisville Athletic Association, Inc. (Association). This 
discussion contains highly summarized data and should be read in conjunction with the financial 
statements and the notes thereto, which follow this section. 

Using the Financial Statements 

The University's financial report includes three financial statements: the Statements of Net Position; the 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position; and the Statements of Cash Flows. These 
financial statements have been prepared by University management in accordance with the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) principles. 

The Statements of Net Position present the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred 
inflows of resources and net position of the University at a point in time (June 30, 2016, 2015 and 2014) . 
Net position (the difference between total assets, total liabilities, total deferred outflows of resources and 
total deferred inflows of resources) provides a snapshot of the current financial condition of the 
University at the end of a fiscal year. The change in net position indicates whether the overall financial 
condition has improved or worsened during the year. Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources are generally measured using current values . Pledges receivable with 
payment terms greater than one year are discounted. Capital assets are stated at historical cost less 
accumulated depreciation. 

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position present the total revenues earned 
and expenses incurred by the University during the fiscal year(s). The statements depict the major revenue 
streams of the University and expense categories supported by that revenue. Changes in net position 
indicate an improvement or decline of the University's financial condition for the period of time 
illustrated. 

The Statements of Cash Flows present cash inflows and outflows for each fiscal year . The statement 
reports major sources and uses of cash and assists with the assessment of the ability of the University to 
meet its obligations when due. 

See footnote I for a summary of significant accounting policies. 

Statements of Net Position 

The statements of net position present the financial position of the University at the end of the fiscal year 
and include all assets, liabilities, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources of the 
University. The University's assets, liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of 
resources and net position at June 30, 2016, 2015 and 2014 are summarized on the following page: 



Condensed Statements of Net Position 
 
J11ne30, 2016, 2015, and 2014 
 

(in Thousands) 

ASSETS 
2016 2015 2014 

20 16-2015 
Cb11a!e 

2015-2014 
Cban!e 

CurrenlIISSCIS 

Long-tenn inveslmenlS 
s 232 ,242 

27,940 
s 239,699 

37,9 12 
s 194,306 

54.718 
s (7,457) 

(9,972) 
s 45,393 

(16,806) 
Capital asseis, net 
Other 

868.398 
97.248 

864,686 
72,122 

876 ,058 
74,340 

3,712 
25,126 

(11,372) 
(2,218) 

Total asseis 1.225,828 1,214,419 1.199.422 11,409 14,997 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 6,967 851 957 6,116 (106) 

LIABILITIES 
Current lmbtln1es 187, 106 174,602 179,620 12,504 (5,018} 
Noncurren! liabilities 326.023 330,417 322,071 (4,394) 8,346 

Total liabilities 513,129 505,019 501.69 1 8,110 3,328 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 175 3,671 4,88 1 (3.496) (l,2IO) 

NET POSITION 
Net lnveslment in capital asseis 
Reslricted•nonexpcndablc 
Restricted-expendable 
Unrestricled 

Total net position s 

632,789 

1.633 
92.008 
(6.939) 

719.49 1 s 

612,364 

1,791 
80,099 
12,326 

706,580 $ 

611 ,785 
1,656 

7S.927 
4.439 

693,807 s 

20,425 
(1S8) 

11,909 
(19,265) 
12,911 s 

579 
135 

4,172 
7,887 

12,773 

Assets 

Current assets consist primarily of cash; loans, accounts and contributions receivable; and short-term 
investments. 

In fiscal year 2016, current assets decreased $7.5 million, reflect ing the decrease in short-term 
investments of $9.8 million, and cash and cash equivalents of $8.2 million partially offset by the increase 
of $9.8 million in loans, accounts and contributions receivable, net. The decrease in cash and short term 
investments is the result of normal operations that saw an increase in almost all expense categories (see 
discussion below on operating expenses) . The increase in loans, accounts and contributions receivable, 
net relates to an increase of $4.4 million in the amount receivable from insurance carriers for Medicaid 
patients treated in University clinics and $2.8 million representing the restoration of a 2 percent cut in 
state appropriation . 

In fiscal year 2015 current assets increased $45.4 million, reflecting the increase in cash and cash 
equivalents of $56. l million offset by decreases in loans, accounts and contributions receivable (net) of 
$6.6 million and due from the Foundation of $5.9 million. Cash increased due to the receipt of $33.8 
million of strategic funding from KentuckyOne Health, the net sale of investments totaling $ 13.2 million, 
and cash realized from $7.0 million in proceeds from the issuance of long-term liabilities. 

As of June 30, 2016, the $12.3 million in current assets owed to the University by the Foundation 
includes $10.4 million committed from a tax increment financing arrangement and $1.9 million to 
reimburse June 2016 endowment and gift disbursements made by the University. The amount owed by 
the Foundation as of June 30, 2015 includes $5.5 million for disbursements made by the University on 
behalf of the Foundation and $4. l million committed from a tax increment financing arrangement. 

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, represent 7 I% of total assets. Other noncurrent long-term 



investments, noncurrent loans, accounts and contributions receivable and restricted cash and cash 
equivalents comprise the remainder of assets. 

Noncurrent assets increased $18.9 million: this includes, increases in restricted cash and cash equivalents 
of $11.0 million for construction projects and the balance owed by the University of Louisville Real 
Estate Foundation (ULREF) of$9.8 million on an outstanding loan. Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
increased $11.0 million due to funds transferred to fund construction projects and the receipt of $7.8 
million of capital appropriation to fund the Belknap Research & Technology Park capital project, partially 
offset by progress payments to contractors. The amount due from the ULREF of $9.8 million is the 
balance owed on the June 2015 loan of $38.0 million to the ULREF. Decreases in noncurrent assets are 
attributable to a decrease of $5.3 million in other long-term investments of working capital in U.S. 
agencies obligations or other government obligations that matured and were not reinvested, and $4.6 
million in investments held with the Foundation by the Athletic Association. The decrease in investments 
held with the Foundation by the Athletic Association is the result of a decline in market value. 

In fiscal year 2015, noncurrent assets decreased $30.4 million, including decreases in other noncurrent 
long-term investments of $16.8 million and capital assets (net) of$ I I .4 million. The decrease in capital 
assets (net) relates to depreciation additions which exceeded asset additions by $9.6 million and a net loss 
on disposal of retired assets of $1.8 million, primarily due to the demolition of certain residence halls for 
new construction. 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net assets applicable to a future period. The 
University reports as deferred outflows of resources the loss on refunding of the Consolidated Educational 
Building Revenue Bonds (CEBRB) Series N and Series O by the issuance of General Receipts Bonds 
2012 Series A and the loss on refunding the County of Jefferson Kentucky Governmental Lease Revenue 
Bonds, Series 1997 by the issuance of Metro Government Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, 
Series 2008A. These deferred outflows decreased $0.2 million relating to its recognition as expense. 
During the fiscal year 2016 the University refunded CEBRB Series P, and General Receipts Bonds Series 
2007 A, 2008A and 20 JOA by the issuance of General Receipts Bonds Series 2016 Series A, Series B and 
Series C resulting in a loss on refunding totaling $5.9 million, an addition to deferred outflows. The 
University also reports the value of an interest rate swap entered into as a part of a term loan received in 
June 2013. A decrease in the value of the swap resulted in an addition to deferred outflows of $0.3 
million. In fiscal year 2015, the decrease of $0.1 million relates to the recognition of $0.2 million of 
deferred loss on refunding as expense partially offset by the increased deferred outflow from the reduced 
value of the interest rate swap. 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and advances for payment received but unearned, comprise 87% 
of total current liabilities. In fiscal year 2016, the $12.5 million increase in current liabilities relates 
primarily to an $8.6 million increase in advances from KentuckyOne Health expected to be invested over 
the next year as per the University-KentuckyOne Health Academic Affiliation Agreement (Academic 
Affiliation Agreement). In fiscal year 2015 a $5.0 million decrease in current liabilities related primarily 
to the $7.7 million decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities. Accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities decreased as a result of payment of benefits related to a voluntary separation incentive program 
and completion of construction projects of the Athletic Association. 

Noncurrent liabilities consist primarily of the portion of bonds, notes, and leases payable in excess of one 
year . In fiscal year 2016 the $4.4 million decrease in noncurrent liabilities is due to the decrease in bonds 
and notes payable. Bonds, notes and leases payable decreased for maturities totaling $103.5 million 
partially offset by additions during the year of$99.6 million. In fiscal year 2015 the $8.3 million increase 
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in noncurrent liabilities relates primarily to the $20.2 million increase in advances offset by the $15.2 
million decrease in bonds and notes payable. Advances increased for unspent funding received from 
KentuckyOne Health under the Academic Affiliation Agreement. Bonds and notes payable decreased for 
principal maturities during the year . 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods. This 
includes the fair value of a forward delivery agreement for the investment of debt service reserves related 
to the Athletic Association. As the derivative is considered to be effective in the reduction of risk, the 
change in fair value is shown as a deferred inflow of resources. In fiscal year 2016, the fair value of the 
forward delivery agreement decreased $63,000. In fiscal year 2015, the fair value of the forward delivery 
agreement decreased $66,000. 

Service concession arrangements that are reflected as deferred inflows of resources represent the net of 
investments and contributions provided by agreement with the University's food service provider. In 
fiscal 2016 the University re-bid its food service contract and selected a new provider. Due to the 
termination of the existing food service provider's contract, the remaining $3.4 million previously 
reflected as a deferred inflow of resources was reflected as revenue. 

Net Position 

The University's net position is summarized into four major categories in accordance with GASB 
Statement No. 35 Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for Public 
Colleges and Universities reporting requirements as amended by GASB Statement No. 63 Financial 
Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources , Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position as follows: 

• 	 Net Investment in Capital Assets represents the University's investment in capital assets such as 
land, buildings, equipment and deprec iable library materials, net of accumulated depreciation, 
related deferred outflows of resources reduced by related deferred inflows of resources and debt 
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets . 

• 	 Restricted-nonexpendable funds include amounts that are subject to externally imposed 
restrictions that require the University to maintain the assets in perpetuity . These balances are the 
permanent endowment for scholarships and other purposes. 

• 	 Restricted-expendable funds are those that are subject to externally imposed restrictions 
governing their use for a particular purpose or period of time. The University's most significant 
components in this category consist of amounts restricted for capital projects debt service, 
research, and public service. 

• 	 Unrestricted net position results primarily from net operating income in excess of expenses. 
Although unrestricted net position is not subject to externally imposed stipulations, substantially 
a11 of the University's unrestricted net position has been designated for various academic 
programs, research initiatives, and capital projects. 

For fiscal year 2016 net position increased $12.9 million as compared to June 30, 2015. Operating 
revenues increased $41.2 million from the following sources: Clinical services and practice plan revenue 
increased by $16.9 million or 7%, including a $9.0 million increase in Medica id related patient revenue 
and intergovernmental transfers and an increase of $8.2 million in revenue from the Academic Affiliation 
Agreement with KentuckyOne Health strategic investments. Nongovernmental and Federal grants and 
contracts revenue increased $10.5 million and $5.5 million, respectively, reflecting increases in awards. 
Offsetting these increases in operating revenue, operating expenses for fiscal year 2016 increased by 
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$46.3 million (5%) including $18.3 million in institutional support and $14.6 million in public service. 
These increases are mainly the result of increases of $13.1 million of administrative expenses formerly 
accounted for by the Foundation and $9.5 million of expense funded from the Academic Affiliation 
Agreement with KentuckyOne Health. Administration costs funded by the Foundation were reported on 
separate Foundation financial statements for fiscal year 2015. Net non-operating revenues and other 
revenue increased $5.2 million. Net assets contributed by the Foundation increased $28.8 million for 
transfer of gift revenue and funding supporting University administrative programs. This increase was 
partially offset by decreases in the categories "other non-operating revenue" of $10.0 million and "gifts" 
of $7.7 million. Gift revenue decreased primarily from receipt of a gift of $8.6 million from University 
Physicians Group, Inc. in fiscal year 2015. The "Other non-operating revenue" category decreased due to 
receipt ofan $8.7 million grant from the Pediatric Foundation in fiscal year 2015. 

In fiscal year 2015, net position increased $12.8 million. Gross tuition increased $11.7 million, offset by 
scholarship discounts from the Foundation. Clinical services and practice plan revenue increased by 
$24.5 million as a result of a $10.0 million increase in Medicaid related patient revenue and 
intergovernmental transfers and $12.5 million in additional revenue from the Academic Affiliation 
Agreement with KentuckyOne Health. Net non-operating revenues and other revenue increased $69.4 
million: this includes $53.7 million in contributions from the Foundation related to gifts and endowments 
included in the University's consolidated statements. Operating expenses increased by $90.6 million 
mainly the result of $58.7 million of expense charged to gifts and endowments included in the 
University's consolidated financial statement and for expense under the Academic Affiliation Agreement 
with KentuckyOne Health totaling $12.5 million. 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

The statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position present the University's results of 
operations. Condensed statements of the University's revenues, expenses and changes in net position for 
the years ended June 30, 2016, 2015 and 2014, are summarized on the following page: 

Condensed Statements or Revenues, E:1penses and Changes in Net Position 
Ve11rsended June 30, 2016, 2015, and 2014 

(In Thousands) 

2016-2015 2015- 2014 
2016 2015 2014 Chan&e Change 

OPERA TING REVENUES 
Student tuition and fees, nel $ 209,503 $ 209,834 $ 209,442 $ (331) $ 392 
Cl inicnl services and practice plan 269,305 252.446 227,858 16,859 24,588 
Grants and contracts 103.416 90, 135 9 1,886 13,281 (1,751) 
Facilities and administrative cost recoveries 24,611 22,596 21,965 2,015 631 
Other 102.734 93.329 81.262 9.405 12.067 

Total operating revenues 709,569 668,340 632.413 41.229 35.927 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Depreciation 51,295 53.339 56,333 (2,044) (2,994) 
Other 959.370 911,024 817,350 48,346 93.674 

Total operating expenses 1.010,665 964.363 873,683 46,302 90,680 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Stale appropriations 142,213 140,744 147,256 1,469 (6,512) 
Other nonopernting revenues 171,794 168,052 92.164 3.742 75,888 

Total nonoperating revenues 314.007 308.796 239.420 5.211 69.376 
Increase/( decrease) in net position 12.911 12.773 ( 1.850) 138 14.623 

Net position - beginning oryear 706.580 693.807 695.657 12.773 (1.850) 
Net position - end or year S 719.491 $ 706,580 $ 693,807 $ 12,911 $ 12,773 
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Operating Revenues 

Tuition and state appropriations provide the chief sources of support for the University's academic 
programs. Revenues from tuition, clinical services, and certain grants and contracts are classified as 
operating revenues as defined by GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements and 
Management's Discussion and Analysis for Public Colleges and Universities. Other revenue sources, 
such as state appropriations and investment income are considered non~operating revenues. 

Student tuition and fees, net of allowances for scholarships and fellowships of $91.2 million and 
$83.7 million, were $209.5 million and $209.8 million, or 30% and 31% of total operating revenues, for 
the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Gross tuition and fees revenues increased 
$7.2 million, or 2% compared to the previous year. The increase resulted from a 5% increase in tuition 
and fees offset by an increase in tuition discount of $7.5 million representing increased funding for 
scholarships and fellowships. 

In fiscal year 2015, gross tuition and fees revenues increased $11.7 million, or 4% compared to the 
previous year. This additional revenue resulted from budgeted tuition rate increases providing 
$10.4 million and increased enrollment and other fee increases providing $ 1.3 million. The increase was 
offset by an increase in tuition discount of $11.3 million, direct ly related to a change during 2015 in the 
reporting of Foundation scholarships. Scholarship expense funded by gift and endowment earnings is now 
reported in the University's consolidated financial statement. 

Clinical services and practice plan revenue amounted to $269.3 million and $252.4 million, or about 38% 
of total operating revenues for each of the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015. These revenues relate to 
patient care performed in clinics under contractual arrangements with governme ntal and private insurers, 
laboratory services and clinical support provided by affiliated hospitals and the University's professional 
practice plan. Clinical services and practice plan revenue increased by $16.9 million or 7%, including a 
$9.0 million increase in Medicaid related patient revenue and intergovernmental transfers. Revenue from 
the Academic Affiliation Agreement with KentuckyOne Health increased $8.2 million for strategic 
investments , partially offset by a decrease of $1.7 million in research infrastructure investments. In fiscal 
year 2015, clinical services and practice plan revenue increased by $24.6 million or 11 %, including $10.0 
million increase in Medicaid related patient revenue and intergovernmental transfers. Revenue from the 
academic affiliation agreement with KentuckyOne Health increased $10.6 million for academic program 
support, $8.1 million for strategic investments, and $4.4 million for research infrastructure investments . 
These increases were offset by a reduction of $7.5 million in discretionary funding from the prior year. 

Revenue from grants and contracts was $103.4 million and $90. 1 million for the years ended 
June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. This increase reflects increases in grants and contracts available 
from Federal and Nongovernmental sources. 

The University receives revenues for research and contracts from government and private sources, which 
nonna Jly provide for the recovery of direct and indirect costs. Facilities and administrative (F&A) cost 
recoveries were $24.6 million and $22.6 million for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015. F&A cost 
recovery generally follows the trend in direct cost revenues and expenditures. 

The following is a graphic illustration of revenues by source that are used to fund the University's 
operating activities for the years ended June 30, 2016, 2015 and 2014 (in millions): 
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Operating Revenues 
 
Years ended June 30, 2016, 2015, and 2014 
 

2016 2015 2014 

Operating Expenses 

Operating expenses were $1.0 billion and $964.4 million and exceeded operating revenues by 
$301.1 million and $296.0 million for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. When offset 
by total non-operating revenues of $314.0 million and $308.8 million, total net position for the year 
increased by $12.9 million and $12.8 million for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015. respectively, 
and decreased $1.9 million for the year ended June 30, 2014. Operating expenses for fiscal year 2016 
increased by $46.3 million or 5% over the amount reported in the previous year. Salaries, wages and 
benefits increased $42.6 million and supplies and services increased $7 .1 million. These increases were 
somewhat mitigated by declines in depreciation, utilities, and the amount recorded as scholarship 
expense. During fiscal year 2015, operating expenses increased by $90.6 million or 10% over the amount 
reported in the previous year. The increase is mainly the result $58.7 million of expense charged to gift 
and endowments reported in the University's consolidated financial statements. These amounts were 
reported in the Foundation financial statement for years prior to fiscal year 2015. 

Graphic illustrations of total expenses by functional and natural classifications for the years ended 
June 30, 2016, 2015 and 2014 (in millions) are summarized as follows and on the following page: 
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Operating Expenses by Functional Classification 
 
Years ended June 30, 2016, 2015 , and 2014 
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2016 2015 2014 
 

Operating Expenses by Natural Classification 
 
Years ended June 30, 2016, 2015, and 2014 
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1016 2014 2014 
 

- 10 ­




Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

General state appropriations of$142.2 million and $140.7 million were the most significant non-operating 
revenues for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. 

Net non-operating revenues and other revenues increased $5.2 million from the prior year including the 
increase in net assets contributed by the Foundation of $28.8 million, partially offset by decreases in other 
non-operating revenues of $10.0 million, gifts of $7.7 million and capital appropriation of $4.2 million. 
Contributions from the Foundation increased primarily as result of timing of the transfer of gift revenue 
and for funding transferred to Foundation administrative programs that were reported by the University 
during fiscal year 2016. During the prior year gifts were only transferred to the University as necessary to 
cover cash deficits and the administrative programs were reported by the Foundation. Gifts revenue 
decreased mainly from the receipt of a gift during fiscal year 2015 totaling $8.6 million from University 
Physicians Group, Inc. Other non-operating revenue decreased due to the receipt during fiscal year 2015 
of a grant totaling $8.7 million from the Pediatric Foundation. Capital appropriation revenue reimburses 
expenses of the development of a new research park on the Belknap Campus. 

In 2015 net non-operating revenues and other revenues increased $69.4 million from the prior year 
including the increase in net assets contributed by the Foundation of $53.7 million, a decrease in capital 
gifts of $4.8 million and an increase in capital appropriation of $11.4 million. The increase in 
contributions by the Foundation represents the funding of a conversion from the Foundation during 2015 
of gift and endowment expense budgets. 

Statements of Cash Flows 

The statements of cash flows provide additional information about the University's financial results by 
reporting the major sources and uses of cash. The condensed statements of cash flows for the years ended 
June 30, 2016, 2015 and 2014 are summarized below: 

Condensed St11tements of Cash Flows 
\'ears ended June 30, 2016, 2015, a11d 2014 

(In Thousands) 

2016 • 2015 2015 • 2014 
2016 2015 20U Cha11!e Change 

Cnsh (used)/provided by: 
Operating activities S (252,771) S (202,404) S (210,628) $ (50,367) s 8,224 
Noncapital financing activities 275,621 293,6!0 231,699 (17,989) 61,911 
Copital 1111d related financing activities (36,566) (52,389) (81,910) 15,823 29,521 
Investing activities 16.523 14.545 8.466 1.978 6.079 
Net ( decrease )/increase in cash and cash 

equivalents 2,807 53,362 (52,373) (50,555) 105,735 

Cosh 1111d cash equivalents, begiooing of year 149,042 95,680 148.053 53,362 (52.373) 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year s 151.849 s 149,042 s 95.680 $ 2.807 $ 53,362 

Cash used by operating activities for fiscal year 2016 increased $50.4 million due to an increase in cash 
used for payments to employees of $42.6 million, payments to suppliers of $16.8 million and decreased 
cash provided by clinical services and practice plan of $12.4 million. Partially offsetting these decreases 
is increased cash provided by grants and contracts of $6.8 million and increased cash provided by 
intercollegiate athletics of$5.8 million. 
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Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities decreased $18.0 million due to the receipt of a grant 
in 2015 from the Pediatric Foundation of $8.7 million that was not given in 2016 and decreased cash 
provided by gifts .and grants totaling $5.6 million. 

Cash used for capital and related financing activities decreased $15.8 million. The decrease is the result of 
cash provided from proceeds from issuance of long-term liabilities of $107.6 million partially offset by 
cash used for principal payments of $79.3 million, cash used for payment of issuance costs of $7.8 
million and decreased cash provided from capita l appropriations of$4.2 million. 

Cash from investing activities increased $2.0 million due mainly to the reduction in the purchase of 
investments from working capital. 

For fiscal year 2015, cash used by operating activities decreased $8.2 million due to an increase in cash 
provided by clinical services and practice plan of $48.7 million and increased cash provided by 
intercollegiate athletic activities of $14.7 million partially offset by Increased cash used for payments to 
employees of $47.3 million. Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities increased $61.9 million 
primarily due to increased cash provided by contributions from related entities of $49.6 million, increased 
cash provided by gifts and grants of $9.2 million and increased cash provided by other noncapital 
financing activities of $9.0 million . Cash provided by state appropriation decreased $6.S million 
offsetting these increases. Cash used for capital and related financing activities decreased $29.5 million 
due mainly to an increase in cash provided from capital appropriations of $11.4 million and cash provided 
from the proceeds from issuance of long-term liabilities of $7 .0 million. Capital and financing activities 
included renovation projects, a master lease agreement entered into by the University to fund certain 
investments in energy efficiency and completion of various projects of the Association. Cash from 
investing activities increased $6. l million due mainly to an increase in the net amount of investments 
sold. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

The University continues to invest in new and renovated facilities to meet the needs of students , faculty 
and staff. Significant projects completed, in process and approved but not started are listed below. 

COMPLETED IN 2016 
Ekstrom Library 1st Floor Renovation $ 2,200,000 
MOR 4th Floor Renovation- Phase 5 705,000 
K-Wing 2nd Floor Classroom Renovation 1,075,000 
Resurface Running Track at Cardinal Park 910,000 

COMPLETED IN 2015 
Donald Baxter Cleanroom Expansion $ 960,000 
Soccer Stadium 19,800,000 
HSC Instructional Building Classroom Renovation 8,600;000 
Center for Predictive Medicine Expansion 9,500,000 



IN PROGRESS FOR 2016 
Belknap Classroom Building $ 80,500,000 
Athletic Academic Center 19,300,000 
Student Activity Center Renovation 40,000,000 
Ekstrom Library 3rd Floor Renovation 2,750,000 
MOR Building Masonry Restoration 2,080,000 
Donald Baxter Building Cardiology GMP Facility 2,200,000 

Note: 
Capital Projects are projects where the costs are greater than $600,000. 

Debt and Financing Activities 

At the end of fiscal year 2016, the University had outstanding $252.0 million of bonds, leases and notes 
payable (inclusive of discounts/premiums) as compared to $255.9 million and $271.2 million in 2015 and 
2014, respectively. The decreases represent normal pay down of long term bonds, and in the current fiscal 
year, the refunding of certain bonds by the issuance of General Receipts Bonds 2016 Series A, Series B 
and Series C. General Receipts Bonds, 2016 Series A included $9.6 million to expand and renovate the 
student activity center. 

Graphic illustrations of bonds, notes and leases payable for the years ended June 30, 2016, 20 I 5 and 20 I 4 
(in millions) are summarized below: 

Bonds, Notes and Leases Payable 
 
Years ended June 30, 2016, 2015, and 2014 
 

• l111et p1y1b~ 

aNot11~y1blt­

•land1 p,1y1bl1 

2016 2015 2014 

A complete discussion of bonds, notes and leases payable is included in Note 9. 

Component Units 

The University of Louisville Foundation, Inc. (Foundation), University of Louisville Real Estate 
Foundation, Inc. (ULREF), and University of Louisville Physicians, Inc. (ULP) are included as discretely 
presented component units of the University. The Foundation acts primarily as a fundraising organization 
to supplement the resources available to the University in support of its programs. The majority of the 
Foundation's assets relate to investments held for the benefit of the University. Investments at 
June 30, 2016, were $640.0 million, a decrease of $87.7 million from the June 30, 2015 balance of 
$727.7 million. 
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The ULREF is a nonprofit corporation with the purpose to acquire, maintain , improve, leverage, manage, 
lease and convey real and personal property for the benefit of the University. 

ULP is a private, nonprofit corporation that functions as the corporate structure for the clinical practices 
of the faculty of the Univers ity's School of Medicine and mainta ins close financial and operational 
relationships with the University. 

All discretely presented component units have separate and independent governing boards. The 
University's Board of Trustees does not provide governance or administrative oversight for the discretely 
presented component units. 

Economic Factors That May Affect the Future 

The 2016-18 biennial budget passed by the General Assembly in April 2016 included a 5.4% reduction in 
net state appropriations to the University in fiscal year 2017, a decrease of $7.6 million. The University 
could face an additional 5% cut in fiscal year 2018 if it does not meet certain performance metrics. A 
committee of University Presidents, appointed by the Governo r, is charged with designing and 
recommending a performance funding model by December 2016. 

In light of the changing landscape in higher education both nationwide and in Kentucky, the University 
has embarked on a consultative process aimed at re-shaping and re-engineering the financial, academic 
and research .. arcs" of the University. The "University of the 2151 Century Initiative: Powering the 2020 
Plan" is a broad-based, campus-wide initiative to advance the 2020 Plan goals while also addressing 
emerging needs of students , faculty, staff, and campus community. This initiative focuses efforts on 
empowering undergraduate learning, creating an environment for student success, enhancing excellence 
in graduate and professional education, creating additional revenue lines and cost efficiencies, and 
investing in multidisciplinary areas of strength and emerging areas ofresearch. 

Desp ite continued funding challenges at both state and federal levels, the University has made 
tremendous progress in meeting its 2020 goals and, as this report reflects, is well-positioned financially to 
meet the upcoming fiscal challenges. 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Univers ity's finances and to show 
the University's accountability for the money it receives. Questions about this report and requests for 
additional financial information should be directed to the Controller, University of Louisville, Louisville, 
KY 40292. 
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Univcnily or Lo11lnille and ,\rlilialcd Corponolions 
A Componml Unit or the Commonwealth or h:cntucky 

Slalcmcnls or Ncl Posilion 
June 30, 1016 ud 2015 

IIn Thousands) 

2016 
ASSETS 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents s 123,803 
Deposit with bond trustee and escrow agent S,754 
Sbor1-lcmi investments 918 
Loans, accounts and con1ributions recc1vablc. net 78,821 
Duefrom University of Louisville Foundation, Inc 12,340 
ln,·cntories 883 
Other assets 9,723 

Total current ilSSelS 232.242 

Noncurrent Assets 
Rcs1ric1edcash and cash equiv.ilents 28,046 
Dcposil with bond truslcc: and escrow agent 5,242 
Lo.ins, accounts and conlributions n:ccivable, net 43,455 
Due from University or LouiS\ille Founda1ion, Inc 9,962 
Due from University of Louisville Real Es1a1e Foundalion, Inc 9,800 
ln,-estmenls held ,,.,;,bUnh·ersity of Louisville Foundation, Inc 25,952 
Other long-tcmi investments 1,988 
Other Joni;-1crm assets 743 
Capital assets, net 868,398 

Total noncurrcnt assets 993.586 
Total assets 1.225.828 

DEFERREDOUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 6,967 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts pa)11blc and accrued liabil itics 86,275 
Unearned compensation and wages payable 1,686 
Advances 75,962 
Bonds and notes payable 23.183 

Total currcnl liabilities 187,106 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Due to University of Louisville Foundalion, Inc. 316 
Nole pa)11ble lo Umvctsily oflou1sville Foundation, Inc 1,000 
Unearned compcnsalion and wages payable 7,895 
Deposits 918 
Advances 32,591 
Amounts due lo federal 1,'DVemment for studcnl loan p1Dj,'T:ll1lS 16,199 
Other long·lcnn liabilities 38,283 
Bonds and notes payable 228,821 

To1al noncurrcnt liabili1ies 326.023 
Total liabilities 513,129 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 175 

NET POSITION 
Net mves1mcnl in capilal DSStts 632,789 

Restrictedfor 
Noncxpcndablc 

Scholarslups and fcllowslups 1,633 
Expendable 

Scholarships and fellowships 2,587 
Rcscan:h 18,682 
Instruction 5,158 
Public service 13,333 
Academic support 1,303 
Institutional support 8,668 
Loans 2,848 
Capital projects 20,146 
Debt service 19,283 

Unrcstriclcd (6,939) 
Total net position s 719.491 

See notes to the financial statements. 
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s 132,014 
7,848 

10,738 
68,984 
9,574 

948 
9,593 

239.699 

17,028 
3,978 

40,026 
9,962 

30,583 
7,329 
1,128 

864,686 
974.720 

1.214.419 

84,032 
522 

67,334 
22,714 

174,602 

316 
1,000 
7,599 

902 
35,251 
16,149 
35,996 

233.204 
330.417 
505,019 

3,671 

612,364 

1,791 

882 
5,299 
3,211 
9,305 

490 
11,039 
2,835 

30,603 
16,435 
12,326 

s 706,580 

851 



University of Louisville Foundation , Inc. and Affiliates 

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 


June 30, 2016 and 2015 

(In Thousands) 


ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Accounts, notes and accrued 


interest receivable, net 
Loans receivable, net 
Contributions receivable, net 
Due from University of Louisville 

Real Estate Foundation, Inc. 
Investments 
Funds held in trust by others 
Restricted investments 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 
Capital assets, net 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS: 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Funds held in trust for others 
Other liabilities 
Bonds and notes payable 
Due to the University of Louisville 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets: 

Unrestricted 

Temporarily restricted 

Permanent ly restricted 


Total net assets 
Total liabilities and net assets 

2016 2015 

$ 8,595 $ 17,382 

4,038 
16,320 
39,204 

4,385 
16,553 
33,913 

$ 

28,906 
640,478 

50,798 
4,619 
8,619 

97,241 
898,818 $ 

727,728 
5 t ,945 

5,899 
10,447 

178,527 
1,046,779 

$ 2,098 
34,187 
22,118 
88,419 
21,769 

168,591 

$ 4,466 
40,615 
21,642 

123,905 
I 9,536 

210,164 

3,298 
277,411 
449,518 
230,227 

103,324 
296,776 
436 SJ 5 ' 
836_6] 5 

:& 828 Bl B :& I c,6 229 

See notes to the financial statemen ts. 
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University of Louisville Real Estate Foundation, Inc. 
 
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 
 

June 30, 2016 and 2015 
 
(In Thousands) 
 

ASSETS: 

Cash 
Accounts receivable, net 
Prepaids and other assets 
Investments 
Due from UL AMCC 
Investments in joint ventures 
Tax incremental financing intangibles, net 
In-place lease intangibles, net 
Above market lease intangibles, net 
Capital assets, net 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS: 

Liabilities: 
 
Accounts payable 
 
Unearned ground lease revenue 
 
Unearned grant revenue 
 
Other liabilities 
 
Below market lease intangibles, net 
 
Notes payable 
 
Due to the University of Louisville 
 
Due to the University of Louisville 
 

Foundation. Inc. 
 
Total liabilities 
 

Net Assets: 
 
Unrestricted 
 
Noncontrolling interests 
 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

2016 

$ 3,467 
343 
244 
264 

1,500 
7,214 

112,998 
1,024 
2,876 

100,505 
$ 230,435 

$ I, 194 
4,401 
1,937 

463 
1,247 

27,804 
9,803 

28,906 
75,755 
 

153,703 
977 

154,680 
 

$ 230,435 

2015 

$ 2,504 

8,008 
$ 11,492 

$ 1,446 

2,753 

4,204 
 

6,956 
332 

7,288 
 

$ 11,492 

See notes to the financial statements, 
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Univenity of Louisville Physicians, Inc. 
Statements of Financial Position 

June 30, 2016 and 2015 
(In Thousands) 

2016 2015 
ASSETS 

Current nssets: 
C11sh11nd c11sh equivalents $ 196 $ 2,472 
Assets limited 11s to use 100 
Patient accounts receivable, less allowance for 

uncollectible 11ccounts ofS27,941 and $18,303 
for 2016 and 2015, respectively 11,649 10,683 

Receiv11bles, related parties 3,742 4,527 
Other receivables 1,680 960 
Prepaid e~nses and other current 11ssets 1.636 1.654 

Total current assets 18,903 20,396 

Investmentin Kentuckiana Medical Reciprocal Risk 
Retention Group (KMRRRG) 16,482 12,345 

Property and equipment: 
Furniture, f1xtures, and equipment 2,062 1,856 
Leasehokt improvements 1,435 1,423 
lnfonnation technology 12,239 l0.598 

15,736 13,877 

Accumulated dt..'J)l'Cciation and amortization (7,053) (4.566) 

Total property and equipment, net 8.683 9.311 

Total assets $ 44,068 $ 42.052 

LIABILITIES AND NET DEFICIT 
Cum:nt liabilities 

Accounts payable $ 13,893 $ 12,109 
Accrued payroll and related expenses 7,152 6,723 
Linc or credit 16,368 12,460 
Cum:nt portion of capital lease obligations 1,769 3,222 
Cuncnt portion of Passport settlement 1,773 
Cuncnt portion or long-term debt 261 

Total current liabilities 39,182 36,548 

Long-term liabilities : 
Deferred gain on sale-leaseback of equipment 269 351 
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion 615 2,385 
Passport selllcment, net of current portion 
Long-term debt, net of current portion 280 280 

Total long-term liabilities 1.164 3.016 

Total liabilities 40.346 39.564 

Net assets (deficit): 
Unrestricted: 

Net deficit (2,308) (965) 
Invested in property and equipmenl, net of 

related debt 6.030 3.453 

Total net assets (deficit) 3.722 2.488 

Total liabilities 11nd net assets (deficit) $ 44,068 $ 42.052 

See notes to the financial statements. 
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UniHrsity or Louisville and Affiliated Corporations 
 
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth or Kentucky 
 

Statements or Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
 
\'ears Ended June JO,2016 and 2015 
 

(In Thousands) 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Student tuition and fees, net of scholarship allowance of 

$91,190 in 2016 and $83,710 in 2015 
 
Clinical services and practice plan 
 
Federal grants and contracts 
 
State and local grants
and contracts 
 
Nongovernmental grants and contracts 
 
Sales and services of educational departments 
 
Facilities and administrative cost recoveries 
 
Auxiliary enterprises, net of discount of $2,045 
 

in 2016 and S 1,877 in 2015 
 
Intercollegiate athletics 
 
Other operating revenues 
 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Instruction 
 
Research 
 
Public service 
 
Academic support 
 
Student services 
 
Institutional support 
 
Operation and maintenance of plant 
 
Scholarships and fellowships 
 
Auxiliary enterprises 
 
Intercollegiate athletics 
 
Depreciation and amortization 
 

Total operating expenses 
 
Operating loss 
 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
State appropriations 
 
Gifts 
 
Nonexchangegrantsand contracts 
 
Investment income 
 
Realized and unrealized loss on investments 
 
Interest on capital asset-related debt 
 
Other nonoperating revenues 
 

Net nonoperaling revenues 
Loss before other revenues. expenses, gains and losses 

Capital appropriations 
 
Capital gi fls 
 
Contribullons to University of Louisville Real Estate Foundallon, Inc. 
 
Contributions from University of Louisville Foundation, Inc. 
 

Total other revenues 

Increase in net position 

NET POSITION 
Net position - beginning of year 
 
Net position - end of year 
 

2016 2015 

s 209,503 s 209,834 
269,305 252,446 
70,049 64,599 
8,660 11,345 

24,707 14,191 
8,431 6,292 

24,611 22,596 

10,946 12,618 
71,335 66,072 
12,022 8,347 

709,569 668,340 

286,693 276,422 
144,197 139,830 
121,720 107,165 
134,842 129,552 
30,625 29,653 
69,720 51,431 
47,746 56,308 
30,842 31,774 
7,912 8,588 

85,073 80,301 
51,295 53,339 

1,010,665 964,363 
(301,096) (296,023) 

142,213 
30,551 
43,417 

1,938 
(4,657) 
(9,961) 

708 
204,209 
(96,887) 

9,741 
9,623 

(3,088) 
93,522 

109,798 

12,911 

706.580 
s 719,491 

140,744 
38,261 
43,314 

1,508 
(1,657) 

(11,136) 
10,702 

221,736 
(74,287) 

13,973 
8,331 

64,756 
87,060 

12.773 

693,807 
s 706,580 

See notes to the financial statements. 
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University of Louisville Real Estate Foundation, Inc. 
 
Consolidated Statements of Activities 
 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 and for the Period from 
 
Inception (November 19, 2014) through June 30, 2015 
 

(In Thousands) 

REVENUES, GAINS, AND OTHER SUPPORT: 
Rental revenue 
 
Contnbutions 
 
Net investment return 
 
Tax incremental financing revenues 
 
Other revenue 
 

Total revenues, gains, and other support 

EXPENSES: 
Contnbution expense 
 
Salaries 
 
General and administrative 
 
Professional services 
 
Utilities 
 
Repairs and maintenance 
 
Depreciation and arrortization 
 
Goodwill impairment 
 
Interest expense 
 
Property taxes 
 

Total expenses 

Change in net assets attributable to the University 
of Louisvtlle Real Estate Foundation, Inc. 

University of Louisville Real Estate Foundation, 
Inc. net assets, beginning of period 

University of Louisville Real Estate Foundation, 
Inc. net assets, end of period 

$ 

2016 

2,928 
175,717 

(203) 
1,722 

969 
181,133 

$ 

2015 

7,046 

7,046 

840 
848 
623 
616 
605 
704 

5,409 
24,201 

417 
123 

34,386 

90 

90 

146,747 6,956 

6,956 

$ 153,703 $ 6,956 

See notes to the financial statements. 
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UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE PHYSICIANS, INC. 
Statements of Activities 

Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 

2016 2015 

Unrestricted revenues, gains and other support: 
Net patient service revenue 
Provision for bad debts 

$ 148,423 
(46,403) 

$ 149,654 
(54,592) 

Net patient service revenue less provision for bad debts 102,020 95,062 

University of Louisville 
University Physicians Associates, Inc. (UPA) 
Academic programmatic support - related parties 
Academic programmatic support 
Meaningful use income 
Medical directorship 
Other revenue 
Gain on investment in KMRRRG 
Interest income 

31,277 
184 

16,640 
3,682 
3, 117 

407 
2,722 
4, 137 

87 

30,746 
257 

14,716 
1,676 
2,382 

549 
3,214 

722 
22 

Total unrestricted revenues, gains and other support 164,273 149,346 

Expenses: 
Program services 
Management and gene1al 

138,820 
24,219 

122,813 
21,050 

Total expenses 163,039 143,863 

Change in net deficit 
Net deficit, beginning of year 

1,234 
2,488 

5,483 
(2,995) 

Net assets (deficit), end of year $ 3,722 $ 2,488 

See notes to the financial statements. 
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Unh-ersity of Louisville ud Affiliated Corporations 
A Componut Unit oftbe Commonwi:altb ofKtnlucky 
 

Slatemeats of Cash flo\\s 
 
Years EndedJuntl0, 2016 and 2015 
 

(In Thousands) 
 

CASII FLOWS FROM OPERA TING ACTIVlTIES 
Student tuiton andi:es 
Clili:al servi:es and practi:e plan 
Grants and contracts 
Sales and servi:es of educatimal dep:irtm:nts 
Paym:nts10suppli:r.; 
Paym:nts fur utilila:s 
Paym:nts10e1111byees 
Paym:nts fur benelils 
Paym:nts i>r scholarships and lcllowships 
Loans issued to students and c1111byees 
Auxiliuy enlerprscs 
Faciilies and admilistrativc cost recoveries 
lntercollcgnte 11thlcti:s 
Other receipts 

Net cash used by operating activia:s 

CASII FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FJNAi"1CING ACTIVITIES 
Stole appropmtims 
Gifts 
Nonexchange l!r.lnts 11nd contracts 
Conlri>utims from rebted entilies 
Conbi>utionsto related entilies 
Other nonc11pital liiancing activiies 
 

Net cash proviled by noncapital fnancing 11ctr.ilies 
 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND REL\ TED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Capital appropriations receivi:d 
C11pitalgiftsreccivi:d 
Purchases of capital assets 
Proceeds from issuance of bonds and notes p:iyables 
Paym:nts of issuance costs 
Prine ipal pail on bonds and notes p:iy.ible 
lnlerest pail on bonds and noles payable 
Dcposis wih bond trustee and escrow agent 

Net cash used by captnl and rebted lilanc ingactivila:s 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVlTIES 
Proceeds from sales and !Jlllurilies of investm.:nts 
 
Purchase ofim :stments 
 
Interest on iM:stments 
 

Net cash prowled by itvesting activiies 

Net n:rease/(dccrease) in cash and cash equiwlents 
 
Cash and cash equiwlents - begmingof year 
 
Cash and cash equiwlents - end of year 
 

2016 2015 

s 214,472 s 209,082 
269,000 281,436 

94,255 87,482 
5,900 6,092 

(223,799) (205,340) 
(20,297) (21,187) 

(548,552) (505,987) 
(129,031) (128,233) 
(32,410) (32,989) 

618 ( 136) 
10,364 13,175 
24,611 22,596 
71,024 63,554 
11,074 8,051 

(252,771) (202,404) 

139,443 140,736 
32,994 38,643 
43,417 43,314 
78,003 60,656 
(5,088) 
1,852 10,261 

290,621 293,6IO 

9,741 13,973 
9,269 9,045 

(49,283) (48,859) 

99,536 6,965 
(7,798) 

(101,453) (22,109) 
(12,408) (10,982) 

830 (422) 
(51,566) (52,389) 

18,463 19,881 
(3,555) (6,629) 
1,615 1,293 

16,523 14,545 

2,807 53,362 
149,042 95,680 

s 151,849 s 149,042 

See notes to the financial statements. 
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University or Louisville and Affiliated Corpomlions 

A ComJNment Unit of the Common"Hllh 
Statemenlll oCCasb Flom 

o£Kenturky 

Years Elllkd June JO, 2016 and 2015 

(In nousanlk) 

2016 201S 
Q.ECONCILIA110N OF NET OPERA TING LOSS TO NET CASH 
USEDBYOPERATINGACTIVITIES 

Operala,g loss 
Adjustm:ntsto reconcile operatilglossto net cash used by operala,g 11c1ivit.:s 

Depreciati>nand airortil.tti>n 
Loss on equipm:nl d6posals 
Change it assets and wbailies 

Loans, accoWIIS and contri>Uli>ns receiwble , net 

s (301,096 ) 

51,295 

121 

(9,593) 

s (296,023 ) 

53,339 
1,806 

5,193 

lnventori:s 
Other assets 

65 
(134) 

(86) 
(1,597) 

Olher long-tenn assets 
Accounts payable and accrued lubwiies 
Advances 
Deposis 
Duelinm Universty oflouisvilk Foundati:in,Inc. 

Unearned col11)Cns11t1m 11ndw:igcs p:iyable 
Other bng-tenn wbaiies 
Dei:m:d inllowsof n:sources 

Net cash used by operatilg aclivirs s 

250 
(2,419 ) 

3,289 
16 

5.474 
1,444 
1,950 

(3.433) 
(252,771 ) s 

215 
22,410 

(17) 

9,910 

1,164 
2,366 

(1, 144) 

(202,404) 

Non cash transacti>ns· 
C11pilal lease addili:ms s 33 s 525 

Capital assel addilDns it accounts payable s 6, 100 s 653 

Gills of capital assets s 364 s 

See notes to the financial statements. 



University of Louisville and Affiliated Corporations 

A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2016 and 2015 

1. Nature of Operations, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The University of Louisville (University) is a state supported metropolitan research university located 
in Kentucky's largest city and is a component unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky. 

The University has three campuses. The Belknap Campus is three miles from downtown Louisville 
and houses eight of the University's twelve colleges and schools. The Health Sciences Center is 
situated in downtown Louisville's medical complex and houses the University's health related 
programs and the University of Louisville Hospital (Hospital). On the Shelby Campus, located in 
eastern Jefferson County, are the National Crime Prevention Institute, the Center for Predictive 
Medicine regional biosafety lab and the Division of Distance and Continuing Education. In recent 
years, the University has also offered expanded campus courses at both off-site and international 
locations. 

a. Basis of Presentation 

The financial statements include the combined financial position and operations of the University, 
the University of Louisville Athletic Association, and the University of Louisville Research 
Foundation . The following affiliated corporations are included as blended component units since 
they are separate legal entities but are related through certain common management and trustees 
and exist exclusively for the benefit of the University: 

University of Louisville Athletic Association, Inc. (Association). The Association is a 
Kentucky not-for-profit corporation organized in 1984 for the purpose of promoting the 
intercollegiate athletic activities of the University of Louisville. The Association's 
mission to provide quality intercollegiate athletic programs through a comprehensive 
sports program requires a major financial commitment of both operating and capital 
resources. In addition, the Association is committed to achieving athletic excellence for 
its student athletes, maintaining National Collegiate Athletic Association (NCAA) 
compliance, ensuring full implementation of gender equity plans and offering a wide 
variety of sports and recreational outlets for the University community, alumni, and 
visitors. 

University of Louisville Research Foundation, Inc. (Research Foundation). The Research 
Foundation was established in t 989 for the purpose of promoting and supporting research 
projects, investigations, and other activities relating to the educational, scientific, literary, 
artistic, health care and public service missions of the University . 

Under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, the 
University reports the University of Louisville Foundation, Inc. (Foundation), the University of 
Louisville Real Estate Foundation, Inc. (ULREF) and the University of Louisville Physicians, 
Inc. (ULP) as discretely presented component units. During 2016, the University changed its 
reporting entity to include the ULREF as a discretely presented component unit. ULREF formed 
in fiscal period 2016 with significant operations in fiscal year 2016 that met the criteria of a 
discretely presented component unit. The inclusion of ULREF was retroactive to fiscal period 

- 25 ­




2015 and had no material effect on beginning net position. Further descriptions of the 
Foundation. the ULREF and ULP may be found in footnote 20 Component Units. 

All discretely presented component units have separate and independent governing boards. The 
University's Board of Trustees does not provide governance or administrative oversight for the 
discretely presented component units. 

The financial statement presentation required by GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial 
Statements and Managements Discussion and Analysis for Public Colleges and Universities, as 
amended by GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, 
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, is intended to provide a comprehensive, entity­
wide perspective of the University's assets, deferred outflow of resources, liabilities, deferred 
inflow of resources, net position. revenues, expenses, changes in net position and cash flows. 

The separate financial statements of the Association, the Research Foundation and the financial 
statements of the University can be found at the following: 

http://louisville.edu/finance/controller/univacct/finst-l 

b. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The University considers all investments (not held for long-term purposes) with original 
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents . 

c. Deposits With Bond Trustee and Escrow Agent 

As of June 30, 2016 and 2015, deposits with bond trustee consist of cash and investments in 
governmenlal securities and repurchase agreements of $5.8 million and $5.7 million, respectively, 
for the Stadium Project Revenue Bonds, and $5.2 million and $6. l million for the Educational 
Building Bonds. 

Investments in governmental securities are stated at market value. Repurchase agreements are 
stated at cost. 

d. Contributions Receivable 

In accordance with GASS Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Nonexchange Transactions, as amended by GASB Statement No. 36, Recipient Reporting for 
Certain Shared Nonexchange Revenues, the University records operating and capital pledges as 
revenue when all eligibility requirements have been met. Endowment pledges are not recognized 
as revenue until the gifts are received. 

e. Investments and Investment Income 

Investments in marketable debt and equity securities are stated at current fair value. Fair value is 
determined using quoted market prices. Real estate is stated at fair value if acquired for resale or 
otherwise used as an investment as determined on the date of acquisition. Certificates of deposit 
are stated at cost plus accrued interest. which approximates fair value. Investment income 
consists of interest and dividend income, realized gains and losses and the net change for the year 
in the fair value of investments carried at fair value . 

Investments held with the Foundation are invested under the policies and objectives established 
for the Foundation's general endowment pool. In an effort to mitigate market risk, the 
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Foundation has adopted a policy of maintaining a diverse investment pool through the use of 
target asset allocation guidelines. These guidelines require the Foundation's investment pool be 
made up of a mix of publicly traded fixed income and equity securities, private equities and other 
nonmarketable securities and real estate investments. 

The market risk inherent in certain of the Foundation's investments is primarily the potential loss 
arising from adverse changes in quoted market prices on equity securities and in interest rates on 
fixed income securities. 

The Association's permanent endowment funds, held by the Foundation and invested in the 
Foundation's general endowment pool, are administered under the Uniform Prudent Management 
of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIF A), as adopted by the Commonwealth of Kentucky. The 
Foundation's board of directors has interpreted UPMIFA as requiring preservation of the fair 
value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent 
explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. The investment objectives of the Foundation are to 
preserve the principal of the endowment funds in both absolute and real terms while maximizing, 
over the long-term, the total rate of return (yield and appreciation) within reasonable risk 
parameters. 

The Foundation invests in various corporate debt, equity, partnerships, marketable alternatives, 
mutual fund securities, U.S. Government securities, certificates of deposit, land and buildings. 
Investment securities, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rates, credit and 
overall market volatility. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it 
is reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment securities will occur in the near 
term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the Foundation's 
consolidated statements of financial position. 

f. Loans to Students 

The University makes loans to students under various federal and other loan programs. Such 
loans receivable are recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts. The allowance for 
uncollectible loans netted against loans to students was approximately $0.8 million at June 30, 
2016 and 2015, respectively . 

g. Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market, under the first-in, first-out method. 

h. Capital Assets 

Capital assets are stated principally at cost, or estimated acquisition value at date of receipt from 
donors. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives 
of the assets as follows: buildings - 40 years or componentized using 15-50 years, infrastructure ­
60 years, land improvements - 40 years, equipment - 3-15 years, leasehold improvements - 20 
years and library materials - IO years . Assets under capital leases are amortized on the straight­
line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset, or the lease term, whichever is shorter. 

The University has elected to capitalize collections which include art, rare books, photographs , 
letters, journals, manuscripts and musical instruments . These items are capitalized at cost, or if a 
gift, at the acquisition value on the date of the gift. 

The University capitalizes interest costs as a component of construction in progress, based on 
interest costs of borrowing, net of interest earned on investments acquired with the proceeds of 
the borrowing. 
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Total interest incurred was (In thousands): 
2016 2015 

Total interest expense incurred on 
borrowings for project $ 945 $ 435 

Interest income from investment of proceeds 
of borrowings for project (35) 
Net interest cost on borrowings for project $ 910 $ 435 

Interest capitalized 
Interest charged to expense 

Total interest incurred 

$ 223 
9,961 

$ 10,184 

$ 105 
11,136 

$ 11,241 

i. Deferred Outflows and Jnflows of Resources 

In accordance with GASB No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, 
Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position, the University reports deferred outflows of 
resources, deferred inflows of resources and net posit ion in its statemen ts of net position and 
related disclosures. 

Deferred outflows of resources of $7.0 million and $0.9 million for the years ended June 30, 2016 
and 2015, respectively, consist primarily of loss on bond refinancing of $6.5 million and $0.8 
million and fair value of derivat ives of $0.5 million and $0.1 million as of June 30, 2016 and 
2015, respectively. As the deriva tives are considered effective hedging instruments, changes in 
the fair value of derivatives are recognized as deferred outflows of resources. Deferred outflows 
of resources related to the loss on bond refinanc ing will be amortized to interest expense using the 
effective interest method over the remain ing life of the refinanced debt. 

Deferred inflows of resources consist of $0.2 million of fair value of derivatives for each of the 
years ended June 30, 2016 and 20 15 and $3.4 million of service concessi on arrangements as of 
June 30, 2015. As the derivat ives are considered effective hedging instruments , changes in the 
fair value of derivatives are recognized as deferred inflows of resources . Deferred inflows of 
resources related to the service concess ion arrangements were recogn ized during 20 16 related to 
the buyout of the contract with the food service provider . 

j . Unearned Compensation Expenses 

Unearned compensation expenses are recogn ized as expense over the term of the related 
employment agreements. 

k. Advances 

Revenues of summer school academic terms are recognized in tlie fiscal year earned. 

Advances related to amounts received from individua l and season ticket holders for subsequent 
year intercollegiate athletic activ ities, suite rentals, parking and sponsorship revenue are 
recognized over the term of the related athletic activit ies. 

The University receives revenues related to sponsored agreements via grants, contracts, 
cooperative agreements, or other agreeme nts. The flow of funds relative to these sponsored 
agreements is in the form of cost reimbursement or advanced funding . 
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In the case of cost reimbursement, the University incurs costs on behalf of the granting authority 
and is then reimbursed for such costs pursuant to the tenns of the sponsored agreement. Grant 
revenues are recognized as reimbursable costs are incurred. 

In the case of advanced funding, the University receives funds prior to incurring costs pursuant to 
the sponsored agreement, with the stipulation that these funds may have to be returned to the 
sponsor. Grant revenues are recognized as the related grant costs are incurred. 

I. Compensated Absences 

University policies permit most employees to accumulate vacation and sick leave benefits that 
may be realized as paid time off or, in limited circumstances, as a cash payment. Expense and the 
related liability are recognized as vacation or sick benefits are earned, whether the employee is 
expected to realize the benefit as time off or in cash. Compensated absence liabilities are 
computed using the regular pay and termination pay rates in effect at the statement of net position 
date plus an additional amount for compensation-related payments such as Social Security and 
Medicare taxes computed using rates in effect at that date. 

m. Net Bond Premium 

The University amortizes the net bond premium using the effective interest method over the life 
of the bond. 

n. Net Position 

The net position of the University is classified in four components. Net investment in capital 
assets consists of the net amount of capital assets, accumulated depreciation, related deferred 
outflows and deferred inflows of resources, reduced by the outstanding balances of borrowings 
used to finance the purchase or construction of those assets. Restricted-nonexpendable net 
position is subject to externally imposed restrictions that require the University to maintain the 
assets in perpetuity. Restricted-expendable net position consists of the amount of assets and 
deferred outflows that must be used for a particular purpose as specified by creditors, grantors or 
donors external to the University, reduced by the outstanding balances of any related liabilities or 
deferred inflows of resources. Unrestricted net position is the remaining net amount of assets, 
related deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources less liabilities that do not meet the 
definition of invested in capital assets, net of related debt or restricted. 

o. Classification of Revenues 

The University has classified its revenues as either operating or nonoperating revenues according 
to the following criteria: 

Operating revenues - Operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of 
exchange transactions, such as tuition, clinical operations, grants and contracts and intercollegiate 
activities. 

Nonoperating revenues - Nonoperating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of 
nonexchange transactions, such as state appropriations, capital appropriations, Pell and other 
grants and contracts, gifts and contributions, and other revenue sources that are defined as 
nonoperating revenues by GASB No. 9, Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and 
Nonexpendable Trust Funds and Government Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, 
and GASB No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for 
State and Local Governments, such as investment income. 



p. Student Tuition and Fees 

Student tuition and fees are presented net of scholarship allowances in the statements of revenues, 
expenses and changes in net position. Scholarship allowances are the difference between the 
stated charge for goods and services provided by the University and the amount that is paid by 
students and third parties making payments on the behalf of students. To the extent that revenues 
from such programs are used to satisfy tuition and fees, the University has recorded a scholarship 
allowance. Stipends and other payments made directly to students are presented as scholarships 
and fellowships expense. 

q. Clinical Services and Practice Plan Revenue 

The University has agreements with third-party payers that provide for payments to the 
University at amounts different from its established rates . Net clinical services and practice plan 
revenues are reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payers and 
others for the services rendered and include estimated retroactive revenue adjustments and a 
provision for uncollectible accounts. Retroactive adjustments are considered in the recognition 
of revenue on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and such 
estimated amounts are revised in future periods as adjustments become known. 

r. Government and Nongovernment Grants 

Support funded by grants is recognized as the University performs the contracted services or 
incurs outlays eligible for reimbursement under the grant agreements. Grant activities and 
outlays are subject to audit and acceptance by the granting agency and, as a result of such audit, 
adjustments could be made. 

s. Tax Status 

As a state institution of higher education, the income of the University is generally exempt from 
federal and state income taxes under Section J l5(a) of the Internal Revenue Code and a similar 
provision of state law. However, the University is subject to federal income tax on any unrelated 
business taxable income. 

t. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets , liabilities, and deferred inflows and 
outflows of resources at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, 
expenses and other changes in net position during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

u. Reclassification of Prior Years' Financial Statements 

In the statements of net position and revenues expenses and changes in net position certain prior 
year balances have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation. These 
reclassifications had no effect on the change in net position . 
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2. Cash on Deposit and Investments 

The University invests in various investment securities. Investment securities are exposed to various 
risks, such as interest rate, market and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain 
investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment 
securities will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the investment 
amounts reported in the statements of net position. The risks related to deposits and investments held 
by the University are described within this disclosure. 

a. Summary of Canyin~ Values 

The value of deposits and investments as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 are as follows (in thousands): 

2016 2015 
Deposits $ 151,849 $ 149,042 

Investments 
U.S. Treasury obligations 3,290 4,824 
U.S. agencies obligations 5,081 
Other government obligations 421 12,487 
Repurchase agreements 7,706 7,002 
Investments held with the Foundation 25,952 30,583 
Certificates of deposit 497 499 
Annuities 1,986 
Other long-term investments 2 

$ 191,703 $ 209,518 

The deposits and investments shown are included in the statements of net position as follows (in 
thousands): 

2016 2015 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 123,803 $ 132,014 
Deposit with bond trustee-current 5,754 7,848 
Short-tenn investments 918 10,738 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 28,046 17,028 
Deposit with bond trustee-noncurrent 5,242 3,978 
Investments held with the Foundation 25,952 30,583 
Other long-term investments 1,988 7,329 

$ 191,703 $ 209,518 

b. Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, a government's 
deposits or collateral securities may not be returned to it. The University currently uses 
commercial banks and the Commonwealth of Kentucky (Commonwealth) as its depositories. 
Deposits with commercial banks are substantially covered by federal depository insurance or 
collateral held by the bank in the University ' s name. At the Commonwealth, the University's 
accounts are pooled with other agencies of the Commonwealth. These Commonwealth-pooled 
deposits are substantially covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by the 
Commonwealth in the Commonwealth's name. The custodial credit risk for investments is the 
risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction , a government will not be 
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able to recover the value of investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an 
outside party. Investments in variable rate demand notes are substantially covered by collateral 
held by the financial agent. The University does not have a formal policy addressing custodial 
credit risk. 

At June 30, 2016 and 2015, the University had deposits subject to custodial credit risk as follows 
(in thousands): 

June 30. 2016 
State 

Deposits 
Overnight 

Investments Total 

Collateralized with securities held 
by pledging financial institution $ $ 7,429 $ 7,429 

Collateralized with securities held 
by the Comm onwealth in the 
Commonwealth's name $ 58 ,398 58,398 

Total $ 58,398 $ 7,429 $ 65,827 

State Overnight 
June 30, 2015 Deposits In vestments Total 

Cotlateralized with securities held 
by pledging financial institution $ $ 7,543 $ 7,543 

Cotlateraliz ed with securities held 
by the Commonwealth in the 
Commonwealth's name $ 48 ,281 48,281 

Tota l $ 48,281 $ 7,543 $ 55,824 

c. Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk a government may face should interest rate variances affect the fair 
value of investments. The University' s policy is to invest in U.S. government and U.S. 
government agency securities, commercial paper, banker's acceptances, and variable rate demand 
notes with a maturity not greater than three years . 

The University has entered into repurchase agreements for the investment of bond fund reserves . 
The provider financial institution agrees to deliver U.S. Treasury obligations yielding a 
guaranteed rate at an amount equal to the scheduled bond fund reserve in exchange for payment 
from the availabl e reserve. The final maturities under these agreements are March 1, 2027 and 
March 1, 2028. 

As of June 30, 2016 and 2015, the University had investments subject to interest rate risk as 
reflected in schedules presented on the following page (in thousands): 
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Maturities in rears 
June 30, 2016 Total Less than 1 1-5 6-10 More than to 

U.S. Treasury obligations $ 3,290 $ 1,860 $ 1,430 $ - $ 

Other government obligations 421 421 
Repurchase agreements 7,706 628 203 1,350 5,525 
Certificates of deposit 497 497 

$ 11,914 $ 3,406 $ 1,633 $ 1,350 $ 5,525 

Maturities in rears 
June 30, 2015 Total Less than 1 1-5 6-10 More than 10 

U.S. Treasury obligations $ 4,824 $ 4,824 $ - $ - $ 

U.S. agencies obligations 5,081 5,081 
Other government obligations 12,487 10,738 1,749 
Repurchase agreement 7,002 681 628 978 4,715 
Certificates of deposit 499 499 

$ 29,893 $ 16,243 $ 7,957 $ 978 $ 4,715 

d. Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations. By University policy, commercial paper must be rated the highest (A-I/P-1) by at 
least one Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (NRSRO). Banker's acceptances 
must be issued by a bank having a short-term rating of the underlying bank rated the highest (A­
1/P- l ). Variable rate demand notes must be backed by an unconditional letter of credit issued by 
a domestic bank having outstanding commercial paper rated the highest (A-l/P-2) by at least one 
rating service and by each rating service rating said credit. All commercial paper and banker's 
acceptances must be issued by domestic entities . The Commonwealth investment pool can invest 
in U.S. treasuries and agencies; commercial paper or asset backed securities rated in the highest 
category by a nationally recognized rating agency; certificates of deposit, banker's acceptances, 
state or local government securities and corporate, Yankee and Eurodollar securities rated in one 
of the three highest categories by a nationally recognized rating agency; shares of mutual funds 
(up to 10%) and state and local property tax certificates of delinquency secured by interests in 
real estate. 

As of June 30, 2016 and 201 S, the University had the following investments exposed to credit 
risk as reflected in schedules presented on the following page (in thousands): 

June 30, 20 I 6 Ana Not Rated Total 
 

Annutities $ 1,986 $ $ 1,986 
 

Investments held with the 
 

Foundation 25,952 25,952 
 
$ 1,986 $ 25,952 $ 27,938 
 

June 30, 2015 Ana Al / Pl Total 

Investments held with the 

Foundation $ 

$ 

$ 30,583 

$ 30,583 

$ 

$ 

30,583 

30,583 
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e. Concentration of Credit Risk 

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's 
investment in a single issuer, excluding investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. 
government and investments in mutual funds, external investment pools and other pooled 
investments. At June 30, 2016 and 2015, the University has no investments in any one issuer as 
defined above that represent 5% or more of total investments. 

The asset allocation for investments held with the Foundation as of June 30, 20 16 and 2015 is as 
follows: 

2016 2015 
Investment in partnerships 60% 62% 
 
Marketable alternatives 14% 19% 
 
Preferred and common stock 13% 5% 
 

Mutual funds 10% 12% 
 
Fixed income 2% 
 
Equity method investments 1% 1% 
 
Certificates of deposit 1% 
 

100% 100% 

The Foundation's investments do not have a significant concentration of credit risk within any 
industry or specific institution. 

f. Foreign Currency Risk 

This risk relates to adverse effects on the fair value of an investment from changes in exchange 
rates. The University had no investments denominated in foreign currency at 
June 30, 2016 and 2015. 

3. Fair Value Measurements 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transac1ion between market participants at the measurement date. The table on the following page 
presents the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities recognized in the accompanying 
financial statements as prescribed by GASB 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application , as of 
June 30, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands): 

Quoted Prices 
in Active Significant 

Markets for Other Si!!nificant 
Identical Observable Unobservable Measured at 

Balance as of Assets Inputs ll!{IUts NAV 
6/30/2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Jnvestments 
Certificates of deposit s 497 $ 497 $ $ . $ 
US Treasury obligations 3,290 3,290 
Other governmental obligations 421 421 
University of Louisville Fo1111dation, Inc. 
investment fund 25,952 25,952 

Investment derivative instruments 
Interest rate swnp 434 434 
Forward delivery agreement (175) (175) 

Total investments measured nt fair vnlue $ 30.419 s 3.787 $ 855 $ (175) $ 25,952 



Quoted Prices 
in Active Significant 

Markets for Other Significant 
Identical Observable Unobservable Measured at 

Balance as of Assets lriputs Inputs NAV 
6/30/2015 Level I Level2 Level3 

Investments 
Certificates of deposit s 499 s 499 s s - s 
US Treasw-y obligations 4,824 4,824 
US Agenci:s Obligations 5,081 5,081 
Other governmental obligations 12,487 12,487 
University of Louisville Fmmdation,Inc. 
investment fund 30,583 30,583 

Investment derivative instruments 
Interest rate swap 95 95 
Forward delivery agreement (238) (238) 

Total investments measured at fairvalue s 53.331 s 5.323 s 17.663 s (238) S 30.583 

a. Investments 

Certificates of deposit securities and US Treasury obligations classified in Level I of the fair 
value hierarchy are valued using prices quoted in active markets for those securities. Other 
governmental obligations and U.S. agency obligations classified in Level 2 of the fair value 
hierarchy are valued using a pricing matrix technique. 

b. Investment Derivative Instruments 

Derivative instruments classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using 
standard pricing models using current forward rate assumptions and/or volatilities to predict 
cash flows. Derivative instruments classified in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy are 
valued using a market approach to assess future cash flows. 

Investments measured at net asset value (NA V) (in thousands): 

Fair Value as of Redemption Redemption 
6/30/16 Frequency Notice Period 

Various from 
 
University of Louisville Foundation, Inc. any valuation Various from 5 
 
investment fund s 25,925 day to quarterly to 90 days 
 

Fair Value as of Redemption Redemption 
6/30/ 15 Frequency Notice Period 

Various from 
 
University of Louisville Foundation, Inc. any valuation Various from 5 
 
investment fund s 30,583 day to quarterly to 90 days 
 

Investments within the University of Louisville Foundation, Inc. investment fund consist of 
money market mutual funds, common and preferred stock, corporate bonds, mutual funds, 
investments in partnerships and funds of funds, U.S. Government securities, U.S. Treasuries and 
U.S. agency obligations. The Foundation has adopted a policy of maintaining a diverse 
investment pool through the use of targeted asset allocation guidelines. The fair value of the 
investments in the fund have been determined using the NA V per share ( or its equivalent) of the 
investments . 
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4. Loans, Accounts and Contributions Receivable, Net 

Loans, accounts and contributions receivable, net as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 are as follows and 
on the following page (in thousands): 

2016 

Student tuition and fees 
Patient care 
Contributions receivable 
KOH affiliation agreement 
Sponsored agreements 
Rent from University Medical 
Center, Inc. 

Trade receivables 
Other 

Total 

Gross 
Receivable 
$ 34,825 

72,043 
33,405 

1,406 
22,618 

4,905 
2,432 
8,586 

$ 180,220 

Allowance 
$ (9,739) 

(42,071) 
(2,071) 

(2,740) 

(513) 
$ (57,134) 

Net 
Receivable 

$ 25,086 
29,972 
31,334 

1,406 
19,878 

4,905 
2,432 
8,073 

123,086 

Less discount (810) 

Current portion 78,821 

Noncurrent portion $ 43,455 

2015 
Gross Net 
 

Receivable Allowance Receivable 
 
Student tuition and fees $ 36,987 $ (7,803) $ 29,184 
Patient care 63,310 (37,662) 25,648 
Contributions receivable 30,565 (3,154) 27,411 
Sponsored agreements 18,705 (2,740) 15,965 
Rent from University Medical 

Center, Inc. 4,253 4,253 
Trade receivables 2,682 2,682 
Other 5,085 (724) 4,361 

Total $ 161,587 $ (52,083) 109,504 

Less discount (494) 

Current portion 68,984 

Noncurrent portion $ 40,026 

Contributions receivable consist primarily of charitable gifts totaling $32.1 million pledged from 
individual and corporate donors that are assoc iated with the construction projects of the Association. 
Receivables with payment schedules in excess of one year are stated at their discounted present 
value, using discount rates ranging from 0.2% to 5.2% as of June 30, 2016. 

Contributions receivable as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 are due to be received as follows (in 
thousands): 
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2016 2015 
Less than one year $ 5,463 $ 7,472 

One to three years 16,998 10,676 
Greater than three years 10,944 12,417 

Subtotal 33,405 30,565 

Less discount (810) (494) 

Less allowance (2,071) (3,154) 
Net contributions receivable $ 30,524 $ 26,917 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting/or Nonexchange 
Transactions, as amended by GASB Statement No. 36 Recipient Reporting for Certain Shared 
Nonexchange Revenues, the University records operating and capital pledges as revenue when all 
eligibility requirements have been met. Endowment pledges are not recognized as revenue until the 
gifts are received. 

5. Due From the Foundation 

In accordance with the University's agency agreement with the Foundation, the University receives 
and disburses monies on behalf of the Foundation. The net amount of these receipts and 
disbursements is recorded as a due to or from the Foundation in the statements of net position. 
Generally, the receivable or payable is cleared within the subsequent month; however, no formal 
agreement governs the time period in which payments are to be made. 

By memorandum of agreement dated July l, 2015, the University agreed to loan a total of 
$38.0 million to the ULREF. The receivable shall be repaid in full or satisfied through other financial 
instruments within 3 years of the effective date of the agreement, with effective date defined as the 
date on which the University transfers funds to the ULREF. The unpaid balance on the receivable 
bears simple interest equal to 75 basis points greater than the University's cash sweep rate. The 
repayment schedule calls for interest only payments semi-annually and a balloon repayment of any 
unpaid receivable and interest at the end of the term. The transfer of funding was completed August 
7, 2015. The ULREF repaid $28.2 million of the loan during fiscal 2016 leaving a balance of $9.8 
million as of June 30, 2016 that is recorded as noncurrent Due from the University of Louisville Real 
Estate Foundation, Inc. on the statement of net position. 

6. Capital Assets, Net 

Capital assets as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 are as follows and on the following page (in thousands): 



2016 

Cost - Nondepreciable 
Land 
Rare books 
Construction in progress 

Subtotal 

Cost - Deprec:iable 
Buildings 
Infrastructure 
Land improvements 
Equipment 
Leasehold improvements 
Library materials 

Subtotal 
Total capital assets-cost 

Ac:c:umulateddeprec:iation 
Buildings 

Infrastructure 

Land improvements 

Equipment 

Leasehold improvements 

Library materials 


Total accumulated dcpr. 

Capital assets, net 

Beginning 
Balance 

$ 	 44,204 
43 ,618 
32.035 

119,857 

1,124,951 
11,238 
18,531 

197,399 
2,117 

167.598 
1,521.834 
1.641,69 1 

454,835 
3,196 
3,021 

171,123 
1,435 

143.395 
777.005 

$ 864.686 

Additio•s 

$ 
884 

4 1,706 
42,590 

906 

358 
8,826 

2,447 
12,537 
55,12 7 

34,439 
187 
536 

I0,654 
64 

5,415 
51.295 

$ 3,832 

$ 

Retire­
ments 

(6,941) 

(6,941) 
(6,941) 

(6,821) 

(6,821) 

s (120) 

Transfers 

$ 

(6,725) 
(6,725) 

5,986 

739 

6.725 

$ 

Ending 

Balance 


$ 	 44,204 
44,502 
67,016 

155,722 

1, 131,843 
11,238 
19,628 

199,284 
2,117 

170,045 
1,534,155 
1,689.877 

489,274 
3,383 
3,557 

174,956 
1,499 

148,SIO 
821.479 

$868 ,398 
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2015 
Beginning 
Balance Additions 

Retire­
ments Transfers 

Ending 
Balance 

Cost - Nondepreciable 
Land 
Rare books 
Construction in progress 

Subtotal 

$ 44,204 
41,479 
42.466 

128,149 

$ 
2,139 

24.520 
26.659 

$ 

(553) 
(553) 

$ 

(34,398) 
(34.398) 

$ 44,204 
43,618 
32,035 

119,857 

Cost ­ Depreciable 
Buildings 1,089,013 4,048 (2,319) 34,209 1,124,951 
Infrastructure 11,238 11,238 
Land improvements 
Equipment 

17,865 
194,505 

477 
8,865 (5,971) 

189 18,531 
197,399 

Leasehold improvements 2,001 116 2,117 
Library materials 

Subtotal 
163.991 

1.478.613 
3.607 

17. 113 (8.290) 34.398 
167.598 

1.521.834 
Total capital assets-cost 1.606,762 43,772 (8,843) 1,641,691 

Accumulated depreciation 
Buildings 421,579 34,349 (1,093) 454,835 
Infrastructure 3,009 187 3,196 
Land improvements 2,522 499 3,021 
Equipment 164,756 12,312 (5,945) 171,123 
Leasehold improvements 1,371 64 1,435 
Library materials 137.467 5.928 143.395 

Total accumulated depr. 730,704 53.339 (7.038) 777,005 

Capital assets, net $876,058 $ (9.567) $ (1,805) $ $864,686 

7. 	 Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consist of the following at June 30, 2016 and 2015 (in 
thousands): 

Salaries and benefits 
Payroll taxes 
Construction 

Accrued interest 
Other 

2016 
$ 43,299 

15,945 

3,686 
3,155 

20,190 
$ 86,275 

2015 
$ 43,255 

15,114 

4,568 
3,624 

17,471 
$ 84,032 

8. 	 Amounts Payable to Universi!Y of Louisville Foundation1 Inc. 

In January 1999, the Association obtained an $8.5 million unsecured, noninterest bearing loan from 
the Foundation for the construction of Cardinal Park. The Association is obligated to repay the loan 
upon collection of contributions receivable. Certain contributions receivable are held by the 
University and collections are transferred to the Association for the repayment of the loan. No 
payments were made during the years June 30, 2016 and 2015. The outstanding balance was 
approximately $1.0 million for each of the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015. 
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In July 2001, the Association obtained a $347,000 unsecured. noninterest bearing loan with no 
specific repayment terms from the Foundation for the refurbishing of the Cardinal Basketball offices. 
The outstanding loan balan ce is approximately $316,000 for each of the years ended June 30, 2016 
and 20 15. 

9. Bonds, Notes and Capital Leases 

Long-term debt, net of discoun t. of the University consisted of the following at June 30, 2016 and 
2015 (in thousands): 

Fiscal Year 
Interest Rate of Maturi!l: 2016 2015 

Consolidated Educational Building 
Revenue Bonds: 

Series M of2003 LS% 20 16 $ $ 1,955 
Series P of2005 3.7% lo 4.0% 2025 2,605 

General Receipts Bonds: 
Series A of 2007 4.0% 2018 3,840 30,205 
Series A of2008 4.0% 2019 11,700 67,330 
Series A of 20 I 0 4.0% to 4.5% 2028 3,412 
Series B of2010 5.5% 2028 20,942 20,942 
Series A of201 I 4.0% to 5.0% 2032 29,200 30,410 
Series A of2012 5.0% 2023 9,940 11,105 
Series A of 20l6 2.0% to 5.0% 2036 14,050 
Series B of2016 2.0% to 5.0% 2028 23,725 
Series C of 2016 2.0% lo4. 0% 2029 51,650 

Metro Government Revenue 
Bonds: 

Series 2008 A 4.0% to 5.0% 2018 10,540 15,485 
Series 2008 B 4.0% to4 .8% 2028 29,460 31,325 

Notes payable 2.3% to 4.8% 2020 14,171 16,549 

Energy leases 2.6% to4 .8% 2033 18,79 1 20,212 

Capital lease obligations 2.7% to 10.7% 2020 · 326 351 

Total Jong-tenn debt 238,335 251,892 
Net unamortized premium 13,669 4,026 
Long-term debt, net $ 252,004 $ 255,918 
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The change in bonds, notes and capital leases is summarized as follows (in thousands): 

2016 

Beginning Retire- Ending Current Noncurrent 
Balance Additions ments Balance Portion Portion 

Bonds payable $ 214,774 $ 89,425 $ (99,152) $ 205,047 $ 17,420 $ 187,627 
Notes payable 16,549 (2,378) 14,171 2,188 11,983 
Energy leases 20,212 (1,421) 18,791 1,748 17,043 
Capital leases 357 33 (64) 326 159 167 
Total 251,892 89,458 (IOJ,015) 238,335 21,515 216,820 
Less unwnortized net 
( discount)/premium 4,026 I0,111 (468) 13,669 1,668 12,001 

Net bonds payable $ 255,918 $ 99,569 $ ( IOJ,483) $ 252,004 $ 23,183 $ 228,821 

2015 

Beginning Retire- Ending Current Noncurrent 
Balance Additions ments Balance Portion Portion 

Bonds payable $ 231,462 $ $ (16,688) $ 214,774 $ 18,187 $ 196,587 
Note payable 18,053 1,252 (2,756) 16,549 2,378 14,171 
Energy lease 15,855 5,713 (1,356) 20,212 1,421 18,791 
Capital leases 1,142 525 (1,310) 357 146 211 
Total 266,512 7,490 (22,110) 251,892 22,132 229,760 

Less unwnortized 
net discount 4,665 (639) 4,026 582 3.444 

Net bonds payable $ 271,177 $ 7,490 $ (22,749) $ 255,918 $ 22,714 $ 233,204 

Principal maturities and interest on bonds, notes and capital leases for the next five years and in 
subsequent five-year periods are as follows (in thousands): 

For the year ended 
June30 Princieal Interest Total 

2017 $ 21,515 $ 9,433 $ 30,948 
2018 31,094 8,880 39,974 
2019 15,244 7,837 23,081 
2020 15,213 7,303 22,516 
2021 16,062 6,758 22,820 

2022-2026 76,159 24,600 100,759 
2027 - 2031 56,719 6,630 63,349 
2032-2036 6,329 377 6,706 

Total $ 238,335 $ 71,818 $ 310,153 

The University has capitalized leased equipment with a net book value of $0.8 million and 
$2.0 million as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. 

The General Receipts Bonds are collateralized by mortgages on certain University properties. 
Association revenue is pledged for the payment of the Metro Government Stadium Expansion Bonds, 
excluding approximately $2.0 million annually, which is to be available for amounts owed by the 
Association under the Arena lease agreement. The remaining operating and nonoperating income of 
the University, excluding income which as a condition of receipt is not available for payment of debt 
service charges, are pledged for the General Receipts Bonds. Total principal and interest remaining 
on the debt is $284.9 million, with annual requirements ranging from $0.6 million in 2036 to $36.8 
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million in 2018. For the current year, principal and interest paid by the University and the total 
pledged revenue recognized were $29.9 million and $505.9 million, respectively 

As of June 30, 2016 and 2015, investments at fair value totaling approximately $11.0 million and 
$11.8 million, respectively, for retirement of indebtedness funds have been deposited with the bond 
trustees and escrow agents as required under the various bond indentures and capital lease 
agreements. 

CEBRB Series M of2003 

On February I, 2003, the University issued approximately $88.8 million in bonds with a net interest 
cost of 3.1% to advance refund approximately $22.3 million of Series H revenue bonds with a 
remaining weighted average interest rate of 5.8%, $36.6 million of Series I refunding bonds with a 
remaining weighted average interest rate of 5.4% and $22.3 million of Series J refunding bonds 
(Series H, I and J hereafter referred to as the prior bonds) with a weighted average interest rate of 
5.2%. The net proceeds of approximately $84.9 million, after discount, issuance costs and a deposit 
to fund a debt reserve requirement totaling $3.9 million, were deposited into an irrevocable trust with 
an escrow agent to ultimately redeem all prior bonds on May I, 2003. As a result, the prior bonds 
maturing on or after that date have been removed from the University's statement of net position. 

The University advance refunded the prior bonds on March 13, 2003 to reduce its total debt service 
payments over the next 13 years by approximately $5.6 million and to obtain an economic gain 
(difference between the present values of the debt service payments, discounted at the effective 
interest rate, on the refunded and refunding debt) of approximately $4. 7 million. 

The bond was repaid during fiscal year 2016. 

CEBRB Series P of2005 

In June 2005, the University issued approximately $4.2 million in revenue bonds, the proceeds of 
which funded the acquisition of the Home of the Innocents property to be subsequently renovated for 
use by the School of Public Health and Information Sciences. Delivery of the Series P Bonds took 
place on June 15, 2005. The bonds mature incrementally on May I of each year beginning May 1, 
2007 until May I, 2025. The interest on the bonds is paid semiannually, on May 1 and November 1, 
commencing November I, 2005. The interest rate on the bonds ranges from 3.7% to 4.0%. The 
CEBRB Series P Bonds were currently refunded by the issuance of General Receipts Bonds 2016 
Series A and as a result the liability for the prior bonds has been removed from the University's 
statement of net position. 

University of Louisville General Receipts Bond, 2007 Series A 

In April 2007, the University issued the $41.0 million General Receipts Bond 2007 Series A to 
provide permanent fixed rate financing for the renovation of the Home of the Innocents property, to 
provide office space to be used by the University's School of Public Health and Information Sciences; 
land acquisition for and construction of Patterson Baseball Stadium; construction of Trager Field 
House for use by intercollegiate teams; construction of the YUM Practice Facility, to be used by the 
basketball and volleyball teams; and construction of the Center for Predictive Medicine, a Level 3 
Regional Bio-safety Laboratory. Security for the bonds includes a pledge of the general receipts of 
the University and includes the imposition of a state intercept. These bonds were partially refunded 
by the issuance of General Receipts Bonds 2016 Series B. The final maturity due to the refunding is 
September 1, 2017. The balance remaining of the General Receipts Bonds 2007 Series A is $3.8 
million as of June 30, 2016. 



University of Louisville General Receipts Bonds. 2008 Series A 

In July 2008, the University issued $86.1 million of University of Louisville, General Receipts 
Bonds, 2008 Series A at a net interest cost of 4.4%. The bond proceeds were used for the 
construction of a second Health Sciences Center parking garage, to fully fund the construction of a 
Clinical and Translational Research Building, and for renovation of the School of Dentistry. Security 
for the bonds includes a pledge of the general receipts of the University and the imposition of a state 
intercept. These bonds were partially refunded by the issuance of General Receipts Bonds 2016 
Series C. The final maturity due to the refunding is September 1, 2018. The balance remaining of the 
General Receipts Bonds 2008 Series A is $11.7 million as of June 30, 2016. 

University of Louisville General Receipts Bonds, 2010 Series A and Series B 

In December 2010, the University issued $4.1 million of University of Louisville, General Receipts 
Bonds, 2010 Series A at a total interest cost of 3.3% and $20.9 million of University of Louisville, 
General Receipts Bonds, 20 IO Series B at a total interest cost of 1.8%, both net of the subsidy from 
the Build America Bonds Act (BAB). The project financed consists of multiple energy conservation 
measures within 17 educational and general buildings on the Health Sciences, Shelby and Belknap 
campuses. The project is expected to produce annual utility cost savings of over $2.0 million and is 
being conducted under contract to the University by an energy management company that has 
guaranteed the annual savings to the University under the detailed terms of the contract. Security for 
the bonds includes a pledge of the general receipts of the University and the imposition of a state 
intercept. Final maturity of the bonds is September I, 2027. 

The General Receipts Bonds, 2010 Series A were issued as bonds designated as BABs under the 
provisions of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. The University expects to 
receive a cash subsidy payment from the United States Treasury equal to 35% of the interest payable 
on the General Receipts Bonds, 2010 Series A. The subsidy payment is contingent on federal 
regulations and may be subject to change. On March 1, 2013, the President signed an Executive Order 
reducing the budgetary authority in accounts subject to sequestration. As a result, the BABs subsidy 
is expected to be reduced to approximately 32%. 

The General Receipts Bonds, 2010 Series B were issued as bonds designated as QECBs under the 
provisions of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. The University expects to 
receive a cash subsidy payment from the United States Treasury equal to approximately 71.8% of the 
interest payable on the General Receipts Bonds, 2010 Series B. The subsidy payment is contingent on 
federal regulations and may be subject to change. On March 1, 2013, the President signed an 
Executive Order reducing the budgetary authority in accounts subject to sequestration. As a result, the 
BABs subsidy is expected to be reduced to approximately 66.6%. 

The General Receipts Bonds, 2010 Series A were currently refunded by the issuance of General 
Receipts Bonds, 2016 Series A. As a result, the liability for these bonds has been removed from the 
University's statement of net position . 

University of Louisville General Receipts Bonds. 2011 Series A 

In August 2011, the University issued $33.8 million of University of Louisville, General Receipts 
Bonds, 2011 Series A at a total interest cost of 3.6%. The project financed consists of a 128,700 
square foot student recreation center. Features include six basketball courts, an indoor running track, 
a synthetic surface multi-activity court, three aerobics studios, a fitness lab, four racquetball courts, 
multipurpose activity space, and nearly 20,000 square feet of weight and cardiovascular equipment. 
Final maturity ofthe bonds is September 1, 2031. 
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University of Louisville General Receipts Bonds, 2012 Series A 

In June 2012, the University issued $14.6 million of University of Louisville, General Receipts 
Bonds, 2012 Series A at a total interest cost of 2.1 %. The bonds were issued to advance refund 
$13.5 million of Consolidated Educational Buildings Revenue Bonds Series N (Series N) with a 
weighted average interest rate of 3.9% and $5.3 million of Consolidated Educational Buildings 
Revenue Bonds Series O (Series 0) with a weighted average interest rate of 4.1 % ( combined, the 
prior bonds). The bond proceeds together with an issuance premium of $2.5 million and funds from 
the debt service reserve fund for the prior bonds of $2.8 million have been deposited in escrow and 
will be used to pay the interest and principal requirements of the prior bonds maturing through and 
including May 1, 2013, and redeem and retire the prior bonds on May 1, 2013. Final maturity on the 
2012 Bonds is March 1, 2023. There were no debt service requirements on the prior bonds as of 
June 30, 2016 and 2015. 

University of Louisville General Receipts Bonds, 2016 Series A 

In April 2016, the University issued $14.1 million of University of Louisville, General Receipts 
Bonds, 2016 Series A at a total interest cost of 2.76%. The bonds were issued to fund the 
University's share of the cost of the renovation and expansion of the University of Louisville Student 
Activity Center and to currently refund $3.2 million of University of Louisville General Receipts 
Bonds, Taxable Build America Bonds, 2010 Series A with a weighted average interest rate of 3.7% 
and $2.6 million of Consolidated Educational Buildings Revenue Bonds Series P with a weighted 
average interest rate of 3.9% (combined, the prior bonds). The bond proceeds were combined with an 
issuance premium of $1.4 million and funds from the debt service reserve fund for the Series P bond 
of $0.3 million to complete the current refunding of the prior bonds . As a result the liability for the 
prior bonds has been removed from the University's statement of net position. Final maturity on the 
2016 Ser ies A Bonds is March 1, 2036. The University will reduce its total debt service payments 
over the next 12 years by $0.8 million and realize net present value savings of approximately $0.4 
milHon as a result of the refinancing. 

University of Louisville General Receipts Bonds, 2016 Series B 

In April 2016, the University issued $23 .7 million of University of Louisville, General Receipt s 
Bonds, 2016 Series B at a total interest cost of 2.16%. The bonds were issued to advance refund 
$24.6 mill ion of University of Louisville General Receipts Bonds, 2007 Series A with a weighted 
average interest rate of 4.0%. The bond proceeds together with an issuance premium of $2 .4 million 
have been deposited in escrow and will be used to pay the interest requirements of the 2007 Series A 
bonds maturing on and after September 1, 2018 through and including September 1, 2017, and 
redeem and retire the General Receipts Bonds 2007 Series A on September 1, 2017. The balance 
rema ining of the General Receipts Bonds 2007 Series A is $3 .8 million as of June 30, 2016 . Final 
maturity on the 2016 Series B Bonds is September 1, 2027. The University will reduce its total debt 
service payments over the next 12 years by $2.0 million and realize net present value savings of 
approximately $1.8 million as a result of the refinancing. 

University of Louisville General Receipts Bonds. 2016 Series C 

In April 2016, the University issued $51.7 million of University of Louisville , General Receip ts 
Bonds, 2016 Series C at a total interest cost of 2.48%. The bonds were issued to advance refund 
$52.0 million of University of Louisville General Receipts Bonds , 2008 Series A with a weighted 
average interest rate of 4.5%. The bond proceeds together with an issuance premium of $6.4 million 
have been deposited in escrow and will be used to pay the interest of the General Receipts Bonds 
2008 Series A maturing on or after September 1, 2019 through and including September I, 2018, and 
redeem and retire the prior bonds on September 1, 2018. The balance remaining of the General 
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Receipts Bonds 2008 Series A is $11.7 million as of June 30, 2016. Final maturity on the 2016 Series 
C Bonds is September 1, 2028. The University will reduce its total debt service payments over the 
next 13 years by $3.3 million and realize net present value savings of approximately $3.1 million as a 
result of the refinancing. 

Louisville/Jefferson County Metro Government Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds Series 
2008 A and B 

In August 2008, the Louisville Metro Government issued $39.8 million of Mortgage Revenue 
Refunding Bonds Series 2008 A at a net interest cost of 3.67% with a maturity date of March 1, 2018 
and $43.5 million of Mortgage Revenue Bonds Series 2008 B at a net interest cost of 4.5% with a 
maturity date of March 1, 2028. The bond proceeds were used to retire on September 1, 2008 the 
outstanding County of Jefferson Kentucky Governmental Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 1997, the 
proceeds of which financed the acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of the sports 
stadium known as University of Louisville Papa John's Cardinal Stadium (the Prior Project). The 
refunding resulted in a net present value benefit of $0.5 million and a loss on defeasance of 
approximately $0.1 million. Additional funds were used to finance a portion of the costs of 
acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of an expansion to the Prior Project. 

Note Payable 

In June 2013, the Association entered into a $15.0 million Term Loan with a national banking 
association. The proceeds will be used to partially finance the renovation of the baseball and softball 
stadiums and the construction of a soccer stadium (Project) . The loan is secured by collateral, 
including funds and revenues of the Association from the Project and third-party pledges to the 
Association for the Project. The variable interest rate on the Term Loan is the Daily One Month 
LIBOR rate plus 1.1%, reset on the last day of each month. The balance of the term loan was $12.4 
million and $13.4 million as of June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015, respectively. 

Energy Leases 

In September 2009, the University entered into a $20.4 million master lease with a financial 
institution. The proceeds will be used to finance investments in certain equipment designed to reduce 
energy usage. The lessor receives an exclusive security interest in any and all equipment acquired . 
The master lease has a 4.8% fixed interest rate and a term ending 2023. 

In May 2015, the University entered into a $5.7 million master lease to finance investments in energy 
saving technology with a financial institution. The lessor receives an excJusive security interest in 
any and all equipment acquired. The master lease has a 2.6% fixed interest rate and a term ending 
2033. 

10. Derivative Financial Instruments 

a. Summary 

At June 30, 20 I 6, the Association has the derivative instruments outstanding on the following 
page (in thousands): 
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Notiomd Effective Maturity Fair 
Type Objective Amount Dale Date Tenns Value 

Pay-fixed interest rate Hedge of changes in cnsh $ 15,000 06/28/13 06/30/22 Pay 2 9%; receive $ (434) 
swap nows on the Tenn Lonn LIBOR+ 1.14% 

Forward delivery Earn a higher rate of return $ 1,510 08/05/08 03/01/18 Receive 6 4% on $ 175 
agreemct1l thaninvestments with shoner balance of scheduled 

lire reserve amount 

The Forward Delivery Agreement requires the counterparty to deposit securities into the 
Association's debt service reserve trust account and provides the Association with a guaranteed 
rate of return. The securities that are deposited into the debt service reserve trust accounts are 
required to mature prior to the scheduled debt service payment dates on the bond that is secured 
by the debt service reserve funds. 

Eligible securities include cash and direct, full faith and credit, non-callable obligations of the 
United States of America. The Forward Delivery Agreement allows the Association to earn a 
guaranteed fixed rate of return over the life of the investment. This agreement is utilized by the 
Association to earn a rate of return in excess of a rate that would otherwise be feasible by 
investing in securities with a shorter tenn . 

The fair value of the Forward Delivery Agreement is based on the value of the future discounted 
cash flows expected to be received over the life of the agreement and is included in other long­
term assets on the statements of net position. As the Forward Delivery Agreement is an effect ive 
hedging instrument, the offse tting balance is reflected as deferred inflows of resources on the 
statements of net position . For the year ended June 30, 2016, the change in fair value of the 
Forward Delivery Agreement was a decrease of approximately $63,000. The Association 
receives settlement semi-annually and the settlement is included in interest expense . 

The fair value of the Interest Rate Swap was determined using the market's current forward rate 
assumptions in order to predict future cash flows on the floating side and is included in other 
long-term liabilities on the statements of net position. As the Interest Rate Swap is an effective 
hedging instrument, the offsetting balance is reflected as deferred outflows of resources on the 
Association's statements of net position. For the year ended June 30, 2016, the decrease in fair 
value of the Interest Rate Swap was approximately $339,000. No initial cash receipt or payment 
was made in relation to the Interest Rate Swap . The Association receives or pays a net amount 
monthly and includes the monthly settlement amount in interest expense . 

b. Credit Risk 

Cred it risk is the risk that the counterparty will not fulfill its obligations. Under the tenns of the 
Forward Delivery Agreement, the Association is either holding cash or an approved security 
within the debt service reserve funds. None of the principal amount of an investment under the 
Forward Delivery Agreement is at risk to the credit of the counterparty. Should the counterparty 
default, the Association's maximum exposure is the positive termination value, if any, related to 
this agreement. 

The Interest Rate Swap's fair value represented the Association's credit exposure to the 
counterparty as of June 30, 2016. Should the counterparty to this transaction fail to perform 
according to the terms of the swap agreement, the Association has a maximum possible loss 
equivalent to the Interest Rate Swap's fair value at that date. At June 30, 2016, the counterparty 
to the Interest Rate Swap had a credit rating of A3 from Moody 's Investors Services . 
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c. Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair values of the 
Association's financial instruments or cash flows. The fair market values of the derivative 
instruments are expected to fluctuate over the life of the agreement in response to changes in 
interest rates. The Association does not have a formally adopted policy related to interest rate 
risk related to derivative instruments. 

d. Termination Risk 

The Association or the counterparty may terminate the Forward Delivery Agreement if the other 
party fails to perform under the terms of the contract. In addition, the Association has an 
unrestricted option to terminate the Forward Delivery Agreement. If the Forward Delivery 
Agreement has a negative fair value at the time of termination, the Association would be liable to 
the counterparty for a payment equivalent to the fair market value of the instrument at the time of 
termination. 

The Association or the counterparty may terminate the Interest Rate Swap if the other party fails 
to perform under the terms of the contract. The contract also provides for other termination 
events, including if the Term Loan matures, expires, is terminated or cancelled or changes 
lenders. If the Interest Rate Swap terminates early and the Association is the defaulting party, the 
Association would be liable for the losses, if any, of the counterparty. 

11. Other Liabilities 

Other liabilities of the University consisted 
June 30, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands): 

of the following and on the following page at 

2016 

Beginning Retire- Ending Current Noncurrent 
Balance Additions ments Balance Portion Portion 

Due to University of 
Louisville Foundation, Inc. $ 316 $ $ $ 316 $ $ 316 

Note payable to University 
of Louisville Foundation, Inc. 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Unearned compensation 
and wages payable 8,121 2,588 (1,128) 9,581 1,686 7,895 

Deposits 902 76 (60) 918 918 
Advances I02,585 75,693 (69,725) IOS,553 75,962 32,591 
Amounts due federal government 

for student loan program 16,149 50 16,199 16,199 
Other postemployment benefits 36,999 6,180 (2,437) 40,742 4,452 36,290 
Other long-tenn liabilities 7,365 339 (3,279) 4,425 2,433 1,992 
Total $ 173,437 $ 84,926 $ (76,629) $181,734 $ 84,533 $ 97,201 



2015 

Beginning Retire- Ending C•rrent Noncurrent 
Balance Additions ments Balance Portion Portion 

Due to University of 
Louisville Foundation. Inc. $ 316 $ $ $ 316 $ $ 316 

Note payable lo University 
of Louisville Foundation, Inc. 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Unearned compensation 
and wages payable 6,943 1,718 (540) 8, 121 522 7,599 

Deposits 919 85 (102) 902 902 
Advances 79,717 81,288 (58,420) 102,585 67,334 35,251 
Amounts due federal govemmenl 

for student loan program 16,355 (206) 16,149 16,149 
Other postemployment benefits 31,069 9,065 (3,135) 36,999 4,682 32,317 
Other long-tenn liabilities 17,904 95 (10,634) 7,365 3,686 3,679 
Total $ 154,223 $ 92,251 $ (73,037) $173,437 $ 76,224 $ 97,213 

Other long-term liabilities as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 include the accrual of the fee associated with 
the withdrawal from the American Athletic Conference, the voluntary separation incentive liability 
and other contractual payments. The current portion of other postemployment benefits and other 
long-term liabilities is included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities in the statements of net 
position as of June 30, 2016 and 2015. 

12. Risk Management 

The University is exposed to various risks of Joss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. These risks are covered 
by (I) the State Fire and Tornado Insurance Fund (the "Fund"); (2) Sovereign Immunity and the State 
Board of Claims or, (3) in the case of risks not covered by the Fund and Sovereign Immunity , 
commercial insurance, or participation in insurance risk retention groups. 

The Fund covers losses to property from fire, wind, earthquake, flood and other named perils between 
$500 and $1,000,000 per occurrence. Losses in excess of $1,000,000 are insured by commercial 
carriers up to $1.2 billion per occurrence on an actual cash value basis. As a state agency, the 
University is vested with Sovereign Immunity and is subject to the provisions of the Board of Claims 
Act, under which the University's liability for certain negligence claims is limited to $200,000 for any 
one person and $350,000 for multiple claims resulting from a single act of negligence. Claims against 
educators' errors and omissions and wrongful acts are insured through a risk retention group. There 
have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from 2015 to 2016. Settlements have not 
exceeded insurance coverage during the past three years . 

University medical and dental students, residents, and most School of Medicine faculty are insured 
against medical malpractice by a captive liability insurer. Other faculty, agents, and certain non­
physician employees are insured against medical malpractice by commercial insurance . The 
University also has the benefit of an excess coverage fund established by the Commonwealth of 
Kentucky. 

The University is self-insured for the medical benefits provided to employees. The cost of such self­
insured benefits provided during the years ended June 30, 20 16 and 2015, respectively, was 
approximately $60.0 million and $60.3 million , including $4.2 million and $5.8 million accrued for 
estimated claims incurred but not reported, included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities in the 
statements of net position. 
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The following table reconciles 
June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014. 

the claims liability for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2016, 

Current Year Claims 
Fiscal year ended 

June 30, 
2016 
2015 
2014 

BeginningBalance 
5,825 
4,976 
4,511 

and Changes in 
Estimates 

53,331 
55,516 
55,211 

Claim Payments 
(54,987) 
(54,667) 
(54,746) 

Ending Balance 
4,169 
5,825 
4,976 

13. Natural Classification 

The University's operating expenses by natural classification were as follows for the years ended 
June 30, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands): 

2016 2015 
Salaries and wages $ 551,228 $ 510,291 
Employee benefits 131,172 129,544 
Utilities 20,119 21,037 
Scholarships and fellowships 32,875 33,300 
Depreciation 51,295 53,339 
Supplies and other services 223,976 216,852 

$ 1,010,665 $ 964,363 

14. Retirement Plans 

a. Defined Contribution Plan 

Permanent, full-time University employees become eligible to participate in a defined 
contribution plan administered by the University upon completion of one year's service and 
attainment of age 21. The University of Louisville 403(b) Retirement Plan (Plan) was established 
by the University and approved by the Board of Trustees. Eligible employees not contributing to 
the plan are entitled to a 7.5% of base salary contribution on their behalf by the University. The 
University also matches up to an additional 2.5% of employee contributions. The plan requires 
three years of continuous service for employees to vest in employer contributions. 

Other information relating to this plan for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 20 I5 is presented as 
follows (in thousands): 

2016 2015 
Total University payroll $ 553,806 $ 520,436 

Total payroll covered by the plan 534,099 511,505 

Employee contributions 29,615 28,198 

University contributions 39,104 36,543 

As of June 30, 2016 and 2015, the University had no forfeitures or outstanding liability related to 
the Retirement Plan. 



b. PriorService Defined Benefit Program 

Effective July 1, 1977, the University entered into an agreement with Teachers Insurance Annuity 
Association (TIAA) to fund, over approximately 30 years, the prior service defined benefit 
program for both currently retired and eligible actively employed participants. This is a single­
employer plan. There were no annual required contributions for the years ended June 30, 2016 
and June 30, 2015. Subsequent annual contributions under this agreement are subject to periodic 
actuarial re-evaluations to reflect changes in the consumer price index, interest rates and group 
experience performance . 

The most recent comparison of the accumulated plan benefits and plan net assets, as determined 
by TIAA, as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 are as follows (in thousands): 

2016 2015 

Actuarial present value of non-vested accumulated plan benefits $ 1,256 $ 1,378 

Net assets available for benefits $ 1,621 $ 1,764 

Net pension surplus $ (365) $ (386) 

Funded ratio 129% 128% 

The actuarial present value of plan benefits is non-vested because the plan and benefits provided 
there under are at all times at the discretion of the University. The net pension surplus represents 
the amount of net assets available for benefits in excess of the actuarial liability. The assumed 
rate of return used to determine the present value of accumulated non-vested benefits was 6.0% 
for each of the years ended June 30, 20 I 6 and 2015, for preretirement and postretirement periods. 

15. Postemployment Healthcare Benefits 

a. Plan Description 

Association and University personnel are eligible for postemployment healthcare benefits as 
described in The University of Louisville Group Health Plan (Plan), administered by the 
University. To be eligible for the Plan, a retired employee must be the earlier of the attainment of 
age 60 with seven years of service in eligible faculty or staff status, or the date that the sum of the 
employee's age and years of regular service of not less than 80% full-time equivalent at the 
University equals or exceeds 75. The Plan is a single-employer plan and the University's Board 
of Trustees determines the eligibility requirements related to the Plan. The Plan does not issue 
stand-alone financial reports and is not included in the report of any entity. 

Effec1ive July I, 2012, the life insurance benefit was restructured to be priced as a fully insured 
supplemental benefit for which the retirees pay I00% of the cost, so no obligation is assumed 
after the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. 

b. Funding Policy 

The Plan is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. The contribution requirements of the contributing 
members are determined by the University's management on an annual basis . During the years 
ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, the University contributed approximately $1.9 million and $1.7 
million, approximately 66% and 65% of total premiums, respectively. Retired Plan members 
under age 65 receiving benefits contributed approximately $ I .0 million and $0.9 million, 
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approximately 39% and 35% of total premiums for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, 
respectively, through their required monthly contributions according to the schedules below: 

2016 

Employee 

Employee and Spouse 

PPO 
$ 335 

$811 

Cardinal 
Care Plan 

$447 

$ 871 

EPO 
$ 353 

$ 851 

PCA Hi!lh 
$ 281 

$ 692 

PCALow 
$ 248 

$ 555 

2015 

Cardinal 
PPO Care Plan EPO PCAHi;h PCALow 

Employee $ 335 $407 $ 353 $ 281 $ 248 

Employee and Spouse $811 $ 831 $ 851 $692 $ 55S 

Medicare-eligible retirees receive a monthly benefit of $108 per individual covered. For the years 
ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, the University contributed $1.6 million and $1.5 million for 
Medicare-eligible retirees, respectively. 

c. Annual Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 

The University's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based 
on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in 
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45 - Accounting and Financial 
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (GASB Statement 
No. 45). The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to 
cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities (UAAL) over 
a period not to exceed thirty years. 

The following table shows the components of the University's annual OPEB cost for the year, the 
amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the University's net OPEB obligation (in 
thousands): 

2016 2015 
Normal cost $ 5,061 $ 4,536 

AAL amortization 5,252 5,095 

Annual required contribution (ARC) 10,313 9,631 

Interest on above 1,258 1,171 

Adjustment to ARC {1,825) (1,669) 

OPEB liability gain (3,566) (8) 

Annual OPEB cost (AOC) 6,180 9,125 

Contributions made (2,437) (3,195) 

Increase in net OPEB obligation 3,743 5,930 

Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 36,999 31,069 
 

Net OPEB obligation - end of year $40,742 $36,999 
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The University's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, 
and the net OPEB obligation were as follows (in thousands): 

Percentage of 
Fiscal Year Annual AnnualOPEB NctOPEB 

Ended June 30, OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation 
2016 $ 6,180 39% $ 40,742 
2015 9,125 35% 36,999 
2014 6,817 45% 31,069 
2013 5,746 41% 27,300 

d. Funded Status and Funding Progress 

As of July I, 2015, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 0% funded. The 
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $89.7 million and $89.1 million and there were no 
assets, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $89.7 million and 
$89.1 million as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The covered payroll (annual payroll of 
active employees covered by the plan) was $478.2 million and $459.6 million, and the ratio of the 
UAAL to the covered payroll was 19%, for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trends. Amounts 
detennined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the 
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations 
and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as 
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents 
infonnation about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing relative to 
the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

e. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substant ive plan (the plan 
as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided 
at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the 
employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include 
techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued 
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the 
calculations. 

In the July 1, 2015, actuarial valuation, the unit credit method actuarial cost method was used. 
The actuarial assumptions included a 3 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative 
expenses), which is based on the estimated return on the University's general assets, and an 
annual healthcare cost trend rate of 7.8 percent initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate 
rate of 4.5 percent after 1 1 years. The gains on the benefit obligation recognized during the fiscal 
years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 were due to updates made on expected future health claims 
and changes made to the retiree life insurance benefit. Expected claims have decreased based on a 
review of actual claims over the last three years as well as current COBRA rates. The UAAL is 
being amortized on a straight line basis over 30 years . The remaining amortization period at 
June 30, 2016 was 21 years. 
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16. Health Science Center Affiliations and Agreements 

a. KentuckyOne Healthcare. Inc. Affiliation, Lease and Operating Agreement 

In November 2012, the University, Commonwealth, UMC, and KentuckyOne Health, Inc. 
(KentuckyOne) amended and restated the UMC land lease and executed a new academic 
affiliation agreement, superseding the one dated July 1, 2007. The initial term is twenty years, 
beginning on the Integration Date, which was March I, 2013. 

The academic affiliation agreement calls for a strategic programmatic investment fund and plan. 
KentuckyOne will invest $114.5 million in key University clinical service lines and departments 
and $20.5 million in academic and programmatic investment in clinical services lines at Jewish 
Hospital and St. Mary's Healthcare, Inc. (Jewish Hospital) facilities. An additional $3.0 million 
per annum for twenty years will be made available for research. As of June 30, 2016, the 
University received $23.0 million and $33.8 million related to the strategic programmatic 
investments and research initiatives, respectively. To date the University has received $78.5 
million related to strategic investment and research infrastructure. As the University has not yet 
expended the funds in accordance with the proposals, $21.2 million is included in current 
advances and $28.4 million is included in noncurrent advances in the statement of net position as 
of June 30, 2016. $12.0 million in current advances and $30.8 million in noncurrent advances are 
represented in the statement of net position as of June 30, 2015. The agreement calls for the 
payment annually of discretionary funding of $15.0 million over three years with payment 
contingent on the achievement of certain performance metrics. During the years ended June 30, 
2016 and 2015, the University did not receive the funding for discretionary purposes to support 
key statewide areas of focus. 

The academic affiliation agreement also calls for KentuckyOne to provide an aggregate $75 .0 
million per annum in academic support for the initial term of five years subject to annual 
adjustments to the Medicare base rate. During years six through twenty the academic support 
will not exceed $95.0 million or be less than $55.0 million. The academic support payment 
includes funding for certain full-time equivalent resident positions over the term of the affiliation 
agreement. Funding for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 were $60.7 million and $61.4 
million, respectively, and are included in clinical services and practice plan revenues in the 
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. 

Concurrently with the academic affiliation agreement, KentuckyOne entered into a joint operating 
agreement with UMC, the Hospital's operator prior to March I, 2013. KentuckyOne agreed to be 
the sole and exclusive agent acting for and on behalf of UMC to provide the day-to-day 
management of the University Hospital, with the exception of the Maintained Procedures, as 
defined in the agreement. The agreement calls for KentuckyOne to make annual payments of not 
less than $7.5 million and not more than $17 .5 million based on the ratio of net operating income 
to budget for KentuckyOne. The accompanying statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in 
net position include approximately $7.5 million for each of the years ended June 30, 2016 and 
2015 in clinical services and practice plan revenues related to the joint operating agreement. 

Concurrently with the academic affiliation agreement and joint operating agreements, the 
Commonwealth and the University as lessor amended and restated the lease agreement with 
UMC to lease the Hospital. The annual lease payment is $6.5 million through 
December 31, 2016. At that time, the annual rent escalates by $500,000 and will continue to 
escalate every five years thereafter up to $8.0 million. Included in the joint operating agreement 
is a provision that $5.0 million of the annual rent payment will flow to the Quality and Charity 
Care Trust. The lease provides for additional rent each year to be adjusted annually 
commensurate with the increase or decrease in the utilities and other operating expenses of the 
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leased property. The University is required to pay KentuckyOne any amounts related to the 
utilities and other operating expenses collected from third parties. Lease revenue, net of the 
amounts sent to the Quality and Charity Care Trust, was $6.8 million and $7.5 million for the 
years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, and is included in clinical services and practice plan 
revenues in the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. Lease expense for 
the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $0.9 million and $1.4 million, respectively and is 
included in public service expense in the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net 
position. 

The accompanying statements of net position include approximately $4.9 million and $4.3 
million in accounts receivable for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 20 15, respectively, 
representing amounts due from UMC pursuant to the lease agreement. 

The above agreements address the patient care needs of the Hospital's inpatients. The 
University's School of Medicine operates various clinics, which generate patient care revenues 
from the treatment of outpatients as well as laboratories that serve both inpatients and outpatients . 

b. Quality and Charity Care Trust Transfers for Hospital Operations 

In November 2014, the University entered into The Revised Quality and Charity Care Trust 
agreement (Revised Trust Agreement) with the Commonwea lth, Jefferson County, the Louisville 
Metro Government, and UMC for the purpose of providing medically necessary hospital care, 
both inpatient and outpatient, to indigent patients in the Louisville area. The Quality and Charity 
Care Trust, Inc. (Trust) receives government funds and disburses them for Trust operations in 
accordance with the terms of the agreement. 

The Trust, funded by the Commonwealth and the local governme nts, is charged with the 
obligation to provide for the health care needs of economically disadvantaged persons who have 
historically been ministered to by the University as a public service in the course of its teaching 
programs. 

The University and the Commonwealth selected UMC, a Kentucky non-profit corporation, as the 
provider of the healthcare services through the Hospital. Under the November 2012 j oint 
operating agreement, KentuckyOne agreed to manage the Hospital in a manner consistent with 
the Revised Trust Agreemen t. Funding of $4.9 million and $4.5 million for the years ended 
June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively , provided by the Commonwealth, Louisville Metro 
Government , and the University is held for the Trust by the University and paid to UMC as 
specified in the Trust agreement. This funding is not included in the statements of revenues, 
expenses an~ changes in net position as it is a pass-through to UMC. 

The funds available to the Trust from the government sources are set forth in the Revised Trust 
Agreement for the term. The government funding is paid to the Trust within thirty days of receipt 
and approval of the reports by the Commonwealth as required by the Revised Trust Agreement. 

At June 30, 2015, the University's statement of net position includes $0.9 million in accounts 
payable and accrued liabilities related to their portion of the final government funding for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. 

c. Norton Healthcare 

In December 17, 2015, Norton Healthcare, Inc., (Norton), the University and Commonwealth 
agreed to a Settlement Agreement, a First Amendment to Lease and a First Amendment to Master 
Affiliation Agreement, amending the original Lease and Master Affiliation Agreement. These 
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agreements provide for $30.0 million annual support payments from Norton to the University and 
its affiliates through Individual Agreements for research, academic support, residences and 
fellowships and related costs. In addition, the agreement stipulates that Norton provide additional 
financial support to the University of Louisville Pediatrics Department of $24.0 million over eight 
years and expend at least $35.0 million in facility improvements and other capital expenditures at 
Kosair Children's Hospital. Payments received by the University and its affiliates are included in 
clinical services and practice plan revenues in the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes 
in net position. Funding for the agreement for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $35.0 
million and $31.7 million, respectively. The Settlement Agreement also included a payment of 
$8.0 million to the Research Foundation for expenses incurred. 

d. Cardiovascular Innovation Institute 

In October 2003, the University of Louisville and Jewish Hospital Cardiovascular Innovation 
Institute (the Institute) was incorporated with the purpose including, but not limited to, the 
development and operation of a world-class institute to test, clinically evaluate, and develop heart 
assist devices, biosensors, and related technologies to improve the care for patients with heart 
disease. 

The University entered into a Master Facility Agreement with Jewish Hospital to set forth the 
principles regarding the facility to support the Institute. The Master Facility Agreement called for 
a research building to be jointly built by the University and Jewish Hospital on land owned by the 
University. Jewish Hospital has transferred the use of a portion of the building, through a lease, 
to the Institute or to the University, for exclusive use by the Institute. The building was 
completed in December 2006 . 

17. Leases 

The University has entered into operating leases related to academic, research and facilities. The 
University has three operating lease agreements related to use of athletic facilities. Under these lease 
agreements, the University's rights have been assigned to the Association . 

a. Kentucky State Fair Board 

The University has entered into a lease agreement with the Kentucky State Fair Board (KSFB) for 
use of an athletic building. The University's rights under this agreement have been assigned to 
the Association. The lease has an initial term of 26 years, ending June 30, 2023. Annual lease 
payments range from $25,000 to $66,550. Total lease expense for each of the years ended 
June 30, 2016 and 2015 amounted to approximately $61,000. 

b. Central Station, LLC 

The Association has entered into a lease agreement with AAF-Louisville, LLC (d/b/a Central 
Station, LLC), a related party, for use of the Central Station Office Building. The lease has an 
initial term of 21 years, ending September 30, 2026. Annual lease payments started at 
approximately $47,000, and are subject to increases based on increases in the CPI. Total lease 
expenses during the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 amounted to approximately $180,000 
and $84,000, respectively. 

c. Louisville Arena Authority, Inc. 

In July 2008, the Association entered into a lease agreement with the Arena Authority . The lease 
has an initial term of 36 years. Annual lease payments are equal to the greater of 10% of gross 
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ticket sales or a minimum lease amount of $10,000 per game for men's basketball games; the 
greater of 5% of gross ticket sales or a minimum of $5,000 for any other Association sponsored 
event; and, as payment for private suites, 12% of net private suite revenue. Total lease expense 
during the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 amounted to approximately $3.8 million and 
$3.7 million, respectively. Additionally, the lease agreement provides for the Association to 
purchase parking spaces from the Arena Authority. Total parking expense during each of the 
years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 amounted to approximately $0.5 million each year. 

Under the terms of the lease, the Association will receive payments from the Arena Authority as 
follows: (a) 50% of all payments received from third-party concessionaire and catering sales at all 
University-sponsored events or 25% of the gross proceeds of any Arena Authority owned 
concessions or catering sales; (b) 50% of all rental/commission payments received in connection 
with the gift shop and its operations, and 50% of any additional merchandise revenue received 
from any source other than the gift shop; (c) 50% of all revenue received from the sale of 
inventory of the permanent signage inside and outside the Arena structure, excluding any signage 
that is part of the l 0o/o of permanent signage reserved for the Association; (d) 33.3% of all 
revenue from the sale of inventory on all video boards outside the Arena structure, excluding any 
video board inventory that is part of the Association's signage. Total lease revenue during the 
years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 amounted to approximately $2.5 million and $2.4 million, 
respectively. 

d. Futu~ Mfoimum Lease Payments· 

The University's annual minimum lease payments are due as follows (in thousands): 

Lease 
For lhc yeur ending June 30 . Payment Due 

:?017 $ 2,918 
:?018 2,239 
2019 451 
2020 451 
2021 451 

2 022-2026 2 ,055 
2027 - 2031 1, 513 
2032 - 2036 1.49 1 
2037 -2041 1.491 
2042 -2046 921 
:2047-2051 66 
:?05:?-2056 66 
:?057-2061 66 
:?06:?-2066 66 
2067-2071 40 

Future minimum lease payments $ 14 .285 

18. Commitments and Contingencies 

a. Commitments 

At June 30, 2016, the University had approximately $12.3 million in encumbrances outstanding 
for future expenditures. As part of the entrance into the Atlantic Coast Conference, the 
Association committed to an unspecified amount of revenue to be withheld. 

b. Litigation 

The University has been named as defendant in several lawsuits, including several actions 
initiated by patients involving alleged malpractice. It is the opinion of management and its legal 
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counsel, based in part on the doctrine of sovereign immunity, commercial insurance coverage and 
other statutory provisions, that the ultimate outcome of litigation will not have a material effect 
on the future operations or financial position of the University beyond the amounts already 
provided. 

During 1989, the Kentucky Supreme Court ruled that the Board of Claims statute cannot bar 
lawsuits against employees of the Commonwealth who can be held personally liable for their own 
negligent acts. Certain of the University's employees have lawsuits pending against them for 
negligence claims. Any judgments on such claims are not the liability of the University, although 
the University may settle or pay judgments from the statutory fund established per KRS I 56.895 
and 164.890 - 164.895, or per liability insurance purchased for its employees and agents. 

c. 	 Government Grants 

The University is currently participating in numerous grants from various departments and 
agencies of the federal and state governments. The expenditures of grant proceeds must be for 
allowable and eligible purposes. Single audits and audits by the granting department or agency 
may result in requests for reimbursement of unused grant proceeds or disallowed expenditures. 
Upon notification of final approval by the granting department or agency, the grants are 
considered closed. 

19. Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

As of June 30, 2016, the following GASB statement was implemented which had a financial or 
disclosure impact on the financial statements . 

GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. This statement requires state 
and local governments to measure certain assets and liabilities held as investments at fair value. 
The statement enhances financial statements by providing consistent definition and accepted 
valuation techniques for fair value measurement. The implementation of this Statement had no 
financial impact and additional disclosure requirements. 

As of June 30, 2016, the following GASB statements were implemented which did not have a 
financial or disclosure impact on the financial statements. 

GASB Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State 
and Local Governments. This Statement identities, in the context of the current governmental 
financial reporting environment, the hierarchy of generally accepted accounting principles in the 
United States of America. 

GASB Statement No. 79, Cerlain External Inveslment Pools and Pool Participants. This 
Statement enhances comparability of financial statements among governments by 
establishing specific criteria used to determine whether a qualifying external investment 
pool may elect to use an amortized cost exception to fair value measurement. 

As of June 30, 2016, the GASB has issued the following statements that could be applicable to 
the University . 

a. 	 GASB Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than 
Pension Plans. The University has not yet adopted this standard and is evaluating the impact 
it may have on its financial statements . 

- 57 • 



b. GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefils 
Other Than Pensions. The University has not yet adopted this standard and is evaluating the 
impact it may have on its financial statements. 

c. GASB Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units-an 
amendment of GASB Statement No. 14. The University has not yet adopted this standard and 
is evaluating the impact it may have on its financial statements 

20. Subsequent Event 

Subsequent to June 30, 2016 the University executed a contract for food management services and a 
contract for bookstore management. Both contracts contain financial commitments to be provided by 
the service provider throughout the term of the contract. 

21. Component Units 

a. Blended Component Units - Combined Condensed Statements 

The combining schedules of the University, the Research Foundation and the Association as of 
June 30, 2016 and 2015, are as follows and on the following pages (in thousands): 

Condensed Statements of Net Position 
2016 

Research Athletic 
Universi~ Foundation Association Total 

Current assets $ 129,783 $ 49,750 $ 52,709 $ 232,242 
Capital assets 637,025 65,989 165,384 868,398 
Other noncurrenl assets 62.464 719 62,005 125.188 

Total assets 829,272 116,458 280,098 1,225,828 

Deferred outnows of resources 6,526 441 6,967 

Current liabilitics 86,443 41,822 58,841 187,106 
Due to University (23,288) 23,288 
Other noncurrent liabilities 255,077 12.684 58,262 326.023 

Total liabilities 318,232 54,506 140,391 513, 129 

Deferred inflows of resources 175 175 

Net investment in capital assets 453,708 65,990 113,091 632,789 
Restricted-nonexpendable 1,633 1,633 
Restricted-expendable 45,855 21,791 24,362 92,008 
Unrestricted 18,003 (25,829) 887 (6,939) 

Total net position $ 517,566 s 61,952 $ 139,973 $ 719.491 
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2015 

Current DSsets 
Capital assets 
Other noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

Deferred outflows of resources 

Current liabilities 
Due to University 
Other noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Deferred inflows of resources 

Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted-nonexpendable 
Restricted-expendable 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

Universi2: 
$ 147,473 

641,540 
49.076 

838,089 

741 

95,392 
(9,173) 

253,127 
339,346 

3,433 

450,197 

36,380 
9,474 

$ 496,051 

Research 
 
Foundation 
 
$ 41,899 

70,132 
735 

112,766 

28,926 

11,120 
40,046 

70,133 

7,489 
(4,902) 

$ 72,720 

Athletic 
Association Total 
$ 50,327 $ 239,699 

153,014 864,686 
60,223 110.034 

263,564 1,214,419 

I IO 851 

50,284 174,602 
9,173 

66,170 330.417 
125,627 505,019 

238 3,671 

92,034 612,364 
1,791 1,791 

36,230 80,099 
7,754 12,326 

$ 137.809 $ 706,580 
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Condensed S1a1ementso/Re11en11es. Expenses. 
and Changes in Net Position 

2016 
Research Alhlctlc 

Unh~rsl!_I Feundation Association Total 
Student 1uition and fees, net 
Clinical services and practice plan 

$ 209,503 
35,439 

$ 
233,866 

s $ 209,503 
269,305 

Cr.mts and contracls 296 103,120 103,416 
Facilities and administrative cost recoveries 24,611 24,611 
Other operating revenue 27.415 3,984 71,335 102.734 

Total operating revenues 272,653 365,581 71,335 709,569 

Depreciation 38,206 7,914 5,175 51,295 
Other operating ellpenses 462,932 40!,646 94,792 959.370 

Total operating CllJ)Cnscs 501,138 4()(),560 99,967 1,010,665 

Operaling loss (228,485) (43,979) (28,632) (301,096) 

Slate appropriations 142,213 142.213 
Gifts 132 1,491 28,928 30,551 
Interest on capital 11Sset-rc:la1ed debt (7,625) (2,336) (9,961) 
Other nonoperating revenues 2,339 43,641 (4,574) 41,406 
Capital appropriations 9,741 9,741 
Capital gifts (57) 9,680 9,623 
Transfers 103,257 (11,921) (902) 90,434 

Total nonoperating revenues 250,000 33,211 30,796 314,007 

Change in net position 21,515 (10,768) 2,164 12,911 

Net position - beginning of year 496,051 72,720 137,809 706,580 

Net position -end of year $ 517,566 s 61,952 $ 139,973 s 719,491 


2015 
Research Athletic 

Unhusi!I Foundation Associalion Tollll 
Student tuition and fees, net 
Clinical services and praclice plan 
Oants and contracts 
Facilities and administrative cost recoveries 
Other operating revenues 

Total operating revenues 

s 209,834 
30,001 

211 

25,088 
265,134 

s 
222,445 
89,924 
22,596 
2,169 

337,134 

s 

66.072 
66,072 

s 209,834 
252,446 

90, 135 
22,596 
93,329 

668,340 

Depreciation 39,883 8,470 4,986 53,339 
Other operating ellpens es 434,372 388,148 88,504 911,024 

Tola! operaling e~enses 474.255 396,618 93,490 964,363 

Operating loss (209,121) (59,484) (27,418) (296,023) 

Slate oppropriations 140,744 140,744 
Gifts 42 9,652 28,567 38,261 
Interest on capital asset-related debt (8,579) (2,557) (11, 136) 
Other nonoperating revenues 2,880 52,988 (2,001) 53,867 
Capital oppropriations 13,973 13.973 
Capitol gills 396 7,935 8,331 
Voluntary seporation plan CllJ)ense 
Transfers 71,967 (8,219) 1.008 64,756 

Toto! nonoperating revenues 221,423 54,421 32,952 308,796 

Chongein net position 12,302 (5,063) 5,534 12,773 

Net position - beginning of year 483,749 77,783 132,275 693.807 

Net pos 1tion - end ofyeor $ 496.051 $ 72,720 s 137,809 s 706,580 
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Condensed Statements of Cash Flows 
2016 

Research Athletic 
Uni,·ersiti: Foundation Association Total 

Cash (used)/provided by: 
Operating activities s (179,723) s (49,994) s (23,054) $ (252,771) 
Noncapitnl financing activities 211,998 33,155 30,468 275,621 
Capital and related financing activities (30,371) (3,809) (2,386) (36,566) 
fnvesting activities 18.752 53 (2,282) 16,523 
Net (decreasc)/incn:ase in cash and 

cash equivalents 20,656 (20,595) 2,746 2,807 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 109,690 (5,938) 45.290 149.042 
Cash and cash equivalents, end ofyenr s 130,346 s (26,533) s 48,036 s 151.849 

2015 
Research Athletic 

Universi!2: Foundation Association Total 
Cash (used)/provided by: 

Operating activities $ (135,016) $ (47,088) s (20,300) S (202,404) 
Noncapitnl financing activities 210,041 53,612 29,957 293,61D 
Capital and related financing activities (39,112) (4,247) (9,030) (52,389) 
fnvesting activities 12,389 808 1.348 14.545 
Net incn:nse/(decrcnse) in cash [lnd 

cash equivalents 48,302 3,085 1,975 53,362 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning ofyenr 61.388 (9,023) 43.315 95,680 
Cash and cash equivalents , end of year s 109,690 s (5.938) s 45.290 $ 149.042 

b. Universitl'. of Louisville Foundation, Inc. and Affiliates 

The University of Louisville Foundation, Inc. (ULF) and Affiliates (collectively, "Foundation") is 
a legally separate, tax-exempt component unit of the University, under the provisions of GASB 
Statement No. 39. The Foundation acts primarily as a fundraising organization to supplement the 
resources that are available to the University in support of its programs. The fifteen-member 
board of the Foundation is self-perpetuating. Although the University does not control the timing 
or amount of receipts from the Foundation, the majority of resources, or income thereon, which 
the Foundation holds and invests is restricted to the activities of the University by the donors. 
Because these restricted resources held by the Foundation can only be used by, or for the benefit 
of, the University, the Foundation is considered a component unit of the University and is 
discretely presented in the University's financial statements. 

Total expenditures by the Foundation on behalf of the University for the years ended 
June 30, 2016 and 2015 were $0 and $24.7 million, respectively. Complete financial statements 
for the Foundation can be obtained from Foundation Administration at University of Louisville, 
215 Central Avenue, Suite 304, Louisville, KY 40292. 

The Foundation is a private nonprofit organization that reports under Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (F ASB) standards, including F ASB ASC Topic 958, Not-for-Profit Entities . As 
such, certain revenue recognition criteria and presentation features are different from GASB 
revenue recognition criteria and presentation features. No modifications have been made to the 
Foundation 's financial information in the University's financial statements for these differences. 

I. Endowment 

The Foundation's endowment consists of approximately 1,600 individual funds established 
for a variety of purposes. The endowment includes both donor-restricted endowment funds 
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and funds designated by the board of directors to function as endowments (board-designated 
endowment funds). As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America, net assets associated with endowment funds, including board-designated 
endowment funds, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor• 
imposed restrictions. 

The Foundation's board of directors has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of 
Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), adopted in Kentucky in July 2010 and located at KRS 
273. I to 273.10 as requiring preservation of the fair va lue of the original gift as of the gift 
date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the 
contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the Foundation classifies as permanently restricted 
net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the pennanent endowment, (b) the original 
value of subsequent gifts to the pennanent endowment and (c) accumulations to the 
permanent endowment made in accordance . with the direction of the applicable donor gift 
instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of 
donor-restricted endowment funds is classified as temporarily restricted net assets, until 
donor stipula tions are fulfilled. 

The composition of net assets by type of endowment fund at June 30, 2016 and 20 15, was (in 
thousands): 

2016 

Donor-restricted 
e ndowment funds 

Board-designated 
endowment funds 

nrcstricted 

$ (18,003) 

56,756 

Temporarily 
Restricted 

$ 250,711 

Pe nnane ntly 
Restricted 

$ 449,518 $ 

Total 

682,226 

56,756 

$ 38.753 $ 250,711 $ 449.5 18 $ 738,982 

Donor-restricted 
endowment funds 

Board-designated 
endowment funds 

Unrestricted 

$ (4,219) 

89,821 

2015 
Temporarily Permanently 
Restricted Restricted 

$ 270,226 $ 436,515 $ 

Total 

702,522 

89,821 

$ 85.602 $ 270.226 $ 436.515 $ 792.343 



Changes in endowment net assets for the years ended June 30, 20 I 6 and 2015 were (in 
thousands): 

2016 

Endowment net assets, 
beginning of year 

Unrestricted 

$ 85,602 

Temporarily 
Restricted 

$ 270.226 

Pennanently 
Restricted 

$ 436.515 $ 

Total 

792343 

Investment return: 
Investment and 
endowment income 

Net appreciatim 
( dcprec iation) 

Net depreciation funds 
held in trust by others 

3,240 

(22,922) 

8,6% 

4,802 

(1,240) 

11,936 

(18,120) 

(1,240) 

Total investment 
return ( 19.682) 13.498 ( 1.240) (7,424) 

Contributions 243 IJ94 14.483 16.120 

Appropriation of 
endowment assets 
for expenditures (27,410) (34,407) (61,817) 

Other changes (240) (240) 

Endowment net assets, 
end of year $ 38,7S3 $ 250,711 $ 449.518 $ 738,982 

Endowment nel assets, 
beginning of year, 
as reslated 

Unrestricted 

s 119.629 

2015 
Temporurily Pe nn11ne ntly 
Restricted Restricted 

s 279.029 s 425.687 s 

Total 

824.34S 

Investment return: 
Investment and 
endowment income 

Net appreciatim 
(depreciation) 

Net depreciation funds 
he kl intrustby olhers 

2,394 

(6,673) 

6,026 

3,172 

1,080 

(535) 

9,500 

(3,501) 

(535) 

Total investment 
return (4.279) 9,198 545 5,464 

Contributions 4,065 5.366 10,392 19,823 

Appropriati)n of 
endowment assets 
for expenditures (33.813) (23.367) (57.180) 

Other changes 

Endowmentnet assets, 
end of year s 85,602 s 270.226 s 

(109) 

436.SIS s 

(109) 

792.343 
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Amounts of donor-restricted endowment funds classified as permanently and temporarily 
restricted net assets at June 30, 2016 and 2015, consisted of (in thousands): 

2016 2015 

Pennanently restricted net assets - portion of perpetual 
endowmentfunds required to be retained permanently 
by explicit donor stipulations or UPMIFA $ 449,518 $ 436,515 

Termporarily restricted net assets - term endowment funds $ 5,896 $ 8,372 

From time to time , the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted 
endowment funds may fall below the fair value level that the Foundation is required to retain 
as a fund of perpetual duration pursuant to donor stipulation or UPMIFA. In accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, deficiencies of this 
nature are reported in unrestricted net assets and aggregated to approximately $18 million and 
$4.2 million at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. These deficiencies resulted from 
unfavorable market fluctuations that occurred after investment of permanently restricted 
contributions. 

The Foundation has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that 
attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs and other items supported by 
its endowment while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment. 
Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted endowment funds that the 
Foundation must hold in perpetuity or for donor-specified periods, as well as those of board­
designated endowment funds. 

Under the Foundation's policies, endowment assets are invested in a manner that is intended 
to produce results that achieves a minimum net total return which is equal to the Foundation's 
spending rate plus inflation without the assumption of excessive investment risk. To satisfy 
its long-term rate of return objectives, the Foundation relies on a total return strategy in which 
investment returns are achieved through both current yield (investment income such as 
dividends and interest) and capital appreciation (both realized and unrealized). The 
Foundation targets a diversified asset allocation that places a greater emphasis on equity­
based investments to achieve its long-term return objectives within acceptable risk 
constraints. 

The Foundation has a standing policy (the spending policy) of appropriating for expenditure 
each year 5.5% of its endowment fund's average market value over the prior three years 
through the calendar year-end preceding the year in which expenditure is planned. In 
establishing this policy, the Foundation balances the long-term expected return on its 
endowment against the level of expenditures required to support the University's goals and 
objectives. Recognizing that markets are volatile, the Foundation will adjust the spending 
policy for a given year to mitigate adverse market performance on the level of support 
provided to the University. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the Foundation board of 
directors approved the standard spending policy and approved the mandatory re-investment 
of unspent carryover. This modification was designed to dampen the reduction in allocated 
spending funds for the fiscal year, without damaging the long-term performance of the 
endowment. 

The Foundation has adopted an investment objective whereby the average annual return over 
the long term should equal the rate of inflation (measured by the three-year moving average 
of the Gross Domestic Product (GDP) Deflator) plus the average level of spending from 



the Combined Endowment Fund. The annual return for the Combined Endowment Fund was 
-5.5% and-0.5% in 2016 and 2015, respectively. 
This is consistent with the Foundation's objective to maintain the purchasing power of 
endowment assets held in perpetuity or for a specified term, as well as to provide additional 
real growth through new gifts and investment return. 

Included within the endowment are $85.2 million and $69.3 million at June 30, 2016 and 
2015, of loans to affiliates of the University. 

2. Investments and Investment Income 

Investments as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, are as follows (in thousands): 

2016 2015 
Investment in partnerships 

and funds of funds $419,937 $454,051 
Mutual funds 68,677 77,305 
Marketable alternatives 100,173 138,648 
Preferred and common stock 39,843 38,837 
Corporate bonds 2,859 
U.S. government securities 205 
Equity method investments 3,679 6,496 
Certificate of deposit 8,169 8,149 
Land and buildings I.I 78 

Total investments $640,478 $727,728 

Restricted investments are restricted by bond indenture for payment of debt service and 
repairs and replacement. Restricted investments as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, are as follows 
(in thousands): 

2016 2015 
Money market mutual funds $ 2,930 $ 3,310 
U.S. agency obligations 1,689 2,589 

$ 4,619 $ 5,899 

Total investment return for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, is reflected in the 
consolidated statements of activities as follows (in thousands): 

2016 2015 
Interest income $ 1,313 $ 1,181 
Endowment income 4,223 8,995 
Net realized and unrealized 

gain (loss) on investments (10,631) (4,686) 
$ (5,095) $ 5,490 

The Foundation invests in various securities, which are exposed to various risks such as 
interest rate, market and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain 
investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of 
investment securities wilt occur in the near term and that such change could materially affect 
the investment amounts reported in the consolidated statements of financial position. 
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The Foundation's investments do not have a significant concentration of credit risk within 
any industry or specific institution. 

The market risk inherent in certain of the Foundation's investments is primarily the potential 
loss arising from adverse changes in quoted market prices on equity securities and in interest 
rates on fixed income securities. In an effort to mitigate this market risk, the Foundation has 
adopted a policy of maintaining a diverse investment pool through the use of target asset 
allocation guidelines. These guidelines require that the Foundation's investment pool be 
made up of a mix of publicly traded fixed income and equity securities, private equities and 
other nonmarketable securities, and real estate investments. 

The major portion of long-term investments is pooled in the Combined Endowment Fund, 
which is the general endowment pool for the Foundation. The Combined Endowment Fund 
is pooled using a market value basis, with each individual fund subscribing to, or disposing 
of, units on the basis of the market value per unit at the end of the prior calendar month 
during which the transaction takes place. The investment objectives of the Foundation are to 
preserve the principal of the endowment funds in both absolute and real terms while 
maximizing, over the long-term, the total rate of return (yield and appreciation) within 
reasonable risk parameters. 

a. Alternative Investments 

The fair value of alternative investments has been estimated using the NA V per share of 
the investments. Alternative investments held at June 30, 20 I 6 and 2015, consisted of 
the following (in thousands): 

20Hi 

Fixed income funds (A) 

U.S.equity funds (B) 

International equities funds (C) 

Equity long/short hedge funds (D) 

Muhi-stralegy hedge funds (E) 

Natural resources funds (F) 

Opportunistic hedge funds (G) 

Private equity runds(H) 

FoirVolue 

$ 12,933 

16,545 

174,041 

47,755 

47,821 

37,158 

23,384 

100.473 

Unlimded 

Commitments 


$ 

14,413 

2,771 

62,141 

Redemption Notice 
Redemption Frequency Period 

Once Monthly 

Various from semi-monthly 
to quarterly 

Various from any valuation 
day to qunrlerly 

Various from quarterly 
lo illiquid 

Various from monthly 
to illiquid 

Various from any valuation 
day to illiquid 

Vari>us from quarterly 
to illiquid 

I !liquid 

Various from 10 to 
30days 

Various from 5 
to 60 days 

V nrious from lO 
to60da ys 

Various from 30 
lo 60 days, if allowable: 

Various from 45 
to 90 days 

Vari>us from 10 to 
90 days, if allowable 

Vari>us from 45 to 
90 days, ifallowable 

NIA 
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2015 

Unfunded Redemption Redemption Notice 
Fair Value Commitments Frequeni:y Period 

Fixed income funds (A) $ 15,470 $ Various from once monthly Various from 10 to 
to illiquid 30days 

U.S. equity funds (B) 	 95,732 Various from semi-monthly Various from S 
loquanerly to 60days 

International equities funds (C) 201,274 Vari>us from any valuation Various from 10 
day lo quanerly to 60days 

Equity long/shon hedge funds (D) 60,296 Various from quanerly Various from 30 
lo illiquid to 60 days, if allowable 

Muhi-slralegy hedge funds (E) 73,061 Various from quanerly Varbus from IS 
to illiquid to 90days 

Natural resources funds (F) 31,696 4,109 Various from any valuation Various from 10 to 
day lo illiquid 90 days, if allowable 

Opponunistic hedge funds (G) 26,708 S,832 Various from quancrly Various from 45 10 

to illiquid 90 days, if allowable 

Private equity funds (H) 88,462 57,630 Illiquid 	 NIA 

A. 	 This category includes investments in attractive credit opportunities in investment 
grade corporate bonds, high yield bonds, bank loans, securitized bonds, strategic 
global fixed income opportunities in countries, currencies, sectors and securities as 
well as global credit arbitrage opportunities. As of June 30, 2016, approximately 
$12.9 million of the amounts can be redeemed on a monthly basis with advanced 
notifications ranging from IO to 30 days. 

B. 	 This category includes two investments in U.S. equities, with one focused on publicly 
traded MLPs and the other on large cap stocks. All securities are traded on U.S. 
exchanges. The large cap investment, valued at $66.5 million on June 30, 2016, is 
redeemable at calendar quarter-end with 60 days prior notice . The MLP investment 
is redeemable monthly with 30 days prior notice. 

C. 	 This category includes investments in international equities in emerging and 
developed markets across all capitalization classes . Approximately 43% of the funds 
invested can be redeemed on a daily basis with IO to 30 days prior notice. Another 
50% of the funds invested can be redeemed monthly with IO to 60 days prior notice. 
The remaining investment is redeemable at calendar year quarter ends with 60 days 
prior notice. 

D. 	 This category includes investments in hedge funds that take both long and short 
positions in global equities and other securities. Most funds in this category use 
margin and other forms of leverage as well as various derivatives, including swaps , 
options, futures and forward contracts when deemed appropriate by the respective 
manager. Investments representing 70% of the value of the investments in this 
category have quarterly lockup periods as of June 30, 2016. Another investment, 
totaling $.3 million is illiquid . 

E. 	 This category includes investments in hedge funds that pursue multiple strategies to 
diversify risks and reduce volatility. The funds ' composite portfolio includes 
investments in U.S. common stocks, global real estate projects and arbitrage 
investments . Approximately I 8% of investments in this category can be redeemed at 
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calendar year quarter ends with prior notification of 45 days. Approximately 63% of 
the investments in this category can be redeemed every 12 months with prior 
notification of 45 to 90 days . Approximately t8% of investments in this category can 
be redeemed every 24 months with 90 days notification. Approximately 1 % of 
investments is illiquid. 

F. 	 This category includes private oil and gas funds and a natural resources equity fund. 
Investments include both publicly traded securities as well as private equity and debt 
positions. In aggregate, these funds invest in all natural resources categories, 
including but not limited to , all forms of energy, precious and base metals and 
agricultural commodities. The funds typically invest in both the infrastructure and 
production facilities as well as in the actual metal, commodity or resource. 
Approximately 38% of the investments are private lock up funds with projected 
partnership maturities ranging from 2018 to 2028. The other investment can be 
redeemed monthly with 30-day prior notification. The remaining investment is 
illiquid. 

G. 	 This category includes investments in distressed-secur ities, -real estate and -credit. 
As a class, these investments strive to find U.S. and non-U.S. financial assets, real 
estate, debt obligations and securities that are inefficiently priced as a result of 
business, financial, market or legal uncerta inties. Investments will include publicly 
traded securities and private investments. Four of these funds, with a combined value 
of $6.5 million, can never be redeemed prior to partnersh ip termi nation as specified 
in the limited partnership agreements. These funds have expected partnership 
maturities ranging from 2012 to 2022 . Distributions from each fund are made as the 
underlying investments of the funds are liquidated. One other fund, with a value of 
$4.6 million is available at calendar quarters with advance notice of 45 days. All 
remaining investments in this class can be redeemed on their respective annual 
anniversaries of investment with 90 days prior notice. 

H. 	 This category includes several funds that invest in private equity of U.S. companies, 
international companies and U.S. real estate . Also included are several funds 
focusing on U.S. venture capital opportunities . One fund specializes in mezzanine 
debt for mid-cap U.S. companies. Approximately $15.6 million is equally invested 
among 11 funds of funds. The remaining investments in this category are direct 
investments in private equity, venture capital and mezzanine debt funds. All 
investments are in lockup funds with partnership maturities ranging from 2016 to 
2030. Distributions from each fund will be made as the underlying investments of 
the funds are liquidated. All funds are commitment based investments with managers 
calling down commitments as investment opportunities arise. The June 30, 2016, fair 
value represents the market value of contributions made through that date. Unfunded 
commitments as of June 30, 2016, are $62.1 million, which is expected to be drawn 
over the next six years. 

3. 	 Disclosures About Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value 
measurements must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of 
unobservable inputs. There is a hierarchy of three levels of inputs that may be used to 
measure fair value: 

Levell Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
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Level 2 	 Observable inputs other than Level I prices such as quoted prices for similar 
assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active or other inputs 
that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for 
substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities 

Level 3 	 Unobservable inputs supported by little or no market activity and are 
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities 

Recurring Measurements 

The following table presents the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities recognized 
in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis and the level within the Topic 820 fair value hierarchy in which the fair value 
measurements fall at June 30, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands): 

2016 
Quoted Prices in Significant 
Active Markets Other Significant 

for Identical Observable Unobservable 
Assets Inputs Inputs 

Fair Value (Level I) (Levell) (Level 3) 
Investments 

Preferred and common stock $ 39,843 $ 38,287 $ $ 1,556 
Mutual funds 68,677 67,572 l,I05 
Investmentinpartnerships 
and funds of funds 419,938 286,732 133,206 

Marketable alternatives 100,173 47,408 52,765 

Funds held intrust by others 50,798 50,798 

Restricted investments 
Money market mutual funds 2,930 2,930 
U.S. agency obligations 1,689 1,689 

2015 

Investments 
Preferred and common stock 
Corporate bonds 
Mutual funds 
Investmentin partnerships 
and funds of funds 

U.S. government securities 
Marketable alternatives 

Funds held in trust by others 

Restricted investments 
Money market mutual funds 
U.S. agency obligations 

Fair Value 

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets 

for Identical 
Assets 

(Level 1) 

Significant 
Other 

Obsuvable 
Inputs 

(Leve12) 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 

(Level3) 

$ 38,635 
2,859 

77).05 

$ 35,561 

77).05 

$ 
2,859 

$ 3,074 

453,563 
205 

138,648 

261,168 
205 

59,846 

192,784 

78,802 

51,945 51,945 

3,310 
2,589 

3,310 
2,589 
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Following is a description of the valuation methodologies and inputs used for assets measured 
at fair value on a recurring basis and recognized in the accompanying consolidated statements 
of financial position, as well as the general classification of such assets and liabilities 
pursuant to the valuation hierarchy. For assets classified as Level 3 of the fair value 
hierarchy, the process used to develop the reported fair value is disclosed below. 

There have been no significant changes in the valuation techniques during the year ended 
June 30, 2016. 

a. Money Market Mutual Funds 

Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, securities are classified 
within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. Level J securities include money market 
mutual funds. 

b. Investments 

Level I securities include preferred and common stock and mutual funds. If quoted 
market prices are not available, then fair values are estimated by a third-party pricing 
service using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics or 
discounted cash flows. 

For investments other than marketable alternatives and investments in partnerships, the 
inputs used by the pricing service to determine fair value may include one, or a 
combination of, observable inputs such as benchmark yields, reported trades, 
broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, bids, 
offers and reference da ta market research publications and are classified within Level 2 
of the valuation hierarchy . For marketable alternatives and investments in partnerships 
that have sufficient activity or liquidity within the fund, fair value is determined using the 
NA V (or its equivalent) provided by the fund and are classified within Level 2 of the 
valuation hierarchy. Level 2 securities include corporate bonds, U.S. government 
securities, certain investments in partnerships and certain marketable alternative 
investments. 

For marketable alternatives, investments in partnerships, and investments in the common 
and preferred stock of certain business ventures, that do not have sufficient activity or 
liquidity within the fund, the NA V (or its equivalent} provided by the fund is utilized, as 
a practical expedient, to determine fair value and are classified within Level 3 of the 
valuation hierarchy. 

Fair value determinations for Level 3 meas urements of securities are the responsibility of 
Foundat ion Financial Affairs (FFA}. FFA contracts with a pricing specialist to generate 
fair value estimates on a monthly basis. The Ff A's office challenges the reasonableness 
of the assumptions used and reviews the methodology to ensure the estimated fair value 
complies with accounting standards generally accepted in the United States. 

c. Funds Held in Trust By Others 

Fair value is determined at the market value of the securities held in the beneficial trusts 
at June 30, 20 16 and 2015. The value is determined based on the proportional beneficial 
interest held in the trust, with the Foundation as the sole beneficiary of the majority of the 
trusts . Due to the nature of the valuation inputs, the interest is classified within Level 2 
of the hierarchy. 
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d. Restricted Investments 

Level 1 securities include money market accounts, which are based on quoted market 
prices in an active market and Level 2 securities include U.S. Treasury bond and agency 
obligations. The Level 2 securities are based on quoted market prices and are based on a 
pricing service and use inputs as described above. 

Level 3 Reconciliation 

The following is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of recurring fair value 
measurements recognized in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position 
using significant unobservable (Level 3) inputs (in thousands): 

Balance, July 1, 2015 

Total realized and unrealized 
gains and losses 

Purchases 
Sales 
Transfers 

Balance, June 30, 2016 

Total gains/(losses) for the period included in 
change in net assets attributable to the change 
in unrealized gains or losses re lated to assets 
still held at the reporting date 

Balance, July 1,2014 

Total realized and unrealized 
gains and losses 

Purchases 
Sales 
Transfers 

Balance, June 30, 2015 

Total gains/(losses) for the period included in 
change in net assets attributable to the change 
in unrealized gains or losses related to assets 
still held at the reporting date 

Investment in 
Partners hips 
and Funds or 

Funds 

$ 192,395 

Marketable 
Alternatives 

$ 78,802 

Prel'erred and 
Common 

Stock 

$ 3,074 

7,302 (6,349) (2,243) 

25,057 
(19,771) 
(71,777) 

(29,413) 
9,725 

(2,298) 
1,839 
1,184 

$ 133.206 $ 52.765 $ 1,556 
----1111111111111---------­


$ 1,054 

Investment in 
Partners hips 
and Funds or 

Funds 

S 192,784 

3,863 

26,380 
(39,266) 

8,634 

$ 

$ 

Transfers in and out of Level 3 are attributable 
which the investment category is valued. 

192.395 

816 

$ ( I0.577) 

Marketable 
alternatives 

$ 101,025 

(4,244) 

(17,979) 

$ 78,802 

$ (4.244) 

$ (4) 

Preferred and 

common 


stock 


$ 2,638 

$ 3,074----­

$ 436----­


to changes in the underlying inputs from 

436 



Realized and unrealized gains and losses included in change in net assets for the years ended 
June 30, 2016 and 2015, are reported in the consolidated statements of activities as follows 
(in thousands): 

2016 2015 

Total gains and losses $ (1,289) $ 55 
Change in unrealized gains or losses relating to 

assets still held at the consolidated statement 
of financial position date $ (9,527) $ (2,992) 

Unobservable (Level 3} Inputs 

The following table presents quantitative information about unobservable inputs used in 
recurring Level 3 fair value measurements at June 30, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands). 

Range 
Fair Value Unobservable (Weighled 
at 6/30/16 Valuation Technique Inputs A,·erage) 

Investment in partnerships 
a nd fonds or funds 133,206 Net asset value or equivalent NAV NIA 

Marl.etable a~cmntives 52,765 Net usset value or equivalent NAV NfA 

Preferred and common stock 1,556 Ncl asset value or equivalent NAV NIA 

Range 
Fair Value Unobservable (Weighted 
at 6/30/15 Valuation Technique lnpuls Average) 

Investment in pannerships 
and funds of funds 192,395 Net asset value or equivalent NAV NIA 

Marketable alternatives 78,802 Net asset value or equivalent NAY NIA 

Preferred and common stock 3,074 Net asset value or equivalent NAY NIA 

4. Guarantees 

a. Bonds Payable 

ULF is the guarantor of the ULH bonds payable. Amounts payable under the guaranty 
are limited as follows (in thousands): 

2016 

Reside nee Hall 
Aggregate 

limit 
Annual 

limit 

Bettie Johnson Hall 
Kurz Hall 

$ 17,195 
11,330 

$ 2,877 

938 



b. Notes Payable 

ULF was the guarantor of the KYT notes payable. As of June 30, 2016, the outstanding 
principal has been paid in full and the Foundation was released of this guaranty. 

In May 2013, ULF guaranteed $7.5 million of the University of Louisville Physicians, 
Inc. (ULP), a discretely presented component unit of the University, $15 million line of 
credit maturing on June 30, 2014. In May 2014, ULF agreed to an extension and first 
amendment extending the guarantee to November 28, 2014. In November 2014, ULF 
agreed to an extension and second amendment extending the guarantee to December 19, 
2014. In December 2014, ULF agreed to an extension and third amendment extending 
the guarantee to December 12, 2015. In April 2016, ULF agreed to an extension and 
fourth amendment extending the guarantee to December 2016, and included in the 
amendment was an increase to the line of credit of$18 million. As of June 30, 2016, the 
principal amount outstanding was approximately $16.4 million. 

In September 2013, ULF guaranteed $19.9 million of the TNRP notes payable. As of 
June 30, 2016 and 2015, the outstanding principal related to the notes payable was $19.9 
million. 

c. Loans 

As of June 30, 2016, ULF guaranteed four loans related to certain University student 
organizations including fraternities and sororities. If the student organization does not 
meet its scheduled payments, ULF could be called upon to make the payments, as well as 
collection of expenses and costs. The total amount approved for loans was approximately 
$1.6 million, with $1.1 million and $1.2 million outstanding, as of June 30, 2016 
and 2015, respectively. 

In December 2010, ULF guaranteed 51% of the outstanding loan of Campus One, LLC. 
As of June 30, 2016 and 2015, the amount under guarantee was $8.1 million and $8.4 
million, respectively. 

In July 2013, ULF guaranteed 51% of the outstanding loan of Campus Two, LLC. As of 
June 30, 2015, the amount under guarantee was $6.6 million . ULDC's membership 
interest in Campus Two, LLC was assigned to ULREF in March 2016. 

In May 2014, ULF guaranteed a portion of Phannacognetics Diagnostic Laboratory, LLC 
(PGxL) loan. PGxL is owned by University faculty members. ULF's guarantee is a 
maximum of $3 million and calculated monthly on PGxL's accounts receivable 
borrowing base certificate. In February 2015, PGxL entered into a replacement line of 
credit agreement with a different institution. ULF's guarantee on the February 2015 is a 
maximum of $3.5 million plus accrued interest, fees and other related charges. PGxL's 
line of credit was extended through September 5, 2016. On September 14, 2016, the 
financial institution sent PGxL a default notice agreeing to forbear all remedies until 
September 30, 2016. 
As of June 30, 2016 and 2015, the amount under guarantee was $3 million and $2.8 
million, respectively . PGxL 's line of credit expired May 2016. For the years ended June 
30, 2016 and 2015, ULF recorded a loss related to this guarantee of $1.9 million and $0 
million, respectively, and is included in other expenses in the consolidated statements of 
financial position. 



d. Association Mortgage Revenue Bonds 

In July 2008, the Louisville Metro Government issued $39.8 million of Mortgage 
Revenue Bonds 2008 Series A and $43.5 million of Mortgage Revenue Bonds 2008 
Series B (Mortgage Revenue Bonds) at a combined net interest cost of 4.2%, the 
proceeds of which were loaned to the Association. The bond proceeds were used on 
September 1, 2008, to retire the Association's outstanding County of Jefferson Kentucky 
Government Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 1997, the proceeds of which financed the 
acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of the sports stadium known as 
University of Louisville Papa John's Cardinal Stadium (Stadium). Excess funds were 
used to finance a portion of the costs of acquisition, construction, installation and 
equipping of an expansion to the Stadium. 

The Foundation is the guarantor of the Mortgage Revenue Bonds, and as such has agreed 
to maintain a balance of available cash sufficient enough to cover the next debt service 
payment. In exchange for the Foundation's willingness to serve as guarantor, the 
Association has agreed to pay the Foundation a credit enhancement fee and to exonerate 
and indemnify the Foundation from all liability in connection with the Mortgage Revenue 
Bonds, the obligations of the Association under the Loan Agreement and Mortgage, and 
any and all payments made by the Foundation as guarantor. 

As of June 30, 2016 and 2015, the total amount outstanding on the Mortgage Revenue 
Bonds was $40 million and $46.8 million, respectively. 

e. Lease Guarantee 

In December 2006, the Foundation became the guarantor of payments due to University 
Faculty Office Building, LLC (UFOB) under the Master Lease agreement between the 
Medical School Practice Association, Inc. (MSPA) and UFOB. The Foundation has 
guaranteed the full and prompt payment of all amounts due to UFOB including any 
damages for default and payments to reimburse UFOB for any costs and expenses 
incurred by UFOB to cure any default by MSPA. The initial lease term is 15 years, 
which began in July 2008. The annual lease payments due from MSPA to UFOB are 
approximately $3.5 million, with an annual inflation of 3%. 

5. Funds Held in Trust by Others 

The Foundation has been designated by the University as the income beneficiary of various 
trusts and financial entities which are held and controlled by others. One of these is a 
perpetual and irrevocable trust known as the University of Louisville Trust (Trust). It was 
created in 1983 to receive, administer and invest assets which result from gifts to the Trust. 
The market value of the Trust was approximately $21.6 million as of June 30, 2016 and 2015. 
The Foundation's portion of the market value of the remaining trusts was approximately 
$29.2 million and $30.3 million as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively . These funds are 
invested in various equities and income producing assets. For each of the years ended June 
30, 2016 and 2015, the Foundation recorded a loss of $1.2 million and recorded income of 
approximately $.5 million, respectively, from these trusts. 

6. Funds Held in Trust for Others 

The Foundation is the custodian of funds owned by the Association . The Association is a 
separate corporation organized for the purpose of promoting the intercollegiate athletic 

~ 74 ~ 



activities of the University. The Foundation serves in an agency capacity and invests funds 
on behalf of the Association based on a formal trust agreement. As of June 30, 2016 and 
2015, the Foundation held approximately $25.9 million and $30.6 million for the 
Association's investment purposes, respectively. 

During the year ended June 30, 2005, the Foundation entered into an agreement with Jewish 
Hospital & St. Mary's Healthcare, Inc. (Jewish Hospital) whereby the Foundation serves in 
an agency capacity to invest funds on behalf of Jewish Hospital. Jewish Hospital is a 
separate corporation organized for the purpose of providing health care services. As of June 
30, 2016 and 2015, the Foundation held approximately $8.0 million and $9.8 million, 
respectively, for Jewish Hospital's investment purposes. 

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the Foundation was the recipient of endowed funds, the 
income of which shall be used in support of the Louisville Orchestra. As of June 30, 2016 
and 2015, the Foundation held approximately $0.2 million for the benefit of the Louisville 
Orchestra. 

The Foundation, acting in an agent capacity, does not reflect earnings on investments held in 
trust for others in the consolidated statements of activities as these earnings are distributed to 
the owners of the funds. 

7. Transactions with ULREF 

During 2016, ULF assigned its membership interests in AAF, LMCDC, Nucleus, KYT and 
PPL to ULREF. No consideration was exchanged or will be transferred for the assignments 
of membership interests. These assignments resulted in a loss (gain) on deconsolidation in 
the consolidated statements of activities as shown below. 

During 2016, ULF's affiliate, University of Louisville Development Corporation, LLC, also 
assigned its membership interest in a joint venture, Campus Two , to ULREF, for no 
consideration. Contribution of this investment resulted in an inherent contribution expense of 
approximately $5,756,000, which represents the fair value of the investment. This amount 
has been included in contribution expenses in the consolidated statement of activities. 

In addition, ULF contributed capital assets to ULREF through deed transfers for no 
consideration in 2016. These contributions of capital assets resulted in inherent contribution 
expenses recognized at fair value in the consolidated statement of activities. 

ULREF incurred approximately $364,000 of third-party acquisition-related costs in 
connection with these transactions during the year ended June 30, 2016 . These costs are 
included in professional services in the consolidated statements of activities. As a result of 
the assignments and transfers, ULREF will further its mission to acquire, maintain, improve, 
leverage, manage, lease and convey real and personal property for the benefit of the 
University. Contributions to ULREF for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, consisted 
of the following (in thousands): 
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2016 2015 
Loss (Gain) 
on Di~posal Lou (Gain) on 

Coatribution of Capital Dec:onsolidatio Contributio~ 
Expense Assets n Expense 

Second Stn:et/smaU lots capdal assets $ 690 $ 1,439 $ $ 
Chevron capital 11ssets 1,570 3,124 
Doyle capital nssets 550 (106) 

Dulworth capital assets 3,100 124 
Equipment depot capital assets 2.100 1,446 
Humann Gym capital nssets 11nd associ:ited lease 700 598 
Icebreakers capital assets and associated lease 1,170 41 
KDP capital nssets and associated lease 2,400 (1,237) 
Lee Street capital assets and ossocialed lease 452 Ill 
Marteo/Byrne cap~al assets 500 861 
Old World Pasta capital assets 2.650 (455) 
Presidents Home capital 11ssets and 11ssociated le11se 1,789 (981) 
RayA venue Carriage House capital assets 877 376 
Sobe copttal assets 3,600 1,057 
Third Street Properties capital assets 36 81 
Southern Kitchens c11pital assets 1,700 (321) 
Campus Two 5,756 (3,376) 
Cardinal Station 8,527 
KYT (19,553) 
LMCDC 2,539 

Nucleus 7,966 
PPL 620 
Contnbution or bnd rrom the Foundation for Preslon (3,1711 
Contnbution or cash from the Foundation for Preston (925) 

Con1nbut10n or cash rrom LMCDC for Preston (2.9501 
Contnbution expense for satisfaction of pledge 7.000 

$ 36.640 $ 2.784 $ 99 $ (7.()46) 

There were approximately $188,000 of contributions directly to ULREF that did not relate to 
property transfers or the assignment of membership interests . Additionally, there were 
contributions of approximately $409,000 to Pediatrics Medical Office Building, Inc., of 
which ULREF is a member. These have been excluded from the table above. 

As discussed in Note 13, in connection with the assignment of membership interests of KYT 
and Nucleus, the Foundation entered into a memorandum of agreement with ULREF, KYT 
and Nucleus whereas ULREF promises and agrees to pay to the Foundation approximately 
$28.9 million. 

On January 27, 2015, 220 South Preston, LLC (Preston, whose sole member is ULREF, 
entered into a Master Parking Lease Agreement with the Foundation whereby the Foundation 
will lease certain parking spaces in the garage from ULREF, and in exchange will pay an 
amount to the ULREF an amount that would cause the annual debt service coverage ratio to 
be not less than 1.25 to I .00 per month. The term of this agreement began on January 27, 
2015, and will continue for a period of not earlier than the maturity date, December 2017, or 
earlier retirement of the garage construction loan. As of June 30, 2016 and 2015, the 
Foundation has not made any payments to Preston. 

c. University of Louisville Real Estate Foundation. 

The University of Louisville Real Estate Foundation, Inc. and affiliates (collectively, "ULREF") 
is a legally separate, tax exempt component unit of the University, under the provisions of GASB 
Statement No. 39. ULREF is a Kentucky not-for-profit corporation formed on November 19, 
2014. ULREF's mission is to acquire, maintain, improve, leverage, manage, lease, and convey 
real and personal property for the benefit of the University . The University of Louisville 



Foundation, Inc. ("Foundation") has contributed membership interest and capital assets to 
UL REF for the purpose of furthering the mission of UL REF. 

As directed by its Board of Directors, ULREF transfers a portion of its unrestricted resources to 
support a variety of the University's activities. Although the University does not control the 
timing or amount of receipts from ULREF, the majority of resources, or income thereon, which 
the Foundation holds, manages and invests is for the benefit of the University. Because these 
resources held by ULREF can only be used by, or for the benefit of, the University, ULREF is 
considered a component unit of the University and is discretely presented in the University's 
financial statements. 

ULREF is a private nonprofit organization that reports under Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (FASB) standards, including FASB ASC Topic 958, Not-for-Profit Entities. As such, 
certain revenue recognition criteria and presentation features are different from GASB revenue 
recognition criteria and presentation features. No modifications have been made to ULREF's 
financial information in the University's financial statements for these differences. 

Complete financial statements for ULREF can be obtained from Foundation Administration at 
University of Louisville, 215 Central Avenue, Suite 304, Louisville, KY 40292. 

]. Capital Assets 

2016 2015 
Land and land improvements $ 53,653 $ 3,171 

Buildings 28,763 

Buikling improvements 624 

Tenant finish 2,510 

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1,365 

Construction in progress 15,281 4,837 

Accumulated depreciation (1,691) 

$ 100,505 $ 8,008 

2. Acguired Lease Intangible Assets and Liabilities 

The approximate carrying basis and accumulated amortization of recognized intangible assets 
and liabilities at June 30, 2016 and 2015, were (in thousands): 

2016 2015 
Gross Gross 

Canying Accumulated Canying Accumulated 
Amount Amorti7.ation Amount Amortization 

Amortiz.ed intangible assets 
and Iiabilities 

In-place leases $ 1,268 $ (244) $ $ 

Above market leases $ 2,986 $ (I IO) $ $ 

Tax incremental financing $ 116,600 $ (3,602) $ $ 

Below market leases $ (1,420) $ 173 $ $ 

Amortization expense for the year ended June 30, 2016, and for the period from inception 
(November 14, 2014), through June 30, 2015, was approximately $3,783,000 and $0, 
respectively . 
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Tax incremental financing (TIF) intangibles were recorded in connection with the transfer of 
membership interest from the Foundation. The value of the intangible was derived by 
discounting projected future increment payments over the remaining life of the Louisville 
Lifeand Health Sciences and University of Louisville Research Park Project TIF agreements. 
No intangible value was assigned to the Shelbyhurst Research and Technology Park Project. 

Of acquired intangibles , there was approximately $154,000 which was written off in 
connection with modified terms of a certain amended and restated license agreement. 

Intangible assets with finite lives related to in.place leases and above or below market leases 
are being amortized on the straight-line basis over periods ranging from one to seven years. 
Intangible assets related to TIF are being amortized on the straight-line basis over periods 
ranging from 26 to 30 years. Such assets are periodically evaluated as to the recoverability of 
their carrying values. 

The amortization for acquired TIF intangibles, in-place leases and above and below market 
leases, net during the next five years and thereafter, assuming no early lease terminations, is 
as follows: 

Above Tax Below 
In-Place Market Incre mental Market 

For the year ending June 30, Leases Leases Financing Leases 
2017 $ 290 $ 179 $ 4,364 $ 285 
2018 238 172 4,364 257 
2019 166 127 4,364 120 
2020 93 125 4,364 57 
2021 24 125 4,364 14 
Thereafter 213 2,148 91,178 514 

Total $ 1,024 $ 2,876 $ 112,998 $ 1,247 

3. Notes Payable 

Note payable consists of the following at June 30, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands): 

Fiscal Vear 
Description 	 oF!\latu rity 2016 2015 

Cons1nx:t10nl oan 	 Vnrnblc rate based on LIBOR plus Is•;, ( l.97"o al 2018 S 8,27:? S 2,753 
Ai;rccmcni • 220 	 June 30, 2016) . with monthlyinterest only pa yments 
Presto n. LLC 	 commencing Fcbf\Ulry 2015 and principal payment at 

mnturily 

Note Payable - KYT. 	 Variable rate based on LIBOR plus I 95,. (2 42° • nt 1022 19,SOO 
LLC 	 June 30. 2016). Wd l! llllCtcSt only payments 
 

commencing August 2016 and principal paymcnl al 
 

mnlurity 
 

Linc or Credit . Variable rate based on LIBOR plllS I 95~• (2 42°, n1 2019 
 
U LREF June 30, 2016). wdll 1111crcs1
only payments 

cornmcncing AuJ!USt 2016 through malurily 

s 27.804 ..s..... __ 2.1_sJ_ 

Preston has a construction loan agreement with a bank that has a maximum draw available 
amount of $10.1 million, which is secured by Preston's real estate and assignment of lease. 
The terms of the agreement require Preston to maintain a debt service coverage ratio of 1.00 



----

to 1.00, which is measured annually on December 31, commencing on December 31, 2016. 
The principal is due in full on December 31, 2017. 

In June 2016, KYT entered into a note payable with a financial institution to refinance $19.5 
million borrowed in relation to the purchase of property adjacent to the University in 2008. 
The principal is due in full on July 2021. The note is collateralized by mortgages on 
properties and a guarantee from AAF and ULREF. ULREF is subject to certain financial 
covenants under the terms of the note beginning with fiscal year ending June 30, 2017. 

In June 20 I 6, ULREF entered into a $7 .0 million line of credit agreement with a financial 
institution, which matures on July 1, 2018. The line is collateralized by mortgages and a 
guarantee from AAF. UL REF is subject to certain financial covenants under the terms of the 
note beginning with fiscal year ending June 30, 2017. Subsequent to year-end, ULREF 
borrowed approximately $6,967,000 on the line of credit. 

Principal payments on the above obligations due in the next five years and thereafter are as 
follows (in thousands): 

Principal 
For the year ending June 30, Due 

2017 $ 

2018 8,272 
2019 32 

2020 
2021 
Thereafter 19,500 

$ 27,804 

4. Leasing Activities 

The Real Estate Foundation leases space to tenants under noncancellable operating leases . 
As of June 30, 2016, the Real Estate Foundation had various leases expiring in one to 11 
years, through 2027. These leases generally require the Real Estate Foundation to pay all 
executory costs (property, taxes, maintenance and insurance). 

Rental revenue at June 30, 2016 and 2015, was as follows (in thousands): 

For the year ending June 30, 2016 2015 

Base minimum rents $ 2,905 $ 

Common area maintenance 23 
$ 2,928 $ 



Future leasing rent payments due to ULREF during the next five years and thereafter were as 
follows (in thousands): 

2016 2015 
Leasing Leasing 

Payments Payments 
For the year ending June 30, Due Due 

2016 $ 1,490 $ 

2017 1,235 
2018 1,022 
2019 645 
2020 550 
Thereafter 1,189 

To tal $ 6,131 $ 

5. Acquisitions 

During the year ended 2016, ULREF acquired the net assets of AAF, LMCDC, Nucleus, 
KYT and PPL (collectively Acquirees). The acquisitions were accomplished by ULREF 
becoming the sole member of the Acquirees by assignment of their membership rights from 
the Foundation, and its affiliate, to ULREF, and no consideration was exchanged or will be 
transferred for the acquisitions. As a result of the acquisitions, ULREF will further its 
mission related to real property for the benefit of the University. 

The acquisitions of membership interests resulted in inherent contributions received of 
approximately $138,541,000, which represents the net recognized amount of the identifiable 
assets acquired over the liabilities assumed in accordance with ASC 958-805. This amount 
has been included in contributions in the consolidated statements of activities. 

ULREF acquired an investment in the Campus Two joint venture by assignment of 
membership interest from the Foundation 's affiliate, University of Louisville Development 
Corporation, LLC, to UL REF, for no considera tion. Contribution of this investment resulted 
in an inherent contribution received of approxima tely $5,755,000, which represents the fair 
value of the investment. This amount has been included in contributions in the consolidated 
statement of activities. 

In addition, ULREF acquired capital assets from the Foundation through deed transfers for no 
consideration. Certain of these capital assets are accounted for as acquisitions under ASC 
958-805, whereby identifiable assets, liabilities and intangibles assets and liabilities are 
recognized at fair value. The remaining properties are contributions of capit.il assets and are 
recognized at their estimated fair values at the date of contribution. Significant capital assets 
received include Solae property capital assets, Dulworth property capital assets, Old World 
Pasta capital assets, Kidney Dialysis Property capital assets and associated leases and 
President's Home and Carriage House property capital assets and associated leases. 
Additionally, the Bed, Bath & Beyond property was contributed from the Foundation and an 
unrelated donor. 

The acquisitions and contributions of capital assets resulted in inherent contributions received 
of approximately $31,232,000 , which represents the net recogn ized amount of the identifiable 
assets acquired over the liabilities assumed . This amount has been included in contributions 
in the consolidated statements of activities. 

http:capit.il


ULREF incurred approximately $364,000 of third-party acquisition-related costs in 
connection with these acquisitions during the year ended June 30, 2016. These costs are 
included in professional services in the consolidated statements of activities. 

For the year ended June 30, 2016, ULREF acquisitions and contributions of capital assets 
included the following recognized amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities 
assumed (in thousands): 

Goa,t,rill .. d 
Cuhand f11lan1iblr N•I 

Dace-ar Other lavntm1tat1 la C•pital A1HIS (Othor CNale-1 Caalribtltioa 
Ac:quiaido• A11e-b Joint \'r•turr1 A11el1 (Uabililiul U.baitiul Payablol Revenue 

c ... ~"fmcmt.:rohif, 
.UC:n:11.tfrom the FOUl'Mlila:n 
andoffilialo 

AAF 9r-wlfll5 s 44 s . s II.JOI $ (20"1 s (-1-1111s . $ I0,6'17 

LMCOC 11/J1/21115 l,612 )5) 116,611() (1,426) 119,ll9 

PPL 9/2912015 5,l9Cl (410) (4,475) JI~ 

Nuck:ul 9/2912015 2.))9 IJ,050 l,1"6 (10,175) 8,41W) 

KYT 6123/2016 141 15,900 24,201 (20,742) (19,5trl) 

Cmtrihutitns C'Linvcslmcn1 in 
pna"•nrurc fr..., thoF,u1dni,..,. 

C•mp,oTwo ll'J/2016 5,755 5,755 

Cmriuiun, ur Cl(libl AHC\!11 

fmn thol'oun<loli<.-. 
Sccmd Sln:oll SmoD Lru !HlW21115 690 690 

!led Hath II:.U,:y<.,J 12'2912015 7,<DI 46 7,1146 

Ch""""' 12".2'2015 1,571) 1,5711 

Duyk: !Hlw.!1115 550 550 
Dulwmh l:?n/2015 J 1(1() J,lm 

~ND•r<• 12/22/llll5 2,IOD 2,1(1() 

llt.1111,... Gym W29,2tll5 71rl )7 7J7 
li:chrcaL:rs !Hlw.!1115 5 1,171) l6Cl 1,))5 

KDJ• !Hlw.!1115 )4 2.444 (44) 2,4)4 

L« S1r<ct 9/l9/20U 4,2 66 51" 
Manc<>'llyme w=ns 5m 5IKI 
OldW,nll'uto W2WWl5 2.650 2,fiSO 

l'n:sdcru Ilomc l~/2015 1,7"9 1,7"9 

RllyA"" l~ /20 15 Hn Hn 
Sob• l~ .]/2()15 J,(,00 l,61XI 

1birdStR-cl Pmrcnic1 91.!W2()15 )6 )6 

s..,lho:mKitchens 9r.?w.!1ll5 170() 171XI 
s 6, 175 5 Ullll 5 76J69 s 141,6)4 5 (37.25H) 5 (19.,IXI) s 175-'2" 

Other liabilities include amounts due to the Foundation under a memo of understanding 
totaling approximately $28,879,000 at the acquisition dates above. 

Goodwill of $24,201,000 was recognized in connection with the acquisition of KYT as 
further described in Note 4. Intangible assets and liabilities include in-place leases, above 
market leases and below market lease as further described in Note 5, and have a weighted 
average useful life of 14.4 years. 

d. University of Louisville Physicians, Inc. 

ULP was established in August 2011 and is organized as a private, nonprofit corporation that 
functions as the corporate structure for the clinical practices of the faculty of the University of 
Louisville School of Medicine (the School). ULP is organized and operates exclusively for 
educational, charitable and scientific purposes, within the meaning of Section 501( c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code (IRC), by: [l] providing professional medical services in a variety of 
medical specialties and disciplines in accordance with ULP charitable mission: [2] strengthening 
and broadening the range of skills and patient populations available for physicians who are the 
School's faculty to carry on patient care, teaching and research; and [3] aiding and supporting the 
School and its clinical departments in the furtherance of their charitable, educational and 
scientific mission and activities. The physicians providing clinical services through ULP are 
organized into clinical departments which are identical to the clinical departments of the School. 
ULP provides medical care primarily to residents of Louisville and Jefferson County, Kentucky 
and surrounding areas. Although the University does not control ULP or the timing of receipts 
from ULP, because the University and ULP share certain common management and staff, 
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creating a degree of financial integration, ULP is considered a component unit of the University 
and is discretely presented in the University's financial statements. 

Operations began on January 1, 2012, when the first two physician groups transitioned their 
practices into ULP. Through June 30, 2016, there were seventeen clinical departments integrated 
into ULP at various times. 

Each clinical department was organized as one or more separate legal entities and each was 
integrated into ULP under a separate transition agreement. Typically, the agreements were 
structured as follows: ULP purchased certain significant fixed assets of the clinical departments 
in a manner similar to any other asset purchase and obtained various other employment 
agreements, licenses, permits, leases and contracts for no purchase price. The clinical 
departments retained various operating assets including cash, accounts receivable, benefit plan 
assets and other assets. ULP and each clinical department agreed on the preexisting debts of the 
clinical departments; some were transferred to ULP, some were retained by the clinical 
departments and others were paid-off or acquired by ULP and subsequently repaid by the clinical 
departments. 

Complete financial statements for ULP can be obtained from the administrative offices at UofL 
Physicians, 300 E. Market Street, Louisville, KY 40202 . 

I. Charity Care 

ULP provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy without 
charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because ULP does not pursue collection 
of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as revenue. Charity 
care charges totaled $ 1.0 million and $2 .2 million for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 
2015, respectively. Management as estimated its cost incurred to provide charity care to be 
approximately $0.5 million and $1.0 million for each of the years ended June 30, 2016 and 
2015, respectively . 

2. Investment in Kentuckiana Medical Reciprocal Risk Retention Group 

During the year ended June 30, 2014, and in accordance with the Assignment and 
Assumption Agreement, ULP was assigned the full interest in the investment of Kentuckiana 
Medical Reciprocal Risk Retention Group (KMRRRG) formerly held by UPA. The value of 
the investment at the time of assignment was $10.8 million consisting of a $0.3 million 
capital investment in a paid-in surplus account and $ I 0.5 million in an accumulated 
subscriber savings account. KMRRRG is ULP's carrier for liability insurance coverage and 
is a reciprocal captive risk retention group . The limit of ULP's liability, pursuant to the 
subscribers' agreement, is the initial capital investment and the annual premiums it pays for 
coverage. 

ULP's capital investment represents 6.12% of KMRRRG's startup capital. The investment in 
KMRRRG is accounted on the equity method, which as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $16.5 
million and $12.3 million, respectively . KMRRRG's income and losses are allocated to each 
participating subscriber based on each subscriber's pro rata share of annual premi4ms paid. 

Should ULP withdraw from KMRRRG, a portion of its investment in KMRRRG may, as 
determined by a Subscribers' Advisory Committee, be retained by KMRRRG to cover ULP's 
allocation of losses for up to five years. Any repayment of ULP's investment by KMRRRG 
must also be approved by the Kentucky Department of Insurance. 



The investment in KMRRRG is accounted for on the equity method of accounting under 
which ULP's share of KMRRRG's net income (loss) is recognized in the statements of 
activities and added to (deducted from) the investment account. Dividends received from 
KMRRRG are treated as a reduction of the investment account. Management has concluded 
that the equity method of accounting for this investment is appropriate because it participates 
in the management of KMRRRG and has the ability to significantly influence the operating 
and financial policies of KMRRRG and because ULP's 6.12% membership is considered 
more than a nominal share of the KMRRRG. 

3. Net Patient Service Fees Revenue 

ULP has agreements with third-party payers that provide for payments at amounts different 
from its established rates. Contractual adjustments represent the difference between billing at 
established rates and amounts reimbursed by third-party payers. 

A summary of gross and net professional clinical service fee revenue as of June 30, 2016 
and 2015 is as follows (in thousands): 

2016 2015 
Gross patient service revenue $ 343,349 $ 296,730 

Less provisions for: 
Contractual adjustments under third-party reimbursement 

programs (194,926) (147,077) 
Provision for uncollectible accounts (46,403) (54,591) 

(241,329) (201,668) 

Net patient service revenue $ 102,020 $ 95,062 

e. OMHS/U of L Cancer Research Center, Inc. 

In March 2007, the OMHS/U of L Cancer Research Center, Inc. (the Center) was incorporated for 
the purposes of including, but not limited to, promotion and implementation of cancer research 
and drug development projects through, among other things, ownership and operation of a cancer 
research and treatment center in Owensboro, Kentucky. 

Although the joint venture is owned 50% by Owensboro Medical Health System, Inc. and 50% 
by the University, the University has control of the Board of Directors of the Center. The 
University has determined that if the financial activity of the Center was material, it should be a 
discretely presented component unit; however, as of June 30, 20 I 6 and 20 I 5 the Center does not 
have material operations to be presented . 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
Schedule of Funding Progress 

For Other Postemployment Benefits 
(in thousands) 

Actuarial UAALas a 
Actuarial Accrued Percentage of 
Value of Liabaility Unfunded Covered Covered 

Actuarial Assets (AAL) AAL(UAAL ) Funded Ratio Payroll Payroll 
Value Date (a) (b) (b-a) (alb) (c) ((b-a) / c) 

7/ 1/2015 $ 89,683 89,683 0% 478,201 19% 
7/ 1/2014 89,098 89,098 0% 459,588 19% 
711/2013 85,282 85,282 0% 444,970 19% 
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UNIVERSITY OF Vice President for Finance 

Policy /Procedure - LOUISVILL E 
Subject: Short-Term Investments 
Guidelines 
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Effective Date: March 7, 2013 Last Review Date: December 7, 2015 

Last Revision: January 14, 2016 Revised By: David M. Woods 

Contact Name: David M. Woods Contact Email: TREASMGT@louisville.edu 

Approved By: John R. Shipley Page 1 of 3 

In accordance with the approval from the Board of Trustees, the following guidelines will be 
adhered to in the investment actions and internal management of short-term funds: 

UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE 

INVESTMENT GUIDELINES FOR INTERNALLY MANAGED SHORT-TERM FUNDS 

Internally Managed Short-Term Funds ("Internal Funds") are those funds for which use and disbursement 
is anticipated to occur within one to seven years. The following guidelines shall be applied to the 
management of the Internal Funds. 

A. 	 Responsibility and Delegation of Authority 

1. 	 The Senior Vice President for Finance and Administration is responsible for the day-to-day 
management of the investment of short-term funds and may further delegate this investment 
authority as may be appropriate and necessary for the proper performance of the investment 
function. 

2. 	 The Senior Vice President for Finance and Administration will report to the Board on the status 
ofinvested short-term funds when requested. 

B. Investment Objectives 

The primary objective is to achieve and maintain a high degree of safety and liquidity. The secondary 
objective is to maximize investment income with due regard to the constraints imposed by the short­
term nature of the funds and the primary objective. That being the case, the yield objective for short­
term funds is to realize a return in excess of that produced by investments in 90 day United States 
Treasury Bills. 

C. 	 Permissible Investments; the following are types of permissible investments conforming to those 
maturities as governed by Kentucky Administrative Regulations 200 KAR 14:011, Qualified 
Investments and in accordance with Kentucky Revised Statutes KRS 42.500, State Investment 
Commission - Powers. Future changes to the Kentucky Administrative Regulations regarding 
permissible investments will be adopted as part of this policy without further approvals. 

1. 	 Repurchase agreements - providing that delivery of these obligations is taken either directly or 
through an authorized custodian. These investments may be accomplished through repurchase 
agreements reached with source including, but not limited to, national or state banks chartered in 
Kentucky. Collateral for these obligations will be United States government securities having 



a market value at least 102% of the amount disbursed. Such agreements must provide that the 
seller agrees to repurchase the securities, on any business day, at the original sale prices plus a 
negotiated amount of interest. 

2. 	 Money market funds, mutual funds and other commingled vehicles having all of the following 
characteristics: 

a) 	 Organized and managed as an open.end diversified investment company registered under the 
Federal Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended; 

b) 	 The management company of the investment company shall have been in operation for at 
least five(S) years; and 

c) 	 All of the securities in the mutual fund shall be eligible investments pursuant to this section. 

3. 	 United States Treasury bills, notes and bonds backed by the full faith and credit of the United 
States or a United States government agency or government sponsored entities, including, 
Government National Mortgage Association, Federal National Mortgage Association, Federal 
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation not exceeding, at the time purchase. 

4. 	 Investment Pools Managed by the Commonwealth of Kentucky Office of Financial Management. 

Short-Term Proceeds Pool 
 
Intermediate-Term Proceeds Pool 
 
Long-Term Proceeds Pool 
 

5. 	 Certificates of deposit issued by or other interest-bearing accounts of any bank of savings and loan 
institution which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or similar entity or 
which are collateralized, to the extent uninsured, by any obligations, including surety bonds, 
permitted by KRS 41.240( 4), Pledge of securities required of depositories. 

6. 	 Uncollateralized certificates of deposit issued by any bank or savings and loan institution rated in 
one of the three highest categories by a nationally recognized rating agency. 

7. 	 Commercial paper. 

8. 	 Banker' s acceptances. 

9. 	 Variable Rate Demand Notes backed by an unconditional letter of credit issued by a domestic 
bank. 

I 0. Bonds or certificates of indebtedness of this state and of its agencies and instrumentalities. 

11. Securities issued by a state or local government, or any instrumentality of agency thereof, in the 
United States, and rated Al by Moody's or A+ by S&P rating agency. 

D. 	 Limitations 

The investments listed in section C. above shall be subject to the following limitations: 

I. 	 Commercial Paper must be rated the highest (A-1/P-I) by at least one Nationally Recognized 
Statistical Rating Organization (NRSRO). Bakers Acceptance must be issued by a bank with a 
short-term rating of the underlying bank rated the highest (A-1/P-1 ). All Commercial Paper and 
Banker Acceptances must be issued bydomestic entities. 
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RESOLUTION BOARD 
 
OF TRUSTEES 
 

UNIVERSITY OF 
 
LOUISVILLE 
 

September 24, 200 I 
 

BE IT RESOLVED that the President, the Provost, the Vice President for Finance and 
Administration, the Associate Vice President for Administration, the Assistant Vice 
President for Administration, the Controller and Treasurer, and the Director of 
Purchasing be and hereby are the only officers or agents of the University of Louisville 
empowered to executive contracts on behalf of the University of Louisville pursuant to 
their respective duties as administrative officers of the University, including contracts 
with the United States of America and governmental agencies; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the President, the Provost, the Vice President for 
Finance and Administration, and Controller and Treasurer as officers of the University be 
and hereby are empowered to endorse for sale or subscription any securities or rights 
belonging to th~ University of Louisville; 

BE :tT FURTHER RESOLVED that the President, the Provost, and the Vice President 
for Health Affairs as officers of the University be and hereby are empowered to enter into 
and execute on behalf of the University affiliations, service agreements, and provider and 
reimbursement related contracts for clinical activities and professional health care 
services ; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the President, the Vice President for Development 
and Alumni, and the Associate Vice President for Development and Alumni as officers of 
the University be and hereby are empowered to execute gift receipts and U.S. Internal 
Revenue Service forms pertaining to gift reports; 

BE :tT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Resolutions adopted by the Board of Trustees 
May 18, 1981, and January 23, 1995, regarding Presidential delegation of signature 
authority for sponsored projects, including contracts with the United States of America 
and its agencies, and intellectual property development respectively through the Vice 
President for Research are still in full force and effect; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the President, the Provost, the Vice President for 
University Relations and persons designated in writing by the President be and hereby are 
empowered as officers of the University to execute contracts and filings related to use of 
the name or marks of the University for commercialization and marketing on behalf of 
the University; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Associate Provost for Programs, Planning and 
Budget, and the Dean of the Graduate School are authorized to sign educational 
affiliation agreements (except international affiliations) for University units outside the 



Health Sciences Center which do not involve any significant financial outlay or liability 
for the University and can be terminated within two years; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Associate University Provost is 
authorized to sign all international affiliation agreements for all University units which do 
not involve any significant financial outlay or liability for the Univers ity and can be 
terminated within two years; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution. shall and does supersede 
any and all previous resolut ions author izing such signatures for the University of 
Louisville. 

Certificate 

I certify that I am the du ly qualified Assistant Secretary of the Board of Trustees of the 
Univers ity of Louisville , that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution adopted at the 
regular meeting of such Board which was duly held on the 24th day of September, 2001, 
at which meeting a quorum was present, and a majority of members present voted in 
favor of the adoption of such resolution . I further certify that such resolution is still in full 
force and effect. 

Dated this 24th day of September , 20Ql_. 

Assistant Secretary, Board of Trustees 



----
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UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
UPDATED RESOLUTION ON SIGNATURE AUTHORITY 
 

FOR UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE 
 

September 22, 2016 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Acting President recommends that the Board of Trustees adopt the attached 
updated resolution regarding signature authority for the University of Louisville. 

BACKGROUND: 

The resolution is updated to reflect the appointments of the Acting President, 
Neville G. Pinto, and the Acting Executive Vice President and University Provost, Dale 
B. Billingsley. 

BOARD ACTION: 
Passed X 
Did Not Pass 
Other ------­

~~r,d,G 
Assistant Secretary 



UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
RESOLUTION ON SIGNATURE AUTHORITY 
 

September 22, 2016 

WHEREAS, the Acting President, or his designee (appropriately documented), 
Acting Executive Vice President/Provost, Sr. Vice President for Finance and 
Administration and CFO/COO, Senior Associate Vice President for Business Affairs, and 
Director of Purchasing are officers or agents of the University of Louisville and are 
empowered to execute contracts on behalf of the University of Louisville pursuant to 
their respective administrati ve duties , including contracts with federal and other 
governmental agencies; and 

WHEREAS, the Acting President, or his designee (appropriately documented), 
Acting Executive Vice President/Provost, Sr. Vice Pres ident for Finance and 
Administration and CFO/COO, Controller & Treasu rer, and Assistant Treasurer are 
officers or agents of the University of Louisville and are empowered to endorse for sale 
or subscription any securi ties or rights belongin g to the University of Louisville; and 

WHEREAS, the Acting President, or his designee (appropriately documented) , 
Acting Executive Vice Pres ident/Provost , and Interim Executive Vice President/ Health 
Affairs are officers or agents of the Univer sity of Louisville and are empowered to enter 
into and execute on behalf of the University and its affiliated entities all I) service 
agreements and 2) provider and reimbursement related contracts for clinical activities and 
professional health care services; and 

WHEREAS, the Acting President, or his designee (appropri ately documen ted), 
Acting Executive Vice President/Provost , Vice President for University Advancement, 
and Associate Vice President for Univers ity Advancement are officers or agents of the 
University of Louisville and are empowered to execute gift receipts and U.S. Internal 
Revenue Service forms pertaining to gift reports; and 

WHEREAS, the Act ing Pres ident , or his designee (appropriately documented), 
Acting Executive Vice President/Provost, and Associate Vice Pres ident for 
Communications and Marketing are officers or agents of the University of Louisville and 
are empowered to execute contracts and filings related to use of the name or marks of the 
University of Louisville for commercialization and marketing on behalf of the 
University; and 

WHEREAS, the Act ing President, or his designee (appropr iately docume nted), 
Acting Executive Vice President/Provost, Interim Executive Vice President for Health 
Affairs, Associate Provost for Programs, Planning, and Budget, and Dean of 
Interdisciplinary and Graduate Studies are officers or agents of the University of 
Louisville and are empowered to sign educational affiliation agreements , excluding 



international affiliations, that do not involve any significant financial commitment or 
liability for the University and can be dissolved within two years of decision to terminate 
relationship; and 

WHEREAS, the Acting President, or his designee (appropriately documented), 
Acting Executive Vice President/Provost, Interim Executive Vice President for Health 
Affairs, and Associate Provost are officers or agents of the University of Louisville and 
are empowered to sign all international affiliation agreements for all university units 
which do not involve any significant financial commitment or liability for the University 
and can be dissolved within two years of decision to terminate relationship; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the actions of these authorized 
officers are hereby, in all respects, ratified, confirmed, and approved by the Board of 
Trustees of the University of Louisville; and 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that this action on September 22, 2016 of the Board of 
Trustees supersedes any and all previous signature authority as described in this 
resolution. 

CERTIFICATE 

I certify that I am the duly qualified Assistant Secretary of the Board of Trustees 
of the University of Louisville, that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution adopted at 
the regular meeting of the Board of Trustees which was duly held on the 22nd day of 
September 2016, at which meeting a quorum was present and a majority of members 
present voted in favor of the adoption of such resolution. I further certify that such 
resolution is in full force as of this date. 

Assistint Secretary, University of Louisville Board of Trustees 



----
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RECOMMENDATION TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE 
 
UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGARDING AN 
 

UPDATED RESOLUTION ON SIGNATURE AUTHORITY 
 
FOR UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE 
 

February 16, 2017 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Interim President recommends that the Board of Trustees adopt the attached 
updated resolution regarding signature authority for the University of Louisville. 

BACKGROUND: 

The resolution is updated to reflect the appointments of the Interim President, 
Interim CAO, Interim CFO, Interim COO, and Senior Associate Vice President for 
Communications and Marketing. 

BOARD ACTION: 
Passed X 
Did Not Pass 
Other 

'ktLL1...fudl»,
fu1stant Secretary 



UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
RESOLUTION ON SIGNATURE AUTHORITY 
 

February 16, 2017 

WHEREAS, the Interim President, or his designee (appropriately documented), 
Acting Executive Vice President/Provos t, Interim Chief Administrative Officer, Interim 
Chief Financial Officer, Interim Chief Operating Officer, Interim Asso ciate Vice 
President for Finance/Controller, and Director of Purchasing are officers or agents of the 
University of Louisville and are empowered to execute contracts on behalf of the 
University of Louisville pursuant to their respective administrative duties, including 
contracts with federal and other governmental agencies; and 

WHEREAS, the Interim President, or his designee (app ropriately documented) , 
Acting Executive Vice President/Provost, Interim Chief Adminis trative Officer, Interim 
Chief Financial Officer, Interim Chief Operating Officer, Interim Associate Vice 
President for Finance/Controller, Controller & Treasurer, and Assistant Treasurer are 
officers or agents of the University of Louisville and are empowered to endorse for sale 
or subscription any securities or rights belonging to the University of Louisville ; and 

WHEREAS, the Interim President, or his designee (appropr iately documented), 
Acting Executive Vice President/Provost, and Interim Executive Vice President/Health 
Affairs are officers or agents of the University of Louisville and are empowered to enter 
into and execute on behalf of the University and its affiliated entities all I) service 
agreements and 2) provider and reimbursement related contracts for clin ical activities and 
professional health care services; and 

WHEREAS, the Interim President, or his designee (appropriat ely documented), 
Acting Executive Vice President/Provost, Vice President for University Advancement, 
and Associate Vice President for University Advancement are officers or agents of the 
University of Louisville and are empowere d to execute gift receipts and U.S. Internal 
Revenue Service forms pertain ing to gift reports ; and 

WHEREAS, the Interim President , or his designee (appropr iately documented), 
Acting Executive Vice President/Provos t, and Interim Senior Associate Vice President 
for Communications and Marketing are officers or agents of the University of Louisville 
and are empowe red to execute contracts and filings related to use of the name or marks of 
the University of Louisville for commercializat ion and marketing on behalf of the 
University; and 

WHEREAS, the Interim President, or his designee (appropriately documented), 
Acting Executive Vice President/Provost . Interim Executive Vice President for Health 
Affairs, Associate Provost for Programs, Planning , and Budget, and Dean of 
Interdiscip linary and Gradua te Studies are officers or agents of the University of 



Louisville and are empowered to sign educational affiliation agreements, excluding 
international affiliations, that do not involve any significant financial commitment or 
liability for the University and can be dissolved within two years of decision to terminate 
relationship; and 

WHEREAS,the Interim President, or his designee (appropriately documented), 
Acting Executive Vice President/Provost, Interim Executive Vice President for Health 
Affairs, and Associate Provost are officers or agents of the University of Louisville and 
are empowered to sign all international affiliation agreements for all university units 
which do not involve any significant financial commitment or liability for the University 
and can be dissolved within two years of decision to terminate relationship; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the actions of these authorized 
officers are hereby, in all respects, ratified, confirmed, and approved by the Board of 
Trustees of the University of Louisville; and 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that this action on February 16, 2017 of the Board of 
Trustees supersedes any and all previous signature authority as described in this 
resolution. 

CERTIFICATE 

I certify that I am the duly qualified Assistant Secretary of the Board of Trustees 
of the University of Louisville, that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution adopted at 
the regular meeting of the Board of Trustees which was duly held on the 16th day of 
February 2017, at which meeting a quorum was present and a majority of members 
present voted in favor of the adoption of such resolution. I further certify that such 
resolution is in full force as of this date. 

AssistamSecretary, University of Louisville Board of Trustees 
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Contributions receivable as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 are due to be received as follows (in 
thousands): 

2014 2013 
Less than one year $ 6,444 $ 5,084 
One to three years 10,503 8,665 
Greater than three years 13,744 12,504 

Subtotal 30,691 26,253 
Less discount (706) (963) 
Less allowance (2,290) (2, l 10) 
Net contributions receivable $ 27,695 $ 23,180 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting/or Nonexchange 
Transactions, as amended by GASB Statement No. 36 Recipient Reporting for Certain Shared 
Nonexchange Revenues, the University records operating and capital pledges as revenue when all 
eligibility requirements have been met. Endowment pledges are not recognized as revenue until the 
gifts are received. 

4. Due From the Foundation 

In accordance with the University's agency agreement with the Foundation, the University receives 
and disburses monies on behalf of the Foundation. The net amount of these receipts and 
disbursements is recorded as a due to or from the Foundation in the statements of net position. 
Generally, the receivable or payable is cleared within the subsequent month; however, no fonnal 
agreement governs the time period in which payments are to be made. 

In June 2014, the University entered into a Memorandum of Agreement with the Foundation to loan 
the Foundation a total of $29.0 million. The unpaid balance on the receivable bears simple interest 
equal to 75 basis points greater than the University's cash sweep rate. The term of the loan is one 
year from the final transfer of funds to the Foundation. As of June 30, 2014 the outstanding balance 
was $5.8 million, with an interest rate of 1.0 percent. This is recorded within the current Due from the 
University of Louisville Foundation, Inc. on the statement of net position. 
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Exhibit 1 (cantlnued) 

founc1a11on""''"' 

1. MF wm, to Rlpllblla. lnterat 8NIIII d S1ee.ODDlfflllllly.ha\9 to muedebt paym111ta f USORlncrNHI. 
Repullllaamr.t m ~--• accadna1, (IIDIII lnhHal paymaa Cll"I nciebe1118thin $181.000......,). 

. 2. Langtlfm ~ldlbtedn111 cCMfllllt atnlCbnl dllc:I II naad by ... ODO. 
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PavmentSdledule edllblt2 
Period Pltndl!!! fnlllNII Tolall'VIIII lntllftlStPvnlt OUltlll llllna Flsr.alYr.fYTallllPvmt 
7/l/'ll114 1" 24,167 24,167 29,CDlcm· 
 

8/lfJDJA 1" 24;1&7 24,167 29.lXQ.CDJ 
 
9/'J/11114 1" 24,1&7 24,1&7 29.cm,cm 


10/l/2014 1" 24,1&7 24,1&7 29.cm,om 
ll/1/11M 1" 24,1&7 24,1&1 29,CXQCDJ 
U/1/71114 1" 24,l&7 24,1&7 211.cm,cmm4 145,om 
l/l/111J5 1" 24,l&J 24,1&7 29,CDUDJ 
 
'l/'J/21Jl5 1" 24,J&7 24,1&7 29,cm,cm 
 
3/l/'2JJU 1" 24,1&1 24,1&7 29,cm.cm 
 
4/1/2015 1" 24,l&7 24,167 29,cm,a 
 
S/J/211JS 1" 24.117 ~l61 29,GJD.OID 
 
6/1/"l!JU 24,167 24,1&7 29,QOID
1" 
7/'l/DS 24,1&7 24,1&1 ~cm.cm1"
8/1,/'lOU 24,167 24,1&1 29.cm,om1" 
9/1/2I115 1" 24,l&7 24,1&7 29,mo_rm 

JD/l/D5 1" 24,1&7 24,1&7 29,cm,om 
ll/1JD5 1" 24,1&1 2,\167 29,CIIUDI 
l2/J/2m5 24,1&7 24,W 29,cm,cm FY15 290,cm 
l/1/71JU 1" "' 24,161 24,1&7 29,cm,om 
2/J/2/U 1" 24,1&7 24,1&7 acm,cm 
 
3/J/'JJU 1" 24,167 24,167 29,cm,000 
 
4/J/1JU 1" :Z4,1&7 24,1&7' 29,cxxicm 
 
5/J/'JJU 1" 24,167' ~1&7 29,CXJQ,GJO 
 
6/J/21111 24,167 24,1&7 29,cniooo
1" 
1/1/'ZIU 1" 24,167 24,1&7 a.cm.mo 
 
8/1/D.I ~167 24,1&7 a,cm.om
1" 
9/2/1DJ4 1" 24,167 24,1&7 29,cm.cm 

10/2/1DU 1" 24,167 24,1&7 29,cm,cm 
11/1.PJJl& 1'I 24,1&7 24,1&7 29,CXJQ,CIJO 
12/1.pDU 1" , 24,1&7 24,1&7 29,...., FV1& 290,CDJ 
l/l/D7 1" 24,1&7 24,1&7 29,m,.m, 
2/l/JDJ.7 1" 24,1&7 24,l&7 29.cm,cm 
 
3/'J/71J17 1" 24,167 24,1&7 29,(DICID 
 
4/'J/'JD17 1" 24,1&7 24,lB7 29.mq,cm 
 
5/1/11J17 1" 24.1&7 24,1&7 29,GD.CID 
 
6/'J/71J17 1'6 24,187 JA.1&7 29,0IQ,CDJ 
 
7/1/1D17 1" 24,167 24,1&7 29,CO,.mJ 
 
8/'J/JD17 1" 24,167 24,1&7 29.CDIGIJ 
 
9/i/1D17 1" 24,1&7 24,1&7 29,(DlaD 

10/J/ll117 1" 24,167 24,167 acm.cm 
11/l/'11117 24,1&7 24,167 29,cm,cm 1" 

G:Vor 11111\W!A\Mln!IW'Clwe•llli'\0CIH111l1• ~11•m pa,-------Ul!MnllrLwtafDlll.daal 
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Pav,,.ntSdtHule Elllllllt2fmntlnuedl 
 
Period P1l1ic:11!!!! CMl•:!!!'IFllal Yr.FYTatalPvmt
lntaNst TotalPvrlll ....... 
 
ll/l/2Dl7 1" 24,1&7' 24,167 29,B.CXD FY17 290,0ID 

1/l/20U 1" 2,\167 24,167 29,cm,m, 
2/1/7.0U 24,167 24,167 29,cm,cm 
3/1/'1DU "' 24,167 24,167 29,cm,cm1,. 
4/1/JJD 	 24,167 2,\1&7 29,cm,ooo"' S/l/1DU 1" 24,161. 24,1&7 29.cm,cm 
 
6/l/11JU 24,167 2-\167 29,cm,cm
1" 
7/3/}Jm 	 2-\1&7 24,167 29,CXJO,CXD·1" 
8/llllM 1" 24,1&7 2-\167 29,cm,cm 
 
9/l/1DB 24,Ui7 24,167 29,cm,cm . 
 1"

lD/1/'llU 	 24,161 24,167 29,0lll,CID1" 
11/JfJIU 	 2-\167 24,167 29,cm,cm1" 
ll/J/7/JU 2-\1&7 24,167 29,cm,ml FY18 290,000 
l/2/HJl'J "' 24,167 Zo\167 29,0lll,CIJO1" 
2/lf1lJJ9 1" 24,167 	 24,167 29,CIJO,IDJ· 

'J/1/'1l119 1" 2~167 24,167' 29.exlltm 
 
4/l/2D19 m 24,167 24,167 29,cm,cm­
5/1/ll119 1" 2-\1&7 24,167 zg,cm,cm 
 
6/J/'111J!J	291000.CID 1"§OK167 2!167 FY19 29,14.,\000 

29,ooo,cm 30,45D_CID 1,451>.0DD 
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TACTICAL GOALS FOR OFFICE OF PRESIDENT FOR 2014-15 
 
The 2020 Plan: Making it Happen 
 

Begin 
Construction 

of the 

Belknap 

Research 

Park and 

Lease 2 Initial 

sites 

Design 

interior 

roadways for 

site selection 

and plan 

infrastructure 

for 

underground 

utilities 

Complete 

connector 

roadway and 

begin construction 

of interior 

roadway plan; 

negotiate with GE 

regarding lease 

for anchor tenant 

on Belknap 

Research Park 

Secure final 

commitment from GE 

and commitment from 

at least one other 

company to lease sites 

in Park. 

Several models were discussed with community advisers 

and administrative team. Consultant designed options to 

bisect the Belknap Research Park or to encircle the park. 

The circular roadway along the perimeter was selected as 

the preferred option because it allowed maximum site 

development for companies located in the park. The 

planning for underground utilities is complete. There is 

funding to begin the interior roadway from existing funds, 

but will take a change order and will reduce funding for 

some of the aesthetic elements for branding the research 

park. Uofl has submitted a proposal to the Kentucky 

Cabinet for Economic Development and the Governor for 

$7MM to implement the Interior road plan. No decision 

has been made on the supplementary funding. 

As stated above, the plan is complete for the 

infrastructure of the interior arterial road. The connector 

roadway and bridges are complete and open for traffic. 

Negotiations with GE about site relocation have been 

complicated by the announcement of Electrolux 
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 purchasing Appliance Park. Until the purchase ls 

approved by GE, Electrolux, and the federal government, 

UofL cannot proceed any further. In the interim, Uofl 

recrulted Underwriters Laboratories (UL) to our emerging 

institute for product realization (IPR). At this site are GE's 

1st Build, UL training institute, Local Motors, and IPR's 

Engineering Enhancement Garage (EEG)-all three 

companies are prospects for future development in the 

Belknap Research Park. 

The commitment from GE is pending until a decision 

about Electrolux is approved by the federal government 

and the respective shareholders . Discussions with other 

companies focus on UL, USGS, and others that are 1n very 

early stages of interest. 

COMPLETED: Better 

Implement 

Floyd Street 

Corridor Plan 

to promote 

commercializ 

ation of 

contiguous 

land 

Initiate 

Design/ 

Engineering 

Services by 

August and 

develop 

construction 

plans for 

Floyd Funding; 

Roundabout 

and 

Engineering 

Pedestrian 

Complete 

demolition of 

Solae property 

(silos etc), prepare 

land for 

temporary 

parking; identify 

highest and best 

use plan for the 

property; develop 

revenue strategy 

and tim etable for 

building out the 

Implement the Floyd 

Street improvements 

to Central Avenue; 

rebrand Warnock 

gateway as the main 

entrance to the 

University; and secure 

naming donat ion ($2­

SMM) for 

Welcome/Information 

Center on the corner 

of Floyd and Warnock. 

The design/engineering services were identified and 

approved for a team led by QK4 (engineering)/Stengel-Hill 

(architectural). Funding was approved effective late FY14. 

A timellne for the roundabout, Warnock entrance, and 

plans for the pedestrian overpass is complete. The 

Cardinal/Brandeis roundabout willbe implemented In 

summer 2016 to accommodate the bus schedules of 

Manual High School and Noe Middle. More than 80 buses 

discharge daily between 2:30 and 4:00 and any delayed 

bus departures significantly affect bus departures for 

multiple elementary schools later in the afternoon. The 

logistical preparation for the closure of the 

Cardinal/Brandeis/Floyd Street intersection willtake 
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I Overpass as 

1 initial projects 
I 

property nearly 12 months to assure detour implementation goes 
as smoothly as possible. · Planning for the pedestrian 
overpass between Speed Engineering and the Belknap 
Research Park is complete and a funding proposal has 

been submitted to the Governor. Warnock Avenue 
(between 1-65 and Brook Street) implementation will be 
completed during summer 2015 and open for traffic by 
late August 2015 prior to opening of Fall term. 

The accepted bid for razing the Solae site was $1.BMM 
with an option to reduce the cost by sharing in the 
salvage. ULDC agreed to revenue-share in the salvage, 

Ithus reducing the final cost of the demolition and site 

preparation for temporary parking use to approximately 
$160,000. There was significant stainless steel 
throughout the buildings and usable equipment on site 
that contributed to the salvage revenue. The revenue-

share model was a very good outcome. With the help of a 
senior advisory committee representing the Uofl 
Foundation, the highest and best use was determined to 
be commercial. Several hotels and corporations have I 

I 
I 

I 

reached out to the ULDC regarding possible land leases 

and potential buildings. Athletic Administration has I 

expressed a strong intent to relocate to this site as a 

companion to the commercial development. All 
developers have stated the presence of Athletic 
Administration would be an enhancement to their plans . 
Most recently, representatives of Intercontinental Hotels 
have inspected the site and expressed preliminary 

interest . The revenue strategy would be similar to the 
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strategic implementation at ShelbyHurst-land leases to 

the Uofl Foundation and joint venture with a selected 
(yet to be determined) developer. 

The Lynn Soccer Stadium made significant improvement 

along Floyd Street between the Norfolk-Southern railroad 

and Central Avenue. ULDC has secured agreement with 
the Episcopalian Diocese regarding "reversionary rights" 

to seven acres roughly east of the Lynn Stadium for a 

practice soccer field between Byrne Street and 1-655. 

ULDC has made an offer to Metro Parks to assist with 

relocation of its maintenance facility (approximately two 

acres at the southern perimeter), which was built in the 
early 60s and has had very little Improvements slnce then. 

The Diocese is ready to litigate Its reversionary right 

against the Parks Department for violating the conditions 

of the use of the Church's land, but the Foundation would 

prefer to partner with Metro Parks to relocate rather than 

wait for a lengthy litigious battle. The Church has 

evidence the Parks Department over the past years has 
violated the restrictions on the land (to use as a park) by 

selling parking for Cardinal football games. The 

University secured $2MM (cash) in philanthropy in 
December 2014 so funding for the Welcome/Information 

Center will be immediately available for construction as 
soon as a practice soccer field is committed. In 

preparation for changing the name of Warnock Avenue 

between Crittenden Drive and Brook Street, the ULDC has 

secured the support of the businesses whose addresses 

are currently Warnock Avenue. All businesses were very 

4 



supportive of the name change. ULDC has begun working 

with Metro Council behind the scenes to proceed with the 

ordinance to change the designation on the street. 
Additionally, ULDC is working with General Welding (on 

the corner of Floyd and Byrne Streets) about trading out 

land. If this land swap proceeds, the corner across from 

the Lynn Stadium and the Papa John's Cardinal Stadium 

could be programmed as green space to improve the 

aesthetics of the Floyd corridor. 

COMPLETED:BEST 

Plan revenue Identify Activate the Work with After discussions with Churchill Downs, it appears the 
strategies targeted areas Belknap Research ShelbyHurst to corporation has no immediate interest in developing a 
that include for ParkTIF by enhance revenue hotel on property south of Central Avenue between 4th 
TIF income, fund raising, 12/31/14; work stream for 7OONand and 3rd until expanded gaming is approved in some form 
fund raising, e.g., heart , with state and city SOON.Begin traffic by the Legislature. So, ULDC pursued hotel Interest on 
and better A&S, cancer , to identify study of Hurstbourne Floyd Street at the Solae site mentioned earlier. This 
utilization of and other potential revenue and Shelbyville Road location has more than 180,000 vehicles pass by daily on 
university pockets of and secure as next phase to the interstate and is likely to increase that number in the 
assets to potential funding; expand further develop park. future when the Ohio bridges are complete. 1-65 dissects 
increase excellence; northern Plan for total build out the nation and the visibility of any hotel on the Cardinal 
funding for map out boundary of of research and office footprint {former Solae site) is substantial. ULDC moved 
centers of strategies, Belknap TIF to park. away from the potential of Churchill Downs as a partner 
academic and begin Burnett & and has begun considering other sites with hoteliers. 
excellence campaigns Meriwether and 

partner with The TIF for the Belknap Research Park was activated on 

Churchill Downs 12/31/14. Construction data is being collected and 

to extend shared with the City and State in preparation for a 

southern reimbursement in 2016. Working with Metro Council, the 

TIF was expanded north to Hill Street (made possible 
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boundary to 

Fourth and 

Central Streets . 
This will 

encompass the 

potential for a 

jointly developed 

hotel to serve 
Uofl's research 

park, Uofl's sports 

facilities, and 

Churchill Downs. 

because the City decreased the size of the Arena TIF) and 

east to Meriwether and Brandeis. This expansion has 

allowed ULDC to target site acquisitions that are 

attractive to developers. Currently, there is strong 

interest for building multi-generational housing near 

Uofl. Many other national universities are working with 

senior living corporations to build these types of 

residential communities. The northeast area of the 

Belknap TIF map is the most attractive to these 

developers. 

Planning for building commercial and office space on 

ShelbyHurst Is complete . The traffic study Is finished and 

drafted by QK4 (the firm that did the original study 

regarding the extension of Whittington Parkway). The 

identification of commercial sites along Shelbyville Road 
frontage and Hurstbourne Parkway frontage ls complete 

and has been designed. The final plece is multi-family 

designation along Whipps Mill Road. With these three 

components, the ShelbyHurst Park ls completely designed 

for maximum revenue generation. ULDC has begun, along 

with its NTS partner, zoning these parcels. Most of the 

park is already zoned OR-3 (office). The designation to C­
2 along Shelbyville Road and Hurstbourne Parkway is 

underway. Neighborhood meetings have taken place and 

there has been substantial push-back on multi-family 

along Whipps Mill. This phase of the development could 
be postponed for several years if commercial zoning is 

approved. The ShelbyHurst TIF will need a big boost from 
new construction to reach its $200MM capital threshold 
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as 700N contributes only about $2SMM and SOON will add 
approximately $27MM toward the capital goal. The 

leasing on 700N is 99% full and cons·truction on SOON is 

going vertical . Already, leasing for a corporate 

headquarters at SOON is in early stages of discussion. 

1 Once SOON Is complete, it will be flecessary to implement 

I recommendations from the traffic study to permit future 

development on ShelbyHurst. 

I COMPLETED:BEST 

Implement Work with Develop budget Utilize the ACC to Working with the Athletic Director, planning for away 

plans for Athletic and plan for new promote academic trips included football schools such as Notre Dame, 
entering the Director Jurich sport programs to excellence in Athletics Clemson, and others. Florida State was a home game and 

Atlantic to capitalize meet the needs of as well as throughout execution of a friend-raising trip to FSU will occur In Fall 

Coast 	 on ACC competition the University; 2015. Planning for the Chick-fil-a game in Atlanta 

Conference opportunities 	 associate the historic occurred throughout the spring and the Cardinals will 
as of in the ACC; 	 prominence of Uofl match up with Auburn as the University's opener. The 

I 7/1/2014 plan for with other members University offered friend-raising trips to Puerto Rico for 

friend-ra ising of the ACC (ie UVA, the men's basketball tournament as well as other trips 
1 trips to select 	 etc); and build media during the regular season. The major change in the 

new ACC 	 relations around the University's ACC schedule has focused on football. 

schools 	 new "neighborhood" Additionally, prior to entering the ACC, the Athletic 

of members. 	 Director and his staff critiqued each of the University's 

sports teams and we buttressed the team support where 
needed. Two specific areas Identified were soccer and 

golf for men's and women's teams. Golf is a major sport 

in the ACC so the University invested, with the help of the 

Uofl Foundation, in a golf course for the team sport. The 

golf course will provide the facility for home team and 
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-
individual matches. It is intended to be tournament 

quality. With a lead gift from Dr. Mark and Cindy Lynn, a 

new state-of-the art soccer stadium was built along with 

training facilities for both teams. The soccer stadium cost 
approximately $1SMM and the golf course has had an 

investment of nearly $8MM (to date) to enhance the 

fairways and greens to competitive levels. 

The University, along with Athletics, hosted the ACC 

schools' offices of financial affairs and communications 

and marketing. The relationships forged from these joint 

meetings (held Derby Week) have great promise for 

elevating the operations of both units at Uofl. The ACC 

schools praised the planning, the execution, and the 

substance of these joint conferences and reported they 

learned much about Uofl's successes. The 
recommendation is to continue with these conferences in 

an away and home format. 

Cardinal Athletics purchased a programming trailer, as an 

ACC requirement, that facilitates the live broadcast on 

ESPN93.9FM of any home sports event. Along with 

Athletics, we sponsored, effective 7 /1/15 a radio 

presence on 93.9FM that includes 1800 (90 sec spot) 

infomercials/month about Cardinal academic excellence 

(faculty, staff, and students) throughout the University, 
and a weekly 30-mln. radio show (to be ramped up to 

dally) with Mark Hebert who will inteNiew and showcase 
extraordinary talent in our faculty, staff, and students. 

The programming has just begun and will follow routinely 
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any broadcast of a Cardinal sports competition. The 

intent is to share with listeners the successes of Uofl off 

the field as well as on the field. This a precursor for 

participation in an ACC cable channel when that Is 
launched by the conference. 

COMPLETED: BEST 

9 



3.10.3 fn19 

Contributions receivable as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 are due to be received as follows (in 
thousands): 

2015 2014 
Less than one year $ 7,472 $ 6,444 
One to three years 10,676 10,503 
Greater than three years 12,417 13,744 

Subtotal 30,565 30,69 1 
 
Less discount (494) (706) 
 
Less allowance (3,154) (2,290) 
 
Net contributions receivable $ 26,917 $ 27,695 
 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange 
Transactions, as amended by GASB Statement No. 36 Recipient Reporting for Certain Shared 
Nonexchange Revenues, the University records operating and capital pledges as revenue when all 
eligibility requirements have been met. Endowment pledges are not recognized as revenue until the 
gifts are received. 

4. Due From the Foundation 

In accordance with the University's agency agreement with the Foundation, the University receives 
and disburses monies on behalf of the Foundation. The net amount of these receipts and 
disbursements is recorded as a due to or from the Foundation in the sta1ements of net position. 
Generally, the receivable or payable is cleared within the subsequent month: however, no formal 
agreement governs the time period in which payments are to be made. 

[n June 2014, the University entered into a Memorandum of Agreement with the Four.dation to loan 
the Foundation a total of $29.0 million. The unpaid balance on the receivable bears i,imple interest 
equal to 75 basis points greater than the University's cash sweep rate of 25 basis points as of June 30, 
2015 and June 30, 2014, respectively. The term of the loan is one year from the fi ,al transfer of 
funds to the Foundation. The June 30, 2014 balance of $5.8 million is recorded within the current 
Due from the University of Louisville Foundation, Inc. on the statement of net position. As of 
June 30, 2015 the loan has been completely repaid. 



3.10.3 fn20 
 

2016 2015 
Less than one year $ 5,463 $ 7,472 

One to three years 16,998 10,676 
Greater than three years 10,944 12,417 

Subtotal 33,405 30,565 
Less discount (810) (494) 

Less allowance (2,071) (3,154) 
Net contributions receivable $ 30,524 $ 26,917 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting/or Nonexclza11ge 
Transactions, as amended by GASB Statement No. 36 Recipient Reporting for Certain Shared 
Nonexchange Revenues, the University records operating and capital pledges as revenue when all 
eligibility requirements have been met. Endowment pledges are not recognized as revenue until the 
gifts are received. 

5. Due From the Foundation 

In accordance with the University's agency agreement with the Foundation, the University receives 
and disburses monies on behalf of the Foundation. The net amount of these receipts and 
disbursements is recorded as a due to or from the Foundation in the statements of net position. 
Genera1\y, the receivable or payable is cleared within the subsequent month; however, no fonnal 
agreement governs the time period in which payments are to be made. 

By memorandum of agreement dated July 1, 2015, the University agreed to loan a total of 
$38.0 million to the ULREF. The receivable sha11 be repaid in fu11 or satisfied through other financial 
instruments within 3 years of the effective date of the agreement, with effective date defined as the 
date on which the University transfers funds to the ULREF. The unpaid balance on the receivable 
bears simple interest equal to 75 basis points greater than the University's cash sweep rate. The 
repayment schedule calls for interest only payments semi-annually and a balloon repayment of any 
unpaid receivable and interest at the end of the term. The transfer of funding was completed August 
7, 2015. The ULREF repaid $28.2 million of the loan during fiscal 2016 leaving a balance of$9.8 
million as of June 30, 2016 that is recorded as noncurrent Due from the University of Louisville Real 
Estate Foundation, Inc. on the statement of net position. 

6. Capital Assets, Net 

Capital assets as of June 30, 2016and2015 are as follows and on the following page (in thousands): 
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payment dates descrfbed above. 

University of Loufsvlfle Universityof Loulsvllle 
Real Estate undatlon, Inc. 

~~A~ .. 
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MEMORANDUM 
OF AGREEMENT 

University of Laulsvlffe Recafvablafrom 
th• Uofl Rnl Estate Foundation,Inc. 

This Receivable Agreement(Recelvahle) Is dated the tSTdayof ~l't . 2015,by and betwe.en the. 
OF LOUISVILLE FOUNDATION,UNIVERSITYOF LOUISVILLE (Unlversfty)and the UNIVERSJTV REALESTATE

INC.(Foundation)asI source of fundlns for the Foundation L attached.Theac:tMtles detaRed InE>!blblt
Foundationagreesto repay the Receivableaccordingto the terms outlinewithinthis document. 

ThisReceivableshaY be repaidIn fub or satisfied throush other flnancfalInstruments within!. year(s) 
(-Yemf) of the Effecttve Dateof this a1reement.The Effect!vet>ate shallbe defined as the date on 
which the Unlversfly transfers $38,000,000 to the FoundaUon. 

The unpaid balanceon the Recelvabfa shaU bear simple fnterest equal to 75basispaints grnter than the 
University'scashsweepRate (25 basispoints as of the Effective Dateof this &IJ'l!ement)perannum, 
compounded seml--annually, with Interest-only paymentstwicea year (Deaimber and June), with1 

balloon repayment of any unpaid recetvable and Interest at the end of the Tenn of the agreement. The 
FouncfatJonshallreservethe rfshtto make addltlonal payments at any timeduring the Term of the 
Recefvablethereby redudni: future prfnclpafand Interest payments. Alfaddltlonal payments wlfI be first 
applied to unpaid rnterest and then to outstandlnaprlndpal.Exhibit represents2, Payment Schedule, 
tha annual financial obllptlons of the Foundation In theevent no Recelvable pre-paymentsare made 
towardtheoutstandln11balance. 

PaymentScheduleExhibitzwDIbe revisedshouldtheFoundationmakeaddltlonalpayments towards 
the R~celvable durfnstheTerm outlined above. 

The Foundation will useIncome1eneratedfrom the activities d1taned fnExhibit1. amonsothers. u the 
soun:e of funds to make the requiredpaymentson the ReceJvabf e. 

Paymentsfrom the Foundation to the Unfverslty wW be wiredto the University on, or before, the 

., 
 

http:betwe.en


• • 
• 

Iii • • 1 .. ' 

Exhlblt1 

Use of Funds: $6,200,000 to cover matching funding of the BelknapResearch& TechnologyPark 
 
Connector project 
 
$4,500))00 In matchlns funds for the Floyd & Warnock Straetscapes project 
 
$3,200,000estimatedpurchase price for K&ILumber 
 
$500,000 to payUofl Counseflng's CardinalStatfon lease flt-outexpenditures 
 
$1,400,000 e.stlmated construction costsfor the Speed/UL AMCC space 
 
$22,000,000 ULREF line of aedJt prtndpal payment to ULF 
 

Thechart below Illustrates the savings ULREF will achieve alcng withInterest revenue the UniversityIs 
expectedto receive over the llfe of the foancomparedtoflnandngfrom an unrelatedfinancial 
lnsUtutfon •• 

AMCCc:.plbl 
UMlUneof 	 IC&II.Umb., CDllntdna ll 

O.dltPyml ~ Luse ffl•Out Constrvdlon 
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lntarcompanyFfnandns Benefits 
1. 	 Interest payments received annually from ULREF wlll be $285,000 greaterthan If the funds 
 

remainlnvesttdat the current sweep rate (,25")· 
 
2. 	 AnnualInterestpayments,estimated at $380,000, wmbe madeto the Universityrather than to 
 

an unrelated financial Institution. 
 
3. 	 ThestatedInterest rate In the qreement wmfloat with current market rates; If Interest rates 
 

Increase, the University wlll stJU earn 75 basis paints above their current bank swe~p rate 
 
mltlptlng any Interest rate risk associated with the fundln1, 
 

4. 	 Projects flnanced Internallyallowfor sranlflcant cost savings. Interest payment savings achieved 
 
by ULREF over the term (5 yrs.) of the proposed asreement. 
will be approx. $2.4 mHllon 
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3.10.3 fn22 

Benefits to University of Louisville of Loans Made to the University of Louisville 
Foundation (ULF) and the University of Louisville Real Estate Foundation (ULREF) 

(as outlined in the Memoranda of Agreement) 

Date Benefit to the Universitv of Louisville 
2014 1. Interest payments received on investment from the Foundation ( 1 % return) are 

$1,377,500 greater than if money remains invested at the current sweep rate 
(.25%). 

2. Net return on $36,000,000 of University short term investments in fiscal year 
2013 were only $34,000. 

I 

I 

I 

3. Total interest paid to the University is $1,450,000 over the life of the five year 
loan, assuming no change in bank sweep rates. University is be'neficiary of all 
interest revenues over the life of the loan rather than payments to an unrelated 
financial institution 

4. Interest rate will be allowed to float with current bank sweep rates. The scenario 
assumes bank sweep rate (.25%) plus .75% margin (total 1% return). If sweep 
rate increases, the University will still return 75 basis points above the sweep 
rate covering any interest rate risk associated with the loan. 

5. Projects financed internally allow for significant cost savings. Interest payment 
savings are more than $3,700,000. Additionally, the University will avoid 
indirect financing charges such as bank fees. Compliance fees, and other legal 
and professional fees. 

2015 1. Interest payments received annually from ULREF will be $285,000 greater than 
if the funds remain invested at the current sweep rate (.25%). 

2. Annual interest payments, estimated at $380,000, will be made to the University 
rather than to an unrelated financial institution. 

3. The stated interest rate in the agreement will float with current market rates. If 
interest rates increase, the University will still earn 75 basis points above the 
current bank sweep rate mitigating any interest rate risk associated with the 
funding. 

4. Projects financed internally allow for significant cost savings. Interest payment 
savings achieved by ULREF will be approx. $2.4 million over the term of the 
proposed agreement. 
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KeyPoints 
 

• The Fiduciary Duty of the Board of Trustees 

• The Multifaceted Nature of the University and Shared 
Governance 

• The Role of CPE - the Council on Postsecondary 
Education 

• What it Means to Be "Public" ~; 

• Related Organizations 

LOUISVILLE . 
 
2 



Chargefrom the Governor- E.O.2016-338 
 
----- - ---- ----- ' ·- -· ,_ _____-· - - - · - --- ----· ·---- ..- -~--- -------- -· 

TheUofl Btlardot·1rust~ ·s.lis;c..... 
the responsiltJilitYof:: 

I 
• Securing1 

• Governin·g 

• Manag
1
ing_ 



j 

• Avoid Engaging in· Interested lir:~rnsacticills~diS.8'1;feffl~ ·.,pwval-
• Maintain the University's-Coofidential1..Jti1f&l!mali00 

• Duty of Disclosure 

Fiduciary Duty 
 

• Duty of Care 
• Attend Meetings, Stay Informed 

I 

• Make Decisions with Good Faith, ~ 1amdPft!Jdeote,, .Oridjna lta1ie 

• Duty of Loyalty - h&t. :ll rr ~erteffi·~f'f niBers~ity 
 
· - 11• Refrain from Usurping universityGlp~unities .t.. tf01l?errs0llalGaif.l 



Fiduciary Duty and Reliance 
 

• 	 A trustee is entitled to: ·re'.IJtt n1l11IQ~aa1i·-" 
lli>v: 

;rtlllne:tru-­

and opinions prepare~'t1rf'ies1fdled 

1 ., 
reasonably believ~S lte: !te1 t~1iab'IB1ala­

• 	 Officers and: emploJee$W~tC> 

·j1p.\0rts 

'Cuffpetemt 
 
in the matterrs)pr.~seR1te8H}fl:d 

1l~j.b,~J ~~ ·­
-----. - . - - --=:,--~ 



Powers of the Board 
 

Key Powers of the Board: 


• Standard powers of "body corporate" 
• Acquire and Dispose of Property, Borrow Money, Enter into Agreements 

• Appointment and removal of f acuity and administrators 
 

• Administration of revenues/approval of budget 

• Issuance of revenue bonds 

• Conferring of degrees 
• Evaluation of university's progress 
 

in meeting its mission and goals 
 

E.O.. 2016-338and KRS 164.830 

LOUISVILLE . 
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The University l_s MultifaCeted 
 

The University has Many Constituents: 

• Students, Parents, F acuity, Staff, and Alumni 

• Patients 

• State and Local Government 

• Business Partners 

• Community Partners 

• Citizens of the Commonwealth 

LOUISVILLE. 
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The University Is a Small City 
- - -- - . - - ­

The University: 
• Is home to thousands of residents 

• Features restaurants, shops, art galleries, gymnasiums 
 

• Offers a variety of performing arts and athletic events 

• Has a planetarium 

• Maintains roads and a power plant 

• Is protected by its own law enforcement agency 

LOUISVILLE . 
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The University Operates Through Shared Governance 
 

• 	 Interdependence-Among the Board of Trustees, 
Administration, F acuity, Students, Staff and Others 

• 	 Effective Communication 

• 	 Campus-wideInvolvement in Important Decisions 
 
• 	 The selection of key administrators 
• 	 The preparation of the budget 
• 	 The cletermination of educational policies 

• 	 The Redbook 

LOUISVILLE . 
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Kentucky Council on Postsecondary Education 
 

JI " Kentucky Council on n Postsecondary Education 

• 	 15 voting members + commissioner of education 
 
• 	 Develop a strategic agenda + implementation plan 
• 	 Develop a system of accoun~ability 
• 	 Submit a biennial budget request 
• 	 Determine tuition rates 
• 	 Set minimum admissions req. 
• 	 Approve academic programs 
• 	 Approve mission 
• 	 Develop a comprehensive 6-hour 
 

orientation and education program for 
 
trustees 
 

LOUISVILLE . 
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Uofl is Public 
 

• Accountability and transparency 
• Conflicts of interest 
 

• KRS 45A.340 
 
• By-Laws of Board of Trustees 
 
• Redbook 
• Institutional Conflict of Interest Policy 
• Annual Disclosure Form 

• Public Records 
• Open Meetings 

• First Amendment 
.. 

LOUISVILLE . 
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Pub I ic Records 

•· "Public records" include 
 

all documentation regardless of physical form ... 
prepared, owned, used, in the possession of or 
retained by a public agency. 

• 	 "Public agency" includes Uofl. 

• 	 Records shall be provided within 3 days, absent good 
reason for the delay. 

LOUISVILLE . 
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Public Records Requests 
 

• 	 600 Requests Received in 2015 
• 	 On Similar Pace for 2016 
• 	 Examples: 

• 	 . All Records Related to Uofl's 
Accreditation since 2007 

• 	 Records indicating the Number 
of Concussions Received by our 
Athletes in All Sports in Each of 
Past 5 Years 

• 	 All Trustee Conflict of Interest 
Disclosure Statements 

LOUISVILLE. 
 
14 



Confidential Records Exempt from Disclosure 
 

1. Student education records -- FERPA 

2. Confidential healthcare information 

3. Test questions and scoring keys 

4. Records of law enforcement agencies 

5. Antiterrorism plans 

6. Preliminary drafts 

7. Records containing personal information which, if disclosed, 
would constitute an unwarranted invasion of privacy 

LOUISVILLE . 
 
15 



Redaction 
 

If public material and confidential material is 
commingled, the public agency must separate out the 
confidential information and make the rest available. 

LOUISVILLE . 
 
16 



Open Meetings 
-	 --- - = ·-	 -- - ­

• 	 Applies to Meetings of a Quorum of the Board at 

which Public Business is Discussed or Action is 

Taken 


• 	 Applies to Committees 

• 	 Permits Public Attendance 

• Requires Prior Notice to Public 
 

• 	 Requires Minutes be Kept 

LOUISVILLE . 
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First Amendment 
 

The First Amendment to the Constitution prohibits the 
government, including public universities, from 
encroachingon free speech. 

• 	 Reasonabletime, place, and manner restrictions may be 
imposed on speech 

• 	 Regulating speech based on its content, with 	 I 

certain exceptions like "fighting words" and 
"obscenity," is deemed to be a violation of the 
First Amendment. 

LOUISVILLE . 
 
18 




 


(/) 
C 
0·-...., 
 ca 
 
N·­
C: 
 
ca 
 
C, 
'­


-c 
Cl)...., 
 
(0-(1.) 

c::: 
 

•
(.) 
C:-... 0 
C: LL.. 
0 .c:·-..... (.)ca 
 
-c 
 
C: 
::::, 
 
0 
 

LL.. 
 
C1)
-
-
·­
>

V')·-::::, 
0 

...J 

~ 
(.) 

ca ·-..... 
 
C1) C1) 
V') -.c:C1) ...., 
~ <C 
C1)--·­>
V')·-::::, 
0 

...J 
~ ~ 

0 
 

~ 
·-V') 
~ 
C1) 

>
·­
C: 
::, 
 

• 
 

0 

~ 
·-V') 
~ 
C1) 

>·- •
C: 

::, 

0 



C1) 
C: 
 
C1) 
L.. 
C1) 

-
(/') 

.... 
(0 
L.. 
.c 
C1) 
L.. 
C1) 

u 
 



• • • • • • • 

.c 
0-, 
L.. 
::::s 
0 

(/).... 

cu 

(.) 

q·­
0 
cu 

C, 
ca
·­

(/).... (/) 

cu 

~ 
ca 


-E 

ca 
.... cu 


I- C 


.... 

0 

(/).... 
 
0 
 
(/)·->
-c 
ca 

~ 
...., 0....,
ca·-...., -ca 


0 

C, 
cu 
z

• 


(/) (/).... (/)-c.... a.> ........ca cu 
ca0 a.> -c 
.c C:-(.) ...... (/)C, ·­

ca ....,
:::s C: ...., ·­
cu
C: C:·- -(.) 0-c 

C, :::s (/) 

cu 0 .c 
~ V) 0 

-:::s 

0 


V)
• 

....(/).... cu
 
(.)-cu 
C:C, caC, ­:::s ca 
-, ca
 



Finding Solutions 
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UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE 

FOUNDATION 

Board of Directors Orientation 

o·ecember 21, 2016 
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1. Conflictof Interest 
2. Overview of By-laws 
3. Open Meetings & Open RecordsAct 
 

'.(~ UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE FOUNDATION 
2 



UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE 

FOUNDATION 
 

Conflict of Interest 
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Purpose 
 

ULFis a not-for-profit organization whose 
 
work is exclusively for the charitable and 
 
educational purposes of the University of 
 

Louisville 
 

• UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE FOUNDATION 
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1. 	 No income or property of ULF can inure to the 
private profit of any donor, member, trustee or 
individual. 

Also, the Foundation cannot: 
1. 	 Directl .Y or indirectly engage in propaganda. 
2. 	 Attempt to influence legislation. 
3. 	 Participate or interfere in any political campaign on 

behalf of any candidate for public office . 
4. 	 Engage in self-dealing or retain any excess holdings, 

make any investments, or taxable expenditures that 
subjects ULF to corporate tax. 

• 	 UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE FOUNDATION 
7 



Board of Directors 

Charge 

Manage the property and affairs of ULF 
 

Com{!osition 

15 Directors: Ex-Officio (1), Trustee Directors (4), 
 
and At-Large Directors (10) 
 

• UNIVERSllY OF LOUISVILLE FOUNDATION 
8 



Ex-Officio Director 
President of the University of Louisville 
 

Serves as a voting member of the Board 
 

The Ex-Officio Director shall at all times be the 
 
University of Louisville President 
 

Vacancy 
 

Shall not be filled until such time as a successor is 
 
named as the University President 
 

- UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE FOUNDATION 
9 



Trustee Directors 
Four persons who are members of the University of 
 

Louisville Board of Trustees 
 

The Chairman of the Board of Trustees shall appoint 
 
Trustee Directors 
 

Vacanc~ 
 
Shall be filled by the person serving as the Chairman of the 

Board of Trustees at the time the vacancy occurs 

Newly appointed director shall serve the remaining term of 
the Director who resigned 

• UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE FOUNDATION 
10 



At-Large Directors 
10 Persons 
 

At-Large Directors must be interested in the mission and 
 
welfare of the University of Louisville 
 

They must NOT be a Trustee, Officer or Employee of the 
 
· University 
 

OR 
hold any elective or appointive office in the Commonwealth 
 

of Kentucky, or any agency, instrumentality or political 
 
subdivision of the Commonwealth 
 

• UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE FOUNDATION 
11 



At-Large Directors 
At-Large Directors shall be elected by a majority vote of 
 

the incumbent Directors 
 

At-large candidates are proffered by the members of the 
 
Nominating Committee 
 

Vacancy 
 

Shall be filled by a majority vote of the remaining Directors 

Newly elected directors shall serve the remaining term of 
the Director who resigned 

1.­~ UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE FOUNDATION 
12 



ULF Committees 
6 Standing Committees 

1. Executive Committee 
2. Finance Committee 
3. Nominating Committee 
4. Development Cabinet 
5. Property Committee 
6. Audit Committee 

• UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE FOUNDATION 
13 



Meetings 

3 Different T't.ll_esotMeetings 
 

1. 	 Annual Meeting (1) -September 
• 	 At the annual meeting the Board elects officers and 

the Executive Committee to serve for 1 year terms 

2. 	 Regular Meetings (3) -March, June & December 
 

3. 	 Special Meetings (Called by Chair or President) 
 
• 	 Or at the request of 3 or more Directors 

• UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE FOUNDATION 
14 
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Quorums& Voting 
Quorum =A majority of the Board where more than 
 

half are At-Large Directors 
 

Committee Quorums 
 

Quorum =A majority of the Committee where more 
 
than half are At-Large 
 

Exception is: Nominating Committee where ALL members 
 
must be present to select and recommend At-Large Directors 
 

- UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE FOUNDATION 
15 



Article V-Sundry Provisions 

Comt2.ensation of Officers and Emt2.loyees 
Compensation due from the Corporation to any person 
 

shall be f ixed by resolution of the Board of Directors 
 

Indemnification 
 
Shall, to the full extent possible under Kentucky statute, 
 

indemnify each Director and officers of Corporation for legal 
 
fees, expenses, judgement, taxes, fines, settlement amounts, 
 

inured as the result of being a Director or Officer of ULF 

• UNIVERSllY OF LOUISVILLE FOUNDATION 
16 



ArticleVI-Amendment of By-laws 

The Board of Directors can amend, repeal or adopt 
 
new by-laws by a 2/3 rd vote of the full Board of 

Directors 
 

• UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE FOUNDATION 
17 
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When Must A Meeting Be Open 
 

• Any gathering of a quorum of the Board or of any 
Committee 

• A meeting need not be in person 

• Can be regular, special, informational, 	 or casual gathering held 
in anticipation of a regular or special meeting 

• If public business is discussed or any action taken, the 
meeting must be "open 11 subject to certain limited 
exceptions 

• UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE FOUNDATION 
19 



Quorums 

• Quorum: A majority of the Board or Committee where 
more than half attending are At-large Directors, except 
for the Nominating Committee where all members· must 
be present to select and recommend At-Large Directors 

• Can't arrange a series of meetings of less than a quorum 
where, if held together, would have constituted a 
quorum 

But individual meetings can take place where the purpose 
is to educate individual members on a specific issue 

• UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE FOUNDATION 
20 



Requirements 
• Time and place conducive to public viewing 

• At least 24 hour advance notice to public and media that have 
requested such notices (media can record and/or broadcast) 

• Notice includes: date, time, place and agenda 

• Discussion and action at the meeting shall be limited to items 
listed on the agenda in the notice 

• Minutes must be taken and available no later than immediately 
after next public meeting 

• Right to attend is to view and listen; doesn't grant right to participate 

• UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE FOUNDATION 
21 
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13 Open Discussion Exceptions 
(APPLICABLE): 

• Property purchase 	 or sale that, if discussed publicly, 
 
would likely affect the value of the property 
 

• Proposed 	 or pending litigation against or on behalf of 
agency 

• Personnel matters 	 that might lead to the appointment, 
discipline or termination of an employee 

• Discussions between 	 agency and another business 
regarding a specific proposal where, if discussed publicly, 
would jeopardize the siting, retention, expansion, or 
upgrading of the business · 

.. UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE FOUNDATION 
22 



UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE 
 

·i· FOUNDATION 
 

Open Records Act 
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What Are The Requirements? 
• "Public record" includes (among other records): paper 

records, recordings, software, emails, databases, 
electronically-created or stored information that is 
"prepared, owned, used, in the possession of or retained 
by a public agency." 

• Must produce or make available for inspection 
• Inspection must be at reasonable time and place 

• If produced, can charge for copying 

Do not need to compile information or create a document 
that doesn't exist 

UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE FOUNDATION 
24 



Production Process 
 
• 	 Public must submit a written request, describing desired information with 

pa rt i cu I a r i ty 

• 	 Agency must respond within three business days, excluding holidays 

• 	 Three days begins the day after request is received 

• 	 If request sent to wrong agency, or custodian, agency must notify requester and 
let them know who has it and provide contact information of correct custodian 

• 	 If record not available because it's in use or in storage, and can't be made 
available in three days, then must explain that and make it available as soon as 
possible 

• 	 If production would be unduly burdensome then must explain that "by clear 
and convincing evidence" 

• UNIVERSITY oF LOUISVILLE FOUNDATION 
25 



14 Exceptions to Production 
(APPLICABLE): 

• Personal in nature and would create invasion of privacy 
 
(i.e. address) 

• Confidential 	 and compiled and maintained for scientific 
research 

• If disclosure would 	 create an unfair commercial 
advantage to competitors to entity that disclosed records 
to the Agency 

• Pertain to prospective location of a business that hasn't 
 
already said it wants to be in, expand or relocate in KY 
 

- UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE FOUNDATION 
26 



14 Exceptionsto Production Continued 
 
• Public records or information 	 the disclosure of which is 

prohibited or otherwise made confidential (i.e. records 
subject to attorney-client privilege) 

• Real estate appraisals, engineering 	 or feasibility 
estimates made in the course of acquiring property­
until acquired. 

• Preliminary documents including drafts, notes 
correspondence with private individuals, 
recommendations and preliminary memos in which 
opinions are expressed or policies formulated 

• UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE FOUNDATION 
27 
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